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No. 21,931

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

General Telephone Company of

California, a corporation

Appellant,

vs.

Communication Workers of America,

an unincorporated association.

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This is an appeal by General Telephone Company of

California (hereinafter referred to as "Company") from

a judgment of the United States District Court for the

Central District of California which ordered Company to

arbitrate the issue of whether Robert L. Cherney, a

salaried supervisor at the time of discharge, was dis-

charged by Company for just cause.

Communications Workers of America (hereinafter re-

ferred to as "Union") initiated the action in the District

Court by filing a petition against Company to compel

arbitration pursuant to the Labor-Management Relations

Act, 1947, 29 U.S.C. § 185. The District Court found

that the dispute fell within the arbitration provisions of

the collective bargaining agreement between Company
and Union and ordered Company to submit to arbitration.
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JURISDICTION

The jurisdiction of the District Court arose under the

Labor-:Management Kelations Act, 1947, 29 U.S.C. § 185.

Jurisdiction of this Court to review the judgment exists

under 28 U.S.C. § 1291.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Statement of Facts.

Union and Company entered into a written collective

bargaining agreement (hereinafter referred to as

"Agreement") which became effective March 15, 1964.

(R. 6.)^ In the Agreement, Company agreed to recognize

Union as "the collective bargaining agent for all of its

wage-earning employees during the life of" the Agree-

ment. (R. 6, at p. 9.) "Wage-earning employees" is de-

fined in the Agreement as follows

:

".
. . all those persons on the payroll of the Com-

pany whose remuneration is expressed in the form

of hourly wages." Id.

Robert L. Cherney was discharged by Company on

February 4, 1965. At the time of liis discharge, he was
a salaried supervisor and not a wage-earning employee

as defined above. He had been a supervisory employee

at all times since August 31, 1964. (R. 27.) Cherney was
discharged for alleged misconduct during a strike which

ended March 15, 1964, and for disloyalty to the Company
as a supervisor, in that he failed to advise Company that

he was subpoenaed by Union to be its mtness in an arbi-

tration case involving the discharge of a wage-earning

employee and failed to voluntarily advise Company of the

_

i"R." refers to the Transcript of Record (June 20, 1967), con-
sisting of 15 pleadings and documents paginated consecutively.
"Tr." refers to the Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings in the
District Court (May 16, 1966).
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information he had concerning the aforementioned arbi-

tration case. (R. 27, 28.)

Company refused to accept a Union grievance protest-

ing Cherney's discharge on the ground that it was not

obligated by the Agreement to entertain a grievance pro-

testing or questioning the discharge of a supervisory em-

ployee. Company refused to submit to arbitration on the

same ground. (R. 28.)

Thereafter, the Union initiated an action in the District

Court to compel Company to arbitrate the question of

whether Cherney was discharged for just cause.

At trial, Company contended that it could not be com-

pelled to arbitrate the discharge of a salaried supervisor

pursuant to the arbitration provisions of a collective

bargaining agreement which expressly applies only to

Company's wage-earning employees. Union agreed that

Cherney was a salaried supervisor at the time of his

discharge and conceded that he had not been promoted

to the supervisory position as a sham or pretext to dis-

charge him for conduct while a wage-earning employee.

(Tr. 18.) Nevertheless, the Union argued that if arbi-

tration of the discharge were not compelled, Company
would have a license in the future to promote employees

to supervisory positions in order to discharge them with-

out their having recourse to arbitration.

The District Court found that Cherney was a super-

visor at the time he was discharged. Nevertheless it

further found that the dispute fell within the arbitration

provisions of the Agreement and ordered Company to

submit to arbitration.

2. Question Presented.

The question presented by this appeal is whether the

District Court erred in compelling Company to arbitrate
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the discharge of an employee who was a salaried super-

visor at the time of his discharge pursuant to a collective

bargaining agreement wliich applies solely to wage-earn-

ing employees.

ARGUMENT

I. COMPANY CANNOT BE COMPELLED TO ARBI-

TRATE ANY DISPUTE WHICH IT HAS NOT
AGREED TO ARBITRATE.

In United Steelworkers v. Warrior & Gulf Navigation

Co., 363 U.S. 574, 582 (1960), the Supreme Court of the

United States held that a duty to submit to arbitration

can arise only from a contractual obligation to do so

:

"For arbitration is a matter of contract and a

party cannot be required to submit to arbitration

any dispute which he has not agreed so to submit."

See also, Atkinson v. Sinclair Refining Co., 370 U.S 238,

241 (1962); Procter S Gamble Independent Union v.

Procter d Gamble Mfg. Co., 312 F.2d 181, 185-86 (2d Cir.

1962), cert, denied, 374 U.S. 830 (1963).

The Supreme Court has also held that it is the function

of the courts to determine whether an employer has

agreed to submit a particular dispute to arbitration

:

"Under our decisions whether or not the company
was bound to arbitrate, as well as what issues it must
arbitrate, is a matter to be determined by the Court

on the basis of the contract entered into by the

parties." Atkinson v. Sinclair Refining Co., supra,

at 241.

"The duty to arbitrate being of contractual origin,

a compulsory submission to arbitration cannot pre-

cede judicial determination that the collective bar-

gaining agreement does in fact create such a duty."
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John Wiley & Sons, Inc. v. Livingston, 376 U.S. 543,

547 (1964).

See also, TimJcen Roller Bearing Co. v. NLRB, 325 F.2d

746, 754 (6th Cir. 1963), cert, denied, 376 U.S. 971 (1964)

;

Las Vegas Local Joint Executive Bd. of Culinary Work-

ers V. Las Vegas Hacienda, Inc., 56 L.C. U 12, 197 (9th Cir.

1967).

Union will doubtless argue that, since the "Trilogy"

decisions,^ federal courts are required to liberally con-

strue collective bargaining agreements in such a way as

to favor arbitration. Such an argument begs the ques-

tion presented in this case, however, for if a reasonable

interpretation of an agreement excludes a particular dis-

pute from arbitration, the employer cannot be compelled

to submit to arbitration. For example, in Boeing Co. v.

International Union, UAW, 370 F.2d 969 (3d Cir. 1967),

the union emphasized to the Court the federal policy

favoring arbitration in its attempt to compel an employer

to submit to arbitration. The Court acknowledged the

policy, but held that it could not be relied upon to over-

ride established principles of contract interpretation:

"Despite this liberal rule of construction a reluc-

tant party may not be compelled to submit a contro-

versy to arbitration unless under a fair construction

of the agreement he is bound to do so." Id. at 970.

Similarly, in Retail Clerks International Ass'n. v. Lion

Dry Goods, Inc., 341 F.2d 715, 720 (6th Cir.), cert, denied,

382, U.S. 839 (1965), the Court stated:

"A national policy favoring arbitration does not

authorize arbitration unless the contract so pro-

vides."

^United Steelworkers v. American Mfg. Co., 363 U.S. 564

(1960) ; United Steelworkers v. Warrior & Gulf Navigation Co.,

363 U.S. 574 (1960) ; United Steelworkers v. Enterprise Wheel
& Car Corp., 363 U.S. 593 (1960).
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See generally, Smith & Jones, The Supreme Court and

Labor Dispute Arbitration: The Emerging Federal Law,

G3 Micli.L.Kev. 751, 759, 789-91 (19G5).

Thus, unless under a fair construction of the collective

bargaining agreement Company has agreed to arbitrate

the discharge of Cherney, Union has no right to compel

arbitration.

II. THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
DOES NOT OBLIGATE COMPANY TO ARBI-

TRATE THE DISCHARGE OF AN EMPLOYEE
WHO WAS NOT A WAGE-EARNING EMPLOYEE
AT THE TIME OF HIS DISCHARGE.

A. It Is Clear That Neither The Collective Bargain-

ing Agreement Between Company And Union Nor

The Arbitration Provisions Contained Therein

Apply To Salaried Supervisory Employees.

In this case, Union seeks to compel Company to arbi-

trate the question of whether an employee who was a

salaried supervisor at the time of his discharge was dis-

charged for "just cause." (R. 43, 44.) In order to deter-

mine whether the Company is obligated to arbitrate the

discharge, it is necessary to examine the collective bar-

gaining agreement entered into by Company and Union

which sets forth the wages, hours, and working condi-

tions of those employees of Company represented by

Union.

The first provision of the Agreement, in which Com-
pany recognizes Union as collective bargaining agent,

defines the scope and coverage of the Agreement:

"The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall

apply to all wage-earning employees of the Company.
. .

.» (R. 6, at 9.)



That provision also defines "wage-earning employees" as

"all those persons on the payroll of the Company whose

remuneration is expressed in the form of hourly wages."

(Id.)^

Except for the recognition clause, Article VI (Defini-

tion), and one reference in Article VII,'* the phrase

"wage-earning employees" does not appear in the Agree-

ment. The remainder of the Agreement refers only to

"employees." For example. Article X (Discharges and

Suspensions) provides that:

"Employees covered by this Agreement shall

not be suspended or discharged except for just

cause. . .
." (R. 6, at 19.)

Article XII (Grievance Procedure) states:

"The term 'grievance' as used in this Contract

shall mean any grievance made either by an indi-

^The same definition of wage-earning employees appears in

Article VI (Definitions) :

"Wage Earning Employees— shall mean all persons on
the Company's payroll whose remuneration is expressed in

the form of hourly wages." (R. 6, at 14.)

^Article VII (Contracting of Work) limits the numl>er of em-
ployees of independent contractors to 3% of the number of Com-
pany's "wage-earning employees." Provisions of the Agreement
dealing with persons covered by the Agreement speak in terms
of "employees." Article VII, however, is not concerned with per-

sons covered by the Agreement. It merely designates a class of
persons, the number within which is multiplied by 3% to set the

limit on the number of employees of independent contractors.

Although the class of persons covered by the Agreement and
the class multiplied by 3% happen to be the same, the difference

in context requires that the class be precisely defined in the latter

instance.



vidual employee or group of employees. . .
." (K. 6,

at 21.)^

It is manifestly clear that the word "employees" refers

to "wage-earning employees." Having defined the class

of persons to which the Agreement is to apply in the

recognition clause, there is no reason to define the class

in detail every time it is referred to thereafter. "Em-

ployees" is merely a shorthand expression for "wage-

earning employees." This construction of the Agree-

ment is in accord with the familiar canon of construction

:

".
. . general words in any contract relating to a

particular subject shall be interpreted as meaning

things of the same kind as the particular matters

referred to." 4 Williston, Contracts § 619, at 746

(3d ed. 1961).

6

The Agreement would make little sense unless "em-

ployees" is interpreted to mean only "wage-earning

employees," since that is the class of persons on whose

behalf Union was recognized as bargaining agent. The

judgment of the District Court, if affirmed, would mean

^In its complaint, Union cited a number of clauses of the Agree-
ment in support of its contention that the dispute over the dis-

charge of Cherney involves questions of interpretation and ap-
plication of the Agreement. (R. 3, 4.) Of the provisions cited,

Articles H, V, X, XII, XIII, XVII, XVIII, XXII, XXVII,
XXXII and Addendums One, Two and Three speak only of
"employees." Article XIV refers to the phrase "salaried em-
ployees," but only in the context of employees who have been
promoted and then, at some subsequent date, returned to the
bargaining unit.

*A similar canon of construction is that, "The same words used
in different clauses of a contract will be understood to have been
used in the same sense." IVillingham v. Life & Casualty Ins Co
216 F.2d 226, 227 (5th Cir. 1954).



that the agreement which resulted from the bargaining

would actually apply to a broader group of employees

than those for whom Union bargained^ Of course, at the

time of bargaining, the expectation of the parties was
that only persons in the bargaining unit would be affected

by the Agreement. Notliing in the Agreement or other-

wise presented to the Court below suggests that the

slightest consideration was given to any other class of

persons.

The general scheme of the Agreement between Com-
pany and Union clearly indicates that the parties con-

templated all provisions of the Agreement, including the

arbitration provisions, to apply only to wage-earning em-

ployees.^ In a wide variety of cases, the courts have re-

fused to compel arbitration where the general scheme

of the collective bargaining agreement in question sug-

gested that the dispute was not intended to be arbitrable.

See, e.g., Boeing Co. v. International Union, TJAW, 370

F.2d 969 (3d Cir. 1967) ; Local 998, UAW v. B. & T.

Metals Co., 315 F.2d 432 (6th Cir. 1963).

''That the arbitration provisions of the Agreement should apply
to supervisory personnel is particularly objectionable because it

would in effect allow Union to represent a class of persons which
is excluded from coverage by the Labor-Management Relations

Act, 1947, §2(3), 29 U.S.C. § 152(3) :

"The term 'employee' . . . shall not include . . . any individ-

ual employed as a supervisor. . .

."

^Indeed, many provisions of the Agreement could not possibly

apply to any class of persons other than wage-earning employees.
For example. Article XVI (Temporary Assignments) deals with
assignments to higher wage-paying classifications (R. 6, at 26) ;

Article XVII (Credited Service) refers to the effective date of
wage increases (R. 6, 27) ; Article XIX (Overtime Hours) com-
putes overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half times the

normal hourly rate of pay (R. 6, at 30). None of these provisions

could have any application to salaried employees. Moreover, no
provision of the Agreement deals with the many problems which
would be unique to the salaried supervisor.
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B. Cherney Was A Salaried Supervisory Employee

At The Time Of His Discharge, And, Therefore,

The Grievance Arose At A Time When The Col-

lective Bargaining Agreement No Longer Ap-

plied.

There is no question that Cherney was a salaried super-

visor of the Company at the time of his discharge. Para-

graph G of the Pretrial Conference Order agreed to by

Company and Union reads as follows:

"G. On February 4, 1965, Kobert L. Cherney was

dismissed from the employ of the Company. On
February 4, 1965, Cherney was a supervisory em-

ployee, and not a wage-earning employee of the

Company. Cherney had been a supervisory em-

ployee, and not a wage-earning employee, at all times

after August 31, 1964." (R. 27.)

The Union may try to bring the discharge of Cherney

within the scope of the Agreement by arguing that, if

Company is uplield in its position. Company will be able

in the future to avoid arbitration by elevating to super-

visory positions those "wage-earning employees" whom
it wishes to discharge. This argument would involve the

implicit suggestion that Cherney may have been pro-

moted by the Company in bad faith in order to discharge

him without being required to submit to arbitration.

There are no facts present in this case to support an
argument that the promotion of Cherney was for such

purpose. In fact, in oral argument before the District

Court, the Union admitted that it was not contending that

the Company acted in bad faith with respect to the

promotion

:

"First of all, the Union is coming in here repre-

senting an employee who at the time of his discharge
was a managerial employee. We are not making and
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never have made any contention, your Honor, tliat

this was a sham promotion to get to Mr. Cherney.

My goodness, we do not make any such contention."

(Tr. 18.)

Even assuming arguendo that the promotion of

Cherney was a sham or pretext to discharge him for

alleged conduct during the time he was a wage-earning

employee, there would still be no arbitrable issue. The
Agreement applies solely to wage-earning employees.

During the next collective bargaining negotiations, the

Union can appropriately argue that there should be a

provision for arbitrating discharges of salaried super-

visors who were allegedly promoted in bad faith. But

the Union should not be permitted to obtain through the

arbitration process some concession or advantage that

it did not win at the bargaining table.

"The union also argues that if the company

is not compelled to arbitrate this grievance it will

be able to exercise almost unlimited discretion over

the operation of matters arising under an entire

section of the agreement. This argument does not

impress. We cannot bring ourselves to accept this

invitation to ignore the plain meaning of the Section

9.08 exclusionary clause, and to find ambiguity where

none exists. ... If, at the bargaining table, the

union's true intent was to reserve a diffei'ent sort of

Section 9.08 question for an arbitrator, it should not

have consented to the incorporation into that section

of an exclusionary clause so broad and sweeping."

Communications Workers of America v. Neiv York

Telephone Co., 327 F.2d 94, 97 (2d Cir. 1964).

See also, Black-Clawson Co. v. International Ass'n. of

Mach., 313 F.2d 179, 186 (2d Cir. 1962).
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C. Company Is Not Required To Arbitrate The Dis-

charge Of A Salaried Supervisor Even If The

Discharge Was Based Upon Acts Committed

While The Employee Was A Wage-Earning Em-

ployee.

The critical issue in this case, in the words of the

Union, is "the right of the Company to discharge a super-

visory employee for alleged acts committed by said super-

visory employee while a wage-earning employee of the

Company and represented by the Union." (R. 44.)^ The

District Court may have been influenced by this conten-

tion and compelled arbitration based on an erroneous

conclusion that there was a factual issue for the arbi-

trator to decide, viz., whether Cherney actually commit-

ted certain acts during the time he was a wage-earning

employee. That is not the issue, however. The sole issue

is whether Cherney, at the time of his discharge, had

recourse to the grievance and arbitration provisions of

the Agreement. Company submits that he did not and

that the District Court erred in interpreting the Agree-

ment to find any duty on Company's part to arbitrate

whether or not Cherney was discharged for just cause.

The Agreement provides that "Employees covered by

this Agreement shall not be suspended or discharged

except for just cause. . .
." (R. 6, at 19) It does not pro-

vide that "employees who were at one time covered by
this Agreement shall not be . . . discharged except for

just cause. . .
." Cherney had no alleged grievance con-

cerning the justification for his discharge until he ivas

discharged, and at that time he was no longer covered by
the Agreement.

^It should be noted that only one of the reasons given for
Cherney 's discharge related to acts committed while a wage-earning
employee. His discharge was also based on disloyalty to the
Company during the time he was a supervisory employee. (R. 27,
28.)
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In several recent cases, it has been clearly established

that, in determining the applicability of a contract under

circumstances similar to those in the present case, it is

the status of the employee at the time the alleged griev-

ance arises which is of crucial importance. In Boeing Co.

V. International Ass'n. of Mach. S Aero Wkrs., 381 F.2d

119 (5th Cir. 1967), four employees were discharged for

acts occurring prior to the effective date of the collective

bargaining agreement. The employer argued that it had
agreed to arbitrate only disputes arising under the con-

tract, not disputes arising out of acts occurring prior to

the contract. The Court held, however, that the only

relevant time for judging the applicability of the contract

to the discharged employee was the time the grievance

arose. The grievance arose with the discharge of the

employee, which occurred while the contract was in effect.

It was immaterial that the acts which led to the discharge

occurred prior to the contract:

".
. . One thing is crystal clear under the new con-

tract. If— and the if is really the heart of the ques-

tion— the grievance is the suspension and discharge

subsequent to the effective date of the new contract,

not the Employer's reasons therefor based upon the

conduct of September 16, the new contract explicitly

calls for grievance machinery and arbitration of lay-

offs and discharges." Id. at 121.

See also. International Bhd. of Elec. Wrhrs. v. Wads-

worth Electric Mfg. Co., 240 F.Supp. 292, 293 (E.D.Ky.

1965).

The same principles apply in the instant case. The

Boeing court emphasized "the neutral character of these

principles so that it is sauce for both employer and union

alike. . .
." {Id. at 123.) The important time in deter-

mining whether the contract applies to Cherney is the

time at which the grievance arose. And there is no ques-
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tion that in the instant case the grievance did not arise

until the discharge occurred:

". . . The grievance was action of the Employer in

terminating the contractual right to present and fu-

ture employment. It was these actions by the Em-
ployer after the new contract became effective that

for the first time had any adverse effect upon the four

employees." Id. at 122.

Thus, the status of Cherney at the time when the acts

leading up to the discharge took place is totally irrele-

vant. The contract applies to Cherney if, and only if, he

was a wage-earning employee at the time of the dis-

charge. There is no question that at that time Cherney

was a salaried supervisor.

III. THE TERMINATION OF STRIKE AND RETURN
TO WORK AGREEMENT DOES NOT OBLIGATE
COMPANY TO ARBITRATE THE DISCHARGE
OF CHERNEY.

Union may argue that an obligation to arbitrate the

discharge of Cherney can be found in the Termination

of Strike and Return to Work Agreement, which was
submitted to the Court below (R. 17). That argument
is plainly without support. The agreement reads, in

relevant part:

"The Company will reinstate striking employees

except those who have been discharged for cause.

The Company will agree to arbitrations with the

Union to determine the validity of each discharge

for cause, provided the Union requests each such

arbitration." (Paragraph 1.)

"... The term of this back-to-work Agreement
and all provisions covered herein will be six (6)

months from the date of the Primary Agreement,
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unless specifically designated otherwise within the

particular provision covered within this Agreement."

(Paragraph 11.)

Thus, the arbitration clause of the Termination of Strike

and Return to Work Agreement applied only to em-

ployees who had been discharged during the strike. The
strike ended March 15, 1964, but Cherney was not dis-

charged until February 4, 1965 (R. 27). He was clearly

not discharged during the strike.

Moreover, even if the coverage of the agreement were

less restricted, the fact that it terminated by its own
terms on September 15, 1964, six months after the effec-

tive date of the collective bargaining agreement (March

15, 1964) precludes any possibility that it could be relied

upon as a basis for compelling arbitration of the Febru-

ary 4, 1965, discharge of Cherney.

CONCLUSION

It is the role of this Court to review decisions of law

made by the District Courts. See, e.g., Republic Pictures

V. Rogers, 213 F.2d 662 (9th Cir.), cert, denied, 348 U.S.

858 (1954) ; Brown v. Cowden Livestock Co., 187 F.2d

1015 (9th Cir. 1951). The issue of law involved in the

present case is whether the Company has agreed to arbi-

trate the discharge of an employee who was a salaried

supervisor at the time of his discharge.

It is well settled that the question of whether an issue

is arbitrable under a collective bargaining agreement is

a matter of law for the courts to decide, rather than a

matter of fact to be left to the arbitrator. See, e.g., Local

998, UAW V. B. S T. Metals Co., 315 F.2d 432, 436 (6th

Cir. 1963).

The District Court ordered defendant to arbitrate the

discharge of a salaried employee in sjiite of the fact that
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the collective bargaining agreement upon which arbitra-

tion is based applies only to wage-earning employees.

This order is either based upon an incorrect interpreta-

tion of the collective bargaining agreement or ignores

the collective bargaining agreement and is contrary to

the established principle that a duty to arbitrate any dis-

pute can arise solely from a contractual obligation to

arbitrate that dispute. The decision is erroneous and

should be reversed with costs on appeal to defendant.

Kespectfully submitted,

O'Melveny & Myers

Charles G. Bakaly, Jr.

KiCHARD C. White

Attorneys for Appellant

General Telephone Company of

California
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United States Court of Appeals
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vs.

Communications Workers of America,
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Appellee.

On Appeal from the Judg-ment of the

United States District Court for the

Central District of California

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The statement m appellant's brief concerning the

jurisdiction of the United States District Court to

hear this cause and the jurisdiction of this court to

review the District Court's decision is accurate and is

adopted by appellee.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

All of the facts in this case were agreed upon and

are set forth in the Pre-Trial Conference Order



signed by United States District Judge Albert Lee

Stephens, Jr., on March 7, 1966 (R. 25-39, Vol. 1).

A strike against the appellant company commenced

October 19, 1963. On March 7, 1964, the appellant and

appellee executed a Termination of Strike and Re-

tui-n to Work Agreement (Plaintiff's Exhibit 2, Vol.

2) and the strike ended March 15, 1964. Appellant

and appellee entered into a written collective bar-

gaining agreement effective March 15, 1964 with re-

spect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment

and other duties of employment of all wage-earning

employees of the appellant (R. 6, Vol. 1, Plaintiff's

Exhibit 1, Vol. 2).

The Retmm to Work Agreement dated March 7,

1964 provided, in part, that the appellant would rein-

state all striking employees except those who were

discharged for misconduct during the strike. The

validity of any such discharges was subject to arbi-

tration. The term of the Return to Work AgTeement

was from March 15, 1964 to September 15, 1964.

Wlien the strike ended on March 15, 1964, striking

employee Robert L. Chemey was reinstated by appel-

lant and he remained a wage-earning employee of the

appellant company until September 1, 1964 when he

was promoted to management (R. 27, Vol. 1).

On February 4, 1965, Robert L. Chemey was dis-

missed from the employ of the appellant company.

The appellant's reasons given for the dismissal were

that (1) Chemey had engaged in misconduct during

the strike against appellant which commenced Octo-



ber 19, 1963 and ended March 15, 1964; (2) for dis-

loyalty to the appellant as a supervisor on and after

September 1, 1964, for failure to advise appellant

that he was subpoened by appellee to be its witness

in an arbitration case involving the discharge of a

wage-earning employee of appellant for alleged mis-

conduct during said strike, and (3) for failure to

volimtarily advise appellant of the information he had

concerning the above-described arbitration case (R.

27, 28, Vol. 1).

Appellee thereupon presented to appellant a griev-

ance protesting the discharge of Cherney and on or

about Februaiy 10, 1965 appellant advised appellee

that it could not accept the grievance inasmuch as

the grievance procedure provisions of Article XII
of the Agi-eement did not apply to the discharge of

a suj)ervisory employee. Appellant refused to submit

the grievance to arbitration on the same ground (R.

28, Vol. 1).

Appellee thereupon initiated this action in the

District Court seeking an order that the grievance

concerning the dismissal of employee Robert L. Cher-

ney is a dispute which involves the interpretation

and application of the collective bargaining agreement

and is within the arbitration article of the collective

bargaining agreement.

Article X (Discharges and Suspensions) of the col-

lective bargaining agreement etfective March 15, 1964

(R. 6, Vol. 1) provides as follows:

"1. Employees covered by this agreement shall

not be suspended or discharged except for just

cause . . .
."



Article XII (Grievance Procedure), Section 1 of

said Agreement pro\ddes as follows:

"1. The term 'gi'ievance' as used in this con-

tract shall mean any grievance made either by

an individual employee or group of employees

contending that he or they are being prejudiced

as a result of misinterpretation or misapplication

of any of the terms of this contract or wage
schedules from time to time in effect. The above

definition shall be grievances subject to arbitra-

tion."

Article XIII (Arbitration) of said Agreement pro-

vides as follows:

"1. In the event any grievance arising here-

imder camiot be resolved through negotiations be-

tween the parties hereto under the procedures

hereinabove set forth, the matter shall be sub-

mitted to arbitration upon written request of the

Union to the Company, and in accordance with

the following procedures."

AppeUee asserted in its Petition For An Order Di-

recting Adjustment of A Dispute Under A Collective

Bargaining Agreement (R. 2-7, Vol. 1) that the dis-

missal of employee Chemey involves a dispute as to

the meaning, application and interpretation of the

terms of the collective bargaining agreement, includ-

ing the Recognition provisions. Article II (Non-Dis-

crimination Clause), Article X (Discharges and Sus-

pensions), Ariicle XII (Grievance Procedure), Article

XIII (Arbitration), Article XIV (Seniority), Ar-

ticle XVII (Credited Service), Article XVIII (Reg-

ular Hours), Article XXII (Vacations), Article



XXVIII (Wages), Article XXXII (Sickness and

Accident Benefits), and the Group Life Insurance,

Basic Hospital-Medical-Surgical Plan, Major Medi-

cal Expense, and Pension Plan provisions of the

Agreement.

At the trial, the court received into evidence exhibit

nimibers 1 (collective bargaining agreement effective

March 15, 1964), 2 (Temiination of Strike and Return

to Work Agreement), and 3 (Letter dated April 10,

1950, from Company District Manager Carl Von
Hake to Communications of America Division No. 7

President W. A. Baker) offered by appellee bearing

on the issue of the arbitrability of the dispute in

question.

Following the trial, the court made its Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 67-71, Vol. 1) and

entered its Judgment (R. 72 and 73, Vol. 1) holding

that the dispute concerning the discharge of employee

Robert L. Cherney is wdthin the arbitration article

of the collective bargaining agreement entered into

between the parties and effective March 15, 1964.

Appellant's Motion to Amend Findings was denied

(R. 74-86) and this appeal followed.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. The grievance concerning the dismissal of em-

ployee Robert L. Cherney involves a dispute as to the

meaning, application and interpretation of the col-

lective bargaining agreement and is within the arbi-

tration article of the collective bargaining agreement.



II. The Union itself has a grievance herein con-

cerning a dispute as to the meaning, application and

interpretation of the collective bai'gaining agreement.

ARGUMENT

I

THE GRIEVANCE CONCERNING THE DISMISSAL OF EMPLOYEE
ROBERT L. CHERNEY INVOLVES A DISPUTE AS TO THE
MEANING, APPLICATION AND INTERPRETATION OF THE
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT.

Employee Robert L. Chemey was admittedly dis-

charged by the appellant company for engaging in

misconduct during the strike against the Company

which commenced October 19, 1963 and ended March

15, 1964. At the time of said alleged misconduct,

Chemey was a wage-earning employee of the Com-

pany. The two additional groimds for discharge ad-

vanced by the Company likewise are related to strike

misconduct actions which include Mr. Chemey and

another wage-earning employee.

It is imdisputed that if Chemey had been dis-

charged by the Company during the course of the

150-day strike for said alleged strike misconduct,

his discharge would have been subject to arbitration

pursuant to Paragraph 1 of the Termination of Strike

and Return to "Work Agreement. Likewise, if Cher-

ney had been discharged by the Company for any

reason whatsoever follo^dng his reinstatement at the

end of the strike, his discharge Avould clearly have

been subject to arbitration pursuant to Article X of



the collective bargaining agreement while a wage-

earning employee of the Company and represented

by the Union, Effective September 1, 1964 Chemey
was promoted to management. On Febrnary 4, 1965

he was dismissed from the employ of the Company
for the above-mentioned reasons. The basic conten-

tion of the Company is that the contractual grievance

and arl)itration jDrovisions of the collective bargaining

agreement do not apply to this dispute because the

dispute involves an employee who has been part of

Management and is therefore outside the bargaining

unit.

The Company and the Union totally disagree as to

the meaning and intei-pretation of important sections

of the contract. However, there is no assertion here

that a supervisory employee is within the bargaining

unit while he is acting as such. There is no dispute

about the fact that from September 1, 1964 to Febru-

ary 4, 1965 Chemey was a paii: of Management. And
there can be no dispute that from February 4, 1965

forward Cherney no longer was a part of Manage-

ment. The question is: ivhiJe Chemey was within the

hargaining unit (at all times prior to September 1,

1964) did he acquire legal rights under the Return

to Work Agreement signed on March 7, 1964 and

under the coUective bargaining agreement effective

31arch 15, 1964 which—after he is no longer a part of

Management—he may now assert "^

Appellee Union contended in its Petition and at the

trial that the dismissal of employee Cherney involves

a dispute as to the meaning, application and interpre-



tation of various provisions of the collective bargain-

ing agreement. A clear example of this involves the

seniority provisions of the AgTeement (Article XIV)

which provides that, "All service by a salaried em-

ployee during the time that he is on salary shall be

comited in determining his seniority imder any of the

provisions of this Article XIV in the event such em-

ployee is returned to an hourly wage" (emphasis sup-

plied). The Company argues that it can put a man

in a supervisory position and then a short time later,

for any or no reason, discharge him. If this were

true, it would penalize the Company's ability to secure

competent supervisory employees from within its own

organization, of which the Company publicly boasts

that it does. Likewise, it would plainly violate the

seniority rights acquired by the employee when he

was a bargaining unit employee and a beneficiary of

the rights l:)argained for in the collective bargaining

agreement.

If seniority rights of bargaining unit employees

who are promoted to supervisory positions are re-

tained, and an arbitrator can so find imder the lan-

guage of the instant agreement and under the past

practices of the Company (please see Union Exhibit

3), then they are vested rights. Such seniority rights

can only be divested if done in accordance with the

collective bargaining agreement.

It is submitted that a forfeiture of vested seniority

rights must be clearly expressed and that there is no

language in the instant Agreement indicating that

seniority rights are forfeited if an employee is termi-



nated as a supervisor. Said dispute clearly involves

an interpretation of the seniority, discharge, griev-

ance, arbitration and other provisions of the contract.

It is unreasonable to suppose that retained seniority

rights have any value if they depend solely upon the

convenience or desire of the employer. This is es-

pecially true in the instant case where the reasons for

the discharge involved strike misconduct of wage-

earning employees. By the appellant company's con-

tention it could very well promote an employee one

day and discharge him as a supervisory employee the

next and thus completely by-pass the gi*ievance and

arbitration process and take away the employee's

vested rights, including his seniority rights, in the

bargaining unit. Were the employer's contention sus-

tained, the practical consequence might well be that

no bargaining unit employee would accept a promo-

tion to a supervisory position.

Brief mention should be made of the several cases

which the appellant refers to in its brief. The iso-

lated language referred to by appellant cannot be

successfully relied upon. Said cases clearly apply the

principles governing laboi' arbitration agi'eements

which have been delineated in the trilogy of the Steel-

worker cases decided in 1960. The underljang ra-

tionale of those holdings rests upon the federal policy

to promote industrial peace through collective bar-

gaining agreements and the recognition that a major

factor in achieving that objective is the gi'ievance and

arbitration machinery established by the parties to

resolve disputes. And when the parties have entered
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into a comprehensive arbitration provision, as in the

instant case, any challenge that a giievance is not

intended to l)e covered must find support in unmistak-

ably clear language of exclusion; arbitration of a

particular dispute is to be ordered imless it may be

said with positive assurance that it is excluded by the

contract. The evidence in this case does not meet that

test.

The Boeing case which appellant refers to is not in

point since the discharge therein did not concern an

employee who had been promoted to Management fol-

lowing his reinstatement after the strike. The em-

ployees involved therein were not even reinstated

follo\^4ng said strike, as was employee Chemey in the

instant case. Likewise, the Machinists did not nego-

tiate a Return to Work Agreement as did CWA in

the instant case. Furthermore, under the facts of this

case, a disciplinary discharge of a striking employee

was clearly subject to arbitration whether said dis-

charge for misconduct occurred during or after the

strike.

Appellee respectfully submits that imder the facts

of this case the grievance concerning the dismissal of

employee Robert L. Cherney involves a dispute as to

the meaning, application and interpretation of the

collective bargaining agreement, of the Return to

Work Agreement, and of existing past practices.
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II

THE UNION ITSELF HAS A GRIEVANCE HEREIN CONCERNING
A DISPUTE AS TO THE MEANING, APPLICATION AND
INTERPRETATION OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
AGREEMENT.

Section 1 of Article XII (Grievance Procedure) of

the collective bargaining agreement provides as fol-

lows: "The term 'grievance' as used in the contract

shall mean any grievance made either by an indi-

vidual employee or group of employees contending

that he or they are being prejudiced as a result of

misinterpretation or application of any of the terms

of this contract or wage schedules from time to time

in effect. The above definition shall be subject to

arbitration" (emphasis supplied).

While the phrase "group of employees" may iden-

tify a small number of employees, in one job classi-

fication, for example, an arbitrator can find that it

may also refer to the whole bargaining imit, that is to

say, the Union. Thus this language anticipates that

the Union may file a grievance, as in the instant case,

and that an arbitrator can find that there has been

an improper application of the Agreement, as the

Union imderstands its terms, to a given employee

(Robert L. Cherney) and/or to the whole bargaining

unit.
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the judgment of the

District Court should be affinned.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

December 27, 1967.

Respectfully submitted,

DuANE W. Anderson,

Attorney for Appellee.

Certificate of Counsel

I certify that, in connection with the preparation

of this brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of

the United States Coiu^t of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is

in full compliance vdth those rules.

DuANE W. Andeeson,

Attorney for Appellee.
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ARGUMENT

I. THE QUESTION ON APPEAL IS NOT WHETHER
COMPANY AGREED TO ARBITRATE ANY ISSUE

ASSOCIATED WITH NON-BARGAINING UNIT
EMPLOYEES, BUT RATHER IS WHETHER THE
LOWER COURT ERRED IN FINDING THAT COM-

PANY AGREED TO ARBITRATE THE ISSUE OF
WHETHER IT HAD JUST CAUSE TO DIS-

CHARGE A SALARIED SUPERVISOR.

In its Brief for the Appellee, Union has erroneously at-

tempted to broaden the question for review. The ques-

tion which Union would now have this Court consider

is whether the collective bargaining agreement (R. 6)

between Company and Union can be construed so as to

show some arbitrable issue associated with non-bargain-

ing unit personnel, even though such issue was not the

subject of dispute between the parties. For support, the

Union cites Article XIV of the collective bargaining

agreement which provides that "All service by a salaried

employee during the time that he is on salary shall be

counted in determining his seniority under any of the

provisions of this Article XIV m the event such employee

is returned to an hourly ivage." (Emphasis added.)

Although the foregoing provision refers to a "salaried

employee", such as Cherney was in the instant case,

it has no application or relevancy to the grievance

which Company was ordered to arbitrate. The fore-

going would only be relevant, if Company was resisting

arbitration over a grievance associated with seniority

such as the amount, if any, of seniority applicable to a

salaried employee who returned to the bargaining unit.

But that is not the situation herein.

This action had its origin in Company's refusal to

entertain a grievance or to arbitrate whether it had just
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cause to discharge Clierney, a salaried supervisor. Union
petitioned the lower court to compel Company to arbi-

trate such grievance. In its judgment and order, the lower

court ordered Company to submit to arbitration and de-

fined the issues to be determined by the arbitrator as

follows

:

"1. Was Robert L. Cherney discharged by the

Company without just cause?

''2. If so, what is the remedy?" (R. 73.)

While conceivably Article XIV might have some rele-

vance to issue No. 2, an arbitrator would never get to

the issue of "remedy" if Company was not contractually

obligated to arbitrate issue No. 1.

As stated in detail in Company's Opening Brief, it is

clear that the question before this Court is restricted to

determining whether the lower court erred in finding that

Company had contractually agreed to arbitrate whether

it had just cause to discharge an employee who w^as a

salaried supervisor at the time of his discharge. The
judgment and order, by their terms, do not support

Union's attempt to raise unrelated issues of arbitrability.

II. EVEN IF AN ARBITRATOR SHOULD FIND
THAT COMPANY DID NOT HAVE JUST CAUSE
TO DISCHARGE CHERNEY FOR HIS MISCON-
DUCT AS A WAGE-EARNING EMPLOYEE, HIS
DISCHARGE FOR MISCONDUCT AS A SUPER-
VISOR WOULD STILL HAVE TO STAND.

Cherney was discharged for three reasons, only one of

which related to his conduct as a wage-earning employee.

These reasons were as follows

:

1. ". . . Cherney had engaged in misconduct dur-

ing a strike against the (Company) which com-

menced October 19, 1963, and ended March 15, 1964;"
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2. ". . . for disloyalty to the (Company) as a

supervisor on and after September 1, 1964, for fail-

ure to advise the (Company) that he was subpoenaed

by the (Union) to be its witness in an arbitration

case involving the discharge of a wage-earning em-

ployee of the (Company) for alleged misconduct dur-

ing the above-described strike;"

3. ". . . for disloyalty to the (Company) as a super-

visor on and after September 1, 1964 . . . for failure

to voluntarily advise the (Company) of the informa-

tion that he had concerning the above-described arbi-

tration case." (R. 68-69.)

In its Brief, Union characterizes the latter two reasons

in the following manner:

"The two additional grounds for discharge ad-

vanced by the Company likewise are related to strike

misconduct actions which include Mr. Cherney and

another wage-earning employee." (Appellee's Brief,

p. 6.)

Such characterization is not accurate for it is clear

from reading the latter two reasons that they were not

based on Cherney's strike misconduct as was the case

with only the first reason. The latter two reasons were
based on Cherney's performance as a supervisor.

Assuming arguendo that Company is contractually

obligated to arbitrate whether or not it had just cause to

discharge Cherney for the first reason, the alleged mis-

conduct which occurred while he was a wage-earning em-
ployee and while he was covered by either the collective

bargaining agreement or the Termination of Strike and
Return To Work Agreement, Company still could not be

compelled to arbitrate whether it had just cause to dis-

charge Cherney for liis misconduct as a supervisor.

i



Even Union admits that:

". . . there is no assertion here that a supervisory

employee is within the bargaining unit while he is

acting as such. There is no dispute about the fact

tliat from September 1, 1964 to February 4, 1965

Cherney was a part of Management. . .
." (Appellee's

Brief, p. 7.)

However, Union then goes on to declare the following

novel proposition based on Article XIV, supra

:

"If seniority rights of bargaining unit emj^loyees

who are promoted to supervisory positions are re-

tained, and an arbitrator can so find under the lan-

guage of the instant agreement and [Union's empha-

sis] under the past practices of the Company (please

see Union Exliibit 3), then they are vested rights.

Such seniority rights can only be divested if done in

accordance with the collective bargaining agree-

ment." (Appellee's Brief, p. 8) (Emphasis added.)

Union does not define what it means by "in accordance

with the collective bargaining agreement", and it can-

not, for there are no such provisions. If what the Union

infers, intentionally or unintentionally, is that Company
is contractually obligated to arbitrate discharges of all

supervisors who have been promoted to supervisorial

status from the bargaining unit when such discharges are

based on their performance or conduct as sujDervisors,

then Union is simply overreaching for an extension of the

collective bargaining agreement to persons who are not

covered thereby for the reasons set forth in Company's

Opening Brief.

During trial, the lower court seemed to recognize that

even if the discharge were overturned on the first ground,

it would still have to stand on the basis of the latter two

:



— 6—
". . . But it scorns to me that if you say— I mean,

just for the sake of argument— that Point No. 1 is

something that really they shouldn't be allowed to

discharge him for now, they might demote him if

they felt that he wasn't proper supervisory material.

Then if they did attempt to discipline him for his

conduct at that time, then the Union would, of course,

be directly interested, and it would have to go to

arbitration as to whether or not he would be dis-

charged. But when it comes to his conduct after he

becomes a ijart of management, then the question

is who is to say what is or isn't material misconduct.

The Union is not in a position to do that.

"It seems to me this is something management has

to say. So even if you tvould find the arbitrator had

jurisdiction over Point No. 1 and said, 'No, they

can't fire him for that,' they would still be able to

fire him for Point No. 2. And if that's the case, why
then we are just going in circles, because it would

come right back and they would fire liim an>^way."

(Tr. 21-22.) (Emphasis added.)

Company submits that the foregoing observation was
and is correct. It would be a futile act to require Com-
pany to arbitrate one ground for discharge when the re-

sults of such arbitration would not change the fact that

Cherney was discharged for two other reasons which are

beyond the ambit of the arbitrator's authority.
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CONCLUSION

For all the reasons stated in Company's Opening Brief

and in its Reply Brief, it is respectfully submitted that

the decision of the lower court was erroneous and should

be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

O'Melveny & Myers

Charles G. Bakaly, Jr.

Richard C. White

By Richard C. White
Richard C. "White

Attorneys for Appellant

General Telephone Company
of California
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NO. 2 19 3 4

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

LOUIS PEREZ CERDA,

Appellant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

I

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Appellant, LOUIS P. CERDA, was indicted on March 1,

1967, by the Federal Grand Jury for the Central District of Cali-

fornia and charged in two counts with violations of Title 21, United

States Code, Section 174 and one count with violation of Title 26,

United States Code, Section 4705(a) [C. T. 2]. 1/

Count One of Indictment #37033-CDcharges that on or about

September 9, 1966, in Los Angeles County, appellant knowingly and

!_/ "C. T. " refers to Clerk's Transcript of Record.
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unlawfully received, concealed and facilitated the concealment and

transportation of 10. 900 grams of heroin, a narcotic drug, which,

as the appellant then and there well knew, previously had been

imported into the United States of America contrary to United

States Code, Title 21, Section 174.

Count Two relates to the same date as in Count One and

charges that appellant knowingly unlawfully sold and facilitated the

sale of the same quantity of heroin as in Count One to an undercover

assistant of the Federal Bureau of Narcotics.

Count Three relates to the same date and quantity of heroin

and charges the unlawful sale to an undercover assistant of the

Federal Bureau of Narcotics without obtaining a written order on a

form issued for that purpose by the Secretary of the Treasury of

the United States in violation of Title 2 6, United States Code, Section

4705(a).

On March 13, 1967, appellant was arraigned in Case No.

37033-CD before the Honorable E. Avery Crary, United States

District Judge. Counsel was appointed to represent appellant and

a plea of not guilty was entered whereupon the trial of the case was

transferred to the Honorable Irving Hill, United States District

Judge [C. T. 6j. On that same date, appellant and his counsel

appeared before Judge Hill and jury trial of this case was set for

April 4, 1967 [C. T. 5].

On March 28, 1967, Doctor Karl Von Hagen was appointed

by the court to examine appellant [C. T. 7]. On April 4, 1967,

appellant and his counsel again appeared in Federal Court before

2.





Judge Hill and jury trial of case No. 37033-(IH)-CD was continued

to April 25, 1967 [C. T. 11]. On April 11, 1967, Doctor Eric Mar-

cus was appointed to examine appellant [C. T. 17].

On April 25, 1967, appellant represented by court appointed

counsel again appeared before Judge Hill. After hearing testimony

regarding appellant's mental competency and physical health, the

court found appellant legally sane and able to cooperate with his

counsel and able to stand trial. Appellant then moved the court for

a continuance which motion was heard and denied after presentation

of testimony. A jury was then impaneled and the trial of the case

commenced [C. T. 24].

On April 26, 1967, defendant was found guilty as charged

in Counts One and Two and not guilty as charged in Count Three

[C. T. 27, 28]. On April 27, 1967, appellant was committed to the

custody of the Attorney General or his authorized representative

for imprisonment for a period of ten years for the offense charged

in Count One and for a like period of ten years for the offense

charged in Count Two and it was further adjudged that the two ten-

year sentences of imprisonment imposed commence and run

concurrently making a total imprisonment of ten years [C. T. 29,

30].

On May 1, 1967, appellant filed a motion for a new trial

which motion was heard and denied by the court on May 22, 1967

[C. T. 31-36, 46].

On May 4, 1967, defendant filed a timely notice of appeal

[C. T. 37].
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The offenses charged in Indictment No. 37033-IH-CD

occurred in the Southern District of California, Central Division.

The District Court had jurisdiction by virtue of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 3231 and Title 21, United States Code, Section

174 and Title 26, United States Code, Section 4705(a). Jurisdiction

of this Court rests pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Sections

1291 and 1294.

II

STATUTES INVOLVED

Section 174, Title 21, United States Code, provides in

pertinent part:

"Whoever . . . knowingly . . . received,

conceals, buys, sells or in any manner facilitates,

transportation, concealment or sale of any . . .

narcotic drug, after being imported or brought in,

knowing the same to having been imported or brought

into the United States contrary to law, . . . shall be

imprisoned not less than five or more than twenty

years and in addition may be fined not more than

$20, 000.

"For a second or subsequent offense . . .

the offender shall be imprisoned not less than ten

or more than forty years and in addition may be fined

not more than $20, 000.

4.





"Whenever on trial for violation of this

section the defendant is shown to have or to have

had possession of the narcotic drug, such possession

shall be deemed sufficient evidence to authorize con-

viction unless the defendant explains the possession

to the satisfaction of the jury.
"

Section 4705(a), Title 26, United States Code provides in

pertinent part that:

"it shall be unlawful for any person to sell,

barter, exchange or give away narcotic drugs except

in pursuance of a written order of the person to whom

such article is sold, bartered, exchanged or given on

a form to be issued in blank for that purpose by the

Secretary or his delegate.

ni

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On September 9, 1966, at approximately 10:00 A. M. ,

Federal Bureau of Narcotics Agent Edward Heath, while under the

surveillance of other Federal agents, met with Mr. Charles Holmes

at his residence. There Agent Heath searched Mr. Holmes for

2/
monies or narcotics with negative results [R. T. 119]. —

'
Agent

2_l "R. T. " refers to Reporter's Transcript of Record.
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Heath had been advised that appellant, known as "Skippy", and Bill

McGowen would arrive at the residence and that negotiations for the

sale of heroin would then take place [R. T. 109].

At about 1:20 P. M. appellant and Mr. McGowen arrived at

Mr. Holmes' residence in a 1959 Chevrolet belonging to appellant's

wife and driven by him [R. T. 153]. Agent Heath was then introduced

to appellant and Mr. McGowen for the first time outside the resi-

dence [R. T. 95-96, 195]. As per the appellant's instructions Agent

Heath entered the 1959 Chevrolet and appellant proceeded to drive

around the Los Angeles area. Enroute appellant questioned Agent

Heath in regards to where he was living and how much "dealing"

Agent Heath had done in an apparent effort to break down Agent

Heath's undercover guise. Appellant finally agreed to sell him a

half an ounce of heroin for $100 [R. T. 96-97]. Appellant then

stopped, exited the vehicle, and went to a phone booth where he

appeared to place a telephone call [R. T. 98, 120]. Upon his return

to the vehicle, appellant stated that his "connection was ready" and

that he would take Agent Heath and the others to another location

since Agent Heath "could not meet the source of supply" and that he,

appellant, "would take the money, pick up the heroin and come

back" [R. T. 99].

Appellant then drove Agent Heath, Mr. Holmes and Mr.

McGowen to the area of Mark Keppel High School in Alhambra,

California and instructed them to remain there [R. T. 99 121].

Agent Heath, Mr. Holmes and Mr. McGowen exited the vehicle at

this location. Appellant then asked for the $100 for the heroin which
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money was given to him by Agent Heath [R. T. 99, 121].

About 10 minutes later, appellant returned to this location

whereupon he drove Agent Heath, Mr. Holmes and Mr. McGowen

back to Mr. Holmes' residence. Appellant had gone to his source

of supply to obtain the heroin [R. T. 153]. Enroute to Mr. Holmes'

residence Mr. Cerda handed Agent Heath a Pall Mall package

containing two rubber balloons filled with a brownish powdery

substance [R. T. 100]. At Mr. Holmes' residence. Agent Heath

and Mr. Cerda discussed future purchases of heroin [R. T. 100,

124]. After appellant and Mr. McGowen had left the area Agent

Heath again searched Mr. Holmes for monies or narcotics with

negative results [R. T. 133]. It was subsequently determined by a

chemical analysis that the two rubber balloons contained approxim-

ately 10. 900 grams of heroin [R. T. 84-85].

Appellant had previously been convicted for a similar

offense [R. T. 133-134].

IV

ERRORS SPECIFIED BY APPELLANT

Appellant has specified the following points on appeal:

1. The trial court committed prejudicial error in

refusing to grant appellant's motion for a continuance of the trial.

2. Appellant's motion for a judgment of acquittal made

at the close of the Government's case on the grounds of insufficiency

of the evidence, or in the alternative, that entrapment had been
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shown as a matter of law should have been granted by the trial court.

3. The "procuring agent" instruction with respect to the

allegations in Count One of the Indictment as to receiving, conceal-

ing and facilitating the concealment and transportation of a narcotic

drug and with respect to the facilitation of a sale of narcotics as

alleged in Count Two of the indictment should have been given by the

trial court.

V

ARGUMENT

A. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT COMMIT
PREJUDICIAL ERROR IN REFUSING TO
GRANT APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR A
CONTINUANCE OF TRIAL.

The continuance of a trial is directed to the sound discretion

of the trial court and a denial of a continuance may be reviewed by

this Court only where the discretion has been abused. Scott Corp.

V. Kent , 309 F. 2d 891 (1962), cert, denied 372 U.S. 982. Appellant

in his opening brief fails to establish how the denial of the continu-

ance by the trial court was an abuse of discretion.

Appellant first appeared in Federal Court on March 13, 1967,

at which time trial of the case was set for April 4, 1967. Trial

was then continued until April 25, 1967 and it was on this occasion

that appellant made his motion for a continuance. At no time did

appellant make a request that the government subpoena the informant

nor did the appellant himself issue such a subpoena. As appellant
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himself indicates in his opening brief, the Government had advised

him of the identity of the informant and that he would be available to

him at the time of the trial. However, it is clear that the Govern-

ment is not the guarantor of the informant's presence at trial. See

United States v. D'Angiolillo , 340 F. 2d 453 (2nd Cir. ), cert, denied

380 U.S. 955 (1965).

Appellant cites Roviaro v. United States , 353 U.S. 53 as

authority for his contention. However, Roviaro is not controlling

since in that case the Government refused to disclose the identity

of the informer whereas in the case at hand appellant was fully

advised well in advance of the trial date of the identity of the inform-

ant. Further, in Roviaro the court stated that it could not be

assumed that the informer was known to appellant and available to

him as a witness. However, in the present case the record estab-

lishes that appellant was well acquainted with Mr. Holmes, the

informant, and knew where he resided.

In Velarde-Villarreal v. United States , 354 F. 2d 9 (9th Cir.

1965), it was held that if the government was actually unable by

reasonable effort to produce the informant, that such inability would

not require a dismissal of the case, unless of course, the govern-

ment itself purposely saw to it that the informant disappeared. At

page 12 the court said, "We know of no rule that the government

is under any general obligation to produce an informer .

In the case at hand the government did make a reasonable

effort to produce Mr. Holmes and continued to make such reasonable

effort throughout the trial of this case. Federal Agent Antonio
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Celaya testified that he was acquainted with Mr. Holmes, an under-

cover assistant; that he did not know the present whereabouts of

Mr. Holmes; and that about one month before trial he called Mr.

Holmes at his residence and determined that the phone had been

disconnected for some time. Agent Celaya then personally went to

the residence but was unable to locate anyone. He then checked the

neighborhood and was advised that Mr. Holmes had moved. He

then spoke with persons acquainted with Mr. Holmes and none had

heard from him for some time. One person did state that Mr.

Holmes might be in Oklahoma but Agent Celaya was unable to

determine where in Oklahoma. Agent Celaya then inquired about

Mr. Holmes' whereabouts with other persons without success. In

addition Agent Celaya checked Mr. Holmes' employment and it was

determined that Mr. Holmes had terminated his employment

approximately 4 months previously, and had never returned. Agent

Heath testified that he assisted Agent Celaya in an attempt to locate

Mr. Holmes by calling the police department and it was determined

that Mr. Holmes was not in custody. During the course of trial.

Agent Heath and Agent Celaya continued to make an effort to locate

Mr. Holmes without success. The court after hearing the foregoing

testimony and reading the informant's statement, which statement

was offered and admitted into evidence for the purposes of this

hearing only, determined that the government in good faith attempted

to bring Mr. Holmes forward as a witness and had made no effort

to conceal him or his part in the transaction and that there was no

assurance whatsoever that a continuance for any given period of

10.





time would assure his presence [R. T. 30-48].

It is therefore respectfully submitted that the trial court did

not abuse its discretion in denying appellant's motion for a continu-

ance.

B. THE EVIDENCE WAS SUFFICIENT TO
SUSTAIN THE CONVICTION AND
APPELLANT WAS NOT ENTRAPED
AS A MATTER OF LAW.

Appellant contends that the evidence was insufficient to

sustain the conviction and in the alternative that entrapment was

shown as a matter of law. It is the government's contention that the

facts and circumstances surrounding the September 9, 1966 trans-

action compel the conviction.

In a criminal case evidence on appeal is viewed in the light

most favorable to the government. Hiram v. United States , 354

F. 2d 47 (9th Cir. 1965); Stein v. United States, 337 F. 2d 14, 16

(9th Cir. 1964); Mosco v. United States , 321 F. 2d 180, 181 (9th

Cir. 1963), cert, denied 371 U.S. 842. This rule also includes all

inferences to be drawn from the evidence. Yeargain v. United States ,

314 F. 2d 881, 882 (9th Cir. 1963).

Until his introduction by Mr. Holmes, Agent Heath was a

stranger to the appellant, yet Agent Heath, not the informant, was

the one actually purchasing the heroin. In addition appellant admitted

that he desired to get something out of this purchase and did not

want to give up his source of supply of heroin. His story that he
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agreed to obtain the heroin only because of the insistence of a

friend is inconsistent with these circumstances. See Matysek v.

United States , 321 F. 2d 246 (9th Cir. 1963), cert, denied 376 U. S.

917. Also, if the appellant were merely doing this as a favor to a

friend one might ask why he took such meticulous precautions both

at Mr. Holmes' residence and at the area around Mark Kepple High

School.

Appellant admitted on the stand that he became directly

involved in this illicit transaction because "
. . . if I introduce Mr.

Holmes to my source of supply, he doesn't have to come to me, in

case I was broke in the future and he want to get some, he can go

directly to the source and I wouldn't make anything out of this.
"

[R. T. 201].

The appellant's predisposition to commit the offense is

relevant to the question of entrapment. Cf. Sorrells v. United

States, 287 U.S. 435 (1932). Appellant was willing to meet and

subsequently did meet with Agent Heath for the purpose of obtaining

and selling heroin. Such a subsequent act may be considered as

indicating a predisposition to commit the offense as charged. Trice

V. United States , 211 F. 2d 513 (9th Cir. 1954), cert, denied 348

U. S. 900.

Where, as here, the only evidence of entrapment is the

appellant's own testimony. The prosecution need not produce

evidence to the contrary since the jury may choose to disbelieve the

appellant. United States v. Thomas , 351 F. 2d 538 (2nd Cir. 1965).

At page 539 that court commented:
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"Presumably once entrapment is undisputedly

shown by government witness as in Sherman v. United

States , supra , the government would have to introduce

testimony to show willingness. The rule is otherwise

when defendant himself raises entrapment in his testi-

mony. The trier ... is permitted to disbelieve him

and did. " See also United States v. Masciale , 236 F. 2d

601 (2nd Cir. 1956); United States v. Pugliese , 346 F. 2d

861 (2nd Cir. 1965).

Furthermore the government established ample reason why

the appellant should not be believed. The appellant had a prior

conviction for a similar offense. According to his own testimony

he supported his narcotics habit by selling narcotics and engaging

in the illicit sale and traffic of heroin. Further, it was appellant's,

not the informant's, source of supply of the heroin which source

appellant did not want to lose. In addition, according to his own

testimony, appellant fully expected to make something out of this

illicit transaction. Certainly these facts alone are sufficient to

rebut appellant's contention that entrapment had been established

as a matter of law and to warrant sending the question to the jury.

In any event, an appellant who claims as does appellant

Cerda, that he was merely a procuring agent for the purchaser

thereby denying the sale, cannot raise the defense of entrapment

as to the sale counts and here the sentence imposed is concurrent

as to each of the counts upon which appellant was convicted. Dunbar
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V. United States , 342 F. 2d 979 (9th Cir. 1965).

The cases cited by appellant are not dispositive of the

problems now before the court. In Sherman v. United States , 356

U.S. 369 (1958), the evidence of entrapment appeared, unlike the

present situation. In the prosecution's own case. Furthermore,

the court there emphasized the appellant's undisputed efforts to

rehabilitate himself. Here the appellant himself testified that he

was addicted at the time of the offense and that he sought to traffic

in narcotics in order to sustain his addiction and make a profit and

that he did not wish to lose his source of supply.

The facts in Henderson v. United States, 261 F. 2d 909

(5th Clr. 1958), in which the court found entrapment established as

a matter of law, differs substantially from the present situation.

The appellant there was neither a user nor a seller of narcotics.

The purchaser of the heroin there was friendly with the appellant

rather than a stranger as in the case at hand. Furthermore, the

Informant there told the appellant where to get the narcotics and

even furnished the specific telephone number for that purpose and

there was no showing there that the appellant profited from the

transactions. These facts therefore present an entirely different

case from the one presently under consideration.

In Morales v. United States, 260 F. 2d 939 (6th Clr. 1958)

the appellant was not an addict and had no prior criminal record.

At page 940 the court stated:

"There was no proof that appellant had any

contact with persons engaged in the illicit sale of
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narcotics nor any evidence whatsoever of circumstances

that would justify even a reasonable suspicion that he

was engaged in the traffic.
"

Certainly in the present case we have considerably more than

"reasonable suspicion" that appellant was engaged in narcotics

traffic. We have his own admission to such.

C. THE PROCURING AGENT INSTRUC-
TION WAS PROPERLY GIVEN BY
THE TRIAL COURT.

Whatever may be the law in other circuits, it is clear that

in the 9th Circuit an appellant who establishes that he was a mere

procuring agent can be convicted of those counts charging facilitation.

Vasquez v. United States , 290 F. 2d 897 (9th Cir. 1961); Bruno v.

United States , 259 F. 2d 8 (9th Cir. 1958).

In the case at hand. Count One of the Indictment charges

the concealment and transportation and the facilitation of the con-

cealment and transportation of approximately 10. 900 grams of

heroin in violation of 21 U. S. C. 174; Count Two charges the sale

and the facilitation of the sale of the same quantity of heroin in

violation of 21 U. S. C. 174 and Count Three charges the sale of

heroin in violation of 26 U. S. C. 4705(a). Appellant requested, and

the court gave, the "procuring agent" instruction to the effect that

the appellant was not guilty if he acted as an agent of another. This

instruction was given with respect to Count Three and that portion

of Count Two charging the sale of the heroin but was not given as
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to the charge with respect to Count One and that portion of Count

Two charging the facilitation of the sale. Appellant now claims that

this was error under Prince v. United States , 264 F. 2d 850 (C. A. 3).

In the Prince case, the court held that a showing that a defendant

acted as a procuring agent for the buyer rather than as the seller

would constitute a defense to a charge of facilitating the sale of a

narcotic drug. In so holding the 3rd Circuit stands alone and its

rational has been rejected by the 9th Circuit. Cf. Bruno v. United

States, supra ; Vasquez v. United States , supra ; and others, Lewis

V. United States , 337 F. 2d 541 (C. A. D. C. ); United States v. Simons ,

374 F. 2d 993 (C. A. 7). Moreover, two of the cases upon which

Prince relied i. e. Sawyer v. United States , 210 F. 2d 159 (C. A. 2);

and Adams v. United States , 220 F. 2d 297 (C. A. 5) held only that a

procuring agent could not be a seller of a narcotic drug under the

provisions of 21 U. S. C. 174. These cases do not hold that the

procuring agent should be acquitted of facilitating the sale. The

court in Prince also relied on United States v. Dornblut , 261 F. 2d

949 (C. A. 2). There is nothing in the Dornblut decision, however,

that suggests the rule announced in Prince . Moreover, the Prince

decision itself does not bar the conviction of a procuring agent for

facilitating the transportation and concealment of heroin as charged

in Count One of the present case. Cf. Vasquez v. United States,

supra .

It is thus respectfully submitted that the court did not commit

prejudicial error in limiting the "procuring agent" instruction to

Count Three and the applicable portion of Count Two rather than to
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all three counts of the Indictment.

VI

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the appellee respectfully

prays that the judgment of conviction be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

WM. MATTHEW BYRNE, JR. ,

United States Attorney,

ROBERT L. BROSIO,
Assistant U. S. Attorney,
Chief, Criminal Division,

GABRIEL A. GUTIERREZ,
Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee,
United States of America.
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In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 21,936

National Labor Relations Board, petitioner

V.

Construction & General Laborers' Union Local
270, International Hod Carriers, Building

AND Common Laborers' Union of America,
respondent

On Petition for Enforcement of an Order of the

National Labor Relations Board

BRIEF FOR THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS
BOARD

JURISDICTION

This case is before the Court upon the petition of

the Board pursuant to Section 10(e) of the National

Labor Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73

Stat. 519, 29 U.S.C, Sec. 151, et seq.),' for enforce-

^ Pertinent provisions of the Act are set forth infra, pp.

20-22.

(1)



ment of its order, issued against respondent on No-

vember 29, 1966 (R. 31-32, 37-38)^ and reported at

161 NLRB No. 117. This Court has jurisdiction of

the proceeding, the unfair labor practices having

occurred on the campus of Stanford University in

Palo Alto, California. No issue as to the Board's

jurisdiction is presented (R. 16; Tr. 9).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. The Board's Findings of Fact

The Board found that respondent violated Section

8(b) (4) (i) and (ii) (B) of the Act by inducing and

encouraging an employee of a neutral employer to

cease performing services, and by threatening, coerc-

ing and restraining neutral employers, all with an ob-

ject of forcing those employers to cease doing business

with Hans V. Eggli, and for the purpose of forcing

Eggli to recognize and bargain with respondent, al-

though respondent had not been certified as the rep-

resentative of Eggli's employees under Section 9 of

the Act. The evidence on which these findings are

based is summarized below.

A. Background; Aguilar threatens White's

superintendent with a work stoppage

In the spring of 1965,^ Howard J. White, Inc., was
general contractor for the construction of the Mc-

2 References designated "R." are to Volume I of the record
reproduced according to Rule 10 of the Rules of this Court.

"Tr." references are to the reporter's transcript of testimony
as reproduced in Volume II of the record.

^ All dates hereafter are in 1965, unless otherwise specified.



Cullough Building, a research building at Stanford

University. White had subcontracted the landscaping

work on the project to the firm of Hans Eggli (R.

17; Tr. 43). On the morning of April 6, Gregory

Aguilar, respondent Union's assistant business rep-

resentative, visited the jobsite and approached laborer

Aurelio Ramirez, who was digging a ditch. Aguilar

told Ramirez that he was "from the Union" and

asked the latter for his union card. Ramirez an-

swered that he did not have a card. Aguilar next

asked Ramirez who employed him and what salary

he was earning. Ramirez answered that he worked

for Eggli and that his salary was $2.85 per hour.

Aguilar said that Ramirez was "supposed to get from

$3 up for the job" and asked the latter "how come"

he did not have a union card (R. 17; Tr. 36-37).

Ramirez answered that most of Eggli's work was

done in private homes and that Eggli had "no trouble

with the Unions" (ibid.). After some further con-

versation. Union Representative Aguilar said that he

would return at 1:00 o'clock and speak to Eggli (R.

17; Tr. 38).

When Aguilar returned that afternoon, he did not

meet Eggli. He did, however, approach Alexander

McCullough, White's superintendent at the Stanford

project. Aguilar asked McCullough if he knew that

Eggli was non-union. McCullough replied affirma-

tively. Aguilar asked why White permitted non-

union personnel on the job, since all of White's em-

ployees were union members. McCullough replied

that Eggli had a contract to do the work, and that,



as far as he (McCullough) was concerned, Eggli

would remain on the job. Aguilar asked if "there

was any way [White] could reconcile the thing to

where Eggli would have to leave" and, if that could

not be accomplished, "then he [Aguilar] would ask

his Union personnel on the job to leave" (R. 18; Tr.

44). Aguilar added that "if Eggli wasn't going to

leave, then he would ask his Union members to leave

the job". (R. 1819; Tr. 44, 59-61.) Later that day,

McCullough reported to Eggli the substance of his

conversation with Aguilar, and asked Eggli "how he

intended to proceed with his work," in view of the

Union's objections to "his having non-Union person-

nel on the job." Eggli replied that he would "com-

plete the job in some manner [although] he didn't

know just how [he] would go about it . . . (R. 20;

Tr. 46-47).

B. Aguilar induces and coerces B & C to cease work

On the following day, April 7, Union Representa-

tive Aguilar again visited the jobsite. He approached

Superintendent McCullough and asked him if Eggli's

employees were on the job that day. McCullough re-

plied, truthfully, that they were not (R. 20; Tr. 45-

46)." Aguilar asked McCullough what he and White

* At the Board hearing, during cross-examination by coun-

sel for respondent, McCullough was asked why Eggli and his

men were not working that day. McCullough replied as fol-

lows (Tr. 61-62) :

A. The reason he was not working was that he was
aware of the situation as such. He had told me that when
I had asked him how he was going to accomplish his



had decided to do about Eggli. McCullough answered

that he did not know. Aguilar also told McCullough

that, as a union man, McCullough had a duty to

"make sure that there were no non-union personnel

on the job" (R. 20; Tr. 46).

Aguilar then approached employee Jerry Clement,

who was digging a ditch with a trenching machine.

Clement was employed by B & C, Inc. of Burlingame,

California, which had been retained by Eggli, pur-

suant to an oral contract, for the purpose of digging

trenches for an irrigation system. Clement, although

nominally a working foreman at B & C, which was

owned by his father, had no employees under him

at the McCullough Building jobsite, as he was the

only B & C employee assigned to that project (R. 21;

Tr. 19, 22, 27, 29, 83). Aguilar tapped Clement on

the shoulder and asked for his union card. Clement

replied that he did not have his union card with him

but that he had a work clearance from Local 389,

work. He told me that he didn't know how he was going

to accomplish it, but he couldn't work under the con-

ditions as they were.

The cross-examination continued with the following questions

and answers (Tr. 62) :

Q. . . . What conditions were in existence that would
lead him to say that?

A. He told me that he was being harassed.

* * * *

Q. (By Mr. Carroll) Mr. McCullough, was it your

understanding that Mr. Eggli was not working on this

day which we are speaking about solely because he was
fearful of potential Union harassment?

A. Right.



Construction and General Laborers' Union, of which

he was a member. When Clement had difficulty lo-

cating his clearance, Aguilar accused him of working

for Eggli and told him that he "would have to leave

the job, that this is a Union job and that [he] had

to get off" (R. 21; Tr. 15, 24).

At length, Clement found his work clearance from

Local 389 and showed it to Aguilar, who expressed

some skepticism at its authenticity and asked Clement

what his wages were. Clement answered that he

made $5 an hour. Aguilar laughed and said that

"that was really funny . . . Hans Eggli never paid

anybody in his life $5 an hour." Clement again pro-

tested that he was not working for Eggli. Aguilar

answered that ".
. . this was a Union job and he

didn't want any non-Union people on this job . . .

that he was really firm against it . .
." and that he

would "work days, nights or Sundays, whatever he

had to, to make sure there wasn't any non-Union help

on the job." Clement reiterated that his employer,

B & C, was a union firm and he "didn't see too much
of what the problem was although [he] didn't under-

stand the technicalities involved in this type of thing"

(R. 21; Tr. 17). Aguilar replied that Clement "could

get himself caught up in between a labor dispute here

if [he] didn't get off the job." Aguilar added that

"he could go to Mr. White . . . the general contractor

. . . and see to it that he closed down the job . . .

the building was almost done . . . but the windows
were left to be cleaned, and the building before it

could be turned over had to be cleaned, and the win-



dows had to be washed ... he could pull the window

washers off. The window washers were all Union.

He could pull them off the job and stop the job that

way . .
." Aguilar said that '*he would suggest very

strongly that [Clement] leave, that there was a labor

dispute on this thing. He was going to get Hans off

the job ... he was familiar with Hans Eggli's oper-

ation, and he knew that he was non-Union. He defi-

nitely wasn't going to work on that job, and ... he

wanted [Clement] off and . . . he would appreciate

it if [Clement] would leave" (R. 21; Tr. 17-18).

Aguilar added, "... in a situation like this, you

never know what is going to happen" (Tr. 24). After

concluding his remarks, Aguilar walked over to his

car in order to determine whether or not B & C was

listed in a book containing the names of firms in the

area which were in good standing with the Union.

At the same time, Clement saw Eggli on the other

side of the building. He approached Eggli, told the

latter about his conversation with Aguilar, and in-

formed him that he "didn't want to get caught in

the middle because [B & C had] Union help because

[they were] a Union firm, and [they couldn't] afford

to get caught in the middle of these things." Clement

told Eggli that he wanted to call his father. Eggli

said, "Well, go ahead. I don't want you to get in

any type of trouble on this thing" (R. 22; Tr. 18-19).

Clement went to Aguilar, who told the former that

his (Aguilar's) book listed B & C as a "good Union

firm"; he declared, however, that "it would be best"

if they left the job (R. 22; Tr. 20). Clement called



his father, the president of B & C, and explained the

situation. After some deliberation, his father called

back and told Clement "to get off the job . . . [be-

cause] this guy could get [them] in trouble down

there, and [they] couldn't afford to do that . . . [they]

had too many other jobs going with the other con-

tractors" (R. 22; Tr. 20-21). Clement then left the

job, although his work was not yet completed. B & C

never did finish the job for which Eggli had retained

them (R. 22; Tr. 21).

C. Respondent threatens White's vice-president with

a work stoppage

On April 7, 1967, John Pierini, respondent's busi-

ness representative, telephoned Conroy Betts, White's

vice-president. Pierini told Betts that "one of his

[Pierini's] men had been out on the job and that

[White's] landscaping contractor, Hans Eggli, was

using non-Union laborers." Pierini added that "hav-

ing non-Union laborers on the job could create some

problems and he might have to [pull] his men off the

job if they continued to work on the job" (R. 23;

Tr. 66). Betts asked Pierini if the latter had spoken

to Eggli. Pierini replied that he had had "several

conversations with [Eggli] but apparently Eggli had

no intention of signing an agreement with them."

Betts asked what Pierini wanted him to do. Pierini

replied that Betts should call Eggli and try to per-

suade the latter to "sign up with the Union." If

Eggli refused, Betts was to tell him that "if he con-

tinued to use non-Union laborers [Betts] might have



to remove him from the job and have someone else

complete his work." Betts stated that he considered

this to be Pierini's function but that he would call

Eggli as requested. Pierini repeated that "he would

pull his men off the job" if White permitted Eggli

to continue working on the project with non-union

labor (R. 23-24; Tr. 67-68).

Following this conversation with Pierini, Betts

telephoned Eggli and told him that the project was

in danger of being shut down because of him, that

White did not want ''any work stoppages on the job

and that if [Eggli] couldn't straighten out the mat-

ter [Betts] would have to take him off the job."

Eggli assured Betts that "he would take care of it,"

and Betts said that he would "[leave] it strictly in

[Eggli's] hands" (R. 25; Tr. 67-68). Subsequently,

Eggli finished his assigned job by working on week-

ends, although personnel on that project did not nor-

mally work weekends (R. 25; Tr. 62-63, 75, 85-86).

II. The Board's Conclusion and Order

On the foregoing facts, the Board found that re-

spondent violated Section 8(b) (4) (i) and (ii) (B) of

the Act by inducing and encouraging Clement to re-

fuse to perform services which B & C had contracted

to perform for Eggli and by threatening and coercing

B & C and White with the object of forcing these

employers to cease doing business with Eggli, all for

the purpose of requiring Eggli to bargain with re-

spondent even though respondent had not been certi-

fied as the collective bargaining representative of
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Eggli's employees. The Board's order requires re-

spondent to cease and desist from the unfair labor

practices found and to post the usual notices (R. 30-

31, 37-38).

ARGUMENT

Substantial Evidence on the Whole Record Supports

the Board's Finding That Respondent Violated Section

8(b)(4)(i) and (ii)(B) of the Act

Section 8(b) (4) (i) and (ii)(B) of the Act, as

amended in 1959 (see iiifra p. 20) provides that

a union or its agents may not "induce or encourage

any individual" employed in an industry affecting

interstate commerce, or "threaten, coerce or restrain

any person" in commerce, where an object is either

to force the cessation of business relations between a

neutral employer and any other person, or to force

any other employer to bargain as the representative

of his employees unless the union has been certified

by the Board as the representative of such employees.

This section renders unlawful the use of a secondary

boycott to implicate neutral employers in disputes not

their own. See N.L.R.B. v. District Council of Paint-

ers No. Jf8 and Paint Makers Local Union No, 1232,

340 F. 2d 107 (C.A. 9), cert, denied, 381 U.S. 914;

Retail Fruit and Vegetable Clerks Union, Local 1017

V. N.L.R.B., 249 F. 2d 591 (C.A. 9).

In the instant case, as set forth in the Statement,

White, a union firm and the general contractor for

construction of the McCullough Building at Stanford

University, subcontracted the landscaping work to
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Eggli, a non-union firm which had consistently re-

fused to "sign up with the Union." Eggli engaged a

union firm, B & C, to dig trenches as part of the

landscaping. In displeasure over discovering Eggli's

use of "non-union personnel" on the project, respond-

ent quickly resorted to pressure to remove that

employer from the jobsite. This included an insist-

ence by Union Representative Aguilar that Jerry

Clement, B & C's sole worker at the site, leave the

job or respondent would close it down by "pulling off"

every union employee. This was accompanied by an

admonition that Clement should not get involved in

the middle of a labor dispute, that respondent "was

going to get Hans [Eggli] off the job" as he was

non-union, and that Clement should leave the project

as "you never know what is going to happen." As a

result, B & C did withdraw. That Aguilar's state-

ments to Clement were calculated to "induce or en-

courage" an employee of a neutral employer to en-

gage in a work stoppage, within the proscription of

Section 8(b) (4) (i) (B), is manifest. N.L.R.B. v. Dis-

tiict Council of Painters, etc., supra, 340 F. 2d at

110-111; N.L.R.B. v. Local 29^, Teamsters, 298 F.

2d 105, 106-107 (C.A. 2); N.L.R.B. v. Plumbers'

Union of Nassau County, 299 F. 2d 497, 500-501

(C.A. 2) ; N.L.R.B. v. Highway Truckdrivers and

Helpers, Local 107, 300 F. 2d 317, 319-320 (C.A. 3).

Moreover, as the Board further concluded (R. 13)

the application of such pressure against B & C
—that is, a work stoppage by its employee— also

falls squarely within the interdiction of subsec-
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tion (ii), the purpose of which is not only to fore-

close threats to neutral employers of such "labor

trouble and other consequences," ^ but also to prohibit

carrying out such threats by means of a "strike or

other economic retaliation." " Cases cited siipra. See,

in addition, N.L.R.B. v. International Hod Carriers,

Local lllfO, 285 F. 2d 397, 402-403 (C.A. 8), cert.

denied, 366 U.S. 903.

The pressure brought against White was equally

unambiguous. Union Representative Aguilar com-

plained of Eggli's non-union status and told Super-

intendent McCullough that Eggli would have to "leave

the job," and coupled the demand with a threat to

"ask his Union personnel to leave" if Eggli remained.

The following day Business Agent Pierini telephoned

Betts, White's vice president, and insisted that Eggli's

men be pulled off the job, threatening to call a work

stoppage if his wishes were not followed. Pierini

then asked Betts to persuade Eggli to sign a contract

with respondent. When Betts hesitated, Pierini sug-

gested that Eggli be told that Betts would have to

remove him from the project if he continued to use

non-union labor. Pierini then repeated Aguilar's ear-

lier threat to "pull his men" if Eggli were permitted

to continue with non-union help. These utterances

were unquestionably "threats, coercion, and restraint"

against a neutral employer, condemned by subsection

(ii). Cases above-cited.

=^105 Cong. Rec. 15532, II Leg. Hist. 1568; see 105 Cong.
Rec. 8874, II Leg. Hist. 1750.

« 105 Cong. Rec. 14347, 15544, II Leg. Hist. 1523, 1581.
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The defenses put forth by respondent were properly-

rejected.

1. As shown, respondent induced Clement to stop

performing B & C's work, which was being done un-

der a contract with Eggli. This was not a legitimate,

peaceful appeal to a managerial or supervisory offi-

cial of a secondary employer to use his managerial

discretion to cease doing business with an employer

with whom a union has a primary dispute. While

such appeals are not proscribed, subsection (i) does

prohibit union attempts to induce or encourage man-

agerial officials to cease performing their duties for

the secondary employer. N.L.R.B. v. Servette, Inc.,

377 U.S. 46, 50. Clement was normally a working

foreman. As the Board noted, however, he was the

sole B & C employee required at the site, and was

engaged as an operator of B & C equipment (R. 26).

Union Representative Aguilar plainly viewed Clement

in only that capacity, for Aguilar was not acquainted

with B & C and made no effort at a direct appeal

to its management. Rather, Aguilar immediately in-

quired of Clement's union affiliation. When Clement

demonstrated that he worked for a union firm and

was a member of a sister local, Aguilar demanded

he quit working on a project tainted with the pres-

ence of a non-union employer (Eggli). This was not

merely an appeal to managerial discretion to aid a

union in its dispute with another employer. Rather,

it was a traditional appeal to withhold services from

an employer in the name of union loyalty. In the

above circumstances, as this Court recognized in re-
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jecting a similar reliance on the holding in Servette,

the appeal is not "directed at the foreman's [man-

agerial] discretion alone" and is *'in violation of Sec-

tion 8(b) (4) (i) (B)." N.L.R.B. v. District Council of

Painters, etc., supra at 340 F. 2d 111-112. That

something other than a management decision was in-

tended here is confirmed by Aguilar's implication that

Clement could get in trouble if the demand was not

met. See l.B.E.W. v. N.L.R.B., 341 U.S. 694, 700-

701; N.L.R.B. v. Local 29 Jf, Teamsters, supra, 298

F. 2d at 106-108. And that Clement left and did

not return after conferring with his father, B & C's

president, is not of significance. This capitulation by

a secondary employer whose work force is being sub-

jected to union pressures is not unusual.

2. Union representatives Aguilar and Pierini de-

nied that the incriminating utterances were made.

Aguilar thus testified that he made no demands of

Clement after confirming his union affiliation and

that of B & C; further, that his statements to Super-

intendent McCullough did not go beyond a declara-

tion that having Eggli on the job violated the collec-

tive bargaining agreement with White, and a request

that McCullough arrange a meeting between respond-

ent and Eggli to resolve the dispute (R. 18-19; Tr.

98-99). Pierini testified that he called Vice-president

Betts merely to tell him that under a provision in

the parties' contract White must procure Eggli's sig-

nature to the agreement (R. 24; Tr. 137-143). The

Trial Examiner, however, explained at length why
demeanor, corroboration, and other such factors die-
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tated his crediting of testimony which was denied

by respondent's officials (R. 3-10). The Board af-

firmed these credibility determinations, since respond-

ent made no showing that the testimony credited was

inherently improbable on this record or that some

irrational basis was used in deciding whom to believe

(R. 37 n. 2). In these circumstances, the reviewing

court will not disturb the resolution of conflicting

testimony made by the trier of fact. See, e.g.,

N.L.R.B. V. Infl. LongsJioremen's Warehouseynen's

Union, Local 10, et al, 283 F. 2d 558, 562-563 (C.A.

9) ; Shattuck Denn Mining Corp. v. N.L.R.B., 362 F.

2d 466, 469-470 (C.A. 9).

3. Respondent plainly sought to achieve the ob-

jectives proscribed by the statute. The dispute with

Eggli, the primary employer, over his non-union

status generated and was the express premise for the

economic pressure brought against White and B & C

—to whom it was made clear that such pressure

would subsist until Eggli ended his non-union status

by signing a union contract. White and B & C were

powerless, however, to make this decision for Eggli.

They were thus secondary employers who were being

pressured to cancel construction contracts as a means

of resolving respondent's dispute with Eggli. Respond-

ent's attempt to interfere or to curtail those contrac-

tual relationships by improper means is a classic

example of forcing a cessation of business with a dis-

favored employer which the Act prohibits. N.L.R.B.

V. Denver Bldg. and Constr. Trades Council, 341

U.S. 675, 688; LB.E.W. v. N.L.R.B., supra, 341

U.S. at 699-700. Furthermore, the demand that
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Eggli be importuned to terminate his non-union

status by signing a union contract establishes be-

yond doubt that respondent was also bringing

secondary pressure to force Eggli "to recognize

or bargain," in further violation of Section 8(b)

(4) (i) and (ii) (B) of the Act. N.L.R.B. v. Interna^

tional Union of Operating Engineers, Local Union

No. 12, 293 F. 2d 319, 322-323 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B.

V. Inteniational Hod Carriers, Local IHO, 285 F. 2d

397, 398, 403 (C.A. 8), cert, denied, 366 U.S. 903;

N.L.R.B. V. Local 825, International Union of Oper-

ating Engineers, AFL-CIO. 315 F. 2d 695, 699 (C.A.

3) ; compare Scobell Chemical Co. v. N.L.R.B., 267

F. 2d 922, 925 (C.A. 2).

Respondent asserted that it had a right to bring

pressure against White to secure his adherence to

the parties' contract (see, R. 19; Resp. Exhs. 1 & 2).

Allegedly the contract contained no unlawful require-

ment that all subcontractors be union signatories, but

only a "primary" clause requiring that unit work

which was subcontracted be performed at area wage

standards.'' See, Orange Belt District Council of

Painters #^5, AFL-CIO, et al, 153 NLRB 1196,

^ The Board noted, however, that the clause in the contract

was nominally a secondary provision in violation of the "hot
cargo" prohibition of Section 8(e) of the Act, but exempted
under the construction industry proviso to that section, dis-

cussed infra (R, 15). See, N.L.R.B. v. Bangor Building and
Trades Council, 278 F. 2d 287, 290 n. 4 (C.A. 1) ; Distnct 9,

Machinists v. N.L.R.B., 315 F. 2d 33, 36-37 (C.A. D.C.) ; Meat
and Highway Drivers Local 710 v. N.L.R.B., 335 F. 2d 709,

717 (C.A. D.C). See also, N.L.R.B. v. Joint Council of Team-
sters, No. 38, 338 F. 2d 23, 28 (C.A. 9).
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enforced 365 F. 2d 540 (C.A. D.C.). Cf. National

Woodwork Manufacturers Association, et al. v.

! N.L.R.B., 386 U.S. 612, 638-639; Houston Contrac-

tors Ass'n. V. N.L.R.B., 386 U.S. 664. As shown,

I however, the Board discounted the testimony of re-

spondent's officials avowing that White's alleged con-

tractual obligation to safeguard unit wage standards

j
was the limit of respondent's concern. Respondent

thus gave no indication that its sole and primary

j
dispute was with White over the preservation and

j
integrity of unit work. There is not, as the Trial

I Examiner observed (R. 15-16) the slightest sugges-

tion in the record that respondent even considered

that the landscaping work Eggli was performing was

related to the unit work of White's employees. Fur-

thermore, respondent's demand on White, and Eggli,

went far beyond a request that work at the site be

performed at area standards. The demand was that

Eggli use union personnel and sign a union agree-

ment. Finally, to further that demand pressure was

brought against B & C, though it was White who

allegedly was breaching a duty to maintain area

standards and B & C, a union firm, was meeting those

I standards.

Respondent, in short, considered Eggli an un-

acceptable subcontractor on the project because of

his non-union status and other labor policies. Re-

spondent attempted to make Eggli alter these policies

by forcing neutral employers—White and B & C—to

cancel their subcontracts with Eggli. This was, as

demonstrated, a clear form of secondary pressure
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against a disfavored employer. Accordingly, the

Board properly rejected the familiar claim that the

employer with whom the union had a contract (i.e.,

White) was the "primary" employer in the dispute

and subjected to legitimate pressures. N.L.R.B. v.

Bangor Building Trades Council, siqora, 278 F. 2d

at 289-290; Local 636, Plumbers v. N.L.R.B., 278

F. 2d 858, 864 (C.A.D.C.). Compare, Northeastern

Indiana Bldg. d Constr. Trades Council, et ah,

148 NLRB 854, enforcement denied on unrelated

grounds, 352 F. 2d 696 (C.A. D.C.) ; N.L.R.B.

V. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, etc..

Local 2U, 342 F. 2d 18, 22 (C.A. 2). See also,

National Woodwork Mfg. Ass'n., et al. v. N.L.R.B.,

supra, 386 U.S. at 644-646; Houston Contractors

Ass'n. V. N.L.R.B., supra, 386 U.S. at 668.

As the Board further concluded (R. 15) respond-

ent may place no reliance on the proviso to Section

8(e) of the Act, which grants parties in the construc-

tion industry the privilege to enter into agreements

whereby the contracting employer will engage only

union subcontractors on the jobsite (infra, pp. 20-21).

By virtue of the proviso, this otherwise unlawful

objective may be made a contractual arrangement.

But the union is limited to judicial enforcement. The

proviso does not permit the union to use economic

pressure to achieve a secondary boycott condemned

by the Act. N.L.R.B. v. International Union of Oper-

ating Engineers, Local Union No. 12, supi-a, 293 F.

2d at 323; N.L.R.B. v. I.B.E.W., Local Union No.

683, AFL-CIO, 359 F. 2d 385 (C.A. 6) ; Local 5,

United Ass'n., etc. v. N.L.R.B., 321 F. 2d 366, 367-
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369 (C.A. D.C.), cert, denied, 375 U.S. 921; N.L.R.B.

V. International Brotherhood of Teamsters, etc., Local

\\29Jt, supra, 342 F. 2d at 22. See Local Union No.

1,8, etc. V. Hardy Corp., 332 F. 2d 682 (C.A. 5).

CONCLUSION

H For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully re-

quested that the Board's order be enforced in full.

Arnold Ordman,
General Counsel,

DOMINICK L. Manoli,

Associate General Counsel,

Marcel Mallet-Prevost,

Assistant General Counsel,

Glen M. Bendixsen,
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APPENDIX A

The relevant provisions of the National Labor Re-

lations Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519,

29 U.S.C, Sees. 151, et seq.) are as follows:

Sec. 8 (b) It shall be an unfair labor practice for

a labor organization or its agents

—

(4) (i) to engage in, or to induce or encourage

any individual employed by any person engaged

in commerce or in an industry affecting com-

merce to engage in, a strike or a refusal in the

course of his employment to use, manufacture,

process, transport, or otherwise handle or work

on any goods, articles, materials, or commodities

or to perform any services; or (ii) to threaten,

coerce, or restrain any person engaged in com-

merce or in an industry aifecting commerce,

where in either case an object thereof is:

(B) forcing or requiring any person to cease

using, selling, handling, transporting, or other-

wise dealing in the products of any other pro-

ducer, processor, or manufacturer, or to cease

doing business with any other person, or forcing

or requiring any other employer to recognize or

bargain with a labor organization as the repre-

sentative of his employees unless such labor or-

ganization has been certified as the representative

of such employees under the provisions of section

9 : Provided, that nothing contained in this clause

(B) shall be construed to make unlawful, any
primary strike or primary picketing;

* * * *

[Sec. 8] (e) It shall be an unfair labor practice

for any labor organization and any employer to enter

into any contract or agreement, express or implied,



21

whereby such employer ceases or refrains or agrees

to cease or refain from handling, using, selling, trans-

porting or otherwise dealing in any of the products

of any other employer, or to cease doing business

with any other person, and any contract or agreement

entered into heretofore or hereafter containing such

an agreement shall be to such extent unenforcible and

void: Provided, That nothing in this subsection (e)

shall apply to an agreement between a labor organi-

zation and an employer in the construction industry

relating to the contracting or subcontracting of work
to be done at the site of the construction, alteration,

painting, or repair of a building, structure, or other

work: Provided further, That for the purposes of this

subsection (e) and section 8 (b) (4) (B) the terms

"any employer," "any person engaged in commerce
or an industry affecting commerce," and "any person"

when used in relation to the terms "any other pro-

ducer, processor, or manufacturer," "any other em-
ployer," or "any other person" shall not include per-

sons in the relation of a jobber, manufacturer, con-

tractor, or subcontractor working on the goods or

premises of the jobber or manufacturer or perform-

ing parts of an integrated process of production in

the apparel and clothing industry: Provided further,

That nothing in this Act shall prohibit the enforce-

ment of any agreement which is within the foregoing

exception.
* * * *

Sec. 10(e) The Board shall have power to petition

any court of appeals of the United States, . . . within

any circuit . . . wherein the unfair labor practice in

question occurred or wherein such person resides or

transacts business, for the enforcement of such order

and for appropriate temporary relief or restraining
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order, and shall file in the court the record in the

proceedings, as provided in section 2112 of title 28,

United States Code. Upon the filing of such petition,

the court shall cause notice thereof to be served upon

such person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction of

the proceeding and of the question determined there-

in, and shall have power to grant such temporary

relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper,

and to make and enter a decree enforcing, modifying,

and enforcing as so modified, or setting aside in

whole or in part the order of the Board. No objec-

tion that has not been urged before the Board, its

member, agent, or agency, shall be considered by the

court, unless the failure or neglect to urge such ob-

jection shall be excused because of extraordinary cir-

cumstances. The findings of the Board with respect

to questions of fact if supported by substantial evi-

dence on the record considered as a whole shall be

conclusive. If either party shall apply to the court

for leave to adduce additional evidence and shall

show to the satisfaction of the court that such addi-

tional evidence is material and that there were rea-

sonable grounds for the failure to adduce such evi-

dence in the hearing before the Board, its member,
agent, or agency, the court may order such additional

evidence to be taken before the Board, its member,
agent, or agency, and to be made a part of the record
* * * Upon the filing of the record with it, the juris-

diction of the court shall be exclusive and its judg-

ment and decree shall be final, except that the same
shall be subject to review by the * * * Supreme Court
of the United States upon writ of certiorari or cer-

tification as provided in section 1254 of title 28.
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No. 21,936

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

National Labor Relations Board,

Petitioner,

vs.

Construction & General Laborers' Union

Local 270, International Hod Carriers,

Building and Common Laborers' Union

of America,

Respondent.

On Petition for Enforcement of an Order of

the National Labor Relations Board

BRIEF FOR RESPONDENT

CONSTRUCTION & GENERAL LABORERS' UNION LOCAL 270,

INTERNATIONAL HOD CARRIERS, BUILDING AND

COMMON LABORERS' UNION OF AMERICA

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The comj)laint filed by the National Labor Relations

Board against the Respondent charged a violation of

jSection 8(b) (4) (i) and (ii)(B) and Section 2(6)

and (7) of the Labor Management Relations Act of

1947, as amended (29 U.S.C, Sec. 151). The basic



I
facts involve a general contractor (Howard J. White,

Inc.) who was performing work in the construction

industry on a construction jobsite known as the Mc-

Cullough location. White was signatory to collective

bargaining agreements (Respondent's Exhibits 1 and

2) with the Respondent Union. White engaged the

services of Hans Eggli, landscaping subcontractor, to

perform some of the work at the above-mentioned job-

site. The work to be performed by the subcontractor

was work which was mentioned in and covered by the

collective bargaining agreements between White and

the Union.

Eggli commenced work in April of 1965 and ended

in May of 1965 (R.Tr. pp. 87, 92, 151).

THE ISSUES

1. There were no unlawful threats against, or co-

ercion or restraint of White.

2. There were no threats oi- other unlawful actions

against White in violation of Section 8(b)(4).

3. There was no violation of the provisions of Sec-

tion 8(b)(4) with respect to the subcontractor B & C
Company.

ARGUMENT
THERE WERE NO UNLAWFUL THREATS AGAINST, OR

COERCION OR RESTAINT OF WHITE.

The record is cleai- that no unlawful threats, co-

ercion or restraint occurred with respect to White.

Gregoiy Aguilar testified that he was the assistant



business representative of the Union and, in the

course of a routine check of the construction jobsite

on the Stanford University campus, he noticed a man
doing laborers' work. He went over to the man (Ra-

mirez), questioned him, and determined that he was
working for Eggli and did not belong to the Union.

Aguilar talked about substandard wages and condi-

tions under which Ramirez was working, but such a

conversion is, of course, lawful (R.Tr. pp. 36, 95,

96 and 97). The National Labor Relations Board

made absolutelj^ no determination concerning the sig-

nificance of this conversation.

Agiular returned to the job in the afternoon and

talked to White's superintendent. He asked the su-

perintendent if he knew that Eggli was a non-union

contractoi'. Agnilar further explained that the use of

a non-union subcontractor was a violation of that por-

tion of the collective bargaining agreement which

deals with the subcontracting out of work covered by

the agTeement under substandard conditions. The

section involved is Section 11 of Respondent's Exhibit

2, which provides:

Section 11

—

Subcontractors

The terms and conditions of this Agreement
insofar as it affects Employer and the Individual

Employer shall apply equally to any sub-

contractor under the control of, or working imder

contract with such Indi^ddual Employer on any

, work covered by this Agreement, and said sub-

contractor with respect to such work shall be con-

sidered the same as an Individual Employer cov-

ered hereby.



If an IndiAddiial Employer shall subcontract

work herein defined, such subcontract shall state

that such subcontractor agrees to be bound by

and comply with the terms and provisions of this

Agreement.

A subcontractor is defined as any person, firm

or corporation who agrees under contract with the

Employer, or any Individual Employer, or a sub-

contractor of the Employer, or any Individual

Employer to perform on the job site any part or

portion of the construction w^ork covered by the

prime contract, including the operation of equip-

ment, performance of labor and installation of

materials.

An Individual Employer who provides in the

subcontract that the subcontractor will pay the

wages and benefits and ^vill observe the hours and

all other terms and conditions of this Agreement,

shall not be liable for any delinquency by such

subcontractor in the payment of any wages or

fringe benefits provided herein, including pay-

ments required by Sections 28(A), 28(B) and

28(C), excej)t as follows:

The Individual Employer will give written no-

tice to the Union of any subcontract invohdng the

performance of work covered by this Agreement
within five (5) days of entering such subcontract,

and shall specify the name and address of the

subcontractor.

If thereafter such sulxjontractor shall become
delinquent in the payment of any wages or bene-

fits as above specified, the Union shall promjDtly

give written notice thereof to the Individual Em-
ployer and to the subcontractor specifying the na-

ture and amount of such delinquency.



If such notice is given, the Individual Em-
ployer shall pay and satisfy the amount of any
such delinquency by such subcontractor occur-

ring within sixty (60) days prior to the receipt

of said notice from the Union, and said Individ-

ual Employer may witliliold the amount claimed

to be delinquent out of the sums due and owing
by the Individual Employer to such subcontractor.

The Individual Employer shall not be liable for

any such delinquency if the Local Union where
the delinquency occurs refers any employee to

such subcontractor after giving such notice and
during the continuance of such delinquency.

The Individual Employer shall not be liable

for any such delinquency occurring more than

sixty (60) days prior to receipt of wiitten notice

from the Union.

(See, also, R.Tr. pp. 98, 99 and 117). Nothing about

this conversation can be deemed to have been mi-

lawful.

Because of the apparent violation of the coUetive

bargaining agreement, Aguilar asked White's super-

intendent if some sort, of a meeting could ]3e arranged

with Eggli. At this time almost no work was left to

!be done on the job by Eggli, but Aguilar did not

want violations of Section 11 to occur in the future.

White's superintendent agreed to arrange for a meet-

ing. When Aguilar did not receive a call from

White's superintendent, he went out on the job again

and saw another man doing laborers' work (Clement),

and asked White's superintendent about Clement.

White's superintendent simjjly advised Aguilar that



notlmig could be done about Eggli, and the conversa'

tion about Clement seems to be unclear. Aguilar then

spoke to Clement and determined that he worked for

another subcontractor who apparently did have a col-

lective bargaining agTeement with the Union (Clement

was working for B & C Company).

The above-mentioned conversation occurred in early

April. Nothing further occurred and there was no

interruption of work until approximately April 26,

1965 when Aguilar again came on the jobsite and saw

three men doing landscaping work. These three men

refused to talk to Aguilar even though the landscap-

ing work was covered by the agTeement between the

Union and White (R.Tr. p. 106). When Aguilar was

unable to determine how the men got on the job and

whom they worked for, and therefore could not de-

termine whether other portions of the agreement had

been violated (hiring hall provisions contained in

Section 3 of Respondent's Exhibit 2), Aguilar at-

tempted to find White's supermtendent and spoke to

the new superintendent who was unable to give

Aguilar any information. No interruption of work

occurred and the job was completed without inter-

ruption.

It is respectfully submitted that a union business

agent has the right and obligation to make inquiries

concerning potential violations of a collective bargain-

ing agreement. Such conversations are lawful even if

they are less than friendly, particularly in view of

the fact that none of the provisions of the collective

bargaining agreement were deemed by the National

I



Labor Relations Board to be unlawful on their face.

The Board is not attempting to have any portion of

the collective bargaining agTeement declared imlawful

and therefore it cannot declare conduct of an assist-

ant business agent of a union unlawful when he seeks

to enforce those lawful provisions of the contract or

at least to determine by verbal inquiry whether or not

they have been violated.

THERE WERE NO THREATS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL ACTIONS
AGAINST WHITE IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 8(b)(4).

Section 11 of the collective bargaining agreement

referred to previously in this brief is a lawful collec-

tive bargaining clause dealing with subcontracting iu

the construction industry pursuant to the provisions

of Section 8(e) of the Act. Any discusssions between

Aguilar and White's superintendent concerning real,

imagined, or potential violations of this section of the

agreement would revolve, therefore, ai'ound a primary

;dispute between the Union and White as the signa-

tory employer to the collective bargaining agreement.

That is, the Union has a right to talk directly to the

employer concerning that employer's violation of the

, collective bargaining agreement and to take steps

against that employer to correct a violation. This is

a clearcut action by the Union against the primary

employer and therefore could not possibly be a viola-

tion of the secondary boycott provisions contained ii]

Section 8(b)(4) of the Act.



The Boai-d appaiTiitly misconstrued this basic

issue. The Board and the General Counsel apparently

take the jjosition that discussions bet^veen Agu.ilar

and White were improper and unlawful under the

concept of "secondary boycott" because those conver-

sations revolved around another employer, namely,

Eggli and perhaps B & C. Merely because the names

of those employers may have come into the conver-

sation does not change the fact that the Union was

interested in determining- from White whether White

had violated the collective bargaining agi-eement by

virtue of an unproper subcontract of work covered

by the agreement. Under these circumstances, it is

clear that any discussion between White and the

Union and any statement of potential conduct by the

Union with respect to White in order to vindicate its

collective bargaining agreement with White is activity

concerning a primary employer and not a secondary

employer.

Similarly, a request by the Union directed to White

to cease violating a lawful section of the collective

bargaiaing agreement is a lawful request even though

it might have the effect of having White cease doing

business with Eggli. Nevertheless, such a request is

not an milawful secondary boycott since it is directed

to the primary employer's violation of the agreement.

Nothing in the statute prohibits such a request di-

rect(^d to a primary employer in the enforcement of a

lawful provision of a collective bargaining agreement,

even though tlie request might have some effect with

respect to another employer. Such a clause as is con-



tained in Section 11 and the type of request made by

A-gnilar to White are clearly within the permissible

scope of conduct allowed by the Board and the courts

with respect to such clauses. See Orange Belt District

Oouncil of Painters, No. 48, etc., 131 NLRB 383

(1962), remanded by the United States Court of Ap-

peals for the District of Columbia, 328 F.2d 534

(1964), and supplemented on remand by the Board,

153 NLRB No. 80 (1965) ; see, also, Woodwork Man-

ufacturers Ass'n V. NLRB, 18 L.Ed. 2d 356 (April

L7, 1967) ; and Insulation Contractors Ass'n v. NLRB,
18 L.Ed. 2d 389 (April 17, 1967). The United States

Supreme Court in the Woodwork case, supra, foimd

':hat provisions similar to Section 11 were lawful and

:he miions in that case did not violate Section 8(e)

)f the Act by entering into the agreement or by en-

forcing its terms, even though such enforcement

iffected manufacturers and employers other than the

Drimary construction contractor. The decision of the

Boai'd in the Orange Belt case, supra, is specifically

jontrary to the Board's finding in the instant case.

[n that case the Board held

:

'' 'The test as to the ''primary" nature of a

subcontractor clause in an agreement with a gen-

eral contractor has been phrased by scholars as

to whether it
'

' will directly benefit employees cov-

ered thereby," and "seeks to protect the wages
and job opportmiities of the employees covered

by the contract." We have phrased the test as

whether the clauses are "germane to the economic
integrity of the principal work miit," and seek

"to protect and presei-v^e the work and standards
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[the miion] has bargained for," or instead "ex-

tend beyond the [the contracting] employer and

are aimed really at the imion's difference with

another employer."
'

"

In 3Ieat and HigMvay Drivers Local 710 v. NLRB,

335 F.2d 709 (C.A., D.C., 1964), the Court held:

"Resolution of the difficult issue of primary

versus secondary activity, as it relates to this

case, involves consideration of two factors: (1)

jobs fairly claimable by the bargaining imit, (2)

preservation of those jobs for the bargaining

unit. If the jobs are fairly claimable by the miit,

they may, without violating either Section 8(e)

or Section 8(b)(4)(A) or (B), be protected by,

provision for, and implementation of, no sub-

contracting or union standards clauses in the bar-

gaining agreements. Activity and agreement

which directly protect fairly claimable jobs are*

primary under the Act."

[at pp. 713-714]

Since the provisions of Section 11 of the agreement

involved in tliis case are lawful on their face and no

contention is made that they are unlawful, it wouldi

seem evident that discussions seeking to enforce the

clause cannot be deemed imlawful.

The proviso of Section 8(e) of the Act very clearlj

states that nothing in that section

"shall apply to an agreement between a laboi

organization and an employer in the eonstructioi

industry relating to the contracting or sub

contracting of work to be done at the site of con

struction ..."
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[t is obvious tliat the \^^ork involved liere was at the

>ite of construction and that both the Union and
White are in the construction industiy. It is further

dear that both Eggli and B & C were subcontractors

n the construction industry. Under these circum-

stances it is plain that Section 11 is a clause per-

nitted by this proviso, and its enforcement or dis-

cussions concerning its violation cannot be construed

is unlawful secondary acti^dty even though they might

nvolve an effect upon Eggli and/or B & C.

THERE WAS NO VIOLATTON OF THE PROVISIONS OF
SECTION 8(b)(4) WITH RESPECT TO B & C.

I

This point need not be labored. Clement was the

•on of the owner of B & C and, contrary to the find-

ngs of the Board, he testified that he was the work-

ng foreman at the McCullough site with power to

lire and fire and authority to contact the Union hir-

ng hall. Clement further testified that he had no idea

onceming the contents of the job when he left nor

;ould he elucidate on whether or not there was an

agreement between Eggli and B & C (which appar-

iaitly was an oral agreement with iins])ecific terms)

}[R.Tr. pp. 21-23 and 29-30). Thus discussions with

dm were discussions with a manager and not a

vorker or emploj^ee and the discussions with him

learly did fall within the proper request or discus-

don or course of conduct permitted by the decision

)f the United States Supreme Court in NLRB v.

Servette, Inc., 377 U.S. 46 (1964).
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CONCLUSION

Under the circumstances described above, and for

the reasons argaied in this brief, it is respectfully-

submitted that the Board's petition be denied and that

the order not be enforced.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

January 15, 1968.

Levy, DeRoy, Geffner & Van Bourg,

By Victor J. Van Boukg,

Attorneys for Respondent.

1

Certificate of Counsel

I certify that, in connection wdth the preparationi

of this brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of

the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth!

Circuit, and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief

is in full compliance with those rules.

Victor J. Van Bourg,

Attorney for Respondent.
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IN THE XJNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

iiFONSO HERRERA BOJORQUEZ, No. 21938

Appellant,

'' vs.

JflTED STATES OP AMERICA,

Appellee,

Appeal from the United States District Court

for the Southern District of California

Honorable Dennis J. Donovan, District Judge

APPELIANT'S OPENING BRIEF

JURISDICTION
(Rule 18 2(b))

Appellant was indicted in the United States

strict Court for the Southern District of California upon

:arges of smuggling marijuana and of concealing and

6cilitating the transportation and concealment of il-

L gaily imported marijuana in violation of Title 18, United

3ates Code, Section 176a. (R, 2-3). He was convicted on

3th counts. (R. 7-8). The District Court had jurisdiction

ider Title 18, United States Code, Section 3231. This

Start has jurisdiction to review the judgment of conviction

ider Title 28, United States Code, Section 1291.
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SmTEMENT OF THE CASE
(Rule 18-2 (c))

The indictment charged in Count One that ap-

pellant on or about December 12, 1966, with intent to

i(Eraud the United States, knowingly smuggled and

sjmdestinely introduced into the United States from

!l^(ico approximately 218 pounds of marijuana. (R. 2).

Want Two charged that appellant with intent to defraud the

Jilted States knowingly concealed and facilitated the trans

-

3<:tation and concealment of approximately 218 pounds of

lerijuana which he knew had been imported into the United

Slites contrary to law. (R. 3).

In a jury trial appellant was found guilty as to

xth counts of the indictment. (R. 7-8). He was committed

u the custody of the Attorney General for concurrent five

fflir sentences on each count, with a recommendation that he

H considered for parole prior to the expiration of the

mtence. (R. 8) .

Evidence

On December 12, 1966, appellant drove an auto-

K>ile from Mexico to the Port of Entry at San Ysidro,

xLifornia. (R.T. 6-7, 13). He presented his immigration

:c:d and made a negative customs declaration. (R.T. 7-9).

*2 inspector became suspicious, because appellant appeared

>( shake or tremble. (R.T. 7,9). Upon searching the auto-

- 2 -





n)bile customs officials discovered 218 pounds of marijuana

oncealed within the front door panels, within and under

I

tie rear seat, and m the panels below the rear windows.

IL.T. 9-10, 15-17, 50-54).

The automobile driven by appellant was registered

ii the name of Mr. and iVlrs. Powell. It had been sold or

traded to University Ford in San Diego and subsequently sold

ii a package deal with other used cars to Metorez Universal

ii Tijuana, Mexico, which at the time of trial was a

dfunct agency. (R.T. 26)

.

Appellant was arrested and interrogated by customs

qifleers. He stated that he had picked up the vehicle in

IJjuana after he had been contacted by one Roberto, a

Mxican fellow, who had asked the defendant to bring the

cjir to the Mission valley car VJash where the defendant stated

t he had previously been employed. He was to ask for

jrmission to use the equipment at the car wash, polish the

Ir and return it to Tijuana. Appellant did not give the

officers Roberto's last name. The officer either thought

was certain that appellant stated that Roberto gave him

$0.00 to have the work done or to do it himself. (R.T. 22-

2, 85). At the time of his arrest appellant had $56.00

i his wallet. (R.T. 24).

According to Customs Agent Ellis the 218 pounds

o; approximately 100 kilos of marijuana found in the
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i\tomobile was worth approximately $30.00 per kilo or

,000.00 in Tijuana. He also testified that the same

gtantity of marijuana would be worth $218,000.00 on the

ilicit market in the United States. (R.T. 27). The

D^ainary fee to a, "mule", for driving an automobile load

si nari juana across the border is $20.00 to $25.00. If they

icte a delivery in Los Angeles, they usually receive $50.00

t| $100.00. (R.T. 86) .

Appellant testified in his own behalf. He denied

tat he knew there was marijuana in the automobile when he

aove it to the border. (R.T. 62-63). On the day in

gestion one Jose Roberto Guiterez delivered the automobile

iii him in Tijuana to take to San Diego to clean and polish

i, and, if he had a chance, to wash the upholstery and

cean the motor. He received $20.00 for the work. Ade-

^late facilities for cleaning the motor and certain cleaning

p:oducts were not readily available to do the work in

rjuana. Appellant had been employed by the Minuteman Car

*sh in the Mission Valley section of San Diego, where it

iKS his custom to bring automobiles from Tijuana to clean

ua polish. (R.T. 58-61).

Alfonso Rodriguez testified on direct examination

t he was the manager of the motor polishing department

the Mission Valley Car Wash. Appellant had been

siployed there, and Rodriguez did from time to time permit
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Km to use the equipment at the car wash to clean and

plish automobiles which he brought from Tijuana, (R.T.

')-78) .

Customs Agent Thane Ellis testified in rebuttal

tiat there are car washing and motor cleaning facilities

Tijuana. (R.T. 85). He also stated, without ob-

iction by defense counsel, that he had talked with a Mr.

Eiquilera, the manager of the Mission Car Wash in Mission

V.lley, who told him that appellant had been laid off

atproximately four months previously because of lack of

w>rk and that employees were not permitted to bring

vhicles to wash on their own or to use the facilities for

tiat purpose. (R.T. 89). There is also a Minuteman Car

J^sh in Mission Valley, but appellant had referred to the

Mssion Car Wash at the time of his arrest. (R.T. 90).

On surrebuttal Mr. Rodriguez testified that he

|t||d appellant worked at the Minuteman Car Wash. (R.T. 92) .

Questions Involved

1. Was the circumstantial evidence of ap-

llant's knowledge of the presence of the marijuana in

e automobile at the time he entered the United States

sfficient to enable a reasonable determination that it

deludes every hypothesis except that of guilt?

I 2. Was appellant's Sixth Amendment right to the

sfective assistance of counsel violated, where his trial
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c>unsel failed to make a motion for acquittal, failed to

oiject to inadmissible hearsay evidence which probably

pejudiced his defense, and failed to effectively clarify

fctual questions as to the application of the hearsay?

- 6 -





SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS
(Rule 18-2 (d))

1. Appellant's sole defense in the trial court

w;s that he did not know the marijuana was in the auto-

mbile. (R.T. 98). However, trial counsel failed to nake

amotion for acquittal. He objected to the introduction

« the narijuana in evidence, but only upon the ground of

adefect in the chain of custody. (R.T. 51-52). If ap-

pellant's contention is not sufficiently raised by its

i;sertion as a defense in the trial court, then it must

b< urged as plain error.

I
f 2. The denial of appellant's right to effective

r<are sentation of counsel was not raised in the trial

c:<Lirt. By their nature such objections are not ordinarily

91 raised, and under the applicable rules the inadequacy

d: representation must be so gross as to be regarded as

jjiiin error

.

- 7 -





ARGUiyiENT
(Rule 18-2 (e))

Summary

The evidence of guilt was insufficient to support

lie conviction, in that it failed to exclude the reasonable

h^othesis that appellant innocently brought the marijuana

jito the United States without knowing that it was in the

aitomobile.

Appellant's only defense was effectively emascu-

lited, because trial counsel made no motion for acquittal,

fiiled to object to inadmissible hearsay evidence which the

jiry may have thought destroyed appellant's credibility,

aid failed to take action to clarify confusion as to the

a)plicability of the hearsay.
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THE CIRCUMSTANTIAL EVIDENCE DOES NOT
SUPPORT APPELLANT'S CONVICTION.

BECAUSE IT IS INSUFFICIENT TO ENABLE
A REASONABLE DETERMINATION IHAT IT

EXCLUDES THE HYPOIHESIS THAT APPELLANT
INNOCENTLY IMPORTED THE MARIJUANA
WITHOUT KNOWING THAT IT WAS IN THE

AUTOMOBILE

.

The evidence in the case at bar tending to show

tiat appellant knew that the marijuana was in the auto-

Titbile and intended to smuggle it into the United States

VcS entirely circumstantial. The trial court so in-

s pucted the jury, (R,T, 112).

"While circumstantial evidence may

support a conviction, it must be

adequately sufficient to enable a

reasonable determination that it

excludes every hypothesis except

that of guilt," (WHALEY vs,

UNITED STATES, 362 F.2d 938, 939

(9 Cir, 1966); DAVIS vs. UNITED

STATES, No. 21,354, ^^
F,2d

,

(9 Cir., August 17, 1967)).

I In DAVIS the appellant was arrested after being

c. lowed from the international border to the point of

rest. From there she was transported in a sheriff's

Slide. The next day heroin was found in the seat of the
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sieriff 's car where appellant had been sitting. The

crficer having charge of the vehicle could not with

csrtainty exclude the possibility that the contraband was

ii the vehicle before Davis was transported, and despite

ripeated subsequent observations of the car, the contra-

tnd was not found until the next day. In these circum-

sances this Court held the circumstantial evidence in-

s.fficient.

The case at bar differs from DAVIS in that here

t.e evidence excludes the possibility that the contraband

ws placed in the automobile after appellant was separated

fom it, but here there was much more opportunity for the

mrijuana to have been placed in the car without ap-

pelant 's knowledge before appellant started to drive it.

Te fact that DAVIS involved a sheriff's vehicle made it

'I

llss probable there than here that some third party placed

te contraband in the car. The fact that in the case at

Ur the automobile had recently been in Mexico rather than

^1 the United States in no way tends to increase the likeli-

hood that the defendant rather than some other person

paced the marijuana in the car.

Appellant has not contradicted the Government's

eidence in any substantial respect. That evidence admits

o at least two reasonable hypotheses. Either appellant

siuggled the marijuana, or the true smuggler adopted a

- 10 -





s<[ieme, whereby appellant would unknowingly and innocently

toing the raarijuana into the United States, and the

siaggler would retrieve it after it had been introduced.

Us case for appellant's innocence is supported by his un-

satradicted and corroborated explanation as to an innocent

jjson for bringing the car to the United States <> Moreover,

view of the Government's practice of trading, "tax

rcants", for information about smuggling confederates,

DjDfessional smugglers are probably motivated to carry on

tliir activities in such a fashion that the person doing the

tiinsporting has as little information as possible to give,

Hit would be best achieved by using a wholly innocent,

"jAle "

.

Although he insists he is not, appellant in the

rese at bar might be guilty. However, the evidence against

lin is wholly circumstantial. The hypothesis of innocence

i€re is far more convincing than it was in DAVIS. There-

fc:e, the evidence is insufficient to support a finding

:>i guilt, and the judgment must be reversed.

L
I
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II

APPELLANT WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE
ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, BECAUSE TRIAL
COUNSEL FAILED TO ASSERT APPELLANT'S
DEFENSE, IN THAT HE DID NOT MAKE A
MOTION FOR ACQUITTAL OR OTHERWISE
ASSERT THE LEGAL INSUFFICIENCY OF
THE EVIDENCE AGAINST APPELLANT, DID
NOT OBJECT TO INADMISSIBLE HEARSAY

OFFERED FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCREDITING
THE DEFENSE, AND DID NOT TAKE ANY

EFFECTIVE STEPS TO CLEAR UP A STATE
OF COMPLETE CONFUSION IN THE RECORD

AS TO THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THE HEARSAY.

This Court has repeatedly held that?

"To constitute denial of the effective

assistance of counsel guaranteed by

the Sixth Amendment counsel must have

been so incompetent or inefficient as

to make the trial a farce or a mockery

of justice." (PEEK vs. UNITED STATES,

9 Cir. 1963, 321 F.2d 934, 944. See

also REID vs. UNITED STATES, 9 Cir.

1964, 334 F.2d 915, 919; BOUCHARD vs.

UNITED STATES, 9 Cir. 1965, 344 F.2d

872, 874)

.

!ij:h a showing can be made in few cases. Appellant

e;pectfully submits that his is one of those few.

I We have argued above that the evidence in the

a;e at bar is legally insufficient under the applicable

tndard to support a conviction. Although trial counsel
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:]5arly took the position that the evidence did not

»fitablish knowledge of the marijuana by his client, he at
I

j ; time made a motion for acquittal or adopted any other

):Dcedure which would have enabled the trial court to pass

ipn the issue. Even a minimum defense required such a

nc:ion, both to give the trial court an opportunity to

)S3S upon the issue and to protect the defendant's rights

>r appea 1

.

During redirect examination of Customs Agent

I ^ne Ellis by the Government on rebuttal, the following

) l:urred %

"BY MR. MIIAMs

"Q. Did you check to see the

Minuteman Car Wash in Mission Valley?

Did you check that out at all?

"A. Yes. I called the manager,

a Mr. Esquilera, of the Mission Car

Wash in Mission Valley, yes? and I

talked to him concerning the defen-

dant.

"Q. Did you find out anything?

"A. He told me that Mr. Bojorquez

had been laid off approximately four

months ago because of the lack of

work. I also discussed the point

- 13 -





of bringing automobiles and other

vehicles into that area, and he said

it was absolutely nay to all employees

to bring any vehicles in the area to

wash on their own; also, that they

did not grant facilities to any

ii

I" persons to use their equipment to

II

make — for cleaning other cars."

(R.T. 89).

lis evidence, although it was clearly inadmissible

harsay, was received without any objection by appellant's

tial counsel. The failure to object is evidence of gross

iadequacy of representation.

Having let the hearsay in, trial counsel was

fronted with another question which he utterly failed to

iwet. Did the hearsay declaration refer to the same car

VRSh about which appellant and Mr. Rodriguez testified?

li As appears from the quoted portion of the trans-

c:ipt, counsel for the Government asked about the Minuteman

Or Wash in Mission Valley, while Agent Ellis responded

viLth reference to the Mission Car Wash in Mission Valley.

r.T. 89) . On re-cross defense counsel elicited from

M:. Ellis the fact that there are two car washes. (R.T.

9t) . Ellis also said that in the interrogation at the

tine of appellant's arrest, appellant referred to the

i





Hi

liision Car Wash. (R.T, 90). However, appellant testi-

iid that it was the Minuteman. (R.T. 5 9) . To complicate

alters further, on direct examination, Rodriguez said

Lt he worked at Mission Valley Car Wash, but on

u rebuttal it was Minuteman Car Wash in Mission Valley.

RT. 75, 92).

Manifestly, these facts have an explanation.

!i;her the hearsay referred to the car wash to which ap-

le.lant said he was going at the time of his arrest, or it

iil not. Having let the hearsay in, defense counsel was

mler a practical necessity of taking one position or the

iter. His witnesses were clearly able to testify whether

criguez and Esquilera worked at the same car wash and,

.fnot, whether appellant had worked at both.

Although the burden of proof was at all times

Ithe
Government, after appellant was put to his defense.

Government's strongest case could be made by showing

Mt appellant had made false statements either during his

>rginal interrogation or at the trial. It is not un-

-i.ely — indeed it is very probable — that appellant was

:o,victed by the jury on the theory that he was impeached

>ythe hearsay statement of the car wash manager to Agent

;l.is that employees were not permitted to wash auto-

iqiiles on their own. If appellant's trial counsel had

>eformed his duty, this never could have happened. Aside

- 15 -
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f:om the fact that a motion for acquittal should have been

g;anted at the conclusion of the Government's case and

tlat the hearsay should not have been admitted in any

e'snt, it seems more probable than not that the hearsay

d;a not even refer to the car wash in question, but related

t« another, at which appellant had worked before he was

eiDloyed at the one in question. A conviction obtained

uiSer such circumstances is surely a mockery of justice.

16





CONCLUSION

The evidence in the case at bar conclusively

etablished that appellant drove an automobile carrying

mrijuana from Mexico to the United States. The evidence

bnding to indicate that he did so with knowledge of the

>;esence of the marijuana and intent to smuggle was wholly
if

jccumstantial. That evidence was insufficient to exclude

p reasonable hypothesis that he did so innocently and

r;thout loiowledge that the marijuana was in the car.

Appellant testified to an innocent reason for

iLnging the automobile into the United States and produced

crroborative evidence. A motion for acquittal should

:;e been granted, had his trial attorney made such a

kion. He might well have been acquitted by the jury,

|i his counsel not permitted the introduction of in-

issible hearsay and then failed to use his witnesses to

irify confusion as to whether the hearsay was even ap-

i:

cable to the issue. These failures and omissions made

lockery of a good defense. The judgment of conviction

>uld be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

lANGFORD, LANGFORD & lANE

By _____„_-^__
J. Perry Langford

Attorneys for Appellant
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CERTIFICATE
(Rule 18-2 (g))

I certify that, in connection with the preparation

this brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19, and 39 of the

lliited States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and

lat, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full com-

liance with those rules.

J. Perry Langford
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NO . 2 19 38

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

,LFONSO HERRERA BOJORQUEZ,

Appellant,

vs.

NITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

I

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the judgment of tne United States District Couit

f)r tne Southern District of California adjuding appellant to be guilty as

((jiarged in Counts One and Two of a two count indictment following trial by

Jlry

.

The offense occurred in the Southern District of California. The District

(ourt had jurisdiction by virtue of Title 18, United States Code, Section

\pl , and Title 21 , United States Code, Section 176a. Jurisdiction of tnis

'ourt rests pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Sections 1291 and

294.
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II

STATEMENT OF THE CAS E

Count One of the indictment charged that appellant, with intent to

efraud the United States, knowingly smuggled and clandestinely intro-

uced into the United States from Mexico approximately 218 pounds of

1/
larihuana [C.R.2] .

Count Two charged that appellant, with intent to defraud the United

itates, knowingly concealed, and facilitated the transportation and con-

ealment of approximately 218 pounds of marihuana knowing that it had

J3en imported and brought into the United States contrary to law [C.R.3].

Jury trial of appellant commenced on January 25, 1967, before United

2/
f;ates District Judge Dennis F. Donovan [C.R.5, R.T. 1-2]. Appellant

\as found guilty on both counts on January 26, 19 67, and was sentenced

cji February 16, 1967, to the custody of the Attorney General for concurrent

fv/e year sentences on each count, with a recommendation that he be con-

jdered for parole prior to expiration of the sentences. [C.R. 7,8].

Ill

ERROR SPECIFIED

Appellant specified the following points upon appeal:

"I The circumstantial evidence does not support appellant's

"C.R." refers to the Clerk's Record on Appeal.
i'

] "R.T." refers to the Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings.
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conviction, because it is insufficient to enable a reasonable

determination that it excludes tne hypothesis that appellant

innocently imported the marijuana without knowing that it was

in the automobile . . . (Appellant's Brief p. 9).

"II Appellant was denied the effective assistance of counsel,

because trial counsel failed to assert appellant's defense, in

that he did not make a motion for acquittal or otherwise assert

the legal insufficiency of the evidence against appellant, did

not object to inadmissible hearsay offered for the purpose of

discrediting the defense, and did not take any effective steps to

clear up a state of complete confusion in the record as to the

significance of the hearsay ..." (Appellant's Brief p. 12).

IV

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On or about December 12, 1966, appellant drove a 1958 Buick into the

iliited States from Mexico [R.T. 6-7]. At the primary inspection line,

vhich is about 50 to 70 feet inside the United States, he presented his

Ijjsident alien immigration card and was shaking a little bit [R.T. 7]. He

cive a negative custom.s declaration, but tne inspector was suspicious

bcause of the trembling and pulled up the back seat and got a glimpse of

J)me packages [R.T. 9]. After securing another officer, appellant was

escorted to secondary [R.T. 9-10].

At secondary appellant was searched with negative results, but search

-3-





f the car revealed packages concealed throughout the vehicle [C.T.14

5-17], The packages (contained in Government's Exhibits 1 thru 9) were

i Initialled, dated, and seized by Inspector McClain, and the appellant placed

nder arrest [C.T. 16-17].

Customs Port Investigator Maldonado interrogated the appellant who

tated that a "Roberto" had asked him to bring the car to the Mission Valley

lar Wash; appellant had previously been employed there and was to ask

jsrmission to use the equipment, polish the car and return it to Tijuana

3.T. 20-22]. Appellant was unable to describe "Roberto" and did not give

].s last name [C.T. 22]. Appellant stated "Roberto" nad given him $40.00

Jir the job [C.T. 23] . $56.00 was found in appellant's wallet [C.T. 24].

Customs Agent Ellis corroborated Maldonado' s testimony that appellant

cive only the name "Roberto" for the man who had given him the car, and

frther testified that appellant did not give sufficient information on

"loberto" to check him out; however, Ellis did check out the car registration

\iich showed the ownership as belonging to a Mr. and Mrs. Powell, and

viich led from them to University Ford and then to MetorezCsic) Universal,

cdefunct Mexican Agency [C.T. 26]. Ellis further testified that the seized

pickages weighed approximately 218 pounds; that marihuana sold in Mexico

i bulk for about $30.00 a kilo; that a kilo is about 2.2 pounds but when

cied out only about 2 pounds; that in the United States the illicit market

Uis $1000.00 a pound [C.T. 26-27]. Ellis obtained the seized packages

fDm McClain and initialed and tratisported them to the seizure clerk
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P.T.28].

Testimony of the Assistant Seizure Clerk and the chemist completed

t.e chain of custody of the government exhibits and identified them as

rarihuana [C.T. 30-32,35-37,50],

Appellant testified that a Jose Roberto Guiterez(sic) gave him the car

t bring to wash and clean the upholstery and the motor; he was given

$:0.00 to do the work [C.T. 59]. He was going to do the work at the

Mnuteman Car Wash in Mission Valley where he worked [C.T. 59]. He had

hought cars over before; facilities were better here than in Mexico [C.T.

6']. He had known "Roberto" a couple of months or so but this was the

fst time he had brought across a car for nim [C.T. 60-61]. The car was

ot of his sight for 15 minutes while he had breakfast [C.T. 62]. He knew

nthing about the marihuana or contraband [C.T. 62-63]. He was to return

t3 car that afternoon and there was no arrangement for "Roberto" to pick it up

iUhe United States [C.T. 63]. When he was stopped at the border his car

I!

VMS partially in Mexican territory [C.T. 65-66]. He never saw the marihuana

pckages and denied any knowledge of tne marihuana [C.T. 67-69]. He

wmld know "Roberto" if he saw him; "Roberto" was in the car or car parts

IDsiness and appellant sometimes saw him in his colony where he lived

[.T. 69-70].

On cross-examination appellant admitted he only gave the name "Roberto"

tcthe officers, stating they didn't ask for more [C.T. 70]. He also admitted
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th;re were many car wash places in Tijuana, but stated they did not have

aisquate equipment [C.T.71]. He stated he did not know where Guitere2{sic)

lied or much about him except that he was in the car business [C.T.71].

Alfonso Rodriguez testified for appellant and stated he (Rodriguez) was

ejployed as a manager at the Mission Valley Car Wash [C.T.75,76], and

tilt appellant and others brought cars in from Tijuana and were allowed to

wrk on them when he wasn't too busy [C.T. 77-78]. He attempted to testi-

f^that appellant's reputation was good [C.T. 78-79], but admitted on cross-

e;3mination he had never discussed defendant's reputation [C.T. 80].

Appellant's sister testified that appellant's reputation was good. [C.T.

8].

On rebuttal, Agent Ellis testified that he tried to get more information

a out "Roberto" but appellant did not give the rest of Roberto's name [C.T.

8]; that there were many car washing and motor cleaning facilities in

T uana [C.T. 85]; that all United States Border inspections are within the

Uiited States and appellant's car was inspected about 150 feet inside the

Uiited States [C.T. 86]; that so-called mules are paid $25.00 to $100.00

f(" transporting marihuana across the line [C.T. 86]; and that no finger-

pints were taken off the car or packages [C.T. 87-89]. He further testified

tlat he contacted the manager of the Mission Valley Car Wash, Mr. Esquilera,

vio stated appellant had been laid off for lack of work and employees were

pohibited from bringing in their own cars [C.T. 89]. Ellis further testified

tere was a Minuteman Car Wash there also [C.T. 89-90].
-6-





On surrebuttal Mr. Rodriguez testified he was the manager of the polish

section as distinguished from the car wash section; that the policy had been

canged with respect to use of the facilities but nevertheless workers could

ue them; that appellant had not worked there tor two or three months but was

prmitted now and then to take cars there to work on his own [C.T.92-94].

V

ARGUMENT

A. THE EVIDENCE WAS SUFFICIENT TO SUSTAIN THE CONVICTION.

The appellant contends that the evidence was insufficient to enable a

nasonable determination that it excluded the hypothesis of innocent

iiportation. He relies particularly upon the Davis case (Davis v. United

Sates, No. 21,354, F.2d 9th Cir. , August 17 , 1967) which differs

fi»m this case in that the contraband was found later in a sheriff's vehicle

Kiher than in an importing car, and yet completely ignores much more

snilar cases such as Aguilar v. United States, 363 F.2d 379 (9th Cir.1966)

ak Eason v. United States, 281 F.2d 818 (9th Cir. 1960) .

Aguilar is almost identical with the case at bar. There the defendant

Gbpve another's car which had 98 pounds of marihuana secreted therein.

\'Uilar testified he had no knowledge of the contraband. The appellate

::urt stated there was no direct evidence or admission of knowledge. The

:urt rejected Aguilar' s attack on the sufficiency of the evidence and

ajserted the trial judge was entitled to believe Aguilar' s story "fishy" and
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t draw affirmative inferences of knowledge.

Eason is even more favorable to the government, for there even the

pissenger as well as the driver was convicted in the face of their denials

c knowledge and the fact they established the possibility that the contra-

bnd could have been secreted by others without the knowledge of the

apellants. In that case appellants each asserted not only the hypothesis

tlat some stranger could have secreted the contraband without appellant's
I!

kowledge, but also the hypothesis that the other appellant had possession,

Te court made short shrift of the very argument appellant makes here by

s iting:

"As for the alternative theory, there is no doubt that the narcotics

could have been secreted in appellants' car by some stranger with-

out their knowledge. The question, however, is whether minds of

reasonable men might differ as to the reasonableness of this theory.

We cannot say in this case that the theory that the narcotics were

secreted by a stranger is so patently reasonable as to warrant our

ruling as a matter of law that an inference of knowledge was not

available from the facts of the case. We conclude that it was

proper to leave this determination to the jury and that its judgment

will not be disturbed."

Eason v. United States, 281 F.2d 818 (9th Cir.1960) at p. 821.

Appellant argues (p. 11 his brief) that the hypothesis of innocence

lele is far more convincing than it was in Davis ,but in so asserting he





6/idences a misconstruction of that case. Davis was not found in possess-

in of the contraband, here the appellant was. In Davis there not only had to

b an inference of knowledge but also of possession — an inference upon an

iference. Davis never had exclusive dominion and control of the car in which

^1^ contraband was found, but appellant here did. As this court has stated in

E ans V. United States

,

257 F.2d 121 (9th Cir.1958) at p. 128:

"Proof that one had exclusive control and dominion over

p-roperty on or in which contraband narcotics are found, is a potent

circumstance tending to prove knowledge of the presence of such

narcotics, and control thereof."

In the case at bar, as in the Eason case cited supra, the appellant

apeared nervous to the primary inspector. Certainly that fact, particularly

wien taken in conjunction with the great value of the merchandise, appellant's

fclure to give "Roberto's" last name or more definitive information about him

tcthe officers, plus the fact that there are car cleaning establishments in

uana should entitle the jury, as the judge in the Aguilar case supra, to

liAieve appellant's story "fishy" and to thereby draw an affirmative inference

arto knowledge. To rule otherwise would be to make this court, which do3S

no[ have an opportunity to observe the witnesses and thereby judge their

cndibility except from the cold record, trier of the facts.

The government submits that the record in this case shows ample

evdence to support appellant's conviction and that there was not "plain
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error" either as to the court allowing the matter to go to the jury or as to the

jury's finding of guilt.

B. APPELLANT WAS NOT DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE

OF COUNSEL AND HIS TRIAL COUNSEL'S FAILURE TO MAKE

A MOTION FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL, TO OBJECT TO

jl

CERTAIN HEARSAY, OR TO TAKE OTHER STEPS DESIGNATED

AS AN AFTER THOUGHT BY APPELLATE COUNSEL DO NOT

CONSTITUTE PLAIN ERROR.

Appellant in effect argues that his trial counsel was so incompetent

)r inefficient as to make the trial a farce or a mockery of justice. In so

iDing he carries a heavy burdsn (Reid v. United States, 334 F.2d 915, 9th

^ir.l964 at p. 9 19) , for not only is there a presumption of competency of

:ounsel (Achtien v. Dowd, 117 F.2d 989 , 992, 7th Cir.l94I) , but the trial

udge , The Honorable Dennis F. Donovan, who alone had an opportunity

jo evaluate trial counsel's competency first hand, stated, "Weil, gentlemen,

he jury has retired, and I wish to compliment counsel for the government

|nd counsel for the defendant in the splendid lawyer-like manner that they

'resented their case." [R.T. 1 18-1 19 , emphasis added]

.

Appellant argues that trial counsel's failure to move for judgment of

cquittal constituted "plain error," yet government counsel and appellant

ounsel differ as to the import of the evidence in the record. Perhaps trial
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;ounsel had read Aguilar and Eason , cited above, knew of the presumption

3/
n tne statute (Title 21, United States Code, Section 176a) , and decided a

lotion for judgment of acquittal was a useless act. Is he to be second

[uessed on the basis of Davis which wasn't decided until nearly seven

lonths after this trial? If Davis does in fact overrule Aguilar and Eason

/as trial counsel incompetent for not having foreseen this? Or did such

incompetency" or failure to move for judgment of acquittal make the trial

farce or mockery of justice? The government submits that it did not.

Jertainly trial counsel should not have expected language in the only other

ase cited by appellant (Whaley v. United States, 362 F.2d 938,939, 9th

ir.l9 66) , a perjury case unrelated to smuggling and not mentioning

.guilar o" Eason , to have overruled them. Thus clearly there does not seem

) be "plain error" with respect to trial counsel's failure to move for judg-

lent of acquittal, and in view of the status of the cases at the time of

lial, the court certainly didn't commit "plain error" in not granting acquittal

ci its own motion. And if there was not "plain error" , then this court should

lot consider the sufficiency of the evidence (Foster v. United States , 318 F.

:i 684,686, 9th Cir. 1963) .

"Whenever on trial for a violation of this subsection, the defendant is

nown to have or to have had the marihuana in his possession, such possess-

iin shall be deemed sufficient evidence to authorize conviction unless the

ojfendant explains his possession to the satisfaction of the jury. "(Title 21

tpited States Code, 17 6a). -11-





Appellant argues that his trial counsel's failure to object to Agent Ellis'

earsay testimony of the manager of the Mission Car Wash together with his

;dlure to "take effective steps to clear up a state of complete confusion m

le record as to the significance of the hearsay" made appellant's conviction

.mockery of justice. The trouble with appellant's argument here is that

4^fense counsel actually did take steps to clear up the matter, and, as was

ioparent to all present, there was no complete confusion in the record after

h did so. As the record shows, and as appellant's counsel points out, all

tie witnesses concerned testified interchangeably with respect to the Mission

ad Minuteman Car Washes. Trial counsel for appellant first moved to clear

i^p any ambiguity or cross-examination of Agent Ellis, who when asked if the

lission Car Wash was different from the Minuteman, answered, "I don't

how. There is a Minuteman Car Wash there also." [R.T.90, emphasis

elded]. Trial counsel then proceeded to further clarify the matter by calling

tick his witness, Mr. Rodriguez, on surrebuttal. He testified that the

.Kinuteman Car Wash is where "we polish," that "we've got one for the car

vas and one for the polish," and that he was manager for the polish section

[JLT.92]. It was obvious to those present that the Minuteman and Mission

Car Washes were two separate parts of the same business, one for washing

cid one for polishing, and a careful reading of the record verifies this. Such

ce the problems of analyzing the cold record rather than live witnesses.

In any event, even assuming some confusion on this one point, was it of

£|ch a nature as to make the trial a farce o" a mockery of justice? Do not all
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trials, particularly under our rules of evidence, have some element of

confusion? Trial counsel tried to clear up any confusion, but admittedly

due to the necessity of working through a translator, this was difficult.

1 j[s he to be held incompetent because of his witnesses' language

Droblems? He tried. What else should he have done? Should he have

ecalled the defendant and opened him up to further cross-examination

vith all its pitfalls? Or should he have recessed the trial to subpoena

Other witnesses, which would have, of course, also given the govern-

aent more time to procure witnesses to prove the defendant a liar? These

[uestions show the fallacy in "second guessing" or "Monday morning

uarter-backing" a trial attorney and indicate, certainly at least, that

ppellant has not carried his heavy burden of showing trial counsel so

ncompetent as to have made the trial a mockery of justice or a farce.

And even though trial counsel didn't object to clearly inadmissible

earsay, does this make him ineffective? Don't lawyers do this every day?

s was said in Rivera v. United States , 318 F.2d 606,608 (9th Cir.19 63) ,

"Assuming that counsel erred ... in failing to object to the

admission of evidence, more is required to constitute denial

of the effective assistance of counsel guaranteed by the Sixth

Amendment."

In any event it would appear that appellant has attached too much

^gnificance to the brief hearsay here involved. Appellant's own witnesses
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dearly rebutted and explained it, or at the very least, created a conflict

])r the jury to decide. It is the government's view that it was the inherent

1:ishy" nature of appellant's whole story, rather than this brief hearsay

\hich constituted the crucial factor in this case.

VI

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully submitted that the judgment

c the Court below should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

EDWIN L. MILLER, JR.

United States Attorney

MOBLEY M. MILAM
Assistant U.S. Attorney

Attorneys for i^ppellee.

United States of America,
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In the

United States Court of Appeals
For the Ninth Circuit

SoNoco Products Company,
Petitioner,

vs.

National Labor Relations Board,

Respondent.

Brief for Petitioner

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is a petition by Sonoco Products Company (''Son-

oco") from an order of the National Labor Relations

Board ('"Board") finding Sonoco guilty of a refusal to bar-

gain with certain unions (Brotherhood of Teamsters and

Anto Truck Drivers, Local No. 70, International Brother-

hood of Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Warehousemen and Helpers

of America and Warehouse, Processing and Allied Workers,

Local No. 6, International Longshoremen's and Warehouse-

men's Union). This court has jurisdiction under Section

10 (f) of the National Labor Relations Act ("Act"), 29

U.S.C. sec. 160(f).
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The unions filed petitions seeking to represent, in either

distinct units or jointly, the production, maintenance, truck

drivers and driver helpers employed in Sonoco's plant in

Hayward, California (R. 4, 5). Separate representation was

resisted by Sonoco and, after a hearing, the Regional

Director for tlie 20th region of the Board found a single

unit to be appropriate and directed that an election be held

therein (R. 5).

This election was held on March 23, 196G, and resulted in

a vote of seventeen to thirteen against representation by

the unions (R. 7), To this result the unions filed objections

(R. 8). On the day prior to the election three speeches had

been made by employer representatives to the employees

(R. 15, first paragraph). The unions objected to these

si^eeches on the grounds that they stated that the union's

demands had forced other comimnies out of business and

contained an implied threat to close the Sonoco plant

(R. 8).

The Regional Director caused an ex parte administrative

investigation to be made into these objections. Though the

company contended a hearing should be lield on the objec-

tions, it cooperated by obtaining copies of the speeches and

furnishing them to the investigating agent on the latter's

express pi'oinise that Sonoco would be given an opportunity

to explain its position and contentions at a formal hearing

before any decision was issued (R. 18). Nevertheless the

Regional Director rendered a decision based solely upon

the ex parte investigation, overturning the election and

directing a new one (R. 11). This decision extracted por-

tions of two paragraphs from one of the Sonoco speeches

and held that the attempt made therein to explain Avhy the

regular annual increase in benefits could not be implemented
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during the organizational campaign constituted illegal in-

terference (R. 13, 14). The company's discussion of its

benefit policy had not been among the portions of the

speeches objected to by the unions (R. 8).

The company sought a review of this decision from the

Board, complaining of the Regional Director's failure to

consider the overall content and impact of all of the

speeches and his refusal to afford the promised hearing

(R. 17). This request for review was denied by the Board

(R. 33).

On August 17, 1966, the second election was held, this

time resulting in a vote of 16 to 14 in favor of the unions

with one ballot being challenged (R. 34). The company filed

objections to this election asserting that by threats and

other conduct the unions had interfered with the employees'

free choice (R. 35). Specifically, the company complained

that threats of physical harm had been made to one employee

and followed up by subsequent telephone calls, that another

had been told that he would lose his job if the union were

not voted in, and that on the day of the election a union

organizer was present at the plant and spoke with some of

the employees (R. 42, at 44-46; R. 49, at 52-54; R. 82, at

85-86 and 88-94).

Again the Regional Director caused an ex parte investi-

gation to be made into the objections. In support of its con-

tentions, Sonoco submitted to the investigator a signed

statement by the employee threatened with physical harm

and testimony by its plant manager concerning his observa-

tions and statements made to him by the employees in-

volved (R. 88-93). However, no hearing on these matters

was conducted; instead the Regional Director, on the basis

of his ex parte investigation, concluded that the threat of

bodily harm was legally immaterial, that no threat was con-
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tained in the subsequent telephone calls, that the unions had

not told an employee that he had better vote for them if he

wanted to keep his job, and tliat the union organizer, assum-

ing him to be such, did not speak with the emi)loyees on any

matter related to the election (R. 42). So finding, the Re-

gional Director affirmed the results of the election and cer-

tified the unions as the employees' bargaining representa-

tives (R. 42).

The company again requested the Board to review the

Regional Director's actions, claiming tliat it had submitted

evidence which, if believed, would necessitate a setting

aside of the election and that the Director was therefor

required either to overturn the election, if he found the

company's evidence to be uncontradicted, or to order a

hearing if he found there to be conflicting evidence (R. 49).

This request was also met by a telegraphic denial from the

Board (R. 56).

Thereafter the unions filed a charge (R. 57, 58) and the

Regional Director issued a Complaint and Notice of Hear-

ing based thereon alleging that Sonoco had wrongfully

refused to bargain after the second election (R. 59). The

company answered denying the validity of the second elec-

tion and alleging that the original election had been valid

(R.65).

At this juncture the Board's General Counsel interposed

a motion for summary judgment, asserting that there was

no issue of fact or law relevant to the unfair labor jDractice

charge which required a hearing and that the company's

refusal to bargain was established as a matter of law (R.

70). The Board transferred the ease to itself and issued an

order for the company to show cause why the General

Counsel's motion should not he granted (R. 80), and there-

upon the Regional Director withdrew the notice of hearing

(R. 81). In response to the show cause order Sonoco reiter-
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ated its various contentions, claiming that summary judg-

ment was improper because there was insufficient basis in

law or fact for the overturn of the first election, that the

second election had been rife with interfering conduct by

the unions and that a hearing, which to this point had been

consistently denied, was necessary to resolve the various

issues relative to the elections' validity vcl non before the

company could be found guilty of an unlawful refusal to

bargain (R. 82).

These contentions were rejected by the Board which,

without reviewing the content of either of the Regional

Director's decisions, accepted them as conclusively estab-

lishing the invalidity of the first election and the validity

of the second. The Board thereupon found that no hearing

was required, summarily adjudged Sonoco guilty of an

unfair labor practice and ordered it to bargain with the

unions (R. 82).

From this order the instant appeal was taken (R. 105).

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS RELIED UPON

1. In his ex parte decision overturning the results

of the first election, without conducting a promised

hearing, the Regional Director erred by extracting a

small portion from one of three speeches made by

employer representatives, considering that portion in

isolation from the remainder of that and the other

speeches, and attributing to that portion a narrow

meaning which it could not reasonably bear.

2. The Regional Director erred in summarily over-

ruling all the company's objections to the second elec-

tion on the basis of his private investigation v»athout

affording the company a hearing on the substantial

issues of law and fact that were raised by its objections.
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3. By accepting tlie Regional Director's prior ex

parte determinations as conclusive of the validity of

each of the elections and entering a summary judgment

predicated thereon, the Board deprived Petitioner of

the hearing which both the Act and due process re-

quired be held on the issues underlying the unfair

labor practice charge.

ARGUMENT

I. In His Ex Parte Decision Overturning the Results of tlie First

Election, Without Conducting a Promised Hearing, the Re-

gional Director Erred by Extracting a Small Portion from One
of Three Speeches Made by Employer Representatives, Con-

sidering That Portion in Isolation from the Remainder of That

and the Other Speeches, and Attributing to That Portion a

Narrow Meaning Which It Could Not Reasonably Bear.

In his decision, reached after an ex parte investigation

and without benefit of a hearing, the Regional Director

singled out a minor j)ortion of a speech made by Plant

Manager Murry Hughes and held that the extracted re-

marks warranted an overturn of the first election.^ We
submit that the Regional Director's cryptic opinion places

an interpretation upon Mr. Hughes' remarks which they

cannot reasonably bear and in so doing violates the right of

free speech guaranteed to the employer by the Constitu-

tion and Labor Act.

The practice of construing isolated segments of a speech

without reference to the remainder of that speech or to

the context in which the speech was made has been con-

sistently disapproved by the Courts of Apjjeal and the

Board. E.g., N.L.B,.B. r. Ralph Priiifinr/ and Lifhor/raphing

Company, 379 F. 2d G87 (8th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Her-

1. The Regional Director's decision appears at page 11 of the

Record.
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man Wilson Lumber Company, 355 F.2d 426 (8tli Cir. 1966)

;

N.L.R.B. V. Spartan Manufacturing Company, 355 F.2d

523 (7th Cir. 1966) ; Indiana Rayon Corporatiofi v. N.L.R.B.,

355 F.2d 535 (7th Cir. 1966) ; N.L.R.B. v. J. Weingarten,

Inc., 339 F.2d 498 (5th Cir. 1964) ; Union Carbide Corpora-

tion V. N.L.R.B., 310 F.2d 844 (6th Cir. 1962) ; Decorated

Products, Inc., 140 N.L.R.B. 1383 (1963) ; Arch Beverage

Corporation, 140 N.L.R.B. 1385 (1963); The Lux Clock

Manufacturing Company, Inc., 113 N.L.R.B. 1194 (1955).

Reference to the entirety of the Hughes speech, especially

that part immediately preceding the portion quoted by the

Regional Director, shows the discussion to have been di-

rected to Sonoco's past wage policy as bearing on the issue

of whether anything could be gained by unionization (R.

15). The comment on the proi)osed benefits for the current

year formed a natural part of this discussion by Avay of

illustration and explanation.

Nor is this the end of it. On the day in question three

talks were made to the employees.^ The one by Mr. Hughes

(the only one mentioned in the Regional Directors o])inion)

was iumiediately followed by one by Mr. Harrison Martin.^

Mr. Martin discussed the benefits so far made available to

the employees and the fact that tliese were periodically re-

viewed and improved. These, he contended, were tangibles

against which to weigh the promises of the union ; and in

this connection he addressed himself to the same matters

which were found objectionable in the Hughes speech:

"Now let's consider whether you should believe what

the company is telling or what the unions are telling

you. I have already told you that I have known the

people at Sonoco for a long time and I know that you

2. This fact, and the chronology of the speeches, are reflected in

the first sentence of the Hughes' speech (R. 15)

.

3. Mr. Martin's speech is to be found at page 25 of the Record.



can believe what they say. They are fair and honest

and, in my opinion, there is not a better organization

an^avliere. They enjoy a higli reputation in the business

world. You should know this yourself without my tell-

ing you. You know what the company has done in the

past and you know what you can expect from them in

the future. Just before we were approached by the

union, we had already begun this year's discussions and

review of wages and fringe benefits. We had plans for

putting in a job evaluation system which is a means of

establishing base rates on every job in tlie plant and

deciding how much difference there should be in base

rates for each job. This system is in effect at other

Sonoco plants and is put in with the help of the em-

ployees. You would elect two people to represent you

and management would appoint two people to repre-

sent them or the company and they would sit down and

analyze these jobs and decide how much each one of

them should be paid in relation to other jobs in the

plant. We had also discussed an increase in wages but

because of the union election, we could not proceed

with this work or these changes. If we had done so, we
would certainly have been accused of trying to buy
your vote" (R. 29, 30).

When Mr. Hughes' comments are read against the back-

ground of the Martin speech, the conclusions (and under-

lying inferences) drawn by the Regional Director cannot be

supported. The obvious purj^ose and import of the speeches

was to answer union propaganda concerning benefits by

pointing out that Sonoco had in the past and would continue

in the future to furnish as much in the way of benefits as

was economically feasible. The wage and job evaluation

programs were cited by way of example of this fact and

clearly not with any motive to announce "a previous intent

to provide benefits" (R. 13). Certainly nothing was said

which would remotely indicate to the employees that this
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was other than a temporary moratorium, or that the com-

pany's benefit policy might be different after the election

than before, depending npon the outcome.

Moreover, Sonoco had no reasonable alternative to the

course it followed. Had it granted the increase in benefits

while the organizing campaign was underway, it undoubtedly

would have been charged with interfering conduct.* See,

e.g., N.L.R.B. v. Exclianr/c Parts Co., 375 U.S. 405 (1964)

;

N.L.R.B. V. Laars Engineers, Inc., 332 F.2d 664 (9th Cir.

1964) ; N.L.R.B. v. Ralph Printing <& Lithographing Com-

pany, 379 F.2d 687 (8th Cir. 1967) ; Standard Coil Products,

Inc., 99 N.L.R.B. 899 (1952). Nor could Sonoco have reason-

ably withheld the increase without explanation, as the dis-

cussion of the company's })ast and continuing benefit policy

naturally raised a question as to why that policy was not

being carried out at the present time. Indeed, to have fol-

lowed this course might itself have been interpreted as an

act of coercion or reprisal.^ Faced with this dilemma Sonoco

could not reasonably avoid addressing itself to this issue;

it did so by correctly observing that a grant of benefits in

the context of an organizational cami)aign would expose

it to a charge of bribery.

These comments by the compan>' were well within its pro-

tected right of free speech. The Supreme Court in N.L.R.B.

4. That the organizational activity occurred at a time when
wage increases were due is a fact which, while true, finds no official

embodiment in the Record. By not mentioning it, the Regional

Director avoids coming to terms with it in his opinion. For him
to have questioned it would clearly have raised a substantial and
material issue of fact requiring a hearing. As to the latter point

see the discussion, infra, in parts II and III of the brief.

5. See Valley Feed & Supply Company, Inc., 135 N.L.R.B. 778

(1962), where the Board implied that a failure to grant a regular

increase might be unlawful. Consider the impact on the employees

of a discussion of the employer s past wage policy which makes
absolutely no mention of the benefits which the employees presently

expect.
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V. Exchange Parts Co., supra, noted the distinction between

conduct {e.g., a grant of benefits) and coninientary, the dis-

tinction being, of course, that the right of comment is

guaranteed by the Constitution.^ To protect this right from

infringement by the Board Congress enacted section 8(c),

which assures the employer full latitude to express argu-

ments and opinions which do not rise to the level of threats

or promises of benefits This right to comment is the riglit

to meet union propaganda by explaining the employer's

policies and jjointing out the actual and potential disad-

vantages of unionization; that is, to attempt to persuade

the employees that the better decision is to vote against the

union. E.g., Thomas v. Collins, 323 U.S. 516, 532 (1945):

N.L.R.B. V. Laars Engineers, Inc., 332 F.2d 664 (9th Cir.

1964) ; N.L.R.B. v. Spartan Manufacturing Company, 355

F.2d 523 (7th Cir. 1966) ; Indiana Rayon Corporation v.

N.L.R.B., 355 F.2d 535 (7th Cir. 1966) ; N.L.R.B. v. Herman

Wilson Lumber Company, 355 F.2d 426 (8th Cir. 1966)

;

N.L.R.B. V. J. Weingarten, Inc., 339 F.2d 498 (5th Cir.

1964) ; Union Carbide Corporation v. N.L.R.B., 310 F.2d

844 (6th Cir. 1962) ; Bonwit Teller, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 197

F.2d 640 (2nd Cir. 1952), cert. den. 345 U.S. 905 (1953);

and see, Decorated Products, Inc., 140 N.L.R.B. 1383

(1963); Arch Beverage Corporation, 140 N.L.R.B. 1385

6. In a footnote to its discussion the Court clearly indicated

that words disassociated from conduct would raise an issue of free

speech not present in its consideration of the employer's actual

grant of benefits. 375 U.S. 405, 409, n.3.

7. See N.L.R.B. v. Spartan Manufacturing Compamj, 355 F.2d

523, 524 (7th Cir. 1966), concerning the reasons for the enactment

of Section 8(c). The full text of section 8(c) of the National Labor

Relations Act (29 U.S.C. sec. 158(c) ), is as follows

:

"The expressing of any views, arginnent, or opinion, or the

dissemination thereof, whether in written, printed, graphic,

or visual form, shall not constitute or be evidence of an unfair

labor practice under any of the provisions of this Act, if such

expression contains no threat of reprisal or force or promise

of benefit."
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(1963) ; The Lux Clock Manufacturing Company, Inc., 113

N.L.R.B. 1194 (1955).

Included within this area of free speech is the right to

discuss the company's benefit policy and to comment upon

that policy in comparision with that promised or elsewhere

obtained by the imion. N.L.R.B. v. Laars Engineers, Inc.,

supra; Arch Beverage Corporation, supra; Decorated Prod-

ucts Inc., supra. And this extends to a discussion of jires-

ently planned or due benefits and the necessity to defer

them during the union organizational activity. Bonwit

Teller, Inc. v. N.L.R.B. supra; The Lux Clock Manufactur-

ing Company Inc., supra; Standard Coil Products Inc.,

supra; and cf. Dayco Corporatio)t v. N.L.R.B., 382 F.2d

577 (6th Cir. 1967).

Indeed, the Bonwit Teller case is one on all fours with the

case at bar. In a speech to the emi)loyees, the employer,

after noting its policy of periodically reviewing wages,

stated that raises had been recommended, but these could

not be put through before the election lest the company be

accused of an unfair labor practice.* The Board held that

the " 'announcement of the pendency of wage increases . . .

constituted a promise of benefit to the emi^loyees' " which

interfered with their freedom of choice. The Board rea-

soned that it was immaterial that the company did not

expressly condition the granting of the increase on the

defeat of the union as the natural effect " 'of the announce-

ment was to convince the employees tliat they did not need

a union in order to obtain wage increases or other iiuprove-

ments in their conditions of em])loyment.' " Rejecting the

Board's construction, the Court held that the company's

statements were nothing more than an explanation of why

8. This summary of the employer's speech, and the following

discussion of the Board's holding, can be found in 197 F.2d at

page 643.
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the employees' right oi' semi-annual wage reviews had been

stopped, and conehided

:

"Under the circumstances we tliink tliat the com-

munications of Rudolph to his employees went no fur-

ther than to indicate that increases in pay would follow

the ordinary jjractice of the employer and fell short of

promising benefits to the employees if they should vote

against the Union. Indeed, to forbid such communica-

tion would seem to prohibit all discussions between

employer and employee of issues germane to the sub-

ject of unionization." 197 F.2d at 644.

This reasoning, and that in the other cases cited herein,

is conclusive of the error in the Regional Director's decision.

Viewed in their entire context, Sonoco's comments, includ-

ing those which the Regional Director found objectionable,

were clearly within the realm of persuasion, not coercion.

They simply will not reasonably bear the narrow construc-

tion he placed upon them, nor could the employees have so

understood them.^ The Courts have consistently resisted the

Board's resort to such a "narrow and strained" construc-

tion to defeat the employer's right of legitimate comment.

N.L.R.B. V. Laars Engineers, Inc., 332 F.2d 664, 667 (9th

Cir. 1964) ; Union Carbide Corporation v. N.L.R.B., 310

F.2d 844, 845 (6th Cir. 1962) ; See also, N.L.R.B. v. Sun
Company of San Bernardino, 215 F.2d 379 (9th Cir. 1954)

;

Dayco Corporation v. N.L.R.B., 382 F.2d 577 (6th Cir.

1967) ; Indiana Rayon Corporation v. N.L.R.B., 355 F.2d

535 (7th Cir. 1966) ; N.L.R.B. v. Herman Wilson Lumber
Company, 355 F.2d 426 (8th Cir. 1966). We submit the

result should be the same in the instant case ; the first elec-

tion should be held to have been erroneouslv set aside.

9. It is interesting to note that neither were they so understood
by the unions who did not, in their objections to the results of the
election, include any objection to the company's comments on its

benefit policies (R. 8).
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II. The Regional Director Erred in Summarily Overruling All the

Company's Objections to the Second Election on the Basis of

His Private Investigation Without Affording the Company a

Hearing on the Substantial Issues of Lav/ and Fact That Were
Raised by Its Objections.

Sonoco raised several objections to the second election,

the primary ones being a threat of physical harm to one

employee, a threat of loss of job to another, and the unau-

thorized presence of a union agent. Any one of these, if

established, would have required an overturn of the elec-

tion. These were investigated ex parte by the Regional Di-

rector and, without benefit of a hearing, summarily rejected

in his decision (R. 42). This decision reflects a misapplica-

tion of legal standards and a misunderstanding as to what

constitutes an issue of fact which must be resolved by a

hearing.

Though not ([uestioning that a substantial threat of harm
was directed at an employee,^" nor that the threat was made
in the presence of other employees,^^ the Regional Director

nevertheless refused to consider the interfering nature of

this conduct because "it occurred prior to the issuance of

the Notice of Rerun Election" (R. 44). In so doing, the

Regional Director acted directly contrary to the Board's

decision in The Singer Company,^^ which held that the

period for consideration of allegedly improper conduct

10. See: Employers Objections to Election, par. V. (R. 38);
Employer's Request for Review (R. 52); affidavit of Murry k!
Hughes (R. 88) and statement by Mr. Mendonca (R. 92)." The
Regional Director's discussion of these matters can be found at
R. 44 and 45.

11. See R. 44, where the Regional Director states in his decision
that "[a]ccording to the employees, three union agents approached
the car and tore up the sign."

12. 161 N.L.R.B. No. 87, 1967 CCII NLRB para. 20,874, 63
LRRM 1381 (1966). This decision was based upon earlier rulings
to the same effect in Ideal Electric and Manufacturing Company,
134 N.L.R.B. 1275 (1961), and Goodyear Tire <& Rubber Company,
138N.L.R.B. 453 (1962).
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begins to run from tlie date of tlie first election and not

from the date the second election is directed. This rule is

bottomed on common sense as obviously the notice of a new

election does not act as an eraser which wipes from the

employees' minds all effects of prior illegal conduct. It has

an especial pertinence in the instant case where the earlier

threat was reinforced by subsequent telephone calls. Had the

Regional Director correctly taken cognizance of the threat

and found it to have in fact been made, an overturn of the

election would have been required. E.g., N.L.R.B. v. Tampa
Crown Distributors, 272 F.2d 470 (5th Cir. 1959), Progres-

sive Mine Workers of America v. N.L.R.B., 187 F.2d 298,

(7th Cir. 1951) ; Gabriel Company Automotive Division,

137 N.L.R.B. 1252 (1962) ; National Gypsum Company, 133

N.L.R.B. 1492 (1961); Poinsett Lumber S Manufacturing

Company, 116 N.L.R.B. 1732 (1956) ; Shipowners Associa-

tion of the Pacific Coast, 107 N.L.R.B. 1508 (1954) ; G.H.

Hess, Incorporated, 82 N.L.R.B. 463 (1949).

The Regional Director's opinion continues with a discus-

sion of the later telephone calls. From his private investi-

gation the Regional Director purportedly found that the

subsequent calls were "friendly" and did not constitute a

threat (R. 45). Though he never discusses the mental state

of mind of the threatened employee, his conclusion that

there was no interference must be based npon the inference

that the employee could not have been afraid. His reasoning

was lent colorable support by ignoring the original threat

which had been dismissed as legally irrelevant. This of

course was error in light of The Singer Company case dis-

cussed above. And even apart from that case, it is contrary

to both law and reason to consider acts in isolation from the

context in which they take place or to ignore their combined

effect, /.('., in this case to treat the calls without considera-

tion of the intimately related conduct which had preceded
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them. Cf. Home Toivn Foods, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 379 F.2d 241

(5th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Trancoa Chemical Corp., 303

F.2d 456 (1st Cir. 1962). ^^^

The Regional Director's inferential conclusion is, in addi-

tion, in direct conflict with evidence tendered by the corn-

pan}^, to wit, the testimony of Mr. Hughes that Mr. Men-

donca expressed fear over the later telephone calls. The

Board's own rules require that a hearing be held whenever

"substantial and material factual issues exist" concerning

the objections to an election.^* Yet here the Regional Di-

rector took it upon himself to resolve a factual conflict,

drawing an inference which necessarily discredited the

employer's evidence. Furthermore, this inference was based

upon an investigator's private interviews with the i:)ersons

involved, whose names were not known to Petitioner and

whose testimony, assuming it to have been as represented

by the Regional Director, was not subject to investigation or

cross-examination by Petitioner. Unless the existence of a

substantial factual issue is to be determined solely by a

prior ex parte weighing and crediting by the Regional

Director, such an issue was surely i)resented here.^^

13. See also the numerous cases cited on the total context rule,

supra, at pages 6 and 7 of the brief.

14. N.L.R.B. Rules and Regulations, Series 8, as amended.

Section 102.69_(c). (29 C.P.R. sec. 102.69(e)). The text of this

rule is set out in relevant part in Appendix A. This section of the

brief is concerned with the Regional Director's unjustified refusal

to order a hearing on the objections to the second election. The
overall impact of the refusal to grant a hearing at any stage of

the proceedings, from the overturn of the first election to the

summary finding of an unfair labor practice, is the topic of the

next section of the brief. The prejudicial effect of the refusal to

afford a hearing on the results of the second election manifested

itself in the subsequent bargaining order which was predicated

upon the purported validity of the second election.

15. The presence of important factual issues is even clearer when
it is considered that the Regional Director failed to take into

account the existence, nature and circumstances of the threat itself.



16

Moreover, contrary to what tlie Regional Director's de-

cision implies, the interfering nature of threats does not

dejiend solely upon a detailed analysis of their effect on

the employee (or employees) to whom they are directed.

It has long been recognized that it is very difficult to

measure the effect of such interfering conduct either on

the i^erson involved or on others who, as here, may have

witness or learned of it. See, e.g., United States Rubber

Co., 86 N.L.R.B. 3 (1949). Therefore, the standards against

which challenged conduct is measured are in large part

objective rather than subjective. Thus, for exami)le, the

fact that the threats do not have their desired effect does

not render them any less objectionable. Progressive Mine

Workers of America v. N.L.R.B., 187 F.2d 298 (7th Cir.

1951); G.H. Hess, Incorporated, 82 N.L.R.B. 463 (1949).

Nor is the fact that only one employee was threatened

controlling {National Gypsum Co., 133 N.L.R.B. 1492

(1961) ; United States Rubber Co., supra), especially where,

as in the instant case, the election takes place in a small

plant with relatively few employees. F. B. Rogers Silver

Company, 94 N.L.R.B. 205 (1951). In short, all the sur-

rounding circumstances must be taken into account. Cf.

Poinsett Lumber & Manufacturing Company, 116 N.L.R.B.

1732 (1956). These factors assume a greater than usual

significance in this case where the outcome of the election

turned upon one vote. But none of them were considered

by the Regional Director, nor did he provide a hearing

where the factual circumstances relevant to each could be

developed.

The arbitrary refusal to afford a hearing was repeated

as to the company's other objections. A union threat of

loss of job such as that detailed in the Hughes affidavit

(R. 89) would have required an overturn of the election.
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Vickers Incorporated, Etc., 152 N.L.R.B. 793 (1965) ; Caro-

line Poultry Farms Inc., 104 N.L.R.B. 255 (1953) ; and see,

Superior Wood Products, Inc., 145 N.L.R.B. 782 (1964).

But the Hughes testimony was unilaterally rejected by

the Regional Director in favor of the supposed denial of

the coerced emj)loyee. The employer was given no oppor-

tunity to question the employee as to why his testimony

had changed between the time he spoke with Mr. Hughes

and his private interview with the Board agent, or to

develop the relationship between the foreman and the em-

ployee or the other factual circumstances which would bear

on what was said and its possible impact. Similarly, though

the unauthorized presence and campaigning of a union

organizer would have constituted vitiating interference

{Southwestern Electric Service Co. v. N.L.R.B., 194 F.2d

939 (5th Cir. 1952) ; Gary Enterprises, Inc., 86 N.L.R.B.

431 (1949); Continental Can Company, 80 N.L.R.B. 785

(1948) ; Detroit Creamery Co., 60 N.L.R.B. 178 (1945)), and

though evidence was submitted that such was the case (R,

90, 91), the employer was refused a hearing in which to

develop who was talked to and what was said.^®

The Regional Director erred in each of the particulars

outlined above. These errors, and the resulting prejudice,

were rendered the more extreme bv the closeness of the

16. On this latter issue the error was compounded by the ap-

plication of an incorrect legal standard to the ex parte findings

of fact. The strict laboratory conditions under which the Board
insists elections be conducted is undermined by any conduct which
is "reasonably calculated" to interfere with the employees' free

choice. Americxm Tool Works of Hartford, Inc., 102 N.L.R.B.
1143, 1149 (1953). Interference is not dependent, as the Regional
Director seemed to think, upon conduct which is so gross as to

render free choice "impossible" (Regional Director's opinion at

R. 46, first paragraph)

.
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election which dictated that especial care be taken in scru-

tinizing the challenged conduct. Certainly the Director's

conclusion that he had "found no evidence . . . which would

warrant a hearing" (R. 46, n.2) cannot be supported. To

borrow a phrase used by the Fifth Circuit when consider-

ing an almost identical situation:

"This treatment of the matter by the Regional Di-

rector would obviate the necessity of ever having a

hearing on objections to an election. The disputed

facts were resolved without testimony under oath,

without cross-examination, and without the procedural

safeguards of a hearing." N.L.R.B. v. Lamar Electric

Membership Corporation, 362 F.2d 505, 508 (5th Cir.

1966).

We submit the company's objections to the second elec-

tion were on sound ground legally and factually and should

have resulted in the election l)eing set aside.

III. By Accepting the Regional Director's Prior Ex Parte Deter-

minations as Conclusive of the Validi?y of Each of the Elections

and Entering a Summary Judgment Predicated Thereon, the

Board Deprived Petitioner of the hcecring Which Both the Act

and Due Process Required Be Held on the Issues Underlying

the Unfair Labor Practice Charge.

After hearings on the objections to both the first and

second elections had been denied, the Board, again

refusing a hearing, entered a sunmiary judgment finding

Sonoco guilty of an unlawful refusal to bargain. Thus

Petitioner found itself adjudged guilty of an unfair labor

practice without ever having had the ojaportunity, in the

context of a hearing, to present evidence and refute ad-

verse evidence relative to the issues underlying that de-
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termination. This, we contend, is contrary to both the Act

and the most basic concepts of due process.

A. THE BOARD'S ERROR IN SIMPLE OUTLINE.

The post election procedures of the Board provide for

an ex parte administrative investigation into challenged

conduct and, when proper, a decision by the Regional

Director predicated thereon. ^^ These procedures have been

justified as necessary to expedite the representation issue

and i^revent dilatory tactics by unions and employers. ^^

N.L.R.B. V. Joclin Manufacturing Company, 314 F.2d 627

(2nd Cir. 1963) ; N.L.R.B. v. 0. K. Van Storage, Inc., 297

F.2d 74 (5th Cir. 1961). They prevent unnecessary delay

and expense by permitting summary disposition of alle-

gations which are jjatently without basis in fact. N.L.R.B.

V. 0. K. Van Storage, Inc., supra. Similarly, they allow for

a determination to be made without a hearing where even

if all the facts contended for by the objecting party were

true no grounds would be presented for setting aside the

election. N.L.R.B. v. Bata Shoe Company, Inc., 377 F.2d

821, 826 (4th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. J. R Simplot Company,

322 F.2d 170 (9th Cir. 1963). In such cases, unless addi-

17. N.L.R.B. Riiles and Regulations, Series 8, as amended.
Section 102.69(c). (29 C.F.R. sec. 102.69(c)). Relevant text of the
Rule is set out in Appendix A.

18. For similar reasons no appeal lies from the affirmance of

the results of an election or the direction of a new one. The em-
ployer can seek Coiirt review of these rulings only on appeal from
an unfair labor practice finding and order. See N.L.R.B. v.

Ortronix, Inc., 380 F.2d 737, 739 (5th Cir. 1967); N.L.R.B. v.

Ideal Laundry and Dry Cleaning Co., 330 F.2d 712, 715 (lOth

Cir. 1964).
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tional evidence is tendered at the unfair labor practice

proceedings, the total absence of factual issues make a hear-

ing unnecessary at either the representation or unfair labor

practice stages. N.L.R.B. v. J. R. Simplot Company, supra;

N.L.R.B. V. Bata Shoe Company, Inc., supra; NLR.B. v

Ideal Laundry and Dry Cleaning Co., 330 F.2d 712 (10th

Cir. 1964).

However, these procedures offer opportunity for abuse

by the Board and it has not infrequently applied them in

a manner contrary to procedural due process. Too fre-

quently they have been used, not to weed out the frivolous

case, but merely to arrive at an ex parte disposition of

cases for purposes of closing the files. Such a imilateral

determination is of course no substitute for the hearing

which must be held on the unfair labor practice charge,^^

a fact of which the Courts have had increasing occasion

to remind the Board. The practice of discounting the em-

ployer's offer of proof on the basis of conflicting evidence

collected during an ex parte investigation cannot be squared

with due process. N.L.R.B. v. Bata Shoe Company, Inc.,

377 F.2d 821 (4th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Capital Bakers,

Inc., 351 F.2d 45 (3rd Cir. 1965) ; N.L.R.B. v. Ideal Laundry

and Dry Cleaning Co., 330 F.2d 712 (10th Cir. 1964);

N.L.R.B. V. Joclin Manufacturing Company, 314 F.2d 627

(2nd Cir. 1963). Nor can matters of weight and credibility

be determined except in the context of a hearing. N.L.R.B.

V. Capital Bakers, Inc. supra; N.L.R.B. v. Lord Baltimore

Press, Inc., 300 F.2d 671 (4th Cir. 1962) ; N.L.R.B. v. Dallas

City Packing Co., 230 F.2d 708 (5th Cir. 1956). And where,

as here, the employee's state of mind is a relevant issue,

19. Section 10(b) of the National Labor Relations Act. (29

U.S.C. sec. 160(b) ) This section is set forth in toto in Appendix B.
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there is a special need for the safeguards of a hearing.

Home Toivn Foods, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 379 F.2d 241 (5th

Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Joclin Manufacturing Company,

supra.

This catalogue of "don'ts" is, in the instant case, an

exact measure of what the Eegional Director did.-*' After

both elections he conducted private investigations and

rendered an opinion based upon what those investigations

purportedly revealed. The first election was reversed on

grounds which, until it was presented with the fait accompli

of the Regional Director's decision, the employer did not

even know were being eonsidered.^^ The employer's ob-

jections to the second election, and the evidence submitted

thereon, were discounted on the basis of supposed contra-

dictory evidence revealed by the secret investigation. Yet at

the unfair labor practice proceedings the Board held that,

as the various issues underlying the objections to the two

20. In so doing- he also acted in contravention of the Board's
rules. See the discussion in II, supra, and Rule 102.69(e) cited

therein at footnote 14.

21. This is a problem employers all too frequently face in these

ex parte investigations. The Regional Director claims no responsi-

bility to disclose either information obtained during his investiga-

tion or the course of that investigation. This is usually justified

as necessary to protect the confidence of the employees who are
privately interviewed by the investigating agent. While the latter

is undoubtedly a legitimate consideration, petitioner doubts it

affords a tenable basis for the Board's policy of refusing to apprise
the employer to any extent of either the factors which the Regional
Director is considering or non-confidential information claimed to

have been uncovered. Certainly it cannot be justified where the
Board later, without a hearing, predicates an luifair labor practice
finding in part on an earlier determination which itself was based
solely on the results of such a secret investigation. See N.L.R.B. v.

Ideal Laundrij and Dry Cleaning Co., 330 F.2d 712 at 716 (10th
Cir. 1964), for one Court's disapproval of this clandestine pro-
cedure as a substitute for an unfair labor practice hearing.
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elections had been conclusively determined by the earlier

ex parte procedures, it need not afford the company the

hearing which the Act requires, and, so holding, it sum-

marily found Sonoco guilty of an unlawful refusal to

bargain.

In thus holding the Board clearly erred. The substantial

issues surrounding the elections' validity did not drop from

the scene merely because the Regional Director failed to

to acknowledge them. By routinely accepting the Director's

unilateral pronouncements as conclusive, the Board per-

petuated the error and deprived Petitioner of the hearing

to which it was entitled under Section 10 of the Act. Such

a foreclosure of a hearing has received unanimous judicial

disapproval. The result has consistently been that which

we contend should be reached here: The courts have de-

clined to enforce the Board's Order and remanded for a

hearing. E.g., N.L.R.B. v. Ortronix, Inc., 380 F.2d 737 (5th

Cir. 1967) ; Home Town Foods, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 379 F.2d

241 (5th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Bata Shoe Company, Inc.,

377 F.2d 821 (4th Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Lamar Electric

MemhersJiip Corporation, 362 F.2d 505 (5th Cir. 1966);

N.L.R.B. V. Capital Bakers, Inc., 351 F.2d 45 (3rd Cir.

1965) ; N.L.R.B. i\ Ideal Laundry and Dry Cleaning Co.,

330 F.2d 712 (10th Cir. 1964) ; N.L.R.B. v. Joclin Manufac-

turing Compayiy, 314 F.2d 627 (2nd Cir. 1963) ; N.L.R.B.

V. Lord Baltimore Press, Inc., 300 F.2d 671 (4th Cir. 1962)

;

N.L.R.B. V. Dallas City Packing Company, 230 F.2d 708

(5th Cir. 1956) ; N.L.R.B. v. Poinsett Lumber and Manu-

facturing Company, 221 F.2d 121 (4th Cir. 1955)."

22. The Poinsett Lumber and Manufacturing Company saga

affords a good example of the vice inherent in the Board's ex parte

procedures. After the election, which it lost, the employer filed

objections complaining of physical and economic threats directed

at the employees. The Regional Director conducted a private in-
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B. A CRITIQUE OF THE BOARD'S USE OF THE SUMMARY JUDGMENT
DEVICE.

The starting point for this discussion is the hearing

which, in Section 10(b), Congress has specifically provided

must be held on the unfair labor i:)ractice charge.^^ This

hearing is governed by the provisions of the Administrative

Procedure Act (5 U.S.C. sec. 1001, et scq.), which in turn

were enacted to ensure that the requisites of procedural due

process would be applied by government agencies. To para-

phrase Professor Davis, the key to the hearing thus pro-

vided for is the opportunity of each party to know and to

meet the evidence and the argument on the other side, and

this includes the opportunity to present evidence and argu-

ment and to cross-examine o})posing witnesses. 1 Davis,

Administrative Law, sec. 7.01, p. 407 (1958). To similar

effect is the statement of tlie Court of Appeals for the

Fourth Circuit that to satisfy the requirements of due proc-

ess the objecting x^arty must be "given the opportunity to

be heard, to call and cross-examine those who are the source

of Board evidence, and to present pertinent evidence of its

vestigation and issued a report eonehiding- that the objections were
"without merit". The Board adopted this report and dismissed the
objections as raising no substantial issue. 107 N.L.R.B. 234. The
employer refused to bargain, and at the subsequent unfair labor
practice hearing again sought to be heard on the issues imderlying
its objections. However, the trial examiner refused to receive any
evidence relating to these threats, holding the prior proceeding to

be conclusive of the objections' lack of merit. The Board adopted
the trial examiner's decision and ordered the company to bargain.

109 N.L.R.B. 1079. On appeal from this order, the Court held that
the refusal at all stages to provide the company with a hearing
was error and remanded accordingly. At the ensuing hearing, and
in the Board's decision predicated thereon, it was found that the
claimed threats had indeed been made and that as a result the
election had been conducted in such "an atmosphere of fear and
reprisal" that it should be set aside. 116 N.L.R.B. 1732, 1739.

23. National Labor Relations Act, Section 10(b). (29 U.S.C.
sec. 160(b) ) See Appendix B for text.
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own." N.L.R.B. v. Bala Shoe Company, Inc., 377 F.2d 821,

826-27 (4th Cir. 1967).

Of course no such hearing was held here. According to

the Board's rationale, none was required because the Re-

gional Director had considered and rejected Sonoco's con-

tentions with respect to each of the elections and therefore,

concluded the Board: "there are no issues of fact or law

which require a hearing. Thus, as all material issues have

been decided by the Board in accordance with the allega-

tions in the complaint, the General Counsel's Motion for

Summary Judgment is granted." (Decision of the Board,

R. 96 at page 4). This being the Board's reasoning, it is

fruitful to compare the manner in which "all material

issues" were "decided" in this case with the normal situa-

tion where the summary judgment device is applied. To do

so is to demonstrate that the procedures employed by the

Board in the instant case made a mockery of the due process

hearing requirements described by the above authorities.

It is axiomatic that courts approach summary judgment

motions with great caution. As the procedure may deprive

a party of his right to a trial, it is bounded by the strictest

safeguards. The most basic tenet is that such a motion can

be granted only if "there is no genuine issue as to any

material fact." New and Used Auto Sales, Inc. v. Hansen,

245 F.2d 951, 953 (9th Cir. 1957) (emphasis added). The

moving ])arty has the burden of proof and this burden is a

heavy one. All inferences of fact are to be drawn against

him and in favor of the other party. Griffeth v. Utah Power

and Light Company, 226 F.2d 661 (9th Cir. 1955) ; 6 Moore,

Federal Practice, sec. 56.15(3), pp. 2335, 2337 (1966). Any

doubt, no matter how slight, as to whetlier there is an issue

of fact must be resolved against the moving party and in

favor of a trial. United States v. Farmers Mutual Insurance

Association of Kiron, Iowa, 288 F.2d 560, 562 (8th Cir.
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1961) ; Doehler Metal Furniture Coynpany v. United States,

140 F.2d 130, 135 (2nd Cir. 1945). Of course matters of

weight and credibility can never be considered but must be

left to the safeguards of trial procedures, e.g., cross exam-

ination. Sartor v. Arkansas Natural Gas Corp., 321 U.S.

620 (1944). Moreover, a large variety of materials, ranging

from the pleadings themselves to oral testimony, can be

resorted to in determining whether any issue of fact re-

mains in dispute. See generally, 6 Moore, supra, sec. 56.1(1),

p. 2143. Finally, the motion is subject to argument before

the court, where counsel are able to call attention to facts

and factual inferences which may pose a conflict, and to

relevant j^rineiples of law which would render these con-

flicts material.

These safeguarding principles contrast sharply Avith the

lax standards attending the Board's i)ost election proce-

dures. The Regional Director causes his own investigation

to be made into the objections. The burden of proof falls to

the objecting party who is not necessarily the one who later

moves for summary judgment.-* During the investigation

private interviews are conducted the results of which are

not disclosed to the objecting party, who thus has no oppor-

tunity to refute any evidence thereby purportedly obtained.

No one is privy to this evidence except the Regional Direc-

tor and seldom does he spell it out in his decisions : witness

the decisions in the instant ease. Moreover, the Regional

Director assumes tlie freedom (demonstrated with respect

to the first election in this case) to affirm or deny the

validity of the election on any groimds, whether or not

these were included in the objections formally lodged and

whether or not the ])arties have been apprised of, and had

24. For example, the burden was on Petitioner, as the objecting
party, to overturn the second election, yet it was on the receiving-

end of the summary judgment motion.
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the opportunity to submit evidence concerning, these

grounds.

Petitioner does not mean to suggest that the mechanism

of summary judgment has absohitely no place in the unfair

labor practice proceedings. If a hearing is held at the rep-

resentation stage then clearly the Board need not, in the

unfair labor practice case, relitigate issues which were de-

cided at the prior hearing. N.L.R.B. v. KVP Sutherland

Paper Company, 356 F.2d 671 (6th Cir. 1966). And, as this

Court has recognized, if there is really no disjrate as to the

facts or if the Regional Director's determination is based

upon the assumption that the employer's proffered evidence

is true, then again a hearing need not be held. N.L.R.B. v.

J.R. Simplot Company, 322 F.2d 170 (9th Cir. 1963) ; and

see, Producers Livestock Marketing Association v. United

States, 241 F.2d 192, 196 (10th Cir. 1957).

But such was not the situation here. Rather the com-

pany's factual contentions were dismissed upon the basis

of contrary evidence obtained during a secret investigation.

The company never, at any stage of the proceedings, had an

opportunity to know and meet this adverse evidence, to

cross-examine those who were its source, or to submit evi-

dence of its own. This was the procedure by which the out-

come of a close election Avas determined and by which the

company was found guilty of a refusal to bargain. Clearly,

no court would tolerate such procedure; and certain it is

that no court would have granted summary judgment in the

circumstances here present. We submit that the procedure

is no less contrary to the precepts of due process when

employed ])y the Board to deprive a party of the hearing to

which it is entitled on an unfair labor j^ractice charge. The

Board's Order should be vacated. See Kirhy v. Shaw, 358

F.2d 446 (9th Cir. 1966) ; N.L.R.B. v. Rata Shoe Company,

Inc., 377 F.2d 821 (4th Cir. 1967); N.L.R.B. r. Ortronix,
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Inc., 380 F.2d 737 (5tli Cir. 1967) ; N.L.R.B. v. Ideal Laun-

dry and Dry Cleaning Co., 330 F.2d 712 (10th Cir. 1964)

;

N.L.R.B. V. KVP Sutherland Paper Company, 356 F.2d

671 (6th Cir. 1966) ; N.L.R.B. v. Poinsett Lumber S Manu-

facturing, 221 F.2d 121 (4th Cir. 1955).

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully submitted

that a decree should be entered vacating the Board's Order

and either affirming the validity of the first election or re-

manding the case for a full hearing on all issues relevant

to the unfair labor practice charge, including the validity

vel non of each of the elections.

Respectfully submitted,

E. Judge Elderkin
William R. Irwin

Attorneys for Petitioner

Sonoco Products Company

Donald D. Connors, Jr.

Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison

Of Counsel
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E. Judge Elderkin
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Appendix A

N.L.R.B. Rules & Regulations, Series 8, as amended, Section

102.69(c) (29 C.F.R. sec. 102.69(c) ):

(c) If objections are filed to the conduct of the election

or conduct affecting the result of the election, or if the

challenged ballots are sufficient in number to affect the re-

sult of the election, the regional director shall investigate

such objections or challenges, or both ... If the election has

been conducted pursuant to a direction of election issued

following any proceeding under section 102.67, the regional

director may (1) issue a report on objections or challenged

ballots, or both, as in the case of a consent election pursuant

to section 102.62(b), or (2) exercise his authority to decide

the case and issue a decision disposing of the issues and

directing appropriate action or certifying the results of the

election. In either instance, such action by the regional

director may be on the basis of an administrative investiga-

tion or, if it appears to the regional director that sub-

stantial and material factual issues exist which can be

resolved only after a hearing, on tlie basis of a hearing be-

fore a hearing officer, designated by the regional director



Appendix B

National Labor Relations Act, Section 10(b)

(29 U.S.C. sec. 160(b}):

(b) Wlienever it is charged that any person has engaged

in or is engaging in any such unfair labor practice, the

Board, or any agent or agency designated by the Board

for such purposes, shall have power to issue and cause to

be served upon such person a complaint stating the charges

in that respect, and containing a notice of hearing before

the Board or a member thereof, or before a designated

agent or agency, at a place therein fixed, not less than five

days after the serving of said complaint: Provided, That

no complaint shall issue based upon any unfair labor prac-

tice occurring more than six months prior to the filing of

the charge with the Board and the service of a copy thereof

upon the person against whom such charge is made, unless

the person aggrieved thereby was jDrevented from filing

such charge by reason of service in the armed forces, in

which event the six-month period shall be computed from

the day of his discharge. Any such complaint may be

amended by the member, agent, or agency conducting the

hearing or the Board in its discretion at any time prior to

the issuance of an order based thereon. The person so com-

plained of shall have the right to file an answer to the

original or amended complaint and to appear in person or

otherwise and give testimony at the place and time fixed in

the complaint. In the discretion of the member, agent, or

agency conducting the hearing or the Board, any other

person may be allowed to intervene in the said proceeding

and to present testimony. Any such proceeding shall, so

far as practicable, l)e conducted in accordance with the

rules of evidence applicable in the district courts of the

United States under the rules of civil procedure for the

district courts of the United States, adopted by the Sui)reme

Court of the United States pursuant to the Act of June 19,

1934 (U.S.C, title 28, sees. 723-B, 723-C).
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JURISDICTION

These proceedings are before the Court on a petition

for review and a cross-petition for enforcement of a decision

and order of the National Labor Relations Board finding

petitioner, Sonoco Products Company ("Sonoco"), guilty of

violating Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29 U.S.C,



S<'c. 151, et seq.). The Board's decision and order (R. 96-

104)1 ^g reported at 165 NLRB No. 68. The unfair labor

practices were committed in Hayward, CaHfornia, where pe-

titioner is engaged in the manufacture of spiral paper tubing.

This Court, therefore, has jurisdiction under Section 10(e) of

the Act.

COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Board found that petitioner's admitted refusal to

bargain with the certified representative of its employees^

violated Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act (R. 70). In so

ruUng, the Board rejected petitioner's contentions that (1)

the election proceedings upon wiiich the Unions' certification

rested were invalid and (2) the Company's objections to the

election raised material factual issues which required a for-

mal Board hearing. The evidence upon which the Board

based its findings is summarized below.

References to the formal documents reproduced as "Volume I,

Pleadings" are designated "R."

Two unions were certified as a joint representative of the unit em-

ployees: Brotherhood of Teamsters and Auto Truck Drivers, Local No.

70, International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Warehousemen

and Helpers of America and Warehouse, Processing and Allied Workers

i,ocal No. 6, International Longshoremen's and Wareliousemrn's Union.



A. The First Election

On March 23, 1966, the Board conducted a secret

ballot election at Sonoco's Hayward plant as a result of the

Unions' joint petition for representation. The Tally of Bal-

lots showed 17 votes against Union representation and 13

votes for representation. The Unions filed timely objections,

however, alleging, inter alia, that the Company had interfered

with the conduct of a fair election because of the content

of its speeches delivered to employees on the day prior to

the election (R. 8-10). During the ensuing Board investiga-

tion, the Company furnished copies of these speeches. The

speech delivered by Plant Manager Murry Hughes admittedly

contained the following remarks (R. 13):

If this union organizational activity had
not been started, you would now be en-

joying even higher base rates and other

fringe benefits. The Company was not

able to grant these improvements, how-
ever, because of the union organizational

drive. Those of you who have worked
here for several years are surely aware of

the fact that wages and fringe benefits

have been increased every year without

interruption since beginning the operation

in Fremont in 1959. At the time of our

increases in wages and fringe benefits last

year, we had been losing large amounts
of money and an increase at that time

was really not justifiable, but an increase

of 5^ to B(ji was granted anyhow. We
granted this increase because of our faith

in you and in the future of this plant.

We cannot say at tliis time how nujch

of an increase you would have already

been granted this year if it were not for



the union activity, but it was certainly

greater than what was granted last year.

Another program that we had initiated

in your behalf before the union organiza-

tional activity began was a job evaluation

program. I have letters in my office dat-

ing back to August 1965, concerning the

establishment of this program. On Janu-

ary 10th, of this year, I wrote a letter

to Harrison Martin telling him that we
had completed writing job specifications

and were ready to proceed with this pro-

gram so that it could be tied in with our

annual review of wages and fringe bene-

fits. Again we were unable to proceed

with this program, which would have

been beneficial to you, because of the

union organizational activity.

The Board's Regional Director issued a Supplemental

Decision and Order setting aside the March election and di-

recting that a new election be conducted. In the Regional

Director's view, the quoted remarks by Plant Manager Hughes

constituted an unwarranted attempt to blame the Unions for

the Company's refusal to institute certain new benefits and

thereby tended to interfere with the employees' exercise of

a free choice (R. 13-14). The Regional Director did not de-

cide whether Hughes' remarks constituted a violation of Sec-

tion 8(a)(1) of the Act, nor did he consider whether the

Company's refusal to grant benefits itself violated the Act.

In view of his decision to conduct another elpclion, the Kcffjonal

Director also found it unnecessary to resolve certain factual issues dis-

closed by his investigation: e.^., whether certain Com|)any supervisors

had coercively interrogat(ul eniplovees or threatened them with a plant

closing in the event of unionization (R. 14, n. 5).



The Company requested Board review of the Region-

al Director's decision. In its Request (R. 17-24), the Com-

pany did not contend that there was any new relevant evi-

dence that the Regional Director had failed to consider.

Instead, the Company simply contended that Hughes' speech

did not violate Section 8(a)(1) of the Act. The Board, find-

ing "no substantial issues warranting review", denied the re-

quest for review on June 27, 1966 (R. 33).

B. The Second Election

A second election was held on August 17, 1966, and

resulted in a majority of ballots being cast in favor of the

Unions (16 for, 14 against, and 1 challenged) (R. 34).*

Sonoco filed timely objections complaining that the Unions

had coerced and intimidated its employees and deprived

them of a free and untrammeled choice in the election

(R. 35-41). Among the specific objections there raised

were three claims renewed here by the Comapny: (1) the

claim that Union agents threatened employee Mendonca

with physical harm on the day of the first election (R. 44);

(2) the claim that employee Scroggins received a telephone

call from a union agent, on the night before the second

election, in which he was told that a certain Company su-

pervisor was "out to get [him] fired" and that Scroggins

had therefore "better vote for the Unions if he wanted to

preserve [his] job" (R. 37-38); and (3) the claim that a

Union organizer engaged in campaigning at the plant on the

day of the second election (R. 45-46).

The one challenged ballot was «ast by Danny Stewart, who had

been active in the Union campaij^n. Stewait's eligibihty to vote was

challenged on the grounds that he had recently been promoted to the

job of foreman.



I'lic Kcfiioiial Director, after conduetiiig an investiga-

tion, concluded that none of these claims warranted invali-

dating the second (flection (R. 46). Furthermore, he found,

there were no conflicts in the evidence disclosed which

would warrant a formal evidentiary hearing (R. 46, n. 2).

Accordingly, he denied the Company's request for a hearing,

overruled the objections in their entirety, and issued a cer-

tification of the Unions as exclusive bargaining representa-

tive (R. 46).

Thus, with resp<Mt to the first objection, relating to

employee Mendonca, the investigation disclosed that the in-

cident referred to by the Company occurred prior to the

first election. Pursuant to Board policy, the Regional Di-

rector concluded that the incident was too remote in time

to warrant invalidating the second election (R. 44). The

Company did not dispute that the incident in question oc-

curred prior to the first election.

With respect to the second objection, relating to em-

ployee Scroggins, the investigation disclosed that Scroggins

had been told by a Union agent that a certain Company
foreman was "set against him" and that, in fact, this fore-

man had complained about Scroggins to other employees.

There was no evidence that the Union had substantially mis-

represented the foreman's attitude. Accordingly, whether

or not Scroggins was urged to vote for the Union in order

to preserve his job — Scroggins denied being told this — the

objection was deemed without merit (R. 45). The Company
submitted no evidence regarding the foreman's attitude.

Finally, with respect to the Company's complaint

that a Union organizer engaged in "electioneering" at the

polls on the day of the second election, the investigation

showed that Ray Gonzalez, a former Company employee,

was driven to the plant that day. lie was met immediately



at the employee entrance by a management official, before

he could reach the polls, and asked to leave the premises.

Gonzalez did leave, without speaking to employees, except

to ask one of them for a ride off the property. Since the

undisputed evidence showed that Gonzalez was not near

the polls and did no campaigning, the Regional Director

found it unnecessary to determine whether Gonzalez was

a Union agent (R. 46). The Company submitted no evi-

dence tending to show that Gonzalez might have reached

the polling area or that he ever discussed campaign matters

with any employee.

The Company filed a Request for Review of the

Regional Director's Decision (R. 48-55), arguing that there

was a conflict in the evidence which required a hearing, or,

if the factual claims of the Company be accepted as true,

that the election must be deemed invalid. The Board de-

nied the Request on November 14, 1966 (R. 56).^

The Company submitted other specific objections as well, but they

were also overruled by the Regional Director and have not been renewed

here.

In support of its Request for Review, the Company directed the

Board's attention to an affidavit of Murry Hughes, plant manager,

which it had submitted to the Regional Director. The (Company also

claimed that it was ready to [»rove a number of critical factual asser-

tions: e.^., that employee Mendonca "changed his vote" because of

union "threats", that Ray C.onzaicz "talked to several employees at a

time while they were waiting in line to vote" (R. .IS). Hughes' affi-

davit, however, did not supj)ort these factual assertions, and the ("oni-

pany submitted no other evidence in support of its claims.



C. The Unfair Labor Practi(-c Proceedings

After being certified, the Unions repeatedly recjuestcd

the (Company to bargain but their requests were denied

(R. 76-79). Acting upon Union charges, the Board's Gen-

eral Counsel issued a complaint alleging Section 8(a)(5) and

(1) violations (R. 59-62). In its answer, the Company ad-

mitted its refusal to bargain but challenged the propriety

of the representation proceedings (R. 65-68). The General

Counsel thereupon filed a motion for summary judgment

with the Board on the grounds that there were no issues

of fact or law requiring a hearing (R. 79).

On April 11, 1967, the Board issued an order trans-

ferring the matter to the Board and requiring the Company
to show cause why the motion for summary judgment should

not be granted. (>ompany counsel filed a response to this

order which asserted that there were "substantial factual is-

sues" which required a formal hearing. Specifically, counsel

alleged that he was ready to prove certain "facts" which

would demonstrate the invalidity of the second election. In

describing these "facts", counsel reiterated the assertions al-

ready made to the Regional Director; again, Hughes' affidavit

and an attached statement — which did not support the as-

sertions of counsel — was the sole evidence submitted by

the Company in support of its offers of proof.

For example, in opposing the motion for summary

judgment. (Company counsel asserted a readiness to prove

that employee Mendonca had told plant manager Hughes

that he (Mendonca) had changed his vote solely because of

Union thn^ats of physical harm (R. 86). Hughes' own affi-

davit, however, states otherwise: Mendonca had told Hughes

prior to the second election, that "the [Union] matter had

been cleared up and thai he was no longer afraid" (R. 88-



89). Again, counsel offered to prove that "Mr. Gonzalez

talked to employees" while they were waiting to vote in the

second election (R. 86). Hughes' affidavit, however, states

otherwise: according to Hughes, Gonzalez was stopped at

the entrance to the plant and denied access. Nothing in

the affidavit conflicts with the Regional Director's finding

that Gonzalez engaged in no campaigning near the polls

(R. 90). Finally, counsel also offered to prove that the

Union organizer made "totally false" statements when he

told employee Scroggins that a Company foreman wanted

to have Scroggins fired (R. 86). But the Hughes affidavit

contains no testimony relating the- foreman's true attitude,

and there was no other evidence submitted by the Company
to conflict with the Regional Director's finding on this

point.

The Board, therefore, rejected the Company's argu-

ment that its objections to the second election raised issues

of fact which required a formal hearing (R. 98). Further,

the Board noted, all the contentions relied upon in opposi-

tion to the motion for summary judgment had previously

been considered and found lacking in merit during the rep-

resentation proceedings (R. 99). Since the Company did

not present any newly-discovered evidence in support of

these contentions, the Board affirmed its own prior rulings

and granted the motion for summary judgment (R. 99).

The Board concluded that the Company's refusal to bargain

violated Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act, and ordered

the Company to bargain with the Union and post a reme-

dial notice (R. 100-103).



10

ARGUMENT

THE BOARD PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE COMPANY'S
REFUSAL TO RECOGNIZE AND BARGAIN WITH THE
CERTIFIED UNIONS VIOLATED SECTION 8(a)(5) AND (I)

OF THE ACT

A. Tlie Board reasonably exorcised its

discretion in concluding that the

first election should be set aside

Settled law affords the Board a wide area of discre-

tion in deciding whether to set aside an election because of

the impact on the electorate of surrounding circumstances.

Whether to set aside an election because

of incidents during the campaign period

is a matter for the sound discretion of

the Board. As has been frequently re-

marked: * * * 'C^iongress has entrusted

the Board with a wide degree of discre-

tion in establishing the procedure and

safeguards necessary to insure the fair

and free choice of bargaining representa-

tives by employees.' N.L.R.B. v. Water-

man Steamship Corp., 309 li. S. 206,

226 . . .: i^.L.R.B. v. A. J. Tower Co.,

329 U. S. 324, 330 .. . Rockwell Mfg.

Co., Kearney Div. v. N.L.R.B., 330 F.2d

795, 796 (C.A. 7), cert, denied, 379
U. S. 890.

Accord: N.L.R.B. v. Howell Chevrolet Co., 204 F.2d 79, 86

(C.A. 9), affirmed, 346 U. S. 482; Foreman & Clark, Inc. v.

N.L.R.B., 215 F.2d 396, 409 (C.A. 9). cert, denied, 348

U. S. 887; Department &: Specialty Store Emp. Union, Local

1265, RCL\ V. Brown, 284 F.2d 619. 627 (C.A. 9). cert,

denied, 366 I . S. 934. The otilj (jiieslion for ihe courts is
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whether the Board reasonably exercised its discretion. N.L.R.B.

V. J. R. Simplot Company, 322 F.2d 170, 172 (C.A. 9);

International Tel. & Tel. v. N.L.R.B., 294 F.2d 393, 395 (C.A.

9); Neuhoff Brothers Packers, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 362 F.2d 611,

614 (C.A. 5), cert, denied, 386 U. S. 956; Olson Rug Com-

pany V. N.L.R.B., 260 F.2d 255, 256 (C.A. 7); Surprenant

Mfg. Co. V. Alpert, 318 F.2d 396, 399 (C.A. 1).

On the record in this case, it can hardly be questioned

that the Company's conduct, prior to the first election, jeop-

ardized the opportunity for an untrammeled expression of em-

ployee sentiment. Just before that election. Company officials

deUvered a series of speeches to the employees in which the

employees were admittedly urged to reject the Unions. The

Company supported its arguments by telUng the employees

that they would have already received a wage increase and

other benefits had it not been for the union organizing cam-

paign (supra, pp. 3-4).

In the Board's view, these remarks interfered with the

conduct of a fair election by unjustifiably blaming the Unions

for a loss of potential improvements in working conditions.

It was the Company's decision — not the Unions' — that re-

sulted in withholding the employment benefits; by blaming

the Unions, however, the Company undermined the Unions'

sought-for status as an effective representative and character-

ized it, falsely, as a detriment to the employees. In similar

situations, the Board has previously decided to set aside elec-

tions because of the likelihood that the employer's conduct

prejudiced the opportunity for a fair election. See, e.g.,

Foreman & Clark, Inc., supra: Brandenburg Telephone Co..

164 NLRB No. 26 (Trial Examiner's Decision, p. 28), CadilUic

Overall Supply Co., 148 NLRB 1133, 1135-36.
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The Company argues that its remarks were within the

realm of "persuasion" and "legitimate comment" (Br., p. 12)

but the authority cited for this proposition is plainly distin-

guishable. In none of those cases did the employer tell his

employees that they were losing a benefit, which otherwise

would have been granted, solely because of a union organizing

campaign. Nor does the Company advance its case by accus-

ing the Regional Director of relying upon a segment of Hughes'

speech. The Board agrees, of course, as the Company argues,

that words must be read in context. But there is simply

nothing in any of the other portions of Hughes' speech, or

indeed in any of the speeches by other Company officials,

to modify or qualify the assertions by Hughes which preju-

diced the first election. As petitioner's brief itself explains,

the entirety of the speech merely indicates a discussion of

"Sonoco's past wage policy as bearing on the issue of whether

anything could be gained by unionization" (Br., p. 7). With

this context, or without it, Hughes' prejudicial remarks re-

main prejudicial.

Petitioner also argues that the Company was faced

with a "dilemma" which required explanation to the employ-

ees: if the Company withiield the increase in benefits, there-

by changing its past practice, it would have faced unfair labor

practice charges; on the other hand, granting the benefits dur-

ing an organizing campaign would also have invited "a charge

of bribery" (Br., p. 9). Tfierefore, petitioner asserts, it should

be allowed to address itself to the issue and explain its policy

to employees. But this "'dilemma" is a spurious one. Tlie

law does not prohibit an employer either from granting bene-

fits, or from refusing to grant benefits, merely because an

organizing campaign is in progress. What the Act prohibits

is conduct undertaken for the purpose of inducing employees

to vote; against the union. N.L.R.B. v. Exchange Parts Co.,

375 U. S. 405. Moreover, if lh<; (Company was interested in
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explaining to employees that it was withholding benefits sole-

ly to discourage the filing of a meritless charge of unfair

practices, it could readily have so stated. Instead, the Com-

pany asserted repeatedly that the reason for its decision was

"union activity", or "the union organizational activity."

Rather than communicating a legitimate — albeit tenuous —
explanation, the Company thereby suggested that its motiva-

tion might have been the very one proscribed by the Act.^

7
As already noted, however, the Regional Director did not consider

whether a Section 8(a)(1) violation had been committed, nor were Sec-

tion 8(a)(1) charges ever filed with respect to Hughes' conduct. Ac-

cordingly, we need not reply to Petitioner's argument that this conduct

was not prohibited by Section 8(a)(1) and that it was protected by

Section 8(c). The Board is entitled to set aside an election because

of conduct which does not necessarily constitute an unfair labor prac-

tice. And the employer's constitutional right of free speech, embodied

in Section 8(c) of the Act, is not infringed when the Boird so acts.

Foreman & Clark, Inc., supra, 215 F.2d at 408-409 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B. v.

Shirlington Supermarkets, Inc., 224 FJ2d 649, 652-653 (C.A. 4), cert,

denied, 350 U.S. 914; N.L.R.B. v. Clearfield Cheese Co., 322 F.2d 89,

92 (C.A. 3); N.L.R.B. v. Tennessee Packers, Inc., 379 F.2d 172, 181

(C.A. 6); Greenboro Hosiery Mills, Inc. v. Johnston, F.2d ,

(C.A. 4) 65 LRRM 2299; General Shoe Corp., 77'TJLRB 124, 126.
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B. The Board reasonably exercised its

discretion in concluding that the

second election should not be set

aside

In overruling the Company's objections to the second

election, the Board and its Regional Director acted well with-

in the scope of the broad authority vested by the Act. The

Regional Director conducted an investigation into all the mat-

ters raised by the Company, and set forth the evidence and

his findings in detail (supra, pp. 6-7). As we show in detail,

infra, at pp. 16-20, none of the relevant facts were the subject

of confhcting evidence; therefore, the sole question presented

by the Company's objections was whether the incidents com-

plained of warranted invalidating the election.

1. The Jack Mendonca incident. As shown, supra,

p. 6, there was evidence that three union organizers had

threatened Mendonca with a beating on the day of the first

election because he appeared near Company premises with a

sign bearing the legend "Better dead than red" (R. 44).

The Regional Director assumed this to be true but concluded

that the incident was too remote in time to constitute

grounds for invalidating the second election. Tliat judgment

was plainly a reasonable one. The two elections were 5

months apart. Any coercive impact attributable to the

Mendonca incident could hardly be presumed to hnger so

long, especially since the Board set the first election aside

and advised the employees that they would have a later op-

portunity to register their sentiment freely and without fear

of reprisal. In disputing the Regional Director's judgm<;nt

that a 5 month hiatus would suffice to dissipate any linger-

ing effects of the March 2'.i incidt-nt, the (Company plainl\

errs.



15

As the Company points out (Br., p. 13), the Board's

current poUcy in re-run election cases is to exclude consid-

eration of conduct which occurs before the first election.

The Singer Co., 161 NLRB No. 87. The Regional Director

had found that the threats to Mendonca were too remote

because they occurred prior to the notice for a new

election. The standard employed by the Regional Direc-

tor was apparently erroneous, but the error was harmless

since the conduct in question occurred before the first

election.®

The Regional Director's investigation also disclosed

that Mendonca's relatives subsequently received telephone

calls from a union agent. But no basis for setting aside

the election emerges from this evidence, either. Mendonca's

relatives and the union agent were personal friends; the agent

was simply interested in learning Mendonca's objections to

the Union; and Mendonca himself subsequently telephoned

the Union agent and engaged in peaceful discussions with

him (R. 45). Even the affidavit submitted by the Company's

own witness conceded that Mendonca had announced, prior

to the second election, "that the matter had been cleared up

and that he was no longer afraid" (R. 88-89).

Tlip Singer case, which clarified the appropriate cut-off date for

such cases, did not issue until after the Regional Director's decision in

this case. Petitioner did not complain to the Board about the matter

and, since the Mendonca incident was obviously too remote under

either test, such a complaint would have been pointless.
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2. The Gonzalez "electioneering" charge. The Re-

gional director's investigation and the Hughes affidavit

disclosed that Gonzalez had been turned away from the

plant at the entrance, never reached the poUs, and en-

gaged in no discussion with employees (supra, pp. 6-7).

In these circumstances, there is obviously no basis in

logic or precedent for invaUdating the election. N.L.R.B.

V. Moyer & Pratt, Inc., 208 F.2d 624 (C.A. 2); N.L.R.B.

V. Carolina Natural Gas Corp., F.2d
,
67 LRRM

2006, 2009 (C.A. 4).

3. The Scroggins incident . The investigation dis-

closed that employee Scroggins received a telephone call prior

to the second election, was told by a union agent that a cer-

tain Company foreman was "set against him", and was asked

if he was going to support the Union. There was a confhct

in the evidence about whether the union agent told Scroggins

that he had better vote for the Union in order to save his

job; Scroggins denied being told this (R. 45). But the con-

flict was immaterial, since there was no evidence that the

Union had misrepresented the foreman's attitude toward

Scroggins. In any event, there would plainly be nothing

improper about a union promise to protect an employee

against a discharge motivated by personal dislike.

C. The Board was not required to conduct a

formal hearing because the material facts

were not in dispute

N(uther the National Labor Relations Act nor the

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C., Sec. 554(a)(6)(Supp.II),

provides a procedure for the resolution of post-election



17

objections.^ The Board's Rules and Regulations, Series 8, Sec-

tion 102.69(c), 29 C.F.R. Sec. 102.69(c) provide, however,

that a hearing will be held on election objections where there

are "substantial and material factual issues . . . which can be

resolved orUy after a hearing."

The burden rests upon the party seeking a hearing to

establish that "substantial and material" issues do exist which

require a hearing for their resolution — he must point to

specific evidence which has a basis in law for overturning an

election which otherwise is presumed to have been valid.

N.L.R.B. V. Mattison Machine Works, Inc., 365 U.S. 123, 124;

N.L.R.B. V. Carolina Natural Gas Corp., F. 2d , 67

LRRM 2006 (C.A. 4^); N.L.R.B. v. J. R. Siniplot Co., 322 F.

2d at 172 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B. v. National Survey Service, Inc.,

361 F. 2d 199, 207-208 (C.A. 7); N.L.R.B. v. Tennessee

Packers, Inc., 379 F. 2d 172 (C.A. 6); Rockwell Mfg. Co. v.

N.L.R.B., 330 F. 2d at 797 (C.A. 7). The reasons for this rule

were cogently stated by this Court in N.L.R.B. v. J. R. Simplot

Co.:

"The Board nonetheless makes it a practice to

hold post-election hearings on objections to

elections, but in keeping with the spirit of the

Act does so only when it appears that the al-

legations relied upon to overturn the election

have a basis in law and there is evidence to

support them. The opportunity for protracted

«>

^.L.R.B. V. J. J. Collins, 332 F. 2<1 523, r,24 (C. A. 7); N.LR.li. v.

Joclin Mfg. Co., 314 F. 2d 027, 632 (C. A. 2).
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delay of certification of representation elec-

tions which would exist in the absence of

reasonable conditions to the allowance of a

hearing on objections is apparent. An object-

ing party who fails to satisfy such condition

has no cause for complaint when and if his

demand for a hearing is denied.

The Sixth (Circuit, in the Tennessee Packers case, supra, echoed this

language and summarized the criteria for determining what constitutes

"substantial and material issues."

In order to raise "substantial and material factual

issues," it is necessary for a party to do more than

question the interpretation and inferences placed

upon the facts by the Regional Directors. N.L.R.B.

V. National Survey Service, Inc., 361 F. 2d 199 (C.

A. 7); N.L.R.B. v. J. R. Simplot Company, 322 F.

2d 170 (C.A. 9); Macomb Pottery Company v.

N.LR.B., [376 F. 2d 450] No. 15675, decided

April 18, 1967 (C.A. 7); N.LR.B. v. J. J. Collins'

Sons, Inc., 332 F. 2d 523 (C. A. 7); N.LR.B. v.

Sun Drug Co., 359 F. 2d 408 (C. A. 3). It is

incumbent upon the party seeking a hearing to

clearly demonstrate that tactual issues exist which

can only be resolved by an evidentiarv hearing.

The exceptions must state the specific findings

that are controverted and must show what evidence

will be presented to support a contrary finding or

conclusion. N.L.R.B. v. National Survey Service,

Inc., supra; N.LR.B. v. J. R. Simplot Company,

supra; Macomb Pottery Company v. N.LR.B.,

supra. Merc disagreement with the Regional

Director's reasoning and conclusions do not raise

"substantial and material factual issues." This is

not to say that a party cannot except to the

inferences and conclusions drawn by the Ktgional

Director, but that such disagreement, in ilselC, can-

not be the basis for demanding a hearing.
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In this case, petitioner plainly failed to satisfy the pre-

requisite for a formal hearing: none of the evidence pre-

sented by the Company conflicted with the essential factual

determinations made by the Regional Director. Thus, the

Company has never come forward with any evidence to

show that the Regional Director erred in finding that the

Mendonca threat occurred on the day of the first election,

five months remote from the election here sought to be in-

validated.

Nor did the Company proffer any evidence tending

to conflict with the Regional Director's findings that Gon-

zalez was stopped at the entrance to the plant and sent

away without opportunity to engage in electioneering. To

be sure, petitioner's counsel, in opposing summary judgment,

did offer to prove that "Gonzalez talked to employees at a

time while they were waiting in line to vote" (R. 86). But

in support of that offer of proof, counsel submitted only an

affidavit by the plant manager which clearly shows the con-

trary (R. 90), and fuUy supports the Regional Director's

statement of facts. Unsupported allegations of counsel are

hardly a sufficient basis for requiring a hearing. "Rather, as

we have pointedly held, the 'objecting party must supply

the Board with specific evidence which prima facie would

warrant setting aside the election'" N.L.R.B. v. Douglas

County Electric Corp., 358 F. 2d 125, (C. A. 5). Accord:

Baumritter Corp. v. N.L.R.B., 386 F. 2d 117, (C. A. 1).

Here, then, as in Carolina Gas, supra, ".
. . the Company's

allegations . . . appear to be no more than the dilatory

maneuvers this screening device was designed to combat."

67 LRRM at 2009.
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Likewise, no evidence was ever presented tending to

conflict with the Regional Director's critical findings regard-

ing the Scroggins episode. In his Request for Review, Com-

pany counsel asserted that the union agent spoke falsely

when he warned Scroggins about a Company foreman's at-

titude (R. 86). But, again, the sole evidence proffered on

this point by the Company, Le., the Hughes affidavit, con-

tains nothing to support the lawyer's allegation. According-

ly, the Regional Director's finding that the union agent did

not misrepresent Scroggins' status was never the subject of

any evidentiary conflict warranting a hearing.

And since the Company raised no new issues or evi-

dence during the unfair labor practice proceedings, but simply

renewed the arguments already considered and rejected in

the representation case, the Board was entitled to grant the

General Counsel's motion for summary judgment. A party

has no right to relitigate in the unfair labor practice case is-

sues already litigated in the representation case. Pittsburgh

Plate Glass Co. v. N.L.R.B., 313 U.S. 146; N.LR.B. v.

Tennessee Packers, Inc., supra: N.L.R.B. v. National Survey-

Service, Inc., supra; Rockwell Mfg. Co. v. N.L.R.B., supra;

N.L.R.B. V. Clearfield Cheese Co., supra; N.L.R.B. v. B. H.

Iladley, Inc., 322 F. 2d 281 (C. A. 9).

Petitioner's criticism of the Board's summary judg-

ment procedure requires no separate answer since, as peti-

tioner concedes (Br. 19), the procedure is entirely appro-

priate in the absence of unresolved material factual issues.

To the extent that petitioner buttresses his critique by refer-

ence to the general reluctance; of federal district courts to
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grant summary judgment, however, it seems appropriate to

point out what petitioner has overlooked. First, district

courts, unlike the Board, have no investigative machinery

designed to provide an impartial independent factual inquiry.

While the Board does not permit the administrative investiga-

tion to perform the function of resolving evidentiary con-

flicts, the investigation can, nonetheless, provide disclosure

of matters which obviate the need for a hearing. For

example, the investigation may provide an undisputed con-

text or background which wholly dilutes any coercive effect

inferable from the disputed incident itself. Second, much of

the district court reluctance to grant summary judgment

except in the clearest cases derives from the overriding nature

of the constitutional right to a jury trial. No such over-

riding policy applies here. Indeed, Congress' expressed

interest has been to eliminate time-consuming formal pro-

ceedings in these proceedings except where the complaining

party clearly shows the need for a hearing. N.L.R.B. v. Air

Control Products of St. Petersburg, Inc., 335 F. 2d 245, 249

(C.A. 5); N.L.R.B. V. Sun Drug Co., 359 F. 2d 408, 414

(C.A. 3); see also, J. R. Simplot, supra; and Joclin Mfg. Co.,

supra.

Perhaps the most obvious distinction between district

court summary judgment and the Board's procedure is the

allocation of the burden of proof. Under the Federal Rules

(Rule 56), the burden is on the party moving for summary

judgment to demonstrate that "there are no genuine issues

of material fact." Cf, Wright, Federal Courts at 388. Be-

fore the Board, however, the burden rests on the party
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seeking a hearing to show that there are "substantial and

material factual issues" which can only be resolved by a

hearing. N.L.R.B. v. J. R. Simplot Co., supra and cases

cited at p. 17.

In light of these important differences between the

Board and the district courts, petitioner can hardly fault the

Board for refusing to adopt all the nuances of district court

practice and philosophy.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, it is respectfully submitted

that the petition for review should be denied, and the

Board's cross-petition for enforcement should be granted.

ARNOLD ORDMAN,
General Counsel,

DOMINICK L. MANOLI,

Associate General Counsel,

MARCEL MALl-ET-PREVOST,

Assistant General Counsel,

(;ary green,

joseph a. yablonski,

Attorneys,

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD.

February 1968.
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vs.

National Labor Relations Board,

Respondent.

Reply Brief for Petitioner

I. The Error in the Overfurn of the First Election.

Petitioner does not dispute the "wide area of discretion"

accompanying the Board's power to determine representa-

tion matters. However, the fact that this discretion is broad

does not mean that it is unbounded, and it is these limits

which concern us here. Thus the discretion must not be

exercised unreasonably ; it cannot be exercised in such man-

ner as to exceed or conflict wdth the authority granted by

Congress ; nor can it be exercised in a way which infringes

upon constitutionally protected rights. As discussed in peti-

tioner's opening brief, the Board's treatment of the em-

ployer's comments is subject to attack on each of these

grounds.



A. THE BOARDS TREATMENT OF THE SPEECH WAS AN ABUSE OF DIS-

CRETION.

In its brief/ the Board persists in isolating one segment

of one speech and placing upon that segment a harsh and

limited connotation. The simple fact remains, however, that

the extracted words were part of an entire speech, and that

speech was part of a series of speeches. The meaning con-

veyed by the isolated words cannot be assessed without

consideration of the tenor and content of both the remainder

of Hughes talk and the other speeches. It is the mandate

of the law that the Board recognize the logic of this inter-

relationship. This it failed to do.

Among the cases cited in the Board's brief only one is

remotely analogous to the instant case, and that is an

unappealed decision by the Board itself. Cadillac Overall

Supply Co., 148 N.L.R.B. 1133 (1964) (Bd. Br., p. 11). How-

ever, the situation there presented was that of a company

which had become overtly benefit conscious for the first

time during an organizing campaign, simultaneously an-

nouncing an intent to grant a benefit and the necessity to

withhold it during the union activity. Such behavior readily

lends itself to the inference that the benefit was announced

at this particular time merely to afford an opportunity to

also announce the necessity that it be withheld "because of

the union organizational activities."^ In contrast, Sonoco

had a settled policy of periodically reviewing and increas-

ing benefits, and this was well known to the employees. The

1. Eeferences to the Board's brief are cited Bd. Br.

2. Whether the decision in the Cadillac Overall Supply case is

consistent with Section 8(c) and with the constitutional guarantee
of free speech is a question not pursued here. See the discussion

in I. B., infra. The question would be a close one, but the com-
pany's timing of the announcement of the proposed insurance

benefit might be taken as constituting a promise of benefit in viola-

tion of 8(c). The fact that Sonoco 's benefit policy was a long stand-

ing one precludes a similar interpretation of its remarks.
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comj)any did nothing other than call attention to this policy,

which it clearly had a right to do, and explain that circmn-

stances prevented the policy's being carried out at the

present time, an explanation which the circumstances de-

manded be made. There is nothing in this course of action

to furnish grounds for the adverse motive inferred by the

Regional Director.^

Significantly, the Board's brief sluffs over the Martin

speech without comment. In this speech, made immediately

subsequent to the one by Mr. Hughes, the company's wage

policy and the present inability to increase benefits were

explained in greater detail than in the Hughes' speech, and

this was done in terms to which no objection was, or could

have been taken. The adverse connotation which the Board

seeks to fasten upon the isolated comments cannot by any

3. The Regional Director's opinion reflects the fact, well-known
to all labor lawyers, that the company had one strike against it

because it dared to mention benefits in the first place. From this

it was an easy step for the Regional Director to isolate certain

portions of this discussion and interpret them in a restrictive

manner. Apart from the fact that the company's right to com-
ment upon its past benefit policy is well settled, and cannot form the

basis for an adverse inference, we also pointed out in our opening
brief that the company had little choice but to follow the course it

did, i.e. to not grant the usual benefits and explain why. Notwith-
standing the Board's pooh-poohing of the problem (Bd. Br. pp. 12-

13), the dilemma facing the employer in tliese cases is a very real one
as is readily evident from a study of the Board decisions rendered
since N.L.R.B. v. Exchcmgc Parts Co., 375 U.S. 405 (1964). See,

in addition to the cases discussed in petitioner's opening brief, the

discussion and case citations in Bok, Regulating NLRA Election
Tactics, 78 Harv. L. Rev. 38, 112 (1964), and Perl, Oranting of
Benefits During a Representation Election: Validity of NLRB
General Rule, 18 Lab. Law Jour. No. 11, p. 643, (November, 1967).
As a result of the muddle created by the Board's "heads I win
tails you lose" approach, an emi^loyer cannot help but predicate
his decision as to what to do about benefits in substantial part on
the very grounds which supposedly are prohibited—the presence
of a union on tlie scene—because tliat presence forces the em-
ployer to prophesize which of its overlapping approaches the Board
will choose to apply to his case.
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logic of language be said to have any viability in light of

the extensive discussion by Mr. Martin. After the two

speeches the employees could have been left with only one

impression : that the company might violate the law by

granting the usual benefits. It is arbitrary for the Board

to pretend otherwise.

B. THE BOARD'S ACTION WAS IN VIOLATION OF 8(c) AND IN EXCESS

OF ITS DELEGATED AUTHORITY.

It is enough to condemn the Board's manner of treating

the company's statements to note, as above, that this treat-

ment constituted an arbitrary abuse of discretion. However,

the Board has raised a further line of argument which can-

not be passed without comment. It contends that unless its

actions are found to constitute such an abuse of discretion,

the actions cannot be challenged because the Board is free

to set aside an election solely upon the basis of employer

comments which, while they could not form the basis for

an unfair labor practice under 8(a)(1) or 8(c), the Board

has nevertheless determined somehow interfered with the

employee's free choice.^ In short, the Board's position is

bottomed upon the assumption that at the election stage

its authority to regulate employer speech is not limited by

the provisions of 8(c),^ or by constitutional provisions of

4. Bd. Br., p. 13, n. 7. The Board refers to Mr. Hughes' "con-

duct", but it cannot by this semantic device alter the obvious fact

that the election was overturned solely upon the basis of the

content of the Hughes speech.

5. The text of 8(c) is set out in petitioner's opening brief at

p. 10, n. 7. It should be noted tliat neither the Regional Director

nor the Board has suggested that the objected to statement might

qualify as a "threat" or "promise of benefit" under that section. It

is, of course, apparent that the statements are neither. Their un-

objectionable nature is well documented in the cases cited in our

opening brief. See Bonwit Teller, Inc. v. N.L.B.B., 197 F.2d 640

(2nd Cir. 1962) and the other cases cited on pages 10-12 of peti-

tioner's opening brief.
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analogous proportions, but extends to any speech which the

Board, in its broad discretion, decides might interfere with

its "laboratory conditions." So far as we are aware this con-

tention has never received judicial sanction.®

The Board's contention can better be assessed by first

recalling the background against which section 8(c) was

enacted. The Board had adopted what Congress thought

was an overly restrictive view towards the employer's

right of speech during election campaigns, N.L.R.B. v.

Spartan Mamifacturing Company, 355 F.2d 523, 524 (7th

Cir. 1966). The cases were replete with instances where

the Board ordered the employer to cease and desist from

making certain statements, almost to the point of imposing

absolute neutrality upon the employer, and to correct this

8(c) was enacted "to recognize and define the rights of both

employers and unions to free speech as guaranteed by the

First Amendment." N.L.R.B. v. TRW-Semiconductors , Inc.,

385 F.2d 753, 755 (9th Cir. 1967). It was thought that the

best guarantee of a free and informed choice by the em-

ployees was a healthy flow of information from each of the

competing interests

:

"The guaranty of freedom of speech and assembly

to the employer and to the union goes to the heart of

6. As for the cases the Board cites in support of its proposi-

tion: One involved a threatening speech illegal even under 8(c).

N.L.R.B. V. Clearfield Cheese Co., 322 F.2d 89 (3rd Cir. 1963).

Another did not involve speech at all, but an actual grant of bene-

fits. N.L.R.B. V. Tennessee Packers, Inc., 379 F.2d 172 (6th Cir.

1967). In a third the only issue involved was a limited one as to

the jurisdiction of the federal district courts. Greenboro Hosiery
Mills, Inc. V. Johnston, F.2d , 65 LRRM 2299 (4th Cir.

1967). And in the remaining two the question before the Courts

was not whether the content of certain speeches was objectionable,

but whether the employer engaged in interfering conduct by mak-
ing (( speech (regardless of its content) a very short time before

the election. Foreman & Clark, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 215 F.2d 396 (9th

Cir. 1954) ;
N.L.R.B. v. Shirlington Supermarkets Inc., 224 F.2d

649 (4th Cir. 1955).
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the contest over whether an employee wishes to join a

union. It is the employee who is to make the choice and

a free flow of information, the good and the bad, in-

forms him as to the choices available. It is an adversary

proceeding and hardly impartial but there is a limit.

We conclude that Congress set the limit in § 8(c) ... ."

SoutJmire Company v. N.L.R.B., 383 F.2d 235, 241 (5th

Cir. 1967) ;
quoted in substantial part in N.L.R.B. v.

TRW-Semiconductors, Inc., supra at 7G0.

Though the Board would have it otherwise, it is apparent

that in the instant case it has acted contrary to both the

spirit and the letter of this section. Here it voided an elec-

tion solely upon the basis of certain employer statements

which w^ere well within the protected area of speech marked

out by 8(c). It then found the employer guilty of an unfair

labor practice because the employer refused to bargain on

the grounds that the election was not rendered invalid by

reason of the speech. In other words, though the employer's

speech was not itself declared to be an unfair labor practice,

it formed the gravamen for the finding of such a practice.

It was precisely to prevent the Board from perverting the

intent of the section by resort to such circumventions that

Congress caused its language to read that protected speech

"shall not constitute or he evidence of an unfair labor prac-

tice . . .

."

While in the instant case the Board has run itself afoul

of the express provisions of 8(c), its contention as to its

right to proscribe speech during election compaigns is open

to even broader cirticism. In enacting section 8(c) Congress

drew the boundary between that speech which is constitu-

tionally protected and hence, by definition must remain un-

fettered, and that which is unprotected and therefore sub-

ject to restraint. The enactment of the section was also an

expression of Congressional belief that the purposes of
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union elections could best be achieved by allowing full play-

to speech short of that prohibited by 8(c). Yet here the

Board contends that it nevertheless has the right to restrain

such speech by the expedient of labelling it "conduct" which

interferes with the employee's free choice, rather than an

unfair labor practice, and overturning elections in which it

appears.

Stated baldly, this is an assertion that the Board's view

as to the circumstances under which elections should be

conducted, as embodied in its definition of what constitutes

"laboratory conditions", should, in the event of conflict,

prevail over Congress' views on the same subject.'^ This is

something like the cart pulling the horse. The Board has no

authority other than that given it by Congress, nor any inde-

pendent right to make policy. It must exercise its adminis-

trative discretion in a manner consistent with the Constitu-

tion, with the boundaries expressly or impliedly defined by

the legislature, and with the policies enunciated by that

body. In section 8(c) Congress has declared the point at

which free speech begins. For the Board to restrain that

speech, under any guise or in any manner, is by definition

an infringement upon the right in violation of both express

legislative policy and the constitutional guarantee itself. See

the dissent by Justice Soper in N.L.R.B. v. SJiirlington

Supennarkets, Inc., 224 F.2d 649 (4th Cir. 1955).

»

7. The Board's test for its "laboratory conditions" is whether
the act (or, according to the Board's present contention, speech)
was "calculated to interfere with the employees' free choice". Of
course almost all speeches given by an employer are calculated to

do just that ; they are meant to criticize the union and laud the

employer's policies in an attempt to convince the employees to

vote against unionization. Yet it is on the basis of this vague, but
stringent test, bottomed primarily upon the Board's unreviewable
discretion, that the Board would rest the employer's right of free

speech.

8. This dissent, while perhaps somewhat misplaced under the
facts of that case where the content of speech was not in issue, is



It is submitted tlierefore that the Board's actions with

regard to the first election are thrice condemned: (1) be-

cause the Board construed the company's speeches in a

narrow, unreasonable and arbitrary manner; (2) because

the Board used speech protected by 8(c) as evidence of

an unfair labor practice; and (3) because, in any event, the

Board has acted in excess of its authority in restraining

commentary which Congress and the Constitution declare

should be permitted.

II. The Erroneous Treotment of the Objections to the Second

Election.

On this topic the Board spends some time explaining why

there was an absence of conflicting evidence. In support it

cites various cases, in each of whicii the facts either were

not disputed or, if they were, did not form a basis for

setting aside the election even if taken as establishing the

objecting party's contentions. We do not dispute that if this

case fell into one of these categories it would be within the

Board's authority to refuse to afford a hearing. What we

do dispute, however, is the Board's facile method of deter-

mining whether or not factual issues exist. We also dispute

the Board's shrugging aside as of no importance certain

errors of law committed by the Regional Director.

Under the helping hand of counsel for the Board, the

Regional Director's second supplemental decision achieves

a breadth it lacked in the original. For instance, we learn

that the Director refused to consider the undenied threat

precisely on point in the instant case. The point made by the dis-

sent is much the same as that made above : If certain speech has

been declared immune by constitutional and Congressional man-

date, the Board should not be able to restrain it by the semantic

expedient of calling it something other than an unfair labor practice

and resorting to its self-fashioned administrative remedy of direct-

ing a new election to prohibit it.
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made to Mr. Mendonca, because in the director's "judg-

ment" any coercive impact which the threat might otherwise

have had could be presumed to have dissipated (Bd. Br., p.

14). The fact is, as is evident from a reading of the deci-

sion, that the Eegional Director dismissed the threat out of

hand as of absolutely no legal significance. Its possible

continuing imjjact on the employee involved and the other

employees who witnessed the incident was not explored by

the investigating agent nor considered by the Director in

his decision. As the threat occurred on the day of the first

election it is within the ambit of The Singer Company^

doctrine. The fact that it occurred at the beginning of the

period which that doctrine says must be considered does

not afford any justification for the Eegional Director's

complete refusal to concern himself with it, and its possible

lingering effects. See, Weather Seal, Inc., 161 NLRB No.

105, 63 LRRM 1428 (1966), and cases cited at pages 14 and

16 of the Company's opening brief.

The company contended that this threat was reinforced

by subsequent telephone calls. In its brief the Board denies

this is so and in support of this denial recites the unilateral

"findings" of the Regional Director (Bd. Br., p. 15). It sug-

gests the matter was settled by the employee's inherently

ambiguous statement that the matter "had been cleared up

and he was no longer afraid." In so reasoning the Board

ignores the fact that these supposedly undisputed findings

necessarily contradict the employer's sworn testimony that

Mendonca had expressed a continuing fear after the tele-

phone calls had been made (R. 88).

Board counsel continue to rewrite the Regional Director's

decision in the discussion of the Scroggins incident (Bd. Br.,

pp. 16, 20). We are told that the employee's conflicting state-

9. 161 N.L.R.B. No. 87, 1967 CCH NLRB para. 20,874, 63

LRRM 1381 (1966).
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merits as to what he was told were treated by the Regional

Director as "immaterial", and the objection dismissed solely

because there was no evidence that the union agent had

"misrepresented" the foreman's attitude. However, the Re-

gional Director's opinion reflects a number of things to the

contrary (R. 45). For one, the Regional Director's opinion

recites the employee's denial of the threat without men-

tioning his earlier conflicting statement, and it is obvious

that the assumed truth of this denial contributed substanti-

ally to the Director's conclusion that the company's objec-

tion was lacking in merit. This ex parte crediting of the

evidence is sufficient in itself to invalidate the Regional

Director's decision.

Furthermore, that decision states only that the foreman

made "certain complaints" about the employee, without

specifying just what those complaints were. If the com-

plaints did in fact amount to an expression of a desire to see

the employee fired, the Regional Director would certainly in-

clude this pertinent bit of information in his opinion.

Finally, the Regional Director's phraseology was that there

was no evidence that the foreman's attitude had been "suh-

stantially misrepresented" to the employee. This is obvi-

ously something short of a finding that the foreman's

attitude was what the union agent said it was, and when

accompanied by the unrevealing assertion that "certain

complaints" had been made, it leaves the entire issue be-

clouded. The foreman may have complained of any number

of things which would not furnish sufficient justification for

a union representation that he was out to get Mr. Scroggins

fired.

In short, the last three sentences of this paragraph

of the Regional Director's opinion contain nothing but

eonclusionary statements. Not one objective fact is set forth.

I
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The factual conflict is shiffed over by an evasive shroud of

words which skirt the basic issue, and reject the employer's

objection without coming to terms with it.

As for the Gonzalez incident, it is not the hullabaloo sur-

rounding his presence on the voting scene standing merely

alone which is significant, but that presence superimposed

upon the other interfering factors. Home Town Foods, Inc.

V. N.L.R.B., 379 F.2d 241, 244 (5th Cir. 1967). In an election

decided by an extremely close vote, this incident in con-

junction with the threats would certainly have compelled

a finding that the Board's "laboratory conditions" had been

undermined. General Shoe Corporation, 77 N.L.K.B. 124,

127 (1948); Neuhoff Brothers, Packers, Inc. v. N.L.R.B.,

362 F.2d 611 (5th Cir. 1966).

In the overall context, "substantial and material" issues

were presented not only as to the factual conflicts above

outlined, but also as to the interrelationship of the various

incidents and their actual and potential effects on the

voters. Cf. Home Town Foods, supra. The Regional Di-

rector's unilateral resolution of factual conflicts, his refusal

to give certain incidents the legal significance to which they

were entitled or to come to terms with others, his failure

to consider the interrelationship and cumulative effect of

the various incidents, and his refusal to afford a hearing

where each of these factors could be explored and resolved,

all conjoin to invalidate the action taken on the objections

to the second election.

III. The Summary Finding of an Unfair Labor Practice.

In our opening brief we contended that the Board's con-

sistent refusal to grant a hearing, even though some perti-

nent facts were in dispute and others had not been afforded

their full legal significance, precluded an entry of sum-
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niary judgment at the unfair labor practice stage. While

this in itself would suffice to require reversal here, we also

outlined certain other considerations in an attempt to

demonstrate just what is involved when the Board resorts

to the summary judgment device in a case such as this one,

and why its use should be closely scrutinized by the courts.

In this connection we contrasted the courts' strict approach

to this device, on the one hand, with the situation per-

taining when the Board treats as conclusive in a later un-

fair labor practice case "determinations" made via its loose,

ex parte procedures applicable at the post election stage.

Though the Board persists in focusing upon the post

election procedures (Bd. Br., p. 21), it was not just the

post election hearing which was here foreclosed, but also

a hearing on the unfair labor practice charge. As to the

latter, the Congressional mandate embodied in Section 10

(b) is that the defendant is entitled to a full hearing on

all issues, not, as the Board would have it, that defendant

is to be afforded such a hearing only when he can dis-

charge a burden of "clearly showing a need" for it. To

the extent the summary judgment device has any appli-

cation in such administrative hearings, the courts have

treated it as subject to circumscriptions analogous to those

applying to its use by the judiciary. Kirhy v. Shaw, 358

F.2d 446 (9th Cir. 1966) ; NeuJioff Brothers, Packers, Inc.

V. N.L.R.B., 362 F.2d 611, 613-14 (5th Cir. 1966).

The Board's gross departure from these standards can-

not be justified by any of the factors it advances. The

Board points to its investigative machinery, which it gen-

erously characterizes as "Impartial", as supplying a fact

finding procedure not available to the federal district

courts. Wliile it may bo the Board has a mechanism for

investigation, it is also true that this machinery permits
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the facts to be explored and determined sub rosa, and

this hardly seems a sufficient substitute for the broad and

open access to proof, through affidavits and discovery,

which parties enjoy under the federal rules. 6 Moore, Fed-

eral Practice, sec, 56.15(5), p. 2391. Nor has Congress

expressed any desire to eliminate "time-consuming formal

proceedings." Quite to the contrary, it has explicitly pro-

vided that a party is not to be found guilty of an unfair

labor practice without being furnished all the safeguards

of a full and open hearing. For the Board to suggest other-

wise is only another variation of the oft rejected theme

that "it is more expeditious not to recognize rights."

N.L.R.B. V. Trancoa Chemical Corporation, 303 F.2d 456,

462 (1st Cir. 1962).

Finally, we are told that the courts' reluctance to grant

a summary judgment is bottomed upon a concern for the

constitutional right to jury trial. But courts faced with such

motions never express concern over whether or not a jury

has been requested in the case or, indeed, whether or not the

case is an appropriate one for a jury; nor do litigants offer

these facts for the courts' consideration. What the courts do

consistently express is their awareness that a grant of

summary judgment deprives the party of his day in court

and subjects him to a judgment without the safeguarding

procedures which accompany a trial, jury vel non. Lane

Bryant v. Maternity Lane, Ltd. of California, 173 F.2d 559,

565 (9th Cir, 1949) ; and see 6 Moore, supra, sec. 56.06, p.

2075,

If the numerous factual and legal issues surrounding

the elections had come before the Board for the first time

at the unfair labor practice proceeding, and if at this point

the Board had conducted a private investigation, resolved

the issues in an ex parte manner as did the Eegional
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Director and thereupon summarily found an unfair labor

practice, its actions would be consistent neither with the

statutory provisions nor with the requirements of due

process. We fail to see by what alchemy the Board's ac-

tions in this case are rendered lawful merely because this

same result was accomplished in three steps instead of

one. We submit they were not ; that the case should be re-

manded for a hearing wherein the issues can be fully and

fairly determined. a
CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that tlie Court should refuse

to enforce the Board's Order and either affirm the validity

of the first election or remand for the required hearing.

Respectfully submitted,

E. Judge Elderkin
William R. Ibwin

Attorneys for Petitioner

Sonoco Products Company

Donald D. Connors, Jr.

Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison

Of Coimsel

CERTIFICATE

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of this

brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that,

in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full compliance

with those rules.

E. Judge Elderkin
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NO. 2 19 4

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

LIZZIE ETTA LEMONS and
BENNIE MAURICE LEMONS,

Appellants,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

JURISDICTION AND STATEMENT
OF THE CASE

Appellants Lizzie Etta Lemons and Bennie Maurice Lemons

were indicted on July 20, 1966, by the Federal Grand Jury for the

Southern District of California, Central Division. —

'

This indictment which was in four counts, charged essentially

in Count One, that defendant Lizzie Etta Lemons, together with one

Margaret Ward, unlawfully concealed 7. 5 grams of heroin, in

violation of 21 United States Code, Section 174. Count Two charged

Ij C. T. 2; "C. T. " refers to Clerk's Transcript of proceedings.





Lizzie Etta Lemons and Margaret Ward with the unlawful sale of

that same heroin. Count Three charged appellant Lizzie Etta

Lemons with the concealment of 24 grams of heroin, in violation

of Title 21, United States Code, Section 174. And Count Four

charged appellant Bennie Maurice Lemons with the concealment of

101 grams of heroin in violation of Title 21, United States Code,

Section 174 [C. T. 2-4].

On August 22, 1966, the indictment was ordered dismissed

as to appellant Margaret Ward [C. T. 61].

Appellants Lizzie Etta Lemons and Bennie Maurice Lemons

filed a Motion to Suppress Evidence on August 15, 1966, and the

Government filed its opposition and supporting affidavits on August

15, 1966 [C. T. 14-20, 42-49].

The motion to suppress was heard and denied, and jury trial

commenced as to appellants before the Honorable Walter E. Craig,

United States District Judge, on August 22, 1966 [C. T. 68]. Further

hearings were had on the Motion to Suppress on August 23, 1966,

and the motion was again denied [C. T. 69].

On August 23, 1966, at 11:25 A. M. , the case was given to

the jury for their consideration, and the Court ordered that the

jurors be furnished with meals and lodging during the period of

their deliberation [C. T. 69]. On August 23, 1966, at 11:48 P.M.,

the jury was excused from deliberating further until 9:00 A. M. ,

August 24, 1966. Appellants moved for a mistrial, which was

denied [C. T. 69].

On August 24, 1966, the jury resumed their deliberations

2.





at 9:15 A. M. , and at 1:55 P. M. appellants again moved for a mis-

trial, which motion was again denied [C. T. 72]. At 2:05 P. M. ,

at the jury's request, the Court re-instructed the jury, after they

stated they had reached a verdict as to one of the appellants, and

the jury retired at 2:37 P. M. , to further consider the case [C. T.

72]. At 3:15 P. M. , the jury returned a verdict of guilty as to

both appellants, and as to all counts in which they were charged

[C. T. 72, 58-59].

On September 13, 1966, appellants were both sentenced to

imprisonment for a period of five years [C. T. 70-71].

Notices of appeal were filed on September 13, 1966 [C. T.

82-83).

The jurisdiction of the District Court is predicated on

Title 21, United States Code, Section 174, and Title 18, United

States Code, Sections 3231 and 3237.

This Court has jurisdiction under Section 1291 and Section

1294, Title 28 of the United States Code.

STATUTES INVOLVED

Title 21, United States Code, Section 174, provides in

pertinent part:

"Whoever fraudulently or knowingly . . .

receives, conceals, buys, sells, or in any manner

facilitates the transportation, concealment, or sale

of any such narcotic drug after being imported or

3.





brought in, knowing the same to have been imported

or brought into the United States contrary to law . . .

shall be imprisoned not less than five or more than

twenty years, and in addition, may be fined not more

than $20,000 ....

"Whenever on trial for a violation of this

section the defendant is shown to have or to have

had possession of the narcotic drug, such possession

shall be deemed sufficient evidence to authorize

conviction unless the defendant explains the posses-

sion to the satisfaction of the jury.
"

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On July 14, 1966, officers of the Los Angeles Police Depart-

ment and the State Bureau of Narcotics Enforcement, together with

one James Bircher, proceeded to 1715 and 1721 South Mira Monte

2/
Street in Ontario, California. —

The Police Officers, who arrived in two automobiles [R. T.

8], had previously searched Bircher, who was a reliable informant,

and found no narcotics on his person [C. T. 37; R. T. 10].

The informant approached the door of the dwelling house of

Margaret Ward located at 1715 South Mira Monte, and was granted

admittance [C. T. 37-38; R. T. 11].

2_l C. T. 37; R. T. 8; "R. T. " refers to Reporter's Transcript

of proceedings.
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Approximately ten minutes later, the informant left the

premises at 1715 South Mira Monte and proceeded next door to the

premises located at 1721 South Mira Monte, where he was greeted

at the door by appellant Lizzie Etta Lemons [C. T. 38; R. T. 19].

The informant handed a sum of currency to appellant Lizzie

Etta Lemons, at the screen door of the Lemons' house, and she

handed a package to the informant [C. T. 38; R. T. 21-22, 39-40,

65].

The informant then returned to the officers' car and gave

them a celluloid container of what appeared to be heroin [C, T. 38;

R. T. 33, 40-41], stating that it had been handed to him by appellant

Lizzie Etta Lemons, pursuant to a telephone call made in his

presence by Margaret Ward while the informant was in appellant

Ward's house [C. T. 38].

The officers approached and knocked at the door of appel-

lant's house. Receiving no response, they announced that they were

police officers there to make an arrest for a narcotic violation and

forced the door open [C. T. 38; R. T. 41-42].

In the back bedroom they found appellant Lizzie Etta Lem.ons

counting the $150 of pre-recorded state funds which had been handed

her by the informant [C. T. 38; R. T. 42, 88]. They arrested her

and advised her of her constitutional rights [C. T. 39; R. T. 42-43].

A search was made, at the time of the arrest, and an additional

quantity of heroin was found in a metal box under the bed [C. T. 39;

R. T. 68].

Appellant Lizzie Etta Lemons told the officers at the time

5.





that her husband, appellant Bennie Maurice Lemons, was down in

Tijuana, Mexico, but would be back later in the evening [C. T. 39;

R. T. 44].

Some of the officers waited at the residence until approxim-

ately 12:30 A. M. , when appellant Bennie Maurice Lemons arrived,

and a subsequent search of his person disclosed a quantity of heroin

inside his girdle [C. T. 39; R. T. 45-47].

ARGUMENT

THE MOTION TO SUPPRESS WAS PROPERLY
DENIED

A. Probable Cause to Arrest Appellant
Lizzie Etta Lemons Existed Where
Officers Watched Her Hand a Package
to a Reliable Informant and Subsequent
Inspection of Package Showed That it

Appeared to Contain Heroin.

B. Probable Cause to Arrest Appellant
Bennie Maurice Lemons Existed Where
Officers Found Heroin in His Bedroom
and His Wife Had Stated He Was Return-
ing From Mexico That Evening.

j

The validity of an arrest made by state officers without a

warrant is to be determined by the law of the state in which the

arrest was made. Miller v. United States (1958), 357 U. S. 301, 2

' L.Ed. 2d 1332, 78 S. Ct. 1190; United States v. Di Re (1948), 332

.S. 581, 68 S. Ct. 222, 92 L.Ed. 210. Under California law, an

6,





arrest without a warrant is justified if the arresting officer has

probable cause to believe that the person arrested has committed

a felony. People v. Coleman (1965), 235 CaL App. 2d 612, 45

Cal. Rptr. 542; California Penal Code, Section 836.

Probable cause for arrest is not limited to evidence that

would be admissible at trial on the issue of guilt; the test is

whether the facts as they appeared to the officers at the time of

the arrest were such that a reasonable man would conclude that

the arrested person should be held to answer. People v. Murphy ,

173 Cal. App. 2d 367, 377, 343 P. 2d 273 (1959).

In the case of appellant Lizzie Etta Lemons, the officers

had probable cause to arrest because they watched a reliable

informant hand her a sum of money and saw her, in return, hand

him a package which, upon inspection, appeared to contain heroin.

In the case of appellant Bennie Maurice Lemons, the officers

had probable cause to arrest in that they had found narcotics under

the bed in his home through a search incidental to the valid arrest

of his wife and, further, his wife had told the police officers that

he was returning from Mexico in a short time. The officers did

not have practicable opportunity to obtain a warrant for the arrest

of Bennie Maurice Lemons, because he was expected to return,

and did in fact return, only a short time after the arrest of his wife.

If he had been given a chance to see that the front door was broken

he might have surmised what happened and destroyed the contraband

in his possession.

7.
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II

THERE WAS NO "MISCONDUCT" WITH REGARD
TO THE JURY'S DELIBERATIONS.

The Court instructed the jury that if it wished to commun-

icate with the Court it could do so by means of a signed writing

[R. T. 154]. There is no record that any juror took advantage of

this offer to complain of any inconvenience. Nor did anyone bring

any such matter up whenever the jury was in the courtroom. In

the state of the record, appellants' assertions that the jury was

deprived of "an atnnosphere of free and unrestrained deliberations"

is nothing more than unwarranted conjecture.

Ill

APPELLANTS WERE NOT DEPRIVED OF DUE
PROCESS BY BEING ARRESTED TWICE.

Appellants were originally arrested by state officers for

state narcotics violations. Thereafter, an indictment was returned

by the Federal Grand Jury, and the appellants were arrested on

warrants issued thereupon [R. T. 110].

Even if appellants could find authority for the somewhat novel

proposition that two arrests on the same charge violate "due pro-

cess" requiring dismissal of further prosecution or reversal, such

authority would not be appropriate here, since the record discloses

8.
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that the two arrests were made for different violations, one local

and the other federal.

CONCLUSION

An examination of the entire record indicates that appellants

received a fair trial and, there being no prejudicial error, the

judgment should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

WM. MATTHEW BYRNE, JR. ,

United States Attorney,

ROBERT L. BROSIO,
Assistant U. S. Attorney,
Chief, Criminal Division,

WILLIAM J. GARGARO, JR. ,

Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee,
United States of America.
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No. 21941

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

STRUCTURAL LAMINATES, INC., a
corporation.

Appellant

V.

DOUGLAS FIR PLYWOOD ASSOCIATION,
a corporation.

Appellee.

PETITION FOR REHEARING OF APPELLANT,

STRUCTURAL LAMINATES, INC.

HONORABLE RUSSELL E. SMITH, Judge

Appellant, Structural Laminates, Inc. petitions

he Court for rehearing upon the ground that the court erred

n affirming the decree in favor of the Douglas Fir Ply\\food

ssociation.

The opinion of the court (Op 2) states that it is

nnecessary for Structural Laminates to plead or establish





that the defendant acted with a bad purpose. The court

suggests that both the existence of a conspiracy and the

reasonableness of the appellee's conduct and the resulting

restraint of trade may be established without evidence of

motive or intent. Appellant readily agrees with this deter-

mination of the court.

This decision, however, points out the inconsistency

Df the trial court's findings. The court stated:

"Absent a bad purpose, what was defendant's
anti-trust liability? It was responsible for
the comtnercial standards which did effect ad-
versely the marketing of plaintiff's product.
Plaintiff's 3-ply 1/2" was suitable for in-
clusion in the commercial standards, but 3-

ply 1/2" plyT^7ood did bear a poor reputation
in the industry in 1958. Had defendant
been vigilant, it might have concluded in 1958

,

or sooner, what it did conclude in 1962--that
the bad reputation was unjustified .

If intent and purpose are factors in the
anti-trust law, and the court believes they
are except where per se violations are in-
volved, then the mere failure of one who is
responsible for the adoption of a commercial
standard to appreciate changes which make that
standard obsolete and to take immediate and
effective action to alter it, does not amount
to a conspiracy to restrain trade." *'' '^ The
court is of the opinion that in the absence
of a bad purpose, mistakes made in the for -

mulation or maintenance of standards do not
subject the one making the mistake to anti -

i trust liability" (Opinion, record 289-290)
(emphasis added)

' It is quite clear from the trial judge's opinion

hat the Pouglas Fir Plywood Association was negligent in its

ailure to include three ply one-half inch construction with-

n the industry standards. The evidence, together with his

indings , confirm this conclusion.





Negligence consists of what? It is the failure

of an individual or group to act in a reasonably prudent

manner under all of the circumstances then and there existing.

It is thus clear that the conduct rf the defendant was un-

reasonable vis-a-vis Structural Laminates.

j
The trial court's opinion and the decision of this

20urt suggest that the conduct and restraint were reasonable,

rhis finding and conclusion cannot be squared with the estab-

lished fact of appellee's negligence.

The basic question raised is whether negligence by

i trade association in formulating standards which drastically
I

limit the marketability of a product gives rise to an anti-

irust violation. Only in the event that the court finds that

iuch negligence does not give rise to an anti- trust violation,

.an the various findings of the trial court be made consistent.

CONCLUSION

The judgment in favor of Appellee, Douglas Fir

lywood Association should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

MAUTZ, SOUTHER, SPAULDING,
KINSEY Sc WILLIAMSON

By: Lee Johnson and

]

Thomas M. Triplett
Attorneys for Appellant,
Structural laminates, Inc.
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No. 21942

DOROTHY SHINDER,

Petitioner

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,

Respondent

ON PETITION FOR REVIEW OF THE DECISION OF THE
TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT

' OPINION BELOW

The memorandum findings of fact and opinion of the Tax Court

(Doc, No. 12) are not officially reported.

JURISDICTION

This petition for review (Doc. No. 14) involves a deficiency in

federal income tax for the taxable year 1963 in the amount of $62.88,
i

Sn October 13, 1965, the Commissioner of Internal Revenue mailed

:o the taxpayer a notice of deficiency, asserting a deficiency in

.ncome tax in the amount of $62.88. (Doc. No. 2, Ex. A.) Within

kinety days thereafter, on December 13, 1965, the taxpayer filed

1 petition with the Tax Court for a redetermination of this
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deficiency, under the provisions of Section 6213 of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1954. (Doc. No. 2.) The decision of the Tax

Court was entered April 7, 1967. (Doc. No. 13.) The case Is

brought to this Court by a petition for review filed April 25, 196/

(Docs. No. 1, 14), within the three-month period prescribed In

Section 7483 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. Jurisdiction U

conferred on this Court by Section 7482 of that Code.

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. Whether the Tax Court erred in its determination that

taxpayer was not entitled to file her 1963 Federal Income tax

return as a head of a household.

2. Whether the Tax Court erred in its determination that

expenditures deducted by taxpayer were personal in nature, and

were therefore not deductible.

STATUTES INVOLVED

Internal Revenue Code of 1954:

SEC. 1. TAX IMPOSED.

* * *

(b) Rates of Tax on Heads of Households.—

* * *

(2) Definition of head of household.—For the

purposes of this subtitle, an individual shall be
considered a head of a household if, and only if,

such individual is not married at the close of his

taxable year, is not a surviving spouse (as defined
in section 2 (b)), and either

—

(A) maintains as his home a household which

constitutes for such taxable year the principal
place of abode, as a member of such household, of--
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(i) a son, stepson, daughter, or step-
daughter of the taxpayers, or a descendant of
a son or daughter of the taxpayers, but if
such son, stepson, daughter, stepdaughter, or
descendant Is married at the close of the
taxpayer's taxable year, only if the taxpayer
is entitled to a deduction for the taxable
year for such person under section 151, or

(ii) any other person who is a dependent
of the taxpayer, if the taxpayer is entitled
to a deduction for the taxable year for such
person under section 151, or

(B) maintains a household which constitutes for

such taxable year the principal place of abode of the
father or mother of the taxpayer, if the taxpayer is

entitled to a deduction for the taxable year for such
father or mother under section 151.

For purposes of this paragraph and of section 2 (b) (1) (B),

an individual shall be considered as maintaining a household
only if over half of the cost of maintaining the household
during the taxable year is furnished by such individual.

(26 U.S.C. 1964 ed.. Sec. 1.)

SEC. 262. PERSONAL, LIVING, AND FAMILY EXPENSES.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this chapter,

no deduction shall be allowed for personal, living, or family

expenses.

(26 U.S.C. 1964 ed.. Sec. 262.)



STATEMENT

The facts, some of which were stipulated (Doc. No. 10) as

found by the Tax Court, are substantially as follows (Doc. No. 12):

The Commissioner determined a deficiency In taxpayer's income

tax for the taxable year 1963 in the amount of $62.88. Taxpayer

claims an overpayment in tax. Taxpayer is a single woman residing

in San Francisco, California. Her individual income tax return for

the taxable year 1963, together with four amended returns, was

filed with the District Director at San Francisco, California.

During 1963, taxpayer resided alone in a rented apartment in

San Francisco. She had no one dependent on her for support, nor di

she expend any amount for the support of any other person.

During 1963, taxpayer spent $225 in painting her apartment,

$25 for shelving therein, $70 for expenses of moving from one

apartment to another in San Francisco, and $1,020 for rent of her

apartments. Her respective landlords paid real estate taxes upon

the buildings in which her apartments were located. Taxpayer claim

deductions for all of these expenditures either in her original or

in her amended returns. The Commissioner disallowed each of these

expenditures. The Tax Court upheld the Commissioner's determinatio

Taxpayer now petitions for review by this Court.
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Taxpayer's petition for review in this case has absolutely no

merit. It involves, in part, nothing more than an attempt by the

taxpayer to lodge a protest on behalf of single persons who live

alone, and is therefore an appeal which should properly be made to

Congress, and not to this Court.

Taxpayer filed her 1963 federal income tax return as head of

a household. The facts, as testified to by the taxpayer, as

istipulated, and as found by the Tax Court, clearly show that the

[taxpayer meets none of the requirements set forth by the statute

Ifor filing a return as head of a household. The Tax Court correctly

found that the taxpayer was not entitled to file her return as head

of a household.

Taxpayer also claimed deductions on her 1963 federal income

tax return for expenses incurred in painting her apartment, expenses

for shelving therein, moving expenses, and rent, based on her

Icontention that she is properly to be considered as head of a
!

jhousehold. It is well established that these are personal living

expenses for which no deduction is allowed, whether or not taxpayer

is head of a household. Taxpayer also claimed a deduction for taxes

paid upon the buildings wherein her apartments were located. This

claim is entirely without merit since the taxpayer neither paid such

taxes nor was under an obligation to pay such taxes, her claim

jresting entirely upon her assertion that since part of the rent

which she paid was used by the owners to pay real estate taxes, she

should be able to deduct such taxes.



- 6 -

The Tax Court's decision is amply supported by the record

and should be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

I

THE TAX COURT DID NOT ERR IN ITS DETERMINATION
THAT TAXPAYER WAS NOT ENTITLED TO FILE HER
1963 FEDERAL INCOME TAX RETURN AS A HEAD OF A
HOUSEHOLD

Section 1 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, supra , provide

the tax rates for persons filing their federal income tax returns

as heads of households. A head of a household is defined, under

Section 1, as an individual who is not married at the close of his

taxable year, is not a surviving spouse, and either maintains as

his home a household which constitutes the principal place of abode

of a son, stepson, daughter or stepdaughter, or a descendent thereo

or any person who is a dependent of the taxpayer, or maintains a

household which constitutes the principal place of abode of the

taxpayer's father or mother.

Taxpayer, in the instant case, meets none of the requirements

set forth under Section 1 for filing a return as head of a househol

with the exception of the one requiring that she not be married at I*

close of her taxable year. Yet, for the taxable year 1963, she

filed her income tax return as a head of a household. Taxpayer doe

not allege, nor does the record show, that she maintains a home whl'

constitutes the principal place of abode for any of the persons

listed under Section 1(b)(2) of the Code during the taxable year

involved herein. The record shows, and the taxpayer testified, th£
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ihe lives alone in an apartment. She testified that no one who

|.8 dependent upon her lives with her. (Doc. No. 11, p. 22.)

indeed, there is no evidence that taxpayer has any dependents.

!axpayer obviously does not come within the requirements for

Iv'lling as a head of a household, nor does she make any attempt to

ihow that she meets such requirements. Her brief (p. 12) and her

j|estimony indicate that she filed her return as a head of household
1/

n protest (Doc. No, 11, pp. 12-13):

Miss Shlnder: The next issue is what brought me
to file as head of a household in protest.

We like to think that there is protection for the
people from the laws that exist

—

J Taxpayer's pleadings and brief suggest Constitutional issues
hich have no merit. (Docs. No. 2 and 5; Br. 18, 32, 41-43.)
he contends that to deprive her of the status of head of a house-
old under Section 1(b)(2) of the Code would amount to a denial
o her of equal protection of the laws under Amendment XIV of the
Constitution, and that to deprive her of this status would be
iscriminatory against all persons in like circumstances. The
ower to tax necessarily involves the power to classify for purposes
,f taxation, and where there are differences between the subjects
|hat are taxed. Congress does not transcend the limits of its

axing power by taxing them differently. Brushaber v. Union Pac.

., R. Co. . 240 U.S. 1; McCray v. United States . 195 U.S. 27;

arclay & Co. v. Edwards, 267 U.S. 442. Neither the Fifth nor
he Fourteenth Amendment, if operative, forbids reasonable
lassification. Beers v. Glynn . 211 U.S. 477; Heiner v. Donnan ,

85 U.S. 312. Taxpayer also claims that her rights under Article I

nd Amendments IV, V, XIII, XIV, XV, and XVI of the United States

onstitution have been violated (Br. 32), although we are at a

OSS as to who she is alleging violated these rights.
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Miss Shlnder: But because I was renting

and I was in ray household, this all worked
together and the government would not recognize
the fact that because I lived alone, because I

paid my own rent and because I had all these

expenses, even though the law was written
determining what a head of household was, every
other individual received some kind of a benefit,

except those who were single and lived alone.

The Tax Court's finding that taxpayer was not entitled to t

status of head of a household is amply supported by the record, :

1

not clearly erroneous, and therefore should be sustained.

Commissioner v. Duberstein, 363 U.S. 278.

II

THE TAX COURT DID NOT ERR IN ITS

DETERMINATION THAT EXPENDITURES
DEDUCTED BY TAXPAYER WERE PERSONAL
IN NATURE, AND WERE THEREFORE NOT
DEDUCTIBLE

Taxpayer claimed deductions on her 1963 original and amende

income tax returns of $225 for expenses incurred in painting hei.

apartment, $25 for shelving therein, $70 for expenses of moving

from one apartment to another in San Francisco, and $1,020 for ijitl

of her apartments. (Doc. No. 12; Br. 3, 31.) Taxpayer also coiJM

that she is entitled to a deduction for taxes paid upon the bui|H

wherein her apartments were located. (Br. 3, 31.) The Commiss »«!

disallowed all of taxpayer's claimed deductions.

2/ On brief (pp. 3, 31), taxpayer alleges that she is also entli**)

to an allowable deduction of $1,000 for damages which she claim i

she sustained because she was excluded from redevelopment and x^\

subsidy plans, and suffered a loss of her home through unfair m
practices. We know of no provision under the Code which would

"

taxpayer such a deduction, nor does taxpayer point us to any
provision allowing such a deduction.
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,|
Taxpayer testified at the Tax Court proceeding that the

leductions which she claims for painting her apartment, for

»helving, for moving expenses, and rent are based on the fact that

ihe should properly be considered as head of a household for tax

Purposes. (Doc. No. 11, pp. 22-24.) Yet, on brief (p. 21), she

I'llleges that she was badgered into making this claim, and that

\
hat she intended was to point out that her "rented apartment's

idditional expenses were separate and apart from the issue of Head
3/

f Household and that they were an additional inlustice .'" The Tax

lourt correctly found that these expenses were not deductible in

ny event, whether or not taxpayer was allowed to file as head of a

ousehold. The court stated (Doc. No. 12, p. 4):

We are at a loss to understand how such expenses
would be deductible even though petitioner were
held to be the head of a household.

e expenses of painting, shelving, moving, and rent which taxpayer

eeks to deduct fall squarely within Section 262 of the Internal

evenue Code of 1954, supra , as non-deductible personal expenses.

/ Taxpayer also claims (Br. 20-21) that she amended her petition
Doc. No. 5) to put into issue the deductibility of $1,020 for rent,
876.24 for withheld federal income tax, $1,000 redevelopment
ncluding rent supplement, and $68 survivors benefit, and suggests
hat the Tax Court failed to take these claimed deductions into
onsideration. These claimed deductions were dealt with in the
estimony before the Tax Court, and on cross-examination it was
xplained that the $1,000 in redevelopment referred to the urban
enewal program of federal, state, and local Government (Doc. No. 11,

!p. 31-32); the $68 in survivor benefits referred to payment to the
tate of California's survivor's benefit insurance for state employees
Doc. No. 11, p. 32). The $876.24 is the amount of federal income
ax withheld from taxpayer's income during 1963. (Doc. No. 11,

p. 27-28.)
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Section 262 of the Code expressly disallows the deduction or

personal, living, or family expenses. Deductions are a matter of

legislative grace, and in order for taxpayer to receive the claimed

deductions, she must be able to point to a specific provision of

the Code and show that she comes within that provision. White v.

United States . 305 U.S. 281; Deputy v. du Pont . 308 U.S. 488;

Interstate Transit Lines v. Commissioner , 319 U.S. 590. Taxpayer

has made no attempt to show that she is entitled to the claimed

deductions under any provision of the Code, other than that she

should be allowed to file a return as head of a household. Taxpayen

has not met her burden of proving that these deductions are anything

other than non-deductible personal expenses.

Taxpayer also claims that she is entitled to a deduction for

taxes paid upon the property where her apartments were located.
j

I

(Br. 3, 31.) She paid no such taxes, but alleges that she should bei

I

able to deduct that portion of the rentals paid by her which was

used by the landlords to pay the real estate taxes. This claim is

entirely without merit. The obligation to pay real estate tax upon

the properties in which taxpayer's apartments were located rested oi

the owners of those properties and not on the taxpayer. Taxpayer {l

did not pay the taxes personally and, even assuming that she had pa

such taxes, since the obligation to pay such taxes was not hers,

they would not be deductible by taxpayer. Kissel v. Commissioner ,

15 B.T.A. 1270. Her payment of rent was purely a non-deductible

personal expense.

The Tax Court's finding on this issue is a factual one,

supported by the record, and should be affirmed. M
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the decision of the Tax Court

8 correct, and should be affirmed.
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No. 21,943

HERMAN MOHLAND, PETITIONER

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD, RESPONDENT

ON PETITION TO REVIEW AND SET ASIDE AN ORDER
OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

BRIEF FOR THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

JURISDICTION

This case is before the Court upon the petition of Herman

)hland (herein called "petitioner") to review and set aside an order

the National Labor Relations Board (R. 37-38) issued on March 31,

[67, dismissing an unfair labor practice complaint against Hoerner-

[idorf Paper Products Co. (herein called "the Company"). Petitioner

s the charging party before the Board. The Board's decision and order,

sued pursuant to Section 10(c) of the National Labor Relations Act,

2/

amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29 U.S.C, Sec. 151, et seq.),

e reported at 163 NLRB No. 105. This Court has jurisdiction under

References designated "R." are to Volume I of the record as repro-

duced pursuant to Rule 10 of this Court. References designated

"Tr." are to the reporter's transcript of testimony as reproduced

in Volume II of the record. References designated "GCX" are to

the General Counsel's exhibits. Those designated "EX" are to the

exhibits of the employer (Hoerner-Waldorf Paper Products Co.),

respondent before the Board. Whenever in a series of references

a semicolon appears, those preceding the semicolon are to the

Board's findings; those following are to the supporting evidence.

The pertinent provisions of the Act are set forth in the Appendix.





Section 10(f) of the Act, the alleged unfair labor practices having

occurred in Missoula, Montana.

COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. THE BOARD'S FINDINGS OF FACT

The Board found that employee Herman Mohland, petitioner herein

was discharged for cause and not as a reprisal for his union activities.

Accordingly, the Board dismissed the complaint in its entirety. The

evidence upon which the Board based its findings is summarized below:

a. Background

Hoerner-Waldorf Paper Products Co., a Delaware Corporation with

its principal offices in St. Paul, Minnesota, is engaged at Missoula,

Montana, in the manuiacture of paper board (R. 15; 4, 9). At all times

material herein, the Company operated under a collective bargaining

agreement with the Union (EX 1).

Herman Mohland, a union member, was hired by the Company in

April 1962. In December 1965, he requested that he be transferred to

the maintenance department (R. 17, 20; Tr . 52, 58, 64). Mohland ^ who

as then 34 years old, was informed by Company officials before his

[transfer that the training program for progression in the maintenance

lepartment was, as a matter of practice, restricted to employees under

ige 30 (R. 20; Tr. 211-213). In fact, the Union had requested a for-

lalized training program in the autumn of 1965, and a joint union-

lanagement committee had drafted a proposal which, except in the case

if employees with prior mechanical experience, was specifically

limited to employees under age 30 (R. 20; Tr . 95, 108-109, 211-212, 216).

[7 International Brotherhood of Pulp, Sulphite and Paper Mill

! Workers, AFL-CIO.





Mohland voiced his opposition to the age requirement at union meetings

and the proposal was rejected by the union membership in December 1965.

A counterproposal, deleting the age restriction, was rejected by the

pompany on January 27, 1966 (R. 20; Tr. 59-63, 110-111, GCX 10). In

t

April 1966, Mohland filed a grievance alleging that he had been unfairly

fienied a promotion because of his age (R. 21; Tr. 66-67, 213, GCX 5).

b. The Company initiates new timecard procedures;
Mohland refuses to comply with these procedures
and is discharged

On March 11, 1966, the Company installed new time clocks.

Smployees were instructed to fill in the amount of straight time,

wertime, and total hours worked on the new daily timecards (R. 17;

:r. 192, 194). Mohland complied with the instructions until April 15,

.966, when employee Bob Reed told him that he had been underpaid by the

fompany after mistakenly recording several hours of overtime as straight

fime (R. 17; Tr . 73-74, 150-151). In discussing Reed's story with other

imployees, Mohland learned that employee Dave Palmer had been paid

traight time for working on a holiday after making a similar mistake

n his timecard (R. 18; Tr. 75).

After April 15, 1966, Mohland refused to fill in the columns

n his timecard for straight time, overtime, and total hours worked

R. 18; Tr . 74). Employees Wally Tucker and Jace Dove also refused

[o complete their timecards after mid-April (R, 21; Tr . 164-166, 169-170)

ntil mi4-May, Mohland' s timecards were completed by Maintenance Foreman

rm Carlson, who assumed that Mohland 's failure to fill in the missing

/ Both Reed and Palmer were subsequently paid for the correct amount

of overtime (R. 17, n. 4, R. 18, n. 5),
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t;ormation was inadvertnet (R. 18; Tr . 192-194). Pat Nelson, the super-

it

j;or who handled Dove's and Tucker's cards, was also unaware of any

rentional refjsal to comply with the Company's instructions (R. 21, 22"

r 266-268). During the first week in May, however, Foreman Carlson

eame aware that Mohland was repeatedly failing to complete his card and

icussed the problem with his supervisor, Herman Effenberger.

fenberger directed Carlson to send the incomplete cards into the

fice, thus delaying Mohland' s pay. At Effenberger ' s suggestion,

alson also reprimanded Mohland on May 16 (R. 18; Tr . 193, 198-199).

an Carlson attempted to explain how to fill in the timecards properly,

Dland replied that he understood the procedure, but that "since the

Doany was making it a practice to cheat the men," he did not want to

: ^pt the responsibility for mistakes on his timecard (R. 18; Tr. 76).

aLson then warned him that if his cards were not completed properly

.11^ would not be signed aiid his pay would be delayed (R. 18; Tr . 77,

?| , Mohland completed his timecard that afternoon (R. 18; Tr . 77-78).

However, on the following day, May 17, Mohland again failed

3 :omplete his timecard. That night, a resolution that all union

iDers refuse to compute their own time, drafted and vigorously

rcioted by Mohland, was unanimously passed at the union meeting (R. 18;

r.!78-79). On May 18 and 19, Mohland again refused to comply with the

i£,:i:uctions and was reported by Lead Mechanic Martin Hegel to

I

frnberger, who in turn reported Mohland' s insubordination to Prodac-

i-c Manager Robert Sallee. Sallee immediately called for a meeting

ifeeen Company and Union representatives to determine whether Mohland

4 -





had actually refused to obey the Company's posted rules and the

instructions given him by his foreman on May 16 (R. 19; Tr . 209-210

260-261).

At the meeting on the morning of May 20, 1966, which was

attended by Sallee, Carlson, Personnel Manager Robert Prouty, Union

President Wallace Lowell, and Union Standing Committee Chairman Pat

Colyer, Mohland was asked why he had not been completing his timecards

as instructed (R. 19; Tr. 82-83). When Mohland referred to the Union
5/

resolution posted on the bulletin board or. May 19, Sallee stated

that he was concerned with Mohland 's behavior on May 16 and 17, prior

to the resolution. Mohland then related the experiences of Reed and

Palmer, and repeated his assertion that he did not want to accept

responsibility for mistakes in timekeeping. (R. 19; Tr, 83-84). In

response to further questioning, he admitted that he had read and

understood the Company's instructions with respect to the timecards.

Sallee then said, "As much as I regret to do this, I have no other

choice than to discharge you immediately, exercising our right as

6/

^

guaranteed in the contract for disobedience." (R. 19; Tr. 84).

V An estimated 907o of the men complied with the resolution
(R. 21; Tr. 269).

6^/ Section 28 of the contract between the Company and the Union
specifies disobedience and refusal to comply with posted rules
as causes for immediate discharge (EX 1).
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Later that day, Sallee and Union President Lowell agreed to

resolve the timecard dispute through the grievance procedure and the

Union resolution was rescinded (R. 19-20; Tr . 246, EX 16), At a labor-

management meeting one week later, the Company agreed that thereafter

only the total hoars spent on each job would be recorded by the employees

(R. 20; Tr. 242-244).

On May 24, 1966, Mohland filed charges with the Board alleging

that his discharge had violated Section 8(a)(3) and (1) of the Act and

that the Company's refusal to supply the Union with certain information

had violated Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act (R. 16; 3). Shortly

before June 6, he filed a grievance relating to his discharge (R. 16;

EX 6). It was processed through the first three steps specified by the

contract; then, after agreeing to bypass the fourth step, the Company

and the Union agreed to proceed to arbitration (R. 16; Tr. 20-24, 49-50).

The Company moved that Board proceedings, pursuant to the Complaint

which had been issued on July 18, 1966, be deferred pending completion

of arbitration. On September 27, 1966, the motion was denied (R. 16;

4-6, 11-13, 14), and arbitration proceedings have not been held (R. 17).

II. THE board's CONCLUSIONS AND ORDER

Upon the foregoing facts, the Board found that Mohland was

discharged for cause and not because of his protected union activities.

Accordingly, the Board adopted the Trial Examiner's recommendation that

7/

the complaint be dismissed in its entirety.

Ij The Board further found that the Company had violated Section 8(a) (5^

and (1) of the Act by refusing to furnish the Union with information

necessary for administration of the contract and for future negotia-

tions, but concluded, in view of the fact that the information had

been given to the Union before the hearing, that the purposes of the

Act would not be effectuated by the issuance of a remedial order.

Review is not being sought of this portion of the order.

6 -





ARGUMENT

SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE ON THE RECORD AS A WHOLE
SUPPORTS THE BOARD'S FINDING THAT EMPLOYEE
HERMAN MOHLAND WAS DISCHARGED FOR CAUSE AND
NOT BECAUSE OF HIS UNION ACTIVITIES.

As shown in the Counterstatement , the Company's instructions

for completing its new time-cards were posted and explained to the employees

on March 11, 1966. The Union voiced no immediate objection to the new

system, which made the employees responsible for properly recording their

Dwr. straight time, overtime, and total hours worked. After mid-April

1966, however, petitioner, admittedly acting as ai. "individual" (Tr. 106),

refused to comply with the Company's rules. He did not relay his com-

plaint to the Company's management, nor did he inform his union steward

if his actions or attempt to make use of the grievance procedures

available for the resolution of such disputes. In fact, he continued

lis defiance of managerial authority even after the Union discussed

:he problem with company officials at a labor-management meeting on

lay 3, 1966, and agreed that, because of the Company's limited clerical

staff, the employees should bear the responsibility for properly

recording their own time (Tr. 135-136). Finally, he disregarded the

specific warning communicated to him by Foreman Carlson on May 16, 1966.

" It is settled law that such insubordinate conduct, amounting

:o a refusal to perform assigned tasks during working time, falls outside

:he protection of Section 7 of the Act and constitutes adequate cause

:or discharge. See, e.g., Machaby v. N.L.R.B . , 377 F. 2d 59 (C.A. 1);

l.L.R^B . V. Cameo, Inc., 369 F. 2d 125, 128-129 (C.A. 5); N.L.R.B. v.
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Louisiana Mfg. Co., 374 F. 2d 696, 705-706 (C.A. 8); N.L.R.B. v. Ace

Comb Co , 342 F. 2d 841, 847-848 (C.A. 8); N.L.R.B . v. Red Top Cab &

Baggage Co .
,

F. 2d , 66 LRRM 2311, 2317-2318 (C.A. 5,

No. 21,316, decided October 6, 1967). Moreover, Mohland's conduct

between May 3 and May 17 was at odds with the position taken by his

bargaining agent. Courts have recognized that the use of disruptive

tactics by individual union members or dissident groups may interfere

with, rather than promote, the protected right to bargain collectively.

N.L.R.B . V. Sunset Minerals, Inc . , 211 F. 2d 224, 226 (C.A. 9);

N.L.R.B . V. R. C. Can Co . , 328 F. 2d 974, 978-979 (C.A. 5); N.L.R.B .

V. Sunbeam Lighting Co ., 318 F. 2d 661, 662-663 (C.A. 7); Plasti-Line
,

Inc . V. N.L.R.B . , 278 F. 2d 482, 486 (C.A. 6). The fact that the

Union later reversed its position and adopted Mohland's tactics, however,

does not, as the Board noted, justify his earlier defiance of both posted

rules and the direct verbal instructions of his foreman.

Even assuming, arguendo , that Mohland's termination was

attributable in part to his continued refusal to complete his timecard

after the resolution, the Board's decision was proper. It has been

established that ".
. . the protective mantle of Section 7 is tempered

by the employer's right to exact a day's work for a day's pay and to

maintain discipline, and does not reach activities which inherently

carry with them a tendency toward, or likelihood of, disturbing efficient

3/ Production Manager James Bailee testified that Mohland's discharge

had been predicated on his disobedience on May 16 and 17, before

the Union resolution (Tr. 230).





operation of the employer's business." Caterpillar Tractor Co . v.

N.L.R.B. , 230 F. 2d 357, 358 (C.A. 7). Accord: Republic Aviation

Corp . V. N.L.R.B. , 324 U.S. 793, 797-798. In the instant case, the

contract provisions for processing grievances concerning the terms

and conditions of employment were unquestionably adequate. The

employees, however, elected to take matters into their own hands by

remaining at work and accepting pay, but, without resorting to the

grievance procedure, refusing to comply with the disputed rule. While

Section 7 of the Act affords protection to a wide variety of concerted

activities for the purpose of effecting changes in working conditions,
10/

including, in certain circumstances, the right to strike, not all

concerted activities are protected. U. A. W. v. Wisconsin

Employment Relations Board , 336 U.S. 245, 260-261; N.L.R.B . v. Blades

Mfg. Corp ., 344 F. 2d 998, 1004-1006 (C.A. 8), and cases cited therein.

See also, N.L.R.B . v. Insurance Agents International Union , 361 U.S. 477,

492-494. The Act does not guarantee to employees the right to "insist

on remaining at work on their own terms and conditions." N.L.R.

B

. v.

Kohler Co . , 220 F. 2d 3, 11 (C.A. 7). See also Machaby v. N.L.R.B .

,

377 F. 2d 59 (C.A. 1). They must remain "on the job subject to the

authority and control of the employer, or off the job as a striker,

in support of some grievance." C> C Conn Ltd. v. N.L.R.B . , 108 F. 2d

9 / As shown, supra
, p. 6 , the Company and the Union later

resolved the dispute through the grievance procedure.
10 / It should be noted that in this case the Union was bound by

a contract provision prohibiting any "interruption of work"
during the term of the agreement (EX 1, Sec. 5). The Board

did not decide whether or not the Union's resolution in this

case violated that clause (R. 22).





590, 397 (C.A. 7). Accord: N.L.R.B . v. J. I. Case Co. . etc. , 198 F. 2d 919,

122 (C.A. 8), cert, denied, 345 U.S. 917; Home Beneficial Life Ins. Co. v.
n/ ^

I.L.R.B . , 159 F. 2d 280, 286 (C.A. 4). In the instant case, we submit,

:he form of protest initiated by petitioner and later adopted by the Union

I

'as clearly unreasonable in light of the ends sought to be achieved and

he alternative methods available. Cf. Dobbs Houses, Inc . v. N.L.R.B .

,

25 F. 2d 531, 538-539 (C.A. 5). Accordingly, Mohland's continuing de-

iance of instructions left him vulnerable to lawful discharge.

The only question remaining, then, is whether substantial

vidence on the record as a whole supports the Board's finding that

111
etitioner was discharged because of his insubordination. He contends

hat he was discharged because of his vigorous opposition to the proposed

raining program, his filing of a grievance concerning the Company's

ailure to promote him, and his actions in drafting and promoting the

nion timecard resolution. It is settled, however, that "engaging in

jrotected concerted activitiy, such as filing grievances, does not immunize

(iployees against discharge for legitimate reasons. The burden of proof

J See also Morrison-Knudsen Co., Inc . v. N.L.R.B . , 358 F. 2d 411,
where this Court, in finding employee protests over allegedly
unsafe working conditions to be protected, noted that they were
"within permissible bounds and * * * did not, as the Company con-
tended, usurp the authority of the foreman or interfere with the

j
latter in directing the work." (358 F. 2d at 414-415).

%l Petitioner errs in contending (br. pp. 23-26) that it was vio-
lative of federal law for the Company to require the employees
to record their own time on their timecards. Under Section 11(c)

of the Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C., Sec. 211(c)), employers
are responsible for the record-keeping requirements of the Act.

However, an employer may delegate certain portions of such record-
keeping to his employees, with ultimate responsibility for such

record-keeping resting on the employer. Goldberg v. Cockrell ,

303 F. 2d 811, 812 n. 1 (C.A. 5).

10





is still upon the General Counsel to show that the protected activity

was a cause of the discharge." Hawkins v. N.L.R.B . , 358 F. 2d 281, 283-284

(C.A. 7), Accord: R. J. Lison Co. , Inc . v. N.L.R.B . , 379 F. 2d 814,

817 (C.A. 9); Lozano Enterprises v. N.L.R.B . , 357 F. 2d 500, 502-504

(C.A. 9); Shattuck Denn Mining Corp. (Iron King Branch) v. N.L.R.B .

,

362 F. 2d 466, 468-469 (C.A. 9), and cases cited therein. Accordingly,

circumstances which "merely raise a suspicion" of unlawful motivation

/Jill not support a finding of discriminatory discharge. Lozano Enter -

prises V, N.L.R.B . , supra , 357 F. 2d at 503.

Thus, the Board found that the incidents which petitioner

;ontends were the real reason for his discharge occurred over a

)eriod of 6 months preceding the Company's decision to terminate him.

although Company officials knew that Mohland's opposition had pre-

'ented ratification by the Union of the proposed training program (R. 21;

'r. 225), the record reveals no evidence of hostility toward him in the

ollowing months. It appears unlikely that any basis for hostility

xisted, in light of the uncontradicted testimony by a Company official

hat the Union itself had originally proposed the plan and that the

ompany had no particular interest in its adoption. As Production

anager Sallee testified, the Company had enjoyed "considerable lati-

ude in training maintenance personnel" under the informal training

rogram already in existence. (Tr. 216). His statement to union

epresentatives that Mohland's opposition was "their problem, not ours"

llustrates the Company's lack of concern at the failure to agree on a

rogram (Tr. 225).

- 11 -





Similarly, the record failed to establish any connection, other

han proximity in time, between petitioner's discharge and his grievance

oncerning the Company's failure to promote him. No evidence of Com-

any hostility or attempts to frustrate its processing was presented,

n fact, the Company's representative stated that he felt it involved a

Dasic issue" and agreed to refer it to a more advanced stage in the

rievance procedure (R. 21; Tr. 114-116). In these circumstances, as

lis Court observed in Lozano , supra , unlawful discrimination cannot be

iferred from "mere union activity or membership, followed by discharge"

J57 F. 2d at 502).

As to the contention that Mohland was discharged because he

cafted and vigorously promoted the union timecard resolution, the

lard's finding that the Company had no knowledge of his part in its

coption seems dispositive. Proof that an employer knew of his employee's

potected activity is, of course, essential to a finding that the

eployee was discharged for engaging in that activity. Salinas Valley

Boadcasting Corp . v. N . L . R .

B

. , 334 F. 2d 604, 613 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B . v.

S bastopol Apple Growers Union , 269 F. 2d 705, 711 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B . v.

ICiser Aluminum & Chemical Corp. , 217 F. 2d 366, 368 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B .

7 Ace Comb Co . , 342 F. 2d 841, 848 (C.A. 8). Petitioner's argument

(k. pp. 17-18) that the Company must have known of Mohland' s part in

'.h union resolution of May 17, is based only on speculation which, of

:arse, cannot substitute for proof.

Petitioner points to the fact that other employees who also

r«:used to complete their timecards were not discharged or otherwise

iiciplined. The Board found, however, that the Company's management

12





id not become aware of Tucker's and Dove's refusals until well after

Dhland's discharge. Production Manager Bailee's credited testimony

idicates that, although he had learned of the union resolution posted

1 May 19, he did not know at the time of Mohland's discharge that any

;;her employees had refused to complete their timecards (R. 22; Tr. 214,

13/

^i7). The Board, we submit acted reasonably in concluding from the

EJOve testimony that Mohland's dismissal was not, as he contends, a

c.scriminatory application of company rules. See, e.g., N.L.R. B . v.

^ T. Grant Co . , 315 F. 2d 83, 84-86 (C.A. 9). The fact that Mohland

i(.s given an explicit warning by his foreman and afforded an opportunity

t abandon his insubordinate tactics further refutes the contention that

te Company was looking for an excuse to discharge him.

Finally, petitioner asserts (br. p. 32) that the Company's

ision to discharge him, rather than impose some less severe dis-

cplinary measure, evidences its unlawful motivation. This argument

i without merit. It is settled law that when conduct warranting

dsciplinary action has been established, the extent or severity of

tlat action is normally within the discretion of the employer, not

tli Board. N.L.R.

B

. v. Ace Comb. Co . , supra, 342 F. 2d at 847;

M ..R.B . V. Ogle Protection Service, Inc ., 375 F. 2d 497, 505 (C.A. 6).

Sif also, N.L.R. B . v. Sebastopol Apple Growers Union , supra , 269 F. 2d

l~ It is settled that credibility resolutions are matters for deter-

mination by the trier of fact which, if reasonable, will not be

disturbed upon review. R. J. Lison Co . v. N.L.R.B . , 379 F. 2d

814, 817 (C.A. 9); N.L.R.B . v. Local 776 lATSE (Film Editors) ,

303 F. 2d 513, 518 (C.A. 9), cert, denied, 371 U.S. 826.
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,% 712-713, and cases cited therein. Although disciplinary action which

s wholly disproportionate to the employee's offense may be a factor which

he Board may take into account, together with other circumstances, in

scertaining the employer's motivation, the record in the instant case

iewed as a whole, fails to establish that the Company seized upon peti-

ioner's insubordination as a pretext to get rid of him because of his

articipation in any protected activity.

In sum, the record provides ample basis for the Board's

inding that petitioner was discharged, not because of his protected

ctivities, but because of his admitted insubordination. The question

s one of "actual motive, a state of mind" ( Shattuck Denn Mining Corp .

• N.L.R.

B

. , supra , 362 F. 2d at 470), and this Court's function upon

eview is a limited one. "When the record evidence concerning an

mployer's motivation in discharging an employee will reasonably

ermit of two fairly conflicting views, a reviewing court will not

isplace the choice of the Board." Hawkins v. N.L.R.

B

. , 358 F. 2d 281,

24/
83 (C.A. 7). In the above circumstances, the Board's inference

las, at the least, reasonable.

V Accord: N.L.R.B . v. Walton Mfg. Co . , 369 U.S. 404, 405;
^

R. J. Lison Co. v. N.L.R.B. , 379 F. 2d 814, 817 (C.A. 9).
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, it is respectfully submitted that

the petition to review and set aside the Board's order should be denied,

ARNOLD ORDMAN,
General Counsel ,

DOMINICK L. MANOLI,
Associate General Counsel ,

MARCEL MALLET- PREVOST,
Assistant General Counsel

,

WARREN M. DAVISON,
WILLIAM H. CARDER,

Attorneys
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National Labor Relations Board .
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APPENDIX A

The relevant provisions of the National Labor Relations

:t, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29 U.S.C., Sees. 151 et seg.)

re as follows:

RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES

Sec. 7. Employees shall have the right to self-organiza-

Lon, to form, join, or assist labor organizations, to bargain collec-

Lvely through representatives of their own choosing, and to engage in

ther concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or

;her mutual aid or protection, and shall also have the right to refrain

rom any or all of such activities except to the extent that such right

lay be affected by an agreement requiring membership in a labor

ifganization as a condition of emplojmient as authorized in section

(a)(3).

UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES

Sec. 8(a). It shall be an unfair labor practice for

.1 employer--

(1) to interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees in

the exercise of the rights guaranteed in section 7;

(3) by discrimination in regard to hire or tenure of

employment or any term or condition of employment

to encourage or discourage membership in any labor

organization;





APPENDIX B

INDEX TO REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT

Board Case No. 19-CA-3409

General Counsel's Exhibits

No. Identified

1(a) through l(j) 4

2 53

3 55

4 57

5 67

6 71

7 80

8 85

86

110

131

181

204

Respondent's Exhibits

No . Identified Offered Received in Evidence

.1 19 20 20

2 19 20 20

3 22 23 23

4 22 23 23

5 24 25 25

6 26 28 28

Offered Received in Evidence

4 4

54 54

56 56

58 58

69 69

73 73

80 80

86 86

87 88

118 118

132 132

181 (Rejected)

205 205
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PvT. Felix CHA^^z, Jr., 1

Appellant,
vs.

Major General R. G. Fergurson, U.S.

Army, Commanding- General, Fort

Ord, California,

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

I

THE PLEADINGS AND FACTS AS TO JURISDICTION

Plaiiitiffc* below, and Appellant here, brought this

action in the District Court agauist Defendant, Ap-

pellee here.

The complaint for Declaratory Judgment and In-

jimction alleged that Appellant became a conscien-

tious objector after he became a member of the

Armed Forces. When he became a believer in the

teachings of the Jehovah's Witnesses, he conscien-

tiously objected to war in any fomi and he so in-

formed his Commanding Officer. Because of his



religious training and beliefs, he was imable to par-

ticipate in any military training; in preparation for

war; or to salute an officer. Nevertheless, he was

given such an order and when he refused, he was •

court-martialed and sentenced to hard la1)or for a :

period of six months, which he spent at the post>

stockade.

After being released from the stockade for nine*

days, he was given the same order as before as to*

training and saluting, which he, for the same reason i

as before, was unable to comply with and he was

court-martialed the second time. He was again found <

guilty and sentenced to six months at hard labor, r

spending that period at the post stockade.

In April, Appellant filed with Appellee a request^'

for administrative discharge on prescribed military'

form DA 1049. He requested the discharge in accord4

ance with UP AR 635-20 as a conscientious objector.
i'

Appellant qualified under above regulation for ad-i

ministrative separation from service. However, thei

Appellee, for no legal reason nor justification, denied

Appellant's application for discharge.
'

Appellant was also ordered by Appellee to appear

before a Clemency Board before which he stated that;

he cannot, because of his religious training and belief,

comply with any order that is to be given to him to

prepare for war. Appellant's Commanding Officer in-

formed him that he will attempt to obtain a discharge

as unsuitable for military service imder AR 212. How-

ever, Appellee refused to grant such discharge con-

trary to the provisions of said regulation.



Thereafter, the Commanding Officer gave Appellant

an order which he could not conscientiously carry out

and further ordered him to be tried l^efore a general

court-martial, charging him with Adolation of Ai-ticle

90 of the Uniform Code of Military Justice.

The complaint alleged that Appellee's refusal to

obey the orders caused him to be tried twice before

a coui't-mai'tial and is threatened with a third court-

martial were orders which were and are illegal, un-

lawful and beyond the scope of Appellee's authority.

It is illegal liecause the Appellee failed to comply

with AR 635-20, which requires Appellant's adminis-

trative discharge. It is further illegal because of Title

50 use Sec 456 (j) under which Appellant qualifies

for exemption to military service. Appellant also

claimed that Appellee was informed of his inability to

participate in preparation for war, nevertheless,

caused him to be court-martialed twice and threatened

with a third one; thus depriving him of due process

of law.

The complaint alleges that Appellee's illegal and

miconstitutional acts cause Appellant to suffer irrepa-

rable injury which cannot be monetarily compensated

for and Appellee threatens him with further unlawful

and unconstitutional acts unless restrained by the

Coui't. Appellant claimed that he is entitled to a

Declaratory Judgment to the effect that Appellee's

past and threatened acts are illegal and void and

further that Appellant is entitled to separation from

military service in accordance with AR 635-20. The

complaint prayed for such relief.



The District Court issued upon the Appellee an

order to show cause why he ought not to be restrained

from compellino- Appellant to be tried before a court-

1

martial for the third time.

The Appellee filed his Return, alleging that the

complaint doesn't state a claim upon which relief

can be gTanted and that the Court has no jurisdiction

of the subject matter. The Trial Court filed its Memo-

randiun and Order, holding that the relief prayed foi'

is inappropriate and further that the Court is with-]

out jurisdiction to grant a Declaratory Judgment. 1

The Order to Show Cause was discharged and thei

action was dismissed. Appellant thereupon appealed*

to this Court.

The complaint alleged that the District Court hasi'

jurisdiction under 28 USC 1331 and 28 TTSC 2201-2.;

It is sul^mitted that this Honorable Couii: has juris-

diction mider 28 USCA Para. 1291.

II

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant was born in Los Angeles on March 23,

1944, and graduated from high school in 1961, after

which he worked in various emplojanents. At the age

of 18 he began to work for his father, driving a tnick

and he did so until he went into active military

service at Fort Ord on September 10, 1965. Neither

when joining the Reserves nor later when called to,

active duty was he a conscientious objector. He be-

tl



came such after he studied and adhered to the teach-

iings of the Jehovah's Witnesses; his conscientious

I objection matured on or about October 19, 1965, while

serving at Foi*t Ord, where the Commanding- General

was the Appellee. After accepting* the teachings of

I

the Jehovah's Witnesses, he could not carry out any

order which involved training for preparation of war

;

he could not salute an officer, and could not in any

;manner participate in military work. He so informed

|his Commanding Officer who, nevertheless, ordered

him to be court-mai'tialed when he refused to carry

out the order to salute. He was sentenced to and suf-

fered imprisonment at the stockade for six months.

Upon being released for a short time, and even though

he again informed his Commanding Officer that he

cannot in any manner participate in military work

nor carry out any order, he was given such an order

to the same effect, and when he was unable to comply,

he was again court-mai'tialed and given a fui-ther six-

months' sentence, which he spent at the post stockade.

After being released, he filed fonn 1049, requesting

his disehai'ge in accordance with AR 635-20, \vhich

provides for such discharge for conscientious objec-

tors, as Appellant, pursuant to sub-paragraph 3a:

"Consideration will be given to requests for sepa-

ration based on conscientious objection to par-

ticipate in any war, when such objection develops

subsequent to entry into military service."

However, Appellee denied his request for separation,

and did so without any legal reason and contrary to

the above regulation.



Thereafter, Appellant's Commanding Officer, whc

became convinced of his sincerity and honesty

claiming to be a conscientious objector, attempted to

ol:)tain his separation from service in accordance \vith

another Army regulation AR 212, as imsuitable, but

Appellee denied such fui'ther request.

Appellant, maintaining liis conscientious objection

to military service on religious grounds, informed hisi

Conmianding Officer of his inability to carry out any

order pertaining to the preparation for war, neA'erthe-

less, was given an order which he could not carry-

out and was ordered to be tried before a general court-1

martial.

Appellant claims that he was entitled to separation

and the denial of such separation by the Appellee wasi

illegal, miconstitutional and void, and it was in clear

defiance of Alt 635-20. It was also contrary to the

provisions of Title 50 USC 456 (j) x^ertaining to con-

scientious objectors.

The Appellant also claims that the second and the

threatened third court-martial put him into multiplej

jeopardy in that he consistently held to his position

as a religious objector to military sei^dce and prepa-

ration for war, and that the orders given to him, even

though separated in time, were identical. The orders

that brought about his first and second coui-t-martial

and the one on which the threatened third court-

martial is based were given even though it was knoA^m

that Appellant would not be able to carry them out lie-

cause of his conscientious objectio]i, and in conse-



qiience, such orders were in violation of Uniform Code

of Military Justice because the same was given

"... for the sole purpose of increasing' the pen-

alty for an offense which is expected the accused

may coimnit ..."

The orders which were given and which Appellant

was mial)le to carry out because of his conscientious

objection to participation in war in an\^ form consti-

tuted entrapment in that if he were to carry out the

orders because of the threatened pimishment, he would

prove hunself not to be a conscientious objector,

while if he remained truthful to his conscience, then

he was to be punished by the courts-martial.

Ill

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

Appellant contends that it was error for the Dis-

trict Court to deny the relief prayed and to dismiss

the cause because

:

(1) The United States District Court has

jurisdiction over the su])ject matter.

(2) Pursuant to the jurisdiction, declaratory

relief should have been granted.

(3) Appellant's right not to be put into mul-

tiple jeopardy is of constitutional dimension, the

violation of which places the issue within the

jurisdiction of the Federal Courts.



(4) Appellant's right not to be compelled toi

participate in war contrary to his religious trairn

ing and belief is similarly of constitutional di-

mension and the jurisdiction of the F(>deral

Court extends over the issues.

(5) The relief prayed for in the complaint

should have been granted by the District Court,'

and this Court ought to order that the issues be

tried on the merits.

IV '

ARGUMENT '

(1) THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT HAS JURISDICTIOK

OVER THE SUBJECT MATTER.
i

The Trial Court in its Memorandum and Order

(TR 30-34) stated that

*'No authority has been advanced by plaintiff for

the proposition that the Army lacks jurisdictior

to court-martial for disobeying orders an enlisted

soldier who has made the claim that he is a con-:

scientious objector. In the absence of such au-i

thority, this Court can only conclude that the

defendant is acting within the scope of his juris-

diction." (TR 32)

Appellant believes that his Memorandum of Point'

and Authorities (TR 10-14) did, in fact, cite casee

which were pertinent to his claim that civil court'

are authorized to review military procedures befor(

a couri martial to determine whether it acted withir

its powers. The civil courts have also the right t(



eview siicli process to determine whether or not the

iourt-martial gave consideration to the Appellant's

ights of due process.

Citing"

Palomar v. Taylor, 344 F 2d 937 (CA 10, 1965) ;

Nelson v. Peckham,, 210 F 2d 574 (CA 4, 1949)

;

Levin v. Gillespie, 121 F Supp 239 (1954) ; and

Burns v. Wilson, 346 US 137, 97 L Ed 1508,

73 S Ct 1045 (1953).

Lll these cases stand for the proposition that when

he Army acts in excess of its legal authority or

Lenies or threatens to deny due process, federal couiis

lave jurisdiction.

Appellant presented sufficient allegations to show

hat the issues involved in his case are going far

leyoiid those essentials which are required to main-

ain discipline among the military forces.

In Toth V. Quarles, 350 US 11, 100 L Ed 8, 76 S Ct

. (1955), the Supreme Court teaches that

"Free countries of the world have tried to re-

strict military tribunals to the narrowest juris-

diction deemed absolutely essential to maintaining

discipline among troops in active service."

The allegations of the complaint, which allegations

vere not denied, clearly indicate that the issues pre-

sented

"... arise imder the Constitution and laws of

the United States."

md that, therefore, under 28 USC 1331, the federal

courts have jurisdiction.
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Appellant submits that the issues presented Ijy the

complaint and by the Return of Appellee to Order to

Show Cause and the cases cited by him in his Memo-

randimi of Law, indicated that the federal courts

have jurisdiction. That such jurisdiction is a neces-

sity to prevent military personnel from being de-

prived of constitutional rights was recently held by

the United States Court of Military Appeals in the

case of United States, Appellee v. Michael L. Tempia,

Appellant imder 19815, decided on April 25, 1967. Thei

decision in that case answers the inquiry whether thei

principles enunciated by the Supreme Court of the

United States in Miranda v. Arizona, 384 US 436, 16

L Ed 2d 694, 86 S Ct 1602 (1966) applied to militaiy

interrogations of criminal suspects. The Court of Mil-

itary Appeals held that they do. Judge Ferguson, whoi

wrote the opinion of the Court, emphasized that

"The time is long since past—as indeed, thei

United States recognizes—when this Court mil

lend an attentive ear to the argument that mem-
bers of the armed services are, by reason of their

i

status, ipso facto deprived of all protections of

the Bill of Rights."

While recognizing
*

' That military law exists and has developed sepa-;

rately from other Federal law ..."

the opinion states that such separate development

"... does not mean that persons subject thereto^

are denied their constitutional rights. To the con-

trary, the very issue before the Supreme Court

in Burns v. Wilson, supra, was whether such a

denial had occurred."
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In the Burns case, Judge Ferguson held that

"The military courts, like the state courts, have

the same responsibilities as do the federal courts

to protect a person from a violation of his con-

stitutional rights."

The Tempia case stated that

"The impact of Burns v. Wilson, supra, then, is

of an imequivocal holdiiig hy the Supreme Court

that the protections of the Constitution are avail-

able to servicemen in military trials."

'The Tempia case refers hack to United States v. Ja-

\cohy, 11 USCMA 428, 29 CMR 244, wherein the Court

of Militaiy Appeals said

"... (I) t is apparent that the protections in the

Bill of Rights, except those which are expressly

or by necessary implication inapplicable, are

available to members of our armed forces.

(Citing Bums v. Wilson, 346 US 137, 73 S Ct

1045, 97 L ed 1508 (1953); Shapiro v. United

States, 107 Ct CI 650, 69 F Supp 205 (1047);

United States v. Hiatt, 141 F 2d 664 (CA 3d Cir)

(1944).)"

The Tempia opinion also reminds us that the Court

of Military Appeals in United States v. Gulp, 14

,USCMA 199, 33 CMR 411, Judge Kilday said

"I agree, thoroughly and completely, with the

view that members of the military are not shorn

of their constitutional rights while they remain

in the military service."

The Chief Judge then noted that

"It has long been my position that service per-

sonnel 'are entitled to the rights and priAdleges
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secured to all imder the Constitution of the

United States, unless excluded directly or by

neeessaiy implication, by the provisions of the

Constitution itself.'

"

Judge Ferguson in the Gulp case stated his opinion

to the effect that

"... the Sixth Amendment, insofar as it per-

tains to the right of counsel, applies in trials by

court-martial."

Appellant submits that pursuant to the holding in

the Tetnpia case, the command of the Sixth Amend-

ment applies to courts-martial, and that in conse-*

quence, the right to the protection of the Fiftk

Amendment against double jeopardy similarly applies,

This is imderlined when the ojnnion in Tempia es-:

tablishes the Court's

'^
. . firm and imshakeable conviction that Tem-

pia, as any other member of the armed services

so situated, was entitled to the protection of the

Bill of Rights . .
."

The thrust of Appellant's complaint was that he is

entitled to declaratory relief to be issued from the

United States District Court because the threatened

court-martial was to try him the third time for the

self-same offense, contrary to the command of the

Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitu-

tion.

The Trial Court erred when it held that such relief

is not available to Appellant, and further en-ed when

it held that the federal courts lack jurisdiction over
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the issues presented. The decision was in effect say-

ing that an enlisted man must rely on the court

martial for protection in constitutional rights. How-
ever, as Tempia teaches

'^
. . the militaiy picture ..."

is not as rosy as it is painted

''What does concern us is our duty to follow the

interpretation by the Supreme Court of the Con-
stitution of the United States ..."

Judge Kilday, in his concurring opinion, pointed

out that

" Article 76, Uniform Code of Militan^ Justice,

10 use Para 876, notwithstanding, it has long-

been obvious that court-martial proceedings are

open to examination by civil courts . . . The scope

of such review has, in recent years, been extended

to queries regarding an accused's constitutional

rights. Burns v. Wilson, 346 US 137, 97 L ed

1508, 73 S Ct 1045 (1953) ; Gusik v. Schilder, 340

US 128, 95 L ed 146, 71 S Ct 149 (1950). This

may involve due process and specific constitu-

tional guarantees. In United States v. Hiatt, 141

F 2d 664, 666 (CA 3d Cir) (1944), that court

first pointed out that basic guarantees of fair-

ness afforded by the due process clause of the

Fifth Amendment applied to a defendant in a

criminal proceeding in a military court. It there-

upon concluded, 'it is open for a civil court in a

habeas coi^pus proceeding to consider whether the

circmnstances of a court-martial proceeding and
the manner in which it was conducted ran afoul

of the basic standard of fairness which is in-

volved in the constitutional concept of due process
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of law and, if it so finds, to declare that the

relator has been deprived of his liberty in viola-

tion of the fifth amendment and to discharge

him from custody.' "

Judge Kilday cites Gallagher v. Quinn, 363 P 2d 301

(CA DC Cir) (1966) wherein the order of the Dis-

trict Court dismissing a complaint for a mandatory

injunction was affirmed, nevertheless, that Circuit!

Court concluded that the District Court had jurisdic-

tion as a matter of due process to re\TLew the proce-

dure imder the Uniform Code. In that case the Court

of Appeals observed

'' ^ . . though greater latitude respecting duei

process is allowed military tribmials, due pi'ocess

is requisite. Burns v. Wilson, supra n. 2. And
the right to due process would be lost if one de-

prived of it could not obtain redress because not

in confinement.

'' 'The Supreme Court is the final arbiter of dueii

process under the Constitution. The Supreme!

Court has not ])een granted jurisdiction to review

either on direct appeal or by certiorari a decision^

of the Court of Military Appeals. The conse-i

quence is that miless jurisdiction lies in the Dis-;

trict Court in such a case as this, with appellated

jurisdiction in this court and then in the Supreme
Court, the constitutional validity of the Act of

Congress cannot be decided except by the military

trilDimal. The "separate and apart" military law

jurisprudence, referred to in those terms in

Bums V. Wilson, supra n. 2, at 140, would appear

not to be separated so far from possible Supreme

Court scrutiny.'

"
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Judge Kilday in the Tempia case reminds us that in

Shapiro v. United States, 107 Ct CI 650, 69 F Supp
205 (1947), it was held that the Fifth and Sixth

Amendments applied to military tribunals as well as

to civil courts. He underlines the basic reason why
federal courts have jurisdiction when the issues are

of constitutional dimension hy citing from Gallagher

V. Qiimn (supra) to the effect

''.
. . unless jurisdiction lies in the District Court

in such a case as this, with appellate jurisdiction
' in this court and then in the Supreme Court, the

constitutional validitj/ of the Act of Congress can-

not he decided' except hi/ the militarij trihnnal."

I

(Emphasis supplied.)

That such ought not be and is not the case was stated

,by the Supreme Court of the United States in Bums
V. Wilson (supra) wherein the Court held that the

issue where a denial of constitutional right occurred

is within the jurisdiction of the Court.

j

The Trial Court erred in denying its own jurisdic-

tion because the issues presented were clearly of con-

istitutional dimension and it was inciunbent upon the

Trial Couri to detei*mine the merits of the case. Its

jreifusal to do so requires reversal.

(2) PURSUANT TO THE JURISDICTION, DECLARATORY
RELIEF SHOULD HAVE BEEN GRANTED.

1 The complaint clearly delineated the issues to the

effect that Appellant became a conscientious objector

to participation in war in any fonn after he joined
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the Ai-med Forces. Regulation AR 635-20 provides for

an administrative discharge of those in the posture of I

the Appellant. It was alleged that his request for r

administrative discharge pui'suant to the above regu-

lation was denied contrary to law, and that therefore,
j

he is entitled to a declaration of his right to such i

discharge.

The complaint also set forth that Appellant was •!

theretofore tmce coui't-martialed because of his in- -

ability to comply with an order to participate in ]

preparation for war. It was also set forth that he is -.

threatened with a third court-martial for the identical 1

same offense—the offense being that having informed I

his chain in command that because of religious train- •,

ing and l^elief, he cannot conscientiously participate
;

in serving in the military. But notwithstanding of I

such infonnation, an order was given to him which to

carry out would have ^delated his conscience, and for '

conscientious reasons based on religious belief, he

could not carry out an order and courts-martial and

confinement followed.

The A]3pellant claimed that the second and the

threatened third com-t-martial put him in multiple >

jeopardy contrary to the Fifth Amendment of the (

United States Constitution. It was inciunbent then

upon the Trial Court to examine into the merits of

the case so that the constitutionally declared rights

:

may be protected.

50 use 456 (j) provides that

"Nothing contained in this Title shall bo con-

strued to require any person to be subject to com-

1^
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bataiit training- and service in the armed forces

of the United States who, by reason of religious

I

training- and belief, is conscientiously opposed to

participation in -war in any form."

The allegations of the complaint clearly brought Ap-

pellant within the purview of the above law and the

right theremider should have l)een declared by the

iTrial Court.

!
The United States Court of Military Appeals in

^John L. Gale, Petitioner v. United States, Respond-

ent, Miscellaneous Docket No. 67-2, decided on May
12, 1967, held that that Court has the jurisdiction,

even though limited by law, to grant extraordinary

remedies in cases involving constitutional rights.

There the Court held that

''.
. . in an appropriate case, this Court clearly

; possesses the power to gTant relief to an accused

i
prior to the completion of court-martial proceed-

ings against him. To hold othermse would mean

,
that, in every instance and despite the appearance

j

of prejudicial and oppressive measures, he would

have to pursue the leng-thy trial of apj^ellate re-

view—perhaps even serAing a long tenn of con-

finement—before securing ultimate relief. We
cannot believe Congress, in revolutionizing mili-

tary justice and creating for the first time in the

armed services a supreme civilian court in the

image of the normal Federal judicial system, in-

tended it not to exercise power to grant relief on

an extraordinary basis, when the circiunstances

so require."

As in the Gale case, Appellant submits here that it

is not to be iDelieved that Congress intended the Fed-
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eral District Coui-t not to exercise power to gran'

relief when the circumstances so require. The eir

ciunstances here required the granting of the relie;

and the refusal to do so requires reversal.

(3) APPELLANT'S RIGHT NOT TO BE PUT INTO MULTIPLI
JEOPARDY IS OF CONSTITUTIONAL DIMENSION, THl

VIOLATION OF WHICH PLACES THE ISSUE WITHIN TH3
JURISDICTION OF THE FEDERAL COURTS.

Appellant submits that the Fifth Amendment pro

scribes double jeopardy and that such proscriptiot

binds both the civil and military authorities. While i

is true that in Wade v. Hunter, 336 US 684, 69 S C1

834 (1949), it was held that a reconvening of a courti

martial wliich was interrupted in the first instance hf

the thi'eat of a GeiTnan invasion, did not put Wad*i

into double jeopardy, nevertheless, the Court, left n(^

doubt as to the applicability of the Fifth Amendmen''

prohibition against placing a person twice in jeopardy*

of life or liml) when the offense charged is the same/

The Tempia case, w^e believe, put to rest any doubt di

to the obligation of the military courts to respect con-

stitutional rights and protect them. The complain'

clearly stated that Appellant's second court-martiai'

and the threatened third court-martial both were t(

pimish him for the same offense in disregard of tW

Fifth Amendment to the Constitution. The Supreme

Court of the United States repeatedly went on recorc

to protect an accused who was threatened with mul

tiple trials for the same offense. Justice Black, ii
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dissenting in Barkus v. Illinois, 359 US 121, 79 S Ct

376 (1959) pointed out that:

''Fear and al)horrence of govenimental power to

try people twice for the same conduct is one of

the oldest ideas found in western civilization. Its

roots nm deep into Greek and Roman times."

[n an ancient case, Ex Parte IJlrich, 42 F 587 (1890),

it was said that

''.
. . in following the direction of the Supreme

! Court, we will find no principle of the common
law, gromided upon the great rock of the Magna
Charta, more firmly rooted than that no man
shall iDe twice vexed with prosecutions for the

same offense."

I

The issue is not whether the three orders were .given

)y thi-ee different of&cers, nor is it the question

yhether the three orders were given separated by six

p,onths' time lapse—the issue is whether tJie orders

,T.ven to Appellant were of such character that obedi-

ence thereto would have been contrary to the consci-

^'ntious scruples that he had towards participation in

v^ar and in preparation therefor. By the latter ,yard-

;tick, the orders were the same, the refusals were

bounded on the same religious belief, and in conse-

quence, the offenses were the same, and being tried

'or it three times put the Appellant in multiple jeop-

irdy.

In In re SUihhs, 122 F 1012 (1905) it was held that

5tubl3S was not put into double jeopardy because

"... the elements constituting the offense charged

(were) radically different ..."
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In the instant case, they were neither radically, a

otherwise, different, but, in effect, were identical ai

they were in In re Nielsen, 131 US 176 (1889) whep

the Court held that a single offense was involved be"

cause there was a continuity over the period of which

the second offense was supposed to have taken place:

In Appellant's case, the elements of the offense wer^

identical and the offense, or offenses, were extended

over a period of his three coui'ts-martial. Thereforetj

according to the teachings of In re Nielsen, he has beei(

subject to triple jeopardy and triple punishment. '

The Trial Court should have inquired into the mer'

its of the allegation as to multiple jeopardy, om
failing to do so, it erred to the prejudice of Appellant

and therefore, a reversal is required because

"If there is anything settled in the jurisprudencii

of England and America, it is that no man cai

be twice lawfully punished for the same offens,

. . . The common law not only prohibited a secon(

pimishment for the same offense, but it went fiu

ther, and forbid a second trial for the sam'

offense, whether the accused had suffered pmiish-

ment or not, and whether in the former trial h

had been acquitted or convicted." Ex Part'

Lange, 18 Wall. 163 (1874).

fe
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4) APPELLANT'S RIGHT NOT TO BE COMPELLED TO PAR-

TICIPATE IN WAR CONTRARY TO HIS RELIGIOUS TRAIN-

ING AND BELIEF IS SIMILARLY OF CONSTITUTIONAL
DIMENSION AND THE JURISDICTION OF THE FEDERAL
COURT EXTENDS OVER THE ISSUES.

1 50 use 456 (j) grants a right or at least the

igi'aice" to Appellant not to be compelled to partici-

>ate in war if such participation is contrary to his

eligions training and belief. The allegations of the

pmplaint clearly put him within the purview of the

Ibove law, which law is bottomed on the recognition

y Congress that the First Amendment to the United

tates Constitution cannot deprive one of the free

ixercise of his religion.

i But the right or as it is sometimes said, solely a

igrace" granted to conscientious objectors to be ex-

mpt from militaiy service, in any ease, may not

eprive Appellant of such right or such "grace" just

ecause he is a member of the Armed Forces. This

fas recognized by the Army when it adopted AR
35-20, and particularly, subparagraph 3a thereof.

(ernpia teaches us that rights (or even gTace) of

^institutional dimensions must be respected by mili-

iry courts. The two past courts-martial and the

lireatened third one demonstrated that the court-mar-

al failed to abide by the Tempia decision, and there-

ore, the Trial Court should have determined the

isues on the merits and ha\dng failed to do so,

squires a reversal.
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(5) THE RELIEF PRAYED FOR IN THE COMPLAINT SHOUD
HAVE BEEN GRANTED BY THE DISTRICT COURT, AN"

THIS COURT OUGHT TO ORDER THAT THE ISSUES B

TRIED ON THE MERITS.

The complaint prayed that the Trial Coiii't declai

that the threatened third court-martial is illes^al h^

cause the Appellant will be tried the third time foi

his inability to participate in military activities, whici

inability results from his conseientous objection t

war and to preparation therefor based on his religion

training. The complaint also prayed for declaratio;

by the Trial Court that the Appellant is entitled t

separation from military service pursuant to AT

635-20 and the alleg-ations as they were set forth i

the prescribed fonn DA 1049. The Trial Court al?

asked that the Commanding General of Ford Or(

Major General R. G. Pergusson, who was the convei

ing authority of the courts-martial (and who is no^

succeeded by Major General Thomas A. Kenan wh

became Commanding General of Fort Ord sul>sequer

to the filing of this appeal) be restrained from ordei

ing Appellant to be tried before a court-martial fci

his conscientious inability to participate in militai

activities because of his religious training and belief

The allegations of the complaint setting forth tl

threat to Appellant's constitutional rights presents'
i

a clear mandate to the Trial Court to grant the reh( <

prayed for. The relief should have been granted b('

cause the orders disobeyed by Appellant were ik

such as were authorized—imder the circiunstanc(

prevailing—to be given to him. Article 90 of the Un
|

fonn Code of Military Justice, subparagraph (b
,
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lescribes the offense charged against the Appellant

pider the heading, *' Disobeying Superior Officer."

''he discussion thereunder states that

J

"The willful disobedience contemplated is such

as shows an intentional defiance of authority ..."

fc also states that

*'The order must relate to militaiy duty and be

one which the superior officer is authorized imder

the circiunstances to give the accused. Disobedi-

ence of an order which has for its sole object the

attainment of some private end, or which is given

for the sole purpose of increasing tlie penalty for

an offense which it is expected the accused may
commit, is not pimishable undei' this article."

jii the face of the undenied allegations of the com-

laint, the threatened third court-mariial involved no

itentional defiance of the authority, but rather a

(pfiance, if defiance it be, brought al>out by religious

|>mpimction. The order was not such which any offi-

|jr in the chain of command who was informed—as

ley all were—of Appellant's conscientious objection

.jithorized mider those circiunstances to be given. In

ace of the information given to the chain, of com-

iand as to the religious posture of Appellant, it could

pt have been expected but that he will refuse to carry

iit the order. Therefore, the order was given for the

it)le purpose of creating an offense which was imder

|l circumstances to be expected that he must commit.

I

The Trial Court erred in dismissing the complaint

hd refusing to hear the issues on their merits, and

lerefore a reversal is required.
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Reversal is also required because the two
^'.

. . court-martial proceedings and tlie maiinej

in wliicli it was (they were) conducted ran afou

of the basic standards of fairness which is ini

volved in the constitutional concept of due proces

of law."

Due process was often defined but probably neve^i

better than when the Supreme Coui-t said, speakinj?

through Justice Franlvfurter, that this term is a !

''.
. . compendious expression for all those right!

which the courts must enforce because they art

basic to onr free society." Wolf v. People of Tl/i

State of Colorado, 338 US 25, 69 S Ct 1359.

If the two courts-martial are a yardstick for tt

third, which Appellant fears it is, then the threatened

court-martial will deny him of due process eve:

though due process ". . . is basic to our free society.
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V
CONCLUSION

'' Appellant submits that because of the constitutional

Lmensions of the rights involved in the instant case,

le Trial Coui-t had jurisdiction of the subject matter

fid within its jurisdiction the prayer of the complaint
!i

ilould have been granted. The refusal to do so re-

<.iires a reversal and the Appellant prays that an

frder may be entered upon the Trial Court to proceed

^ith the hearing of the case on its merits.

Dated, Caraiel, California,

August 28, 1967.

Respectfully submitted,

Francis Heisler,

Heisler & Stewart,

Peter France,

By Francis Heisler,

Attorneys for Appellant.

Certificate of Counsel

I certify that, in connection with the preparation

this brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of

|e United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth

(Ircuit, and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief

i in full compliance with those rules.

Francis Heisler,

Attorney for Appellant.
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NO. 21,9^4

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

PVT. FELIX CHAVEZ, JR.,

Appellant,

V.

MAJOR GENERAL R. G. FERGUSSON,
U. S. Army, Commanding General,
Fort Ord, California,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

JURISDICTION

The action v;as commenced in the United

States District Court, by the filing of a complaint

for declaratory judgment and for injunction. It

sought to invoke the jurisdiction of the District

Court under 28 USC 1331 and 28 USC 2201. The

jurisdiction of this Court is asserted under 28 USC 1291
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The District Court issued an order to show cause,

directing the respondents to show cause v/hy the

defendant should not be enjoined and restrained

from compelling plaintiff to be tried before a court-

martial during the pendency of this action. The

defendants filed a return to the order to show cause

which stated as grounds to dismiss the action, one ,

the complaint did not state a claim upon which re-

lief could be granted, two, that the Court did not

have jurisdiction of the subject matter, and three ,

that there V7as absent an indispensable party, to-wit,

the Secretary of the Army; also, four , that there

are administrative remedies of review and appeal.

The Court heard the matter as a motion to dismiss

as v;ell as an application for injunction.

The District Court observed that no

authority had been advanced by the plaintiff for the

proposition that the Army lacks jurisdiction to court-

martial for disobeying orders an enlisted soldier

-2-





who has made the claim that he is a conscientious

objector^ and in the absence of such authority^

the Court concluded that defendant is acting within

the scope of his jurisdiction.

With respect to the claim that plaintiff

was entitled to declaratory judgment of separation

from the military service, the Court stated it

believed it was without jurisdiction to entertain

such a matter.

On March 30, 19^7 ^ the Court ordered that

the order to show cause be discharged, and that

the action be dismissed.

Appellant, under the caption as plaintiff,

thereafter, on April 25, I967, filed in this Court

a motion for a restraining order, together with a

memorandum of authorities and an affidavit of the

appellant. These documents wer e docketed as Court

of Appeals number 21,79^- Service was not effected

on appellee. On April 26 the motion was denied.

-3-





This proceeding does not appear as a part of the

record in this case^ nor is it mentioned "by appellant.

Also not appearing as part of the record in either

case is the fact that appellant was tried by court-

martial following the denial of the restraining

order, and was convicted on April 26, 19^7 • Review

of the court-martial findings is now pending before

the Board of Military Review in Washington. (Affi-

davit of Francis Heisler attached to motion to vacate

order.) These matters are also set forth in appellee's

motion to dismiss the appeal.

THE FACTS IN THIS CASE

The facts in this case must be derived

from plaintiff's complaint in the United States Dis-

trict Court . He alleges that he was born in Los

Angeles on March 23, 19^4; that he graduated from

high school in 19^1, and enlisted in the United States

Army Reserve in June 1965 fo^^ a period of six years.

He went on active duty at Fort Ord, California, on
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September 10, 19^5 The complaint alleges that he

became a conscientious cb jector to war in any form

in October I965 at Fort Ord. He refused to salute

any officer and refused to train. On November 17,

1965 he vjas ordered to be tried before a court-

martial. He was tried and convicted and sentenced

to the stockade for six months. The confinement

was terminated in April I966. He again refused to

obey orders J and a second court-martial was ordered,

and he was tried on June 3, 19^6 . He v/as also found

guilty and was sentenced to six months in the stockade

In April 1966 plaintiff had filed a DA form 1049

pursuant to Army regulations AR 635-20, requesting

discharge as a conscientious objector. This appli-

cation was denied during the time he was serving

his sentence on the second court-martial. Following

his release from the stockade he for the third time

dlsdpeyed orders, and on December 2, I966 charges and

specifications were filed against him.

-5-



I



He alleges in his complaint that having

become a- conscientious objector to war in any form,

he could not conscientiously comply with any orders

to be given to him, nor could he in accordance with

his teachings salute any officer, nor could he

participate in any military training in preparation

for war. On this basis he refused to salute his

officer and refused to train, and was ordered court-

martialed.

Nov/, appellant contends that by reason

of his asserted conscientious objection, the acts

of the appellee causing hira to be court-martialed

three times are unlawful.

Appellant contends that AR 635-20 authorizes

and requires the appellee to discharge from military

service an enlisted man such as appellant, who is a

bona-fide conscientious objector; that there is no

basis in fact for appellee's refusal so to discharge

the appellant; and that said refusal in his behalf,

and ordering him to be tried before a court-martial

for his conscientious inability to participate in

-6-





combat training is unlawful^ and that this Court

should declare that appellant is entitled to

separation from military service pursuant to AR 635-20

It is quite clear from the foregoing that

the appellant voluntarily enlisted and committed

himself for a period of six years; that during the

course of this enlistment he developed \vhat he calls

a conscientious objection to war in all forms, and

that because of this conscientious objection he is

not going to accept any orders from his superiors;

that in pursuing this course of action he three times

deliberately refused orders and as a result v:as

court-martialed. It also appears clearly that he

was aware of the existence of Army Regulation 635-20,

and did make an application under said regulation

by utilizing Form 104-9 snd requesting discharge

thereby. This application was submitted through

regular channels and was denied. Notwithstanding the

denial, the appellant persisted in his own Judgment

as to what he vjas going to do and vjhat he v^as not

-7-





going to do, which in effect was a complete re-

pudiation of the obligation that he undertook vjhen

he enlisted 5 and the oath taJ^en at that tirae.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

In considering the appellant's specifi-

cation of errors J it must be born in mind that fol-

lowing the dismissal of the action by the District

Courts appellant did institute what appears to be a

separate proceeding in this Court;, by filing a

motion for an injunction, and asking the Court for

an order to shov: cause or for an order enjoining

the appellee from conducting the third court-martial.

From the Specification of Errors, the

appellee extracts the follov7ing as possibly the

issues vjhich the appellant would present to this

Court: first, that because of claim to conscientious

objection, appellant has the right to refuse to obey

any orders, and that the resulting cou2:*t-martials

which follow such refusal constitute a multiple

Jeopardy in a constitutional sense; second, that he





has a coiT-Stitutional right to discharge because of

his conscientious ohj'ection.

Under the next heading. Argument, appellant

specifies as the first subdivision that the United

States District Court has Jurisdiction over the sub-

ject matter. Under this subdivision, he quotes from

the Trial Court's Memorandum and Order as follows:

''i'Jo authority has been advanced
by plaintiff for the proposition
that the Army lacks Jurisdiction
to court-martial for disobeying
orders an enlisted soldier who
has made the claim that he is a
conscientious objector. In the
absence of such authority, this
Court can only conclude that the
defendant is acting within the
scope of his Jurisdiction."

Appellant, following the quotation;, then makes the

statement that he believes his memorandum of points

and authorities did in fact cite cases which were

pertinent to his claim, that civil courts are authorized

to review military procedures before court-martial to

deteiTTiine whether it acted within its pov;ers

.
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I . There is -lo constitutional right to

relief from the obligation to bear arms

because of conscientious objection.

This contention was made in U. S. v.

Macintosh^ 283 US 605j to vjhich the Court replied.

page 623

"This, if it means vjhat it seems to say,
is aji astonishing statement. Of
course, there is no such principle
of the Constitution, fixed or other-
wise. The conscientious objector
is relieved from the obligation to
bear arms in obedience to no con-
stitutional provision, express or
implied; but because, and only because,
it has accorded v;ith the policy of
Congress thus to relieve him."

Wood v. U. S. (5 Cir.)

373 F.2d 894

George v. U. S. (9 Cir.)
196 F.2d 445

Storey v. U. S. (9 Cir.)

370 F.2d 255

Korte V. U. S. (9 Cir.)
260 P. 2d 633,
Cert. den. 358 US 928

Petition of Green
156 F.Supp. 174
264 F.2d 63 (9 Cir.)
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Appellant's status is that of an enlisted

man. The Supreme Court in In re Grimley ^ 137 US 14?

>

clearly identified this status ^ pp. 151:> 152:

"Enlistment is a contract; but
it is one of those contracts
which changes the status; -^ --- '••

By enlistment the citizen becomes
a soldier '^ •"- -'^ He cannot of his
oxm volition throw off the garraents
he has once put on^ •'= -•*• '"

"

Bell V. U._S.
3661is 393

Power to discharge enlisted members before

their term of service expires is expressly granted

to the Secretary of the Army.

10 use 3811.

Exemption from military service on religious

grounds is a m^atter of legislative grace.

Storey v. Uo S. ^ supra

Fleming v. U. 3. (10 Cir.)
3^4 F.2d 912

Clark V. U. S. (9 Cir.)

236 F.2d 13

Korte V. U. S.

^

supra
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Congress in the Selective Service Act

(50 USC[App. ]456j) has provided as follows:

"(3) Nothing contained in this
title [sections 451-454 and 455-
471 of this Appendix] shall he
construed to require any person
to be subject to combatant training
and service in the armed forces of
the United States who, by reason of
religious training and belief

_,
is

conscientiously opposed to participa-
tion in war in any form .

"

This section was amended by Congress on June 30^ 19^7

(Public Law 90—^0) to delete the words "in a

relation to a Supreme Being involving duties

superior to those arising from any human relation"

.

The Department of Defense as a matter of

policy promulgated Department of Defense Directive

1300.6:

"III. POLICY.

A. No vested right exists for any
individual to be discharged
from military service at his
own request before the expira-
tion of his term of service,
whether he is serving voluntarily
or involuntarily. Administrative
discharge prior to the completion
of his term of service is dis-
cretionary with the service con-
cerned, based on judgment of the
facts ajid circumstances in the case.
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"B. The fact of conscientious ob-
jection does not exempt men
from the draft; however, the
Congress has deemed it more
essential to respect a man's
religious beliefs than to force
him to serve in the Armed
Forces, and accordingly has
recognized bona fide religious
objection to participation in
war, in any form, to the extent
that such an objector (1-0 classi-
fication) is not inducted into
the Armed Forces but is required
to serve his country for the
same period of time in civilian
work contributing to the main-
tenance of national health,
safety, or interest under a
prescribed Alternate Service Plan
(Conscientious Objectors' Work.
Program). Consistent with this
national policy, bona fide con-
scientious objection by persons
who are members of the Armed
Forces v;ill be recognized to
the extent practicable and equitable."

Implementing the DOD 130O.6, the Department

of the Army promulgated AR 635-20 and AR 135-25^ ap-

plicable to personnel in the active military service,

and personnel in the Reserve. AR 635-20 states:

"3. POLICY, a. Consideration v/ill
be given to requests for separation
based on conscientious objection to
participation in v:ar, in any form,
when such objection develops sub-
sequent to entry into the active
military service.
•K- * * -x- 4(- * *
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"c. All requests for discharge based
on conscientious objection will be
considered on an individual basis in
accordance with the facts and special
circumstances in a particular case."

II. There is no authority which compels

discharge J nor is there any authority

that relieves an enlisted man from

the performance of his duty and

accords to him the right of disobedience.

Fleming v. U. S. , supra

Clark V. U. S. , supra

Storey v. U. S. , supra

Korte V. U. S. , supra

Courts cannot review and deteiTnine validity

of military assignments to duty.

Orloff V. Willoughby
3^5 US 83, 94

Noyd V. McNamara
267 F.Supp. 701
378 F.2d 538 (10 Cir.)

Brown v. McNamara
2^3 F.Supp. 686

Petition of Green, supra

-14-
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Federal Courts will not issue a writ of

prohibition or otherwise review the acts of a court-

martial unless it appears that it is acting in excess

of its jurisdiction.

Bums V. Wilson
346 US 137

Smith V. VJhitney
116 Us lb?

Noyd V. McNamara , supra

CONCLUSION

From the facts of this case, appellant's

course of conduct is clear—wilful disobedience of

orders. He demands a discharge. His alternative is

refusal to obey orders . The ultimate resolution is a

discharge by court-martial order. Appellee fails to

see any standing in this Court. Appellant's court-

martial is now before the Board of Review. It may

reach the Court of Military Appeals

.

Copy of Army Regulation No. 635-20 is attached

as Appendix I, and copy of DOD I3OO.6 as Appendix II.

Resp ectfully>submitted

,

/CECIL F. ^OOLE",
,

/ Uriited States Attorney

CHARLEiS^ELMEn COXLfe:i?T

-Chief Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee

DATED: November 28, I967.
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Army KeotjIiAtion

No. 63C-20

HEADQUARTERS
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
Washington, D.C, 6 January 1966

PERSONNEL SEPARATIONS

CONSCIENTIOUS OBJECTION
Paragraph

Purpose 1

Scope 2

Policy
I

3
Procedure 4

Assigrnmcnt 5

Separation of personnel having less than 180 days service

Authority 7

Form of separation certificate • 8

1. Purpose. Tins regulation sets forth the information indicated below as the minimum re-

policy, criteria, and procedures for disposition of quired for consideration of his request. The in-

military personnel who, by reason of religious dividual may submit such other information as

training and belief, claim conscientious objection
,

desired.

to participation in war in any form. (1) General information.

2. Scope. This regulation applies equally to (a) Full name,

commissioned officers, warrant officers, and en- {h) Military service number,

listed personnel in the active military service. (<?) Selective service number.

3. Policy, a. Consideration will be given to (</) Service address,

requests for separation based on conscientious ob- (e) Permanent home address.

jcction to participation in war, in any form, when (/) Give the name and address of each

such objection develops subsequent to entry into school and college which you have at-

the active military service. tended, together with the dates of your

h. Requests for discharge will not be enter- attendance, and state in each instance

tainetl when based solely on conscientious objcc- the type of school (public, church,

tion which existed, but which was not claimed military, commercial, etc.).

prior to induction, enlistment, or entry on active {g) Give a chronological list of all occupa-

duty or active duty for training. Similarly, re- tions, positions, jobs, or type of work

quests for discharge will not be entertained when other than as a student in school or

based solely on conscientious objection claimed college, in which you have at any time

and denied by the Selective Service prior to been engaged, whether for monetary

induction. compensation or not, giving the type of

c. All requests for discharge based on consci- work, name of employer, address of

intious objection will be considered on an indi- employer, and the from/to date for

pidual basis in accordance with the facts and each position or job held.

special circumstances in a particular case. {h) Give all addresses and dates of resi-

d. Final determination will be made at Head- dence where you have formerly lived,

juarters. Department of the Army, on all requests {i) Give the name and address of your

for discharge based on conscientious objection. parents and indicate whether they are

4. Procedure, a. Military personnel will sub- living or deceased.

nit applications for discharge by reason of con- {j) State the religious denomination of sect

;cientious objection on DA Form 1049 (Personnel of your father and mother.

Action) to their immediate commanding officers. {k) Did you apply to the Selective Service

rhe individual requesting discharge will include System (Local Board) for classifica-

n his application or as an inclosure thereto the tion as a conscientious objector prior

This regulation supersedes AR 635-20, 9 November 1962, and rescinds DA message 742770, 4 December 1%5.

'AGO 1026A—Jan. 200-471'—M ^
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to entry into tlio Anned Forces? To
whicli local hoard ? What decision was
made hy the Board, i f known ?

(l) If you have served less than 180 days

in the military service and are dis-

charged as a conscientious objector, are

you willing to perform work under the

Selective Service Conscientious Ob-
jectors' Work Program? Yes
No . Will you consent to the

issuance of an order for such work
by your Ix)cal Selective Service Board ?

Yes No .

(2) Religious training and belief.

(a) Do you believe in a Supreme Being?

(b) Describe the nature of your belief

that is the basis of your claim, and
state whether or not your belief in a

Supreme Being involves duties that

to you are superior to those arising

from any human relation.

(c) Explain how, when, and from whom
or from what source you received the

training and acquired the belief which
is the basis of your claim.

(d) Give the name and present address of

the individual upon whom you rely

most for religious guidance.

(e) Under what circumstances, if any, do
you believe in the use of force ?

I (/) Describe the actions and behavior in

1 ' your life which in your opinion most
conspicuously demonstrate the consist-

ency and depth of your religious con-

.. victions.

(ff) Have you ever given public expression,

written or oral, to the views herein ex-

pressed as the basis for your claim?

i

If so, specify when and where.

3) Participation in organizations.

!

(a) Have you ever been a member of any
j, military organization or establishment

, ;
before entering the Armed Forces for

this tour? If so, state the name and
/ address of same and give reasons why

you became a member.

(&) Are you a member of a religious sect

. ;' or organization? If your reply is

V "yes"-
1, State the name of the sect, and the

name and location of its governing
body or head if kiiown to you.

2. When, where, and how did yon become
a member of said sect or organiza-

tion.

3. State the name and location of the

church, congregation, or meeting
where you customarily attend.

4. Give the name, title, and present ad-

dress of the pastor or leader of such
church, congregation, or meeting.

6. Describe carefully the creed or official

statements of said religious sect or

organization in relation to partici-

pation in war.

(c) Descril^e your relationships with and
activities in all organizations with
which you are or have been affiliated,

other than military, political, or labor

organizations.

(4) References. Give the name, full address,

occupation or position, and relationship

to you, concerning pei-sons who could
supply information as to the sincerity of
your professed convictions against par-

ticipation in war.

b. Immediately upon receipt of a request for

discharge on the grounds of conscientious objec-

tion, the individual's commanding officer will fully

advise and counsel him concerning the provisions
of Section 3103, Title 38, United States Code.
That section provides, in pertinent part, that the

discharge of a person on the ground that he was a
conscientious objector who refused to pcrfonn
military duty or refused to wear the uniform or

otherwise to comply with lawful orders of compe-
tent military authority, will bar all rights (except

Government insurance) of such person under laws
administered by the Veterans Administration
based upon the period of service from which dis-

charged or dismissed. T\\e only exception is in

the cases in which it is established, to the satisfac-

tion of the Administrator, that the member was
insane. After counseling, the member will be re-

quired to sign and date the following statement:

I have been counseled concerning possible non-entitle-

ment to benefits administered by the Veterans Adminis-
tration due to discharge from the military service as a
conscientious objector. I understand that a discharge as

a conscientious objector who refuses to perform satisfac-

TAOO 102eA
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tory military duty or otherwise to comply with lawful

orders of coini)Otent military authority may Imr all rights

l)n.se<l upon the period of service from which discharged,

under nny laws administered by tlic Veterans Adminis-

tration excejit my legal entitlement (if any) to any war

risk', Government (converted) or National Service Life

Insurance.

c. An individual requesting discharge will rc-

coive a coiuiseling interview by a chaplain and a

psycliiatric interview by a psychiatrist (or medi-

cal oflicer if a psychiatrist is not available). The
chaplain will submit a report of the interview to

include the sincerity of the individual in his belief

and an opiiMon as to whether the individual's ob-

jection to military duty is based on his religious

jeliefs. The psychiatrist will submit a I'eport of

psychiatric evaluation indicating the presence or

ibsencc of any psychiatric disorder which would

ivarrant treatment or disposition through medical

shannels.

d. The application for discharge, together with

,he inclosure(s), and reports of interviews, will

)e forwarded through military channels to The
Adjutant General, ATTN: AGPO, Department

)f the Army, Washington, D.C., 20315.

(1) The comment by unit commander on DA
Form 1049 will include the following

information

:

{a) "Wliether approval or disapproval is

recommended. The reason (s) there-

for will be included.

(5) Duty and primary MOS (enlisted per-

sonnel only).

(c) Wliether medical board or physical

evaluation board proceedings are pend-

ing or appropriate.

{d) Whether under investigation, under

charges, awaiting result of trial, absent

without leave, or whether any flagging

action has been taken in accordance

with AR 600-31.

(2) Subsequent forwarding comments on DA
Form 1049 will include recommendation

for approval or disapproval and any

other remarks that may be pertinent.

[AGPO]

e. The Adjutant General, Department of the

Army, will coordinate with the Selective Service

System.

5. Assignment. An individual requesting dis-

charge based on conscientious objection will be re-

tained in his imit and assigned duties providing
the minimum conflict with his professed beliefs

pending a final decision on his application.

6. Discharge of personnel having less than
180 days service. Personnel who have less than

180 days service when discharged will be dis-

charged by reason of conscientious objection to

permit service in the Conscientious Objectors'

Work Program. National Headquarters, Selec-

tive Service System, 451 Indiana Avenue NW.,
Washington, D.C., 20435, Avill be notified promptly
of date of discharge from military service ; advised

that the individual has not completed 180 days

active duty, and requested to induct tlie individual

into the Selective Service Conscientious Objectors'

Work Program.

7. Authority, a. Commisnioned ofjicers and
warrant officers. Authority AR G35-20 and SPN
658 for separation will be included in order's an-

nouncing discharge of individuals.

h. Enlisted personnel. Authority AR G35-20

and SPN 318 for discharge will be included in

directives or orders directing individuals to report

to the appropriate transfer activity or unit per-

sonnel section designated to accomi)lish transfer

processing for discharge.

8. Form of separation certificates, a. Di^-

charge. An Honorable Discharge Certificate

(DD Fonn 256A) or a General Discharge Certifi-

cate (DD Form 257A) will be furnished. Com-
missioned officers and warrant officers will be

furnished a discharge certificate in accordance

with AR 635-5 or as directed by Headquarters,

Department of the Anny. Enlisted personnel will

bo furnished a discharge certificate in accordance

with AR 635-200.

h. Report of separation. Arm^d Forces of tlio

United States Report of Transfer or Discharge

(DD Form 214) will be furnished each individual

discharged from service under this regulation.

AGO 1026A
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By Order of the Secretary of the Army:

"acial

:

r. C. LAMBERT,
]Ia}or General, United States Army,
The Adjutant Crcneral.

HAROLD K. JOHNSON,
General, United States Army,
Chief of Staff.

istrihvition

:

To be distributed in accordance with DA Form 12-9 requirements for Military Personnel Proce-
dures, Officer and Enlisted

:

Active Army: A. NG: D. USAR: None.

TAQO 1025A
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August 21, I96Z

NUMBER 1300. 6

ASD(M)

Department of Defense Directive

SUBJECT Utilization of Conscientious Objectors ajid Procedures
for Processing Requests for Discharge Based on

Conscientious Objection

References: (a) DoD Directive 1332.14, "Adminictrative DischD-rge"
(b) DoD Directive 1315- 1, "DispoGition of Conscientiour

Objectors/' June I8, 1951 (cancelled herein)

I. PURPOSE

This Directive establishes uniform procedures for the uti-
.
lization of conscientious ob.Jectors In the Armed Forces
and consideration of requests for discharge on the grounds
of conscientious objection.

II. APPLICABILITY

The policies ajid procedures set forth herein apply to all
personnel of the Army, Navy, Air Force and Marine Corps and
to all Reserve components thereof.

III. POLICY

A. No vested right exists for any indlvldiial to be dis-
charged from military service at his own request before

^the expiration of his term of service, whether he is

serving voluntarily or involuntarily. Adminictrative
discharge prior to the completion of his term of

service is discretionary with the service concerned,
bined on Judgnent of the facts and circumstanceG in

' the rase

.

B. The fact of conscientious objection does not exempt men
from the draft; however, the Congress has deeme'l it
fnore essential to respect a man's religious beliefs
than to force him to serve in the Armed Forces, and
accordlnc;ly has recognized bona fide religious objection

APPENDIX II





to participation in war, in any form, to the extent that suoa

pjn objector (l-O clansifj.cation) is not inducted into the

Armed Forces but is required , to serve his country for the

same period of time in civilian work contributing to the

maintenance of national health, safety, or iiiterest -^ider a

prescribed Alternate Service Plan (Conscientious Objectors'

Work Program)- Consistent with this national policy, bona

fide conscientious objection by persons who are mem.bers of

the Armed Forces will be reco^zed to the extent practicable

6Lnd equitable.

C. Federal courts have held that a claijia to exemption from mili-

tary service under the UMTOJS Act mast be interposed prior to

notice of induction and failur- to make timely claim for

exemption constitutes waiver of the right to claim. Therefore,

request for discharge after entering military service, based

solely on conscientiouB objection which existed but was not

claimed prior to induction or enlistment, cannot be entertained.

Similarly, requests for discharge based solely on conscientious

objection claimed and denied by Selective Service prior to

induction cannot be entertained.

D. It is the policy of the Department of Defense that requests for

discharge from the military service on the grounds of conscien-

tious objection will be handled on an indlv1.dual basis, with

final determination made at the departmental headquarters of

the individual's service in accordance with the facts and cir-

cumstances In the particular case and the criteria of this

Directive. The type of discharge, if separation Is deemed

warranted, will be determined by the individual's military

record, the standards set forth in reference (a), and the

procedural guidelines herein.

E. In eval\iatlne requests for discharge based on conscientious

ob jection, great care must be exercised to insure the sincerity

of" the claim. It is essential that discharge procedures of the

servixes not invito or permit abuse by unscrupulous persons who

seek to avoid all obligations on the grounds of religious

belief. Claims of conscientious objection by a.ll persons,

whether existing before or after entering milltar:,^ service

stiould be Judged by the some standards.

F. 'I'lie standards used by the Selective Service System in deter-

mining 1-0 or 1-A-O classification of draft registrants prior

to induction are considered appropriate for application to

rases of servicemen who claim conscientious objection after

entering military servlrc. 1-A-O classification permits In-

duction "into the military service and the Inductee is requirc^J

to perform duties as outlined in ruction V.A. of this D.r-ctive-,

1-0 classification does not permit induction into military





service but doeo perrait induction into the Alternate Service
Plan (Conscientioxis Objectors' Work Program). In either of
the classifications the registrant is req.uired to fulfill
his obligations under the UMT&S Act.

*G. In order to insure the maxiinum practicable \anlformity a^iong
the services axid between members of the same service,
advisory opinion by the Selective Service that a classifica-
tion of 1-0 is appropriate vill noimally be a requisite for
discharge or release of members with less than tvo years ac-
tive service based on conscientious objection.

IV. CRITERIA

A. The criteria for determining conscientious objection (other
than the statutory requirement that the objection be reli-
gious, as opposed to personal or philosophical) are not
absoltrte objective measurements vhlch can be applied across
the board, but are the resxilt of extensive experience and
practices which have been upheld in the Courts in connec-
tion with legal obligations for service. Among the factors
considered are such items as membership in a peace church,
training in heme and church, the general demeanor and
pattern of conduct of the individual, his employment in
defense-connected activities, his participation in religious
activities, ajad his credibility and the credibility of
persons supporting his claim. In the case of servicemen not
liable for induction after discharge because of having
served l80 days or more, the indlvldxial ' s willingness to
engage volunteirily in post-military work of the nature en-
compassed by the Alternate Seirvlce Plan of Selective Service
may also be pertinent.

B. While church membership and church tenets are relevant In
determining conscientious objection, they are not compelling.
The courts have held tiiat mere membership in a religious
group teaching conscientious objection is not an autcoatic
basis for classification as a conscientious objector nor does
membership In a group which does not require conscientious
objection constitute an automatic basis for denying such
classification. The law does not reqxilre affiliation with
any particular group in order that an individual may be
classified as a conscientious objector.

C. Evaluation of the sincerity of a clalnj of conscientious ob-
jection requires objective consideration of professed belief
not generally shared by persons in the military service.
For that reason, particular care must be exercised not to
deny bona fide convictions solely on the basic that the
professed belief is incompatible with one's own.

3

^First aaiendment (Ch 1, 8/30/62)





A. 1. Individuals inducced into the Service wno have previoui:ly

been classified as 1-A-O by local induction boards should

be assigned -co noncombatant service, which in accordance

vith the President's Executive Order No. 10028, dated

Jasiuary 13, 19^9, is defined as:

(a) service in any unit of the armed forces which is un-

armed at all times;

(b

)

service in the medical department of any of the armed

forces, wherever performed; or

(c) any other assignment the prlinary function of which does^

not require the uae of arms In combat provided that such -*

other assignment is acceptable to the individual concern- *'

ed and does not require him to bear arms or to be trained *

in their use

.

"The term 'nonconbatant training' shall mean any training

which is not concerned with the study, use, or handling

of etrms or weapons .

"

2. Such persons, upon induction into the Service, shall be

transferred to a training center, or station, for recruit

training and shall be subject to all regular training,

except the portions thereof specifically excepted by

Executive Order No. 10028 quoted in A.l, above. There-

after, upon completion of recruit training, they shall

be transferred to Hospital Corps, or Medical Department,

for further training, provided they meet the requirements

therefor. Such men, because of assigmr.ent to mef^ical

units will not be allowed to avoid the important or

hazardous duties which are the responsibility of all mem-

bers of the medical organization. Any man who does not

meet the requirements for this training, or whn fails to

complete the course, will be retained in the service and

employed in noncombatant duties.

B. Personnel who claim to be conscientious objectors and state

that they were so classified by their local board but their

records do not so indicate:

1. The ComiTimiding Officer shall obtain a statement from the

individual concerned and refer the case to the departmental

headquarters of the individual's service for investigation

and decision. The departmental headquarters will inver.ti-

gate the matter through Selective Service.

^Kir-ot amendment (Ch 1, 8/30/621





If it is determined that the man should have been classi-

fied as 1-A-O, but inadvertently was not so classified,

x,he records will be corrected, and the Commanding Officer
vill be directed -co correct his records accordingly. The

main then will be processed as Indicated in V.A. above.

If it is determined ciiat no change in classification is

warranted, the individual will be notified to this effect.

Upon first referring of the case, pending its decision,

the individual sho\ild be retained at his command and

employed in noncorabatant duties.

Individuals requesting discharge for conscientious objec-
tion will submit information as required in Inclosure 1

and such other documentation of their cases as is deemed
appropriate by the military department concerned. In

order to preserve the maximum practicable uniformity of

treatment for like cases, requests and supporting papers
will be forwarded, together with any other pertinent in-

formation known to the immediate command, to departmental
headquarters for individxml determination of action on

the basis of the facts emd the special circumstances of

each case.

Immediately upon receipt of a request for discharge on

grounds of conscientious objection, the member will be

fully advised and counselled concerning the provisions of

Section 3IO3, Title 38, United States Code. That section
provides, in pertinent part, that the discharge of any

person on the ground that he was a conscientious objector
who refused to perform military duty or refused to wear

the uniform or otherwise to comply with lawfuJ. orders of

competent military authority,' shall bar all rigl-itc

(except government insurance) of such person under laws

administered by the Veterans Administration based upon

the period of service from which discharged or dismissed.

The only exception is in cases in which it is established,

to the satisfaction of the Administrator, that the member

was insane. After counselling, the member will be re-

quired to sign and date the statement appended nereto as

Inclosure 2.

Befox'e meuking a determination concerning a possible dis-

cmrge for conscientious objection in cases falling with-
in tiie terms of Section III.G., the military uepartment
concerned will forward each case to the Director,
Selective Service System, V/ashington 2^, D.C, for ar.

aavisory opinion as to the inflividual ' s proper classifi-
cation under the UMT^cS Act. At tne cjiscretion of tac

miliuary department concerned, advisory opinions may
also be sought on merabers with two or more years service.





D. 1. Individuals for whom ]-0 cloRsifl cation is recomirended bv
Selective Service vill'ube considered for discharge by
reason of their conscientious objection to milita.-y
service

.

2. IndividualD for whom I-A-0 clnsaification ir> rcc/onendc-d
4 normally will not be considered for discharge for con-

scientious objection reasons, but will be reasr.lgried to
noncojTibatant duties as outlined in Section V.A. of this
Directive. Individuals so reassigned will be required to
sign and date the statement appended hereto as Inclosure 3.

3. Individuals for whom neither 1-0 nor 1-A-O cJarnificatlon
is recommended by Selective Service will be retained in
military service, subject to normal duty assignments.

h. If, in the Judpnent of the commander concerned, any in-
dividual reassigned to noncombatant duties or returned to
his normal duty assignment demonstrates or has previounly
demonstrated his inability or unwl l].lngneos to cooperate
in a manner which constitutes the basis for disciplinary
action, action will be taken as in the case of any other
member of the military service who demonstrates similar
behavior

.

E. 1. Individuals for whom 1-0 classification is recommended by
Selective Service will normally be discharged "For the
Convenience of the Government." Conscientious objection
will be cited as the supporting reason in order to avoid
possible future confusion. Pending separation, the in-
dividual will be assigned duties providing the minimum
conflict with his professed beliefs and will be required
to maintain the sajne standards of performance and behavior
as other personnel assigned to his unit.

2. Personnel vrLth less than I60 days service (volunteers or
inductees) who are determined to be bona fide conscientious
objectors (l-O cD.assification) and whor.e r«^iuest for sepa-
ration lo made eeirly enough so that discharge occurs prior
to completion of I80 days active duty will be seoarated
for the convenience of the government by reason of con-
scientious objection to permit service in the Conscien-
tious Objectors' Work Program. In such cases, the
Selective Service System will be promptly notified of the
date of discharge from the military service, the fact that
the individual has not completed 1(30 days active duty, and .

will be requested to "induct" the individuals for the
alternate service provided by the UI-1T£:S Act.





V

F. Determination by the military department, in accordance vlth
the facts of the case and the guidelines furnished herein,
shall be final with respect to the administrative separation
of its members

.

VI. IMPLhJ^NTATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE

A. All service regulations and policies J.n conflict vith this
Directive shall be cajicelled immediately. Three copies of
regulations implementing the policies contained herein will
be furnished to the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Manpower)
within 90 days frcm the date of publication of this Directive.

B. This Directive is effective immediately.

VII . CANCEIJJ^TIQN

Reference (b) is hereby superseded and cancelled.

S^ircu>u^^
Deputy Secretary of Defense

InclOBures - 3
1. Required Information
2. Statement (counselling

concerning VA benefits)
3. Statement (counselling con-

cerning designation as
conscientious objector)
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Reqixlred Information

Each person seeking release fran active service from the Armed Forces,
as a conscientious objector, will provide the information indicated below as
the minimum required for consideration of his request. This in no way bars
the Military Departments from requiring additional information as they
desire. The individual may submit such other information as desired.

A. General Information

1. Full name.

2. Military Serial Number.

3. Selective Service Number.

K. Sejnrice Address.

5. Permanent Heme Address.

6. Give the name and euldress of each school Gixd college which you
have attended, together with the dates of your attendance, and state in each
Instance the type of school (public, church, milltai*y, canmercial, etc.).

7. Give a chronological list of all occupations, positions, jobs,
or type of work, other than as a student in school or college, in which you
have at any time been engaged, whether for monetary compensation or not,
giving the type of work, name of employer, address of employer emd the from/
to date for each position or Job held.

8. Give all addresses ajid dates of residence where you have
formerly lived.

9- Give the name and address of your parents and indicate whether
they are living or deceased.

10. State the religious denomination or sect of your father and
mother

.

11. Did you apply to the Selective Service System (Local Board) for
classification as a conscientious objector prior to entry into the Armed
Forces? To which local board? What decision was made by the Board, if
known?

12. If you iiave served less than I80 days in the military service
and axe discharged eis a conscientious objector, e^re you willing to perform
work under the Selective Service Conscientious Objectors' Woric Progronfi

Yes No . Will you consent to the issuance of an order for such
work by your Local Selective Service Board? Yes No .

u





. KeligioxiG Training and Belief.

1. "Do you believe in a Supreme Being?

?. Describe the nature of your belief which is the basis of your claim,
a. state whether or not your belief in a Supreme Being involves duties which
D/-OU are superior to those arising from any human relation.

3. Explain ho\v, when, and from whom or from what soxxrce you received the
piLning and acquired the belief which is the basis of your claim.

k. Give the nexae and present address of the individual upon whom you
bV most for religious guidance.

5. Under what circumstances, if any, do you believe in the use of force?

6. Describe the actions and behavior in your life which in your opinion
01: conspicuously demonstrates the consistency and deprth of your religioiis
ouictions.

7. Have you ever given public expression, written or oral, to the vievm
e;jin expressed as the basis for your claim? If so, specify when and where.

. Participation in Organizations.

1. Have you ever been a member of any military organization or estab-
iiiment before entering the Armed Forces for this tour? If so, state the
aij emd address of same and give reasons why you became a member.

2. Are you a member of a religious sect or organization? If yotcr reply
3 'yes": -

a. State the name of the sect, and the name and location of its
^yjrning body or head if known to you.

b. When, where, and how did you become a member of said sect or

irjuiization?

I

c. State the name and location of the church, congregation, or
leroing where you customarily attend.

d. Give the name, title, and present address of the pastor or leader
)f juch church, congregation or meeting.

e. Describe ceLrefxolly the creed or official statements of said
'elgious sect or organization In relation to participation in wer.

I
3* Describe your relationships with and activities in all organizations

ri.h which you are or have been affiliated, other than military, political,
3r labor organizations.





D. References.

1. Give the name, full addi-ess, occupation or position, and rela-
tionship to you, concerning persons who could supply information ar, to the
sincerity of your professed convictions against participation in war.





STATEMENT

I have been counselled concerning possible non-
entitlement to benefits administered by the Veterans
Administration due to discharge from the militeLry
service as a conscientious objector. I understand that
a discharge as a conscientious objector^ who refuses to
perform satisfactory military duty or otherwise to com-
ply with lawful orders of competent military authority,
may bar all riglits, based upon the period of service
from which discharged, under axxy laws administered by
the Veterans Administration except my legal entitlement
(if any) to einy war risk, government (converted) or
National Service Life Insurance.





STATEMI^-^

I have been coionselled concerning designation as a
conscientious objector. Based on my religious training
and belief, I consider myself to be a conscientlouB
objector and am conscientiously opposed to participation
in combatant training ajid service. I r'iquest assignment
to noncorabatant duties for the remainder of my term of
service. I fully understand that on expiration of my
cxrrrent term of service I am not eligible for voluntary
enlistment, reenllstment, or active service in the Armed
Forces

.
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NO. 21, 944

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

PVT. FELIX CHAVEZ, JR.

,

Appellant,

vs.

MAJOR GENERAL R. G. FERGUSSON,
U. S. Army, Commanding General,
Fort Ord, California,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

The Brief submitted by Appellee is striking because of the

demonstrated ability to sidestep the issues raised by Appellant in his

Opening Brief. Appellee's Brief is striking because neither in the recitation

of the Facts of the Case nor in the Specification of Errors, and last but not

least, in the Argument, the term due process of law does not appear once.

Appellee's Brief is further striking because it fails to disquss the important

issue :i;;aised as to the authority of the military to court martial Appellant

for the third time.

Appellee's Brief is striking because the Complaint, it self, as

summarized in our Opening Brief on pages 2 to 4, states that
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"Appellant also cTaimed that Appellee was in-
formed of his inability to participate In

preparation for war, nevertheless, caused him
to be court-martialed twice and threatened with
a third one; thus depriving him of due process of
law* " (emphasis ours)

Appellee, while not disagreeing with the Statement of the Case as

given by Appellant on pages 4 to 7 of the Opening Brief, chooses to

disregard it. On page 6 of the Opening Brief, it is claimed that Appellant

"... was entitled to separation and the denial of
such separation by the Appellee was illegal,

unconstitutional and void, and it was in clear
defiance of AR 635-20. It was also contrary to
the pj-ovisions of Title 50 USC 456 (j) pertaining
to conscientious objectors. "

The Specification of Errors as given on pages 7 and 8 of Appellant's

Opening Brief are clear and Q,Dncise, and the fact that Appellant

". . .did institute what appears to be a separate
proceeding in this Court, ..."

as set forth on page 8 of Appellee's Brief diminishes the issues presented

not at all.

Appellee's Argument, pages 10 to 15 of his Brief, repeats the

argument that was presented by him in his Motion to Dismiss Appeal. In

fact, the cases cited in said Motion with the exception of United States vs.

Macintosh, 283 US 605, Clark vs> United States (9th Cir. ), 236 F 2d 13,

and Fleming vs. United States (lOth Cir. ), 344 F 2d 912, are taken into

Appellee ^s Brief substantially verbatim from the Motion to Dismiss Appeal.

Since Appellant's Opposition to Appellee's Motion to Dismiss Appeal

answered the references to those cases which were cited in the Motion to

Dismiss, we are not going to burden the Court by repeating our argument.
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but will restrict ourselves to that of Appellee's argument which appears to

be in addition to his Motion to Dismiss.

ARGUMENT

I

The reliance of Appellee upon United States vs. Macintosh, supra,

is misplaced because of subsequent decisions of the Supreme Court. While

Appellant claims, and we believe correctly, that because the issues are of

constitutional dimension as interpreted by the United States Court of

Military Appeals in United States vs. Tempia, CM 19815, Appellee fails to

meet this thrust of our argument as it fails to meet the thrust that the

threatened third court martial deprived Appellant of due process of law.

Instead of this argument. Appellee seems to rely on United States vs.

Macintosh. However, we believe that Girouard vs. United States, 328 US

61, 66 S Ct 826, clearly overruled the Macintosh case, as it overruled the

companion cases. United States vs. Schwimmer, 279 US 644, 49 S Ct 448,

and United States vs. Bland, 283 US 636, 51 S Ct 569.

Justice Douglas, who delivered the opinion of the Court in the

Girouard case, stated that

". . .the principle emerging from the three cases
(nneaning the Schwimmer, Macintosh, and Bland
cases) obliterates any factual distinction among
them. As we recognized in In re Summers, 325 U.S.
561, 572, 577, 65 S. Ct. 1307, 1313, 1316, they
stand for the same general rule -- than an alien who
refuses to bear arms will not be admitted to

citizenship. As an original proposition, we could not

agree with that rule. The fallacies underlying it

were, we think demonstrated in the dissents of

Mr. Justice Holmes in the Schwimmer case and of

Mr. Chief Justice Hughes in the Macintosh case.
"

It appears to the Appellant that this wording clearly indicates that





the Macintosh case is no authority for the proposition advanced by the

Appellee. In fact. Justice Douglas seems to hold the dissenting opinionsof

Chief Justice Hughes in the Macintosh case and of Justice Holmes in the

Schwimmer case are the law pursuant to the Girouard decision. Chief

Justice Hughes pointed out in the Macintosh case at page 633 that religious

scruples against bearing arms have been recognized by Congress in the

various draft laws. Justice Holmes in the Schwimmer case at page 654

underlines the principle

". , . of the Constitution that more imperatively
calls for attachment than any other it is the
principle of free thought -- not free thought for
those who agree with us but freedom for the
thought that we hate. "

Justice Douglas in the Girouard case joins Justice Holmes by saying that

"The struggle for religious liberty has through the
centuries been an effort to accommodate the
demands of the State to the conscience of the
individual. The victory for freedom of thought
recorded in our Bill of Rights recognizes that in the
domain of conscience there is a moral power higher
than the State. Throughout the ages men have
suffered death rather than subordinate their allegiance
to God to the authority of the State. Freedom of

religion guaranteed by the First Amendment is the
product of that struggle.

"

Justice Douglas then quotes United States vs. Ballard, 322 US 78, 64 S Ct

882, to the effect that

"Freedom of thought, which includes freedom of

religious belief, is basic in a society of free
men. West Virginia State Board of Education vs.

Barnette, 319 U.S. 624, 63 S Ct 1178, 87 L.Ed.
1628, 147 A. L. R. 674."

The majority of the Supreme Court in the Macintosh case then concludes

". . .that the Schwimmer, Macintosh and Bland cases
do not state the correct rule of law.

"
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Appellant submits that Appellee's Argument, under I, relying on

Macintosh, does not state the law correctly and the cases cited by Appellee

in addition are similarly lacking authority. (Appellee cites on page 10,

Storey vs. United States (9th Cir), 370 F 2d 255, which citation appears in

his Motion to Dismiss Appeal. However, there it is designated as Stacey

vs. United States.

)

Appellee relies on an old, old case when he cites In re Grimley,

137 US 147 as an authority for the apparent claim of Appellee that a military

man by enlisting into the Armed Forces of the United States, ipso facto,

loses his constitutional rights. This argument was put to naught by Tempia

vs. United States , supra, as thanks to the genius of the Constitution the

hoary concepts were substituted by conceps more in line with our under-

standing of social problems, Reading the law as it ought to be read, one

must conclude that wines and law decisions do not necessarily inaprove with

age.

We do not believe that Appellee would insist that Scott vs. Sanford
,

19 Howard 329 is still the law just because it was de^^ided in 1857 to the

effect that a Negro has no standing in the Court of law. The Supreme Court

of the United States felt unbound by an ancient holding and so it stated in

Brown vs. Board of Education, 349 US 294, 75 S Ct 753.

II

Contrary to Appellee's claim, there is an authority, and that is

the due process of law which compels action even by the military.

Burns vs. Wilson, 346 US 137, 73 S Ct 1045 contradicts Appellee's

claim presented as his second point on pages 14 and 15. In that case





"The District Court dismissed the applications
without hearing evidence, and without further
review, after satisfying itself that the courts

-

martial which tried petitioners ha.d jurisdiction
over the crimes with which they were charged
as well as jurisdiction to impose the sentences
which petitioners received, "

The Court of Appeals affirmed the District Court judgment and the Supreme

Court granted certiorari because

"Petitioners'' allegations are serious, and, as
reflected by the divergent bases for decision
in the two courts below, the case poses important
problems concerning the proper administration
of the power of a civil court to review the judgment
of a court -ma];^tial. . .

"

In the Burns case, the petitioners claimed they they were court

martialed and sentenced by that court

"as a result of proceedings which denied them basic
rights guaranteed by the Constitution.

"

as the Appellant here claims that the two court martials and the threatened

third court martial denied him basic rights guaranteed by the self-same

Constitution. In the Burns case the Supreme Court held that

"The federal civil courts have jurisdiction over
such applications. By statute. Congress has
charged them with the exercise of that power
(footnote refers to 28 USC, Para. 2241).
Accordingly, our initial concern is not whether the

District Court has any power at all to consider
petitioners' applications; rather our concern is

with the manner in which the Court should proceed
to exercise its power. "

Appellant claimed in his original Brief and he repeats his claim here

that the District Court errored when it denied his application without a

hearing on the ground that the federal courts have no jurisdiction over

court martial proceedings. While we know that the Supreme Court made it





clear that

"Military law, like state lav/, is a jurisprudence which
exists separate and apart from the law which governs
in our federal judicial establishment. "

[

Nevertheless, it also held in the Burns case that i

"The military courts, like the state courts, have the same
;

responsibilities as do the federal courts to protect a person
from a violation of his constitutional rights,

"

Appellant set forth in his original pleadings filed in the District Court

that the threatened third court martial, if proceeded with, will violate his

constitutional right not to be put into double or multiple jeopardy. In

accordance with the holding of the Supreme Court in the Burns case and in

accordance with the holding of the United States Court of Military Appeals

in the Tempia case, supra, the District Court was bound to assume

jurisdiction and because of its failure to do so, the holding of that Court
j

must be reversed.

CONCLUSION

As set forth in Appellant's Opening Brief, Appellant's rights which

were threatened by the third court martial were of constitutional

dimiensions, and therefore, the District Court was bound to assum.e

jurisdiction and grant the protection as prayed for in the Complaint. The

refusal of the District Court to do so requires reversal and the Appellant

prays that an .Order may be entered upon the Trial Court to proceed with the

hearing of the case on the merits.

Such a hearing ought to be granted even though the third court martial

did in effect take place as it is claimed by Appellee on page 15 of his Brie£

Pursuant to this third court martial he v/as found guilty and was sentenced

to one year at hard labor and to a dishonorable discharge as well as
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forfeiture of all pay and allowances. It is true as set forth by Appellee that

the review of the decision of the court martial is now before the Board of

Review. In fact^ the Brief on behalf of Appellant was forwarded to the

Board of Review in Washington, D, C. on November 20, 1967. There is,

however, no decision, and since Appellant may have completed his court

miartial sentence before a decision is forthcoming from the Board of

Review, there is no likelihood whatsoever that the case

". . . may reach the Court of Military Appeals^ "

as claimed by Appellee.

Appellant submits that whatever the decision of the Board of Review

may be, the issue raised by him in the District Court of the United States

is not moot, and, in fact, the constitutional questions remain whether or

not the court martial had jurisdiction to proceed against him the third time

and whether or not the sentence which stamped his action based on his

religious scruples "dishonorable" may stand. To determine that issue, an

Order upon the United States District Court to hear the case on the merits

is required.

Dated, Carmel, California,

January 10, 1968,

Respectfully submitted,

FRANCIS HEISLER
HEISLER & STEWART
PETER FRANCK

Attorneys tor App e llant

.
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NO . 2 19 45

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

FRED DOUGLAS DAVIS,

Appellant

,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

I

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from the judgment of the United States District

Court for the Southern District of California denying the appellant's motion

pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2255 to vacate the criminal

judgment against him. (C.T. 21).

The District Court had jurisdiction by virtue of Title 28, United

States Code, Section 2255.

The jurisdiction of this court is based on Title 28, United States

Code, Sections 1291, 1294 and 2255.

-1-





II

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant was charged in a three count indictment with violations

of Title 21, United States Code, Section 174, and Title 18, United States

Code, Section 1407. On April 28, 1965, after a trial by jury in the United

States District Court, for the then Southern District of California, Southern

Division, appellant was convicted on two of the three counts in the indictment

Following his conviction, appellant was sentenced to twenty years

and fined the sum of $20,000 on Count II of the indictment and three years

on Count III of the indictment. The sentences were to commence and run

concurrently resulting in a total imprisonment of twenty years and a total

fine of $20,000.

Ill

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On January 24, 1966, pursuant to Title 28, United States Code,

Section 2255, appellant petitioned the sentencing court to vacate and set

1/
aside the judgment of conviction against him. (C.T. 2-8).

Conrad Walker, attorney, was appointed to represent petitioner in

the hearing which petitioner attended. (C.T. 10).

On August 12, 1966, United States District Judge James M. Carter

filed a memorandum to counsel in which the petition was denied . (C.T. 16-

17). On February 3, 1967 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were

filed as was an Order denying the petitioner's motion. (C.T. 18-21).

J -- 1

— C.T." refers to Clerk's Transcript. -2-
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On March 6, 19 67, petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. (C.T. 25).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Petitioner retained Murray Goodrich, attorney, to represent him for

2/
purposes of bail reduction, (R.T. 9, 41) and discussed the matter with

petitioner thoroughly. (R.T. 41).

After petitioner was released on bond, he retained Goodrich but

never paid him. Goodrich was relieved as retained counsel, and then

appointed by the Court. (R.T. 44).

Attorney Goodrich talked to petitioner's wife in petitioner's presence

and on several other occasions and both agreed she could be of no help. (R.T.

42, 43) . Goodrich talked to petitioner's mother, who said she could be of no

help to her son. (R.T. 42).

Petitioner admitted on cross-examination that he had discussed the

case with Mr. Goodrich on several occasions and that he never asked that

his mother or wife be called as witnesses. (R.T. 28-29).

Goodrich, an experienced criminal and civil trial attorney, (R.T. 47-

48) felt it would have an adverse effect to call the wife as a witness. (R.T.

42).

He also felt the petitioner should not testify as a matter of trial

strategy, because of his prior felony conviction, and because he couldn't

satisfactorily explain his presence at the airport. Petitioner agreed he should

not testify. (R.T. 39) . Petitioner didn't tell Mr. Goodrich he wanted to

testify and admitted his prior felony conviction. (R.T. 18, 19) .

2/— "R.T." refers to Reporters Transcript -3-





Petitioner complimented Goodrich on doing a good job. Goodrich

advised petitioner before the jury returned to appeal if he lost. Then after

the case was over he told him again he could appeal. He never asked

Goodrich to appeal. (R.T. 58, 65).

Petitioner admits they discussed an Appeal. (R.T. 64) .

IV

ERROR SPECIFIED

Appellant has specified four points on appeal:

"1. The District Court erred in denying appellant's motion to

vacate and set aside sentence where the record clearly

reflects the deprivation of assistance of counsel at a

crucial stage in the criminal proceedings.

1(a) The District Court erred in denying appellant's motion to

vacate and set aside sentence where the record fails to

show an intentional waiver of his right to appeal.

2. The District Court erred in denying appellant's motion to

vacate and set aside sentence where the record and files

clearly reflected the deprivation of a fundamental and

basic constitutional right.

2(a) An accused in a criminal prosecution has the constitutional

right to present his own witnesses to establish a defense

and it is plain that this constitutional guarantee may not

be waived by or through trial strategy of court appointed trial

counsel without the accused's specific assent."

-4-
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V

ARGUMENT

A. APPELLANT PETITIONER WAS NOT DEPRIVED OF COUNSEL.

Judge Carter found that attorney Goodrich advised petitioner of his

right to appeal and that petitioner knowingly waived that right. (C,T. 17, 18) .

The record sustains such a finding. Judge Carter further believes Goodrich

and not the petitioner. (C.T. 19).

See Layne v. United States , 266 F.Supp. 656 (EDTenn.S.D. 1957)

Judge Carter had known Goodrich in New York and in San D ego. (R.T.

36). Petitioner was impeached by his prior felony conviction. (R.T. 37).

Judge Carter found that the petitioner had counsel of his choice

before, during, and after the trial. (C.T. 16, 18).

In this case Mr. Goodrich told appellant of his right to appeal on

more than one occasion, (R.T. 57, 58) and said "appeal anything if you

lose it." After the conviction attorney Goodrich said "well you can still

appeal the case. (R.T. 58)" "I simply told him you can appeal the thing,

and right away." (R.T. 65). Appellant admits discussing an appeal. (R.T.

64).

A bare allegation such as that (deception practiced by counsel) does

not open the prison gates.

Desmond v. United States , 333 F.2d 378 (1st Cir. 1964)

The facts show petitioner was not "misled" by counsel as was

found in Doyle v. United States , 366 F.2d 394 (9th Cir. 1962) relied on by

-5-
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petitioner. Goodrich told petitioner "I wouldn't handle an appeal. (R.T. 64) .

An additional fact indicating a waiver of his right to appeal is

evidenced by the late lodging of the instant petition on January 24, 1966,

several months after his conviction and sentence on April 28, 19 65. (C.T. 2,

8) . During the interim period retained counsel made a written motion for re-

duction of sentence on June 16, 1965. Such delay alone is sufficient to sus-

tain the Court's denial of the petition.

Layne v. United States , supra ;

Desmond v. United States , supra.

In Desmond at 381 it was said, "It will not even do for a prisoner

to wait any longer than is reasonably necessary to prepare appropriate moving

papers, however inartistic, after discovery of the deception practiced upon

him by his attorney."

Under this section, there must be a showing of plain reversible

error by the petitioner.

Mitchell V. United States , 254 F.2d 954 (D.C. Cir. 1958)

Dodd V. United States , 321 F.2d 240 (9th Cir. 1963)

Glouser v. United States , 296 F.2d 853 (8th Cir. 1961), cert,

denied, 369 U. S. 825

Watkins v. United States, 356 F.2d 472 (9th Cir. 1966)

Judge Carter found to the contrary after a review of the trial record.

(C.T. 20).

Relying on Dodd, the Court in Watkins denied relief under Section

2255 even though the attorney failed to appeal the original conviction as he

-6-





had been requested to do.

Also see Wilson v. United States , 338 F.2d 54 (9th Cir. 1964)

where contrary to instructions, the attorney failed to appeal.

Failure to appeal may not be excused upon a mere showing of

neglect of counsel.

Dennis v. United States , 177 F.2d 195 (4th Cir. 1949)

The same was true where counsel refused to appeal because the

defendant could not pay a fee.

Mitchell V. United States, supra .

B. APPELLANT PETITIONER WAS NOT DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHT

TO HAVE WITNESSES IN HIS BEHALF.

Petitioner argues that he was deprived of the right to the testimony

of his mother and wife at his trial.

Judge Carter found that petitioner discussed with counsel the

possibility of calling petitioner's mother and wife and decided against it as a

matter of trial strategy. (C.T. 19)

.

See McDonald v. United States, 282 F.2d 737 (9th Cir. 1960) .

He further found there was no material evidence they could have

offered on petitioner's guilt or innocence. (C.T. 19) .

The record sustains such a finding.

Attorney Goodrich not only asked the petitioner if his mother and

wife, or anyone else, could help, but also asked the wife and mother. (R.T.

41, 42, 52-54). The mother expressly denied knowing anything at all. (R.T.

-7-





42) . Petitioner and Goodrich agreed the mother's testimony would be useless.

(R.T. 43).

Petitioner thought he was going to trial on February 9, 1965, and

brought his wife rather than his mother. (R.T. 21) . Admittedly his wife

could only testify to a conversation with attorney Goodrich. (R.T. 17, 24-

25) . It appears significant that neither testified at this hearing.

It has been specifically held that impeaching testimony is not

sufficient to grant a petition such as this.

Layne v . United States , supra .

Appellant contends that Himmelfarb v. United States , 175 F.2d 924

(9th Cir. 1949) holds that a specific assent is required before a constitutional

right may be waived.

In Leser v. United States , 358 F.2d 313 (9th Cir. 1966) it was

noted this expression is dicta and the Court found in effect that silence may

constitute a waiver.

The relatively recent and much cited case of Dodd v. United States ,

supra , in an ooinion written by the then United States District Judge James

M. Carter, (now a Judge for the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals) appears to

hold against petitioner as to most points raised by petitioner in this appeal .

Where , as the trial court did in this hearing, a Finding of Fact is

made, the finding shall not be overturned unless clearly erroneous.

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 52(a)

Arellanes v. United States, 353 F.2d 270, 272 (9th Cir. 1965)

In Arellanes at page 272, the Court said, "The appellant, then,





comes to this Court with the heavy burden of persuading us that the trial

Judge's findings were clearly erroneous ." (Emphasis supplied). Arellanes

involved a 2255 Motion, also.

VI

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully submitted the appellant's

petition to vacate sentence in the District Court should be denied.

Respectfully submitted.

EDWIN L. MILLER, JR.

United States Attorney

SHELBY R. GOTT,
Assistant U. S. Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee

,

United States of America.

-9-
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No. 21947

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT
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Appellant^

vs.

National Molasses Co., a corporation; Orita Land
& Cattle Corporation, a corporation; Heber
Cattle Feeders, a corporation; and Allied Cattle
Feeders, a corporation,

Appellees.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

This appeal is by Plaintiff-Appellant, Frank N.

Rawlings, from a final District Court order sum-

marily dismissing this action for infringement of

United States Patent No. 2,748,00L* The dismissal

was granted on Appellees' motion [R. 337], based solely

on the proposition that one Feed Service Corporation

(hereinafter called "Feed Service"), a non-exclusive li-

censee under the patent (and not subject to service of

process), has a "joint interest" therein which renders

it an indispensable party within the meaning of Rule

19(a), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. There is

nothing in the record showing that Feed Service owns

or asserts any claim or interest other than the non-

exclusive license, Exhibit B.

*While Patent No. 2,807,546 was sued upon in the original

complaint, the amended and supplemental complaint was sub-

sequently dismissed as to that patent.



I.

Statement of Pleadings and Jurisdictional Facts.

A. Pleadings.

The pleadings are: the original complaint [R. 1],

which was superseded by the amended and supple-

mental complaint [R. 211]; and Appellees' answer to

the amended and supplemental complaint [R. 276],

challenging validity of the patent and denying infringe-

ment.

The motion proceedings are: Appellees' motion to

dismiss [R. 329] ; the Court's order granting the mo-

tion [R. 526] ; Appellant's motion for new trial [R.

529] ; and the District Court's order denying the mo-

tion for new trial [R. 571].

The documents evidencing the title status of the pat-

ent are: the issued patent, R. 336; the assignment,

Ex. A, R. 332, see Appendix A; and the non-exclusive

license, Ex. B, R. 334, see Appendix B.

B. Jurisdiction. jH

Jurisdiction of the District Court arises under the

patent statute, Title 35 U.S.C, and under 28 U.S.C.

1338a. Venue arises under 28 U.S.C. 1400a. Appel-

late jurisdiction arises under 28 U.S.C. 1291.

C. The Parties.

The parties are: Plaintiff-Appellant Frank N.

Rawlings, and the Defendants-Appellees, National Mo-

lasses Co., a Delaware corporation (hereinafter some-

times called "National"), licensed to do business in the

State of California, and maintaining a regular and es-

tablished place of business in Wilmington, Los An-
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geles County, California; Orita Land & Cattle Corpo-

ration, Heber Cattle Feeders, and Allied Cattle Feeders,

California corporations having regular and established

places of business in Imperial County, California.

II.

Statement of the Case.

A. Facts.

The amended and supplemental complaint charges in-

fringement by appellees of United States Patent No.

2,748,001. The patent is for a joint invention of ap-

pellant and one Frank C. Anderson (hereinafter called

"Anderson"). Prior to issuance of the patent, An-

derson assigned all his interest to Feed Service; and

the patent issued to appellant and Feed Service, as co-

owners, as shown on the face of the patent [R. 336].

Appellant gave written notice to Feed Service (a

Nebraska corporation not subject to service of proc-

ess), of the intended filing of this action, and invited

it to join, which invitation was declined (see appel-

lant's unrefuted affidavit [R. 569], Appendix C p.

5a). Upon said refusal to join, appellant instituted

this action, naming Feed Service, then a co-owner of

the patent, as an unwilling party, although it never

appeared, and service of the court's process could not

be obtained.

Subsequently, and prior to the filing of the amended

and supplemental complaint, appellant acquired from

Feed Service a full assignment of all the latter's right,

title and interest in the patent [Ex. A, Appendix B,

p. la], and Feed Service acquired from appellant a

non-cxclusivc license to practice the invention and to

non-exclusively sublicense others to do so. [Ex. B,
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Appendix B, p. 3a]. By stipulation and court order

[R. 209], appellant then dismissed the action as to

Feed Service and, in his new capacity as sole owner,

filed his amended and supplemental complaint.

After answer, appellees moved to dismiss under Rule

19(a), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the motion

being- based on the non-joinder of Feed Service, claimed

by appellees to be an indispensable party; which mo-

tion was granted by the District Court order entered

December 21, 1966 [R. 526], reading as follows:

"At the time this suit was filed, Feed Service

Corporation of Nebraska owned one-half interest

in the patents in suit but decHned to participate

in this action either as plaintiff or defendant.

"To circumvent rule 19(a), the plaintiff ob-

tained a document entitled 'Patent Assignment'

from Feed Service Corporation in exchange for a

document entitled 'Patent License Grant.'

"However, after the exchange of these docu-

ments. Feed Service Corporation still has all the

rights it had as co-owner, inclding the right to

grant sublicenses and retain the royalties.

"THEREFORE, it appears to me that Feed

Service Corporation has a joint interest in the

patent in suit and is an indispensable party within

the meaning of Rule 19(a).

"Defendants' motion to dismiss is therefore

granted."

After which order appellant moved for a new trial

[R. 529] under Rule 59 of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, which motion was denied by the District
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Court's order entered March 24, 1967 [R. 571], read-

ing as follows

:

"This court granted a Motion to Dismiss for

failure to join an indispensable party within the

meaning of Rule 19(a), and plaintiff now moves

for a new trial pursuant to Rule 59 which de-

fendant counters with a Motion to Strike. The

motions were submitted on briefs.

"I have reviewed the briefs and still feel that

the interest of Feed Service in this patent makes

them an indispensable party.

"THEREFORE the motion for new trial is de-

nied."

Thus, the dismissal leaves appellant without any ade-

quate remedy for the infringement.

On April 17, 1967, appellant noticed this appeal.

B. Questions Involved.

1. Whether Feed Service owns or claims any inter-

est in the subject matter of this action which renders

it an indispensable party.

2. Whether Feed Service still owns the rights it

owned previous to its assignment. Ex. A, at which time

it was a co-owner of the patent.

3. Whether the District Court construed, or was

justified in construing, the contracts Exhibits A and B

contrary to their express terms and conditions.

4. Whether the record established that Feed Service

owns or asserts any claim such as is expressly required
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by Rules 19(a) and 19(b), Federal Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure, to render it an indispensable party.

5. Whether the record establishes that Feed Service

owns or asserts any clain which, in its absence, could

not be amply protected by protective provisions in a

judgment between the existing parties.

6. Whether the record establishes that Feed Service

owns or asserts any claim which, in its absence, would

be prejudiced by a judgment between the existing par-

ties.

7. Whether the District Court's dismissal for non-

joinder of Feed Service deprives Appellant of an ade-

quate remedy for the alleged infringement since Feed

Service is not subject to service of process.

8. Whether in the absence of Feed Service a judg-

ment between the existing parties would be adequate.

9. Whether the record establishes any reason why

this action cannot proceed to judgment among the

existing parties pursuant to Rule 19(b), Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure.

10. Whether a non-exclusive patent licensee is a

proper party to an action by the patent owner for in-

fringement of the patent.

Appellant submits that questions 1-6, inclusive, and 9

and 10 should be answered in the negative, and that

questions 7 and 8 should be answered in the affirma-

tive.
•

^
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III.

Specification of Errors.

Appellant contends that it was clearly erroneous for

the District Court:

A. To conclude and hold that Feed Service is an

indispensable party and to summarily dismiss the ac-

tion on that ground.

B. To conclude and hold that, after the documents,

Exhibits A and B were executed, Feed Service still

had all the rights in the patent which it had before those

documents were executed.

C. To sumarily dismiss this action.

D. In failing to conclude and hold that Feed Service

does not own or assert any claim which would bar pro-

ceeding to judgment among the existing parties to this

action.

E. In failing to conclude and hold that Feed Service

does not own or assert any claim which would prevent

complete relief from being accorded in its absence by a

judgment between the existing parties.

F. To fail to conclude and hold that the non-exclu-

sive license, Exhibit B, held by Feed Service, does not

constitute a claim which renders Feed Service an in-

dispensable party.

G. To fail to conclude that there is any issue prop-

erly before the Court which questions the authenticity

of the contracts Exhibit A and B.

H. To fail to construe Exhibits A and B in ac-

cordance with their express intents, terms and condi-

tions.



IV.

Argument.

A. By Its Terms, Rule 19(a), Federal Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure, Is Not Applicable to an Absent Party Which

Is Not Subject to Service of Process, or Which Does

Not Assert a Claim of the Nature Required by Sub-

divisions (1) and (2) of the Rule.

The ground upon which the District Court dismissed

this action, as well as the ground on which appellees'

Motion to Dismiss is based, is stated in the order to be:

"that Feed Service Corporation has a joint in-

terest in the patent in suit and is an indispensable

party within the meaning of Rule 19(a)." [R.

526].

Rule 19(a), as well as Rule 19(b), Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure, were both revised and amended in 1966

and, as amended, read as follows

:

"(a) Persons to be Joined if Feasible. A per-

son zvho is subject to service of process and whose

joinder will not deprive the court of jurisdiction

over the subject matter of the action shall be joined

as a party in the action if (1) in his absence com-

plete relief cannot be accorded amont those al-

ready parties, or (2) he claims an interest relating

to the subject of the action and is so situated that

the disposition of the action in his absence nmy (i)

as a practical matter impair or impede his ability

to protect that interest or (ii) leave any of the

persons already parties subject to a substantial

risk of incurring double, multiple, or otherwise in-

consistent obligations by reason of his claimed in-

terest. If he has not been so joined, the court
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shall order that he be made a party. If he should

join as a plaintiff but refuses to do so, he may be

made a defendant, or, in a proper case, an in-

voluntary plaintiff. If the joined party objects

to venue and his joinder would render the venue

of the action improper, he shall be dismissed from

the action." (emphasis added).

"(b) Determination by Court Whenever Join-

der not Feasible. // a person as described in sub-

division- (a) (l)-(2) hereof cannot he made a

party^ the court shall determine whether in equity

and good conscience that action should proceed

among the parties before it, or should be dismissed,

the absent person being thus regarded as indis-

pensable. The factors to be considered by the court

include: first, to zvhat extent a judgment rendered

in the person's absence might be prejudicial to him

or those already parties; second, the extent to

which, by protective provisions in the judgment,

by the shaping of relief, or other measures, the

prejudice can be lessened or avoided; third, whether

a judgment rendered in the person's absence

zvill be adequate; fourth, whether the plaintiff

zvill have an adequate remedy if the action is dis-

missed for nonjoinder." (Emphasis added.)

The amended rules were fully analyzed and discussed

in Barron and Holt::off, "Federal Practice and Pro-

cedure", Rides Edition, Section 521, as quoted in full

in Appendix D page 8a to this brief.

Rule 19(a), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, ex-

pressly provides that it applies only where it is feasible

to join an absent person; and, even then, it applies only
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where the absent person asserts a claim of the char-

acter defined by subdivisions 1 and 2 of the rule,

neither of which is the case here.

It should be pointed out that, while Rule 19(b) was

not invoked, by reference, it also incorporates the re-

quirements of subdivisions (1) and (2) of Rule 19(a);

Rule 19b appearing to apply only where the absent per-

son asserts a claim of the character required by said

subdivisions.

Apart from the fact that Feed Service is not subject

to service of process, it is Appellant's fundamental

contention that a non-exclusive patent license, such as

held by Feed Service, does not include or convey any

ownership or other interest in the patent which could

render it an indispensable or even a permissible party

Waterman v. Mackenzie, 138 U.S. 252, 256,

11 S. Ct. 334, 34 L. Ed. 923 ; and

Western Electric Co. v. Pacciit Reproducer

Corp., 42 F. 2d 116 (C.A. 2, 1930), cited

under Paragraph IV, C, of this brief. f
However, even if it could properly be held that a

non-exclusive license constitutes a claim or interest of

the character required by the rules, it is submitted that

the Court below properly should have weighed the al-

leged claim in the light of the provisions of Rule 19-

(b)*.

As pointed out in Barron and Holiaoff, Federal

Practice and Procedure, Rules Edition, Section 512,

quoted in full in Appendix D, page 8a to this brief,

*The moving party, however, did not place before the court

any showing as to the factors expressly required by the rule to be

considered by the court in applying the discretionary powers pro-

vided by the rule.

I
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the 1966 amendments to Rule 19, Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, were not so much for the purpose of chang-

ing the meaning and purport of the old rule, as it pre-

viously had been applied by the courts, but, rather, the

amendments were for the purpose of clarifying the rule

and making its application more equitable and less

rigid, harsh and inflexible. That is, the amended rule

enables the court to avoid the harsh remedy of sum-

marily dismissing an action, as the Court did in this

case, by directing that the case proceed to judgment be-

tween the parties already before the court, in which

case appropriate protective clauses could be included

in the judgment to avoid any prejudice with respect to

any claim or interest asserted by the absent party.

Prior to the 1966 amendments to the rule, it had

been interpreted by this court in the leading case of

State of Washington v. United States, C.A. 9, 1936,

87 F. 2d 421, 427, from which this court quoted ap-

provingly in Stumpf v. Fidelity Gas Co., C.A. 9, 1961,

294 F. 2d 886, as follows

:

" 'There are many adjudicated cases in which

expressions are made with respect to the tests used

to determine whether an absent party is a neces-

sary party or an indispensable party. From these

authorities it appears that the absent party must

be interested in the controversy. After first de-

termining that such party is interested in the con-

troversy, the court must make a determination of

the following questions applied to the particular

case : ( 1 ) Is the interest of the absent party dis-

tinct and severable? (2) In the absence of such

party, can the court render justice between the

parties before it? (3) Will the decree made, in



—12—

the absence of such party, have no injurious effect

on the interest of such absent party? (4) Will

the final determination, in the absence of such

party, be consistent with equity and good con-

science ?"

A recent decision interpreting the rule as amended

is as follows:

"Since the amendments to Rule 19 of the Fed-

eral Rules of Civil Procedure, the former desig-

nations of proper, necessary, and indispensable

parties have given way to the concept of parties

regarded as indispensable by the Court for just ad-

judication. Whenever joinder of a party is not

feasible, the Court must determine whether such

party's presence is indispensable for just adjudica-

tion. Rule 19(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure suggests the factors to be considered

by the Court in this determination."

Noi-vell V. McGrazu-Edison Co., 154 USPQ
355, 356 (1967, E.D. Wis.). M

It is believed that the District Court's decision sum-

marily dismissing the present action for the non-

joinder of Feed Service, which is not subject to serv-

ice of the court's process, aptly points up the advisabil-

ity of the 1966 amendments to Rule 19, because the

summary dismissal here, unless reversed, deprives Ap-

pellant of an adequate remedy for the alleged infringe-

ment by Appellees; which result could have been

avoided by the Court applying the discretionary powers

provided by the amended rule.
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B. Even a Patent Owner, Which Is Beyond the Reach

of Process, Will Be Bound by a Judgment Rendered

in Its Absence When It Has Been Invited but Refused

to Join Voluntarily.

As pointed out under Paragraph II A of this brief,

Appellant gave Feed Service notice of the imminent

filing of this action and invited it to appear voluntarily,

which invitation was declined, after which refusal this

action was commenced. Thus, whether or not Feed

Service claims any actionable interest in the patent, it

would nevertheless be bound by the judgment.

"The owner beyond the reach of process may
be made coplaintiff by the licensee, but not until

after he has been requested to become such volun-

tarily. If he dechnes to take any part in the case,

though he knows of its imminent pendency and of

his obligation to join, he will be bound by the de-

cree which follows."

Independent Wireless Telegraph Company v.

Radio Corporation of America, 1926, 269

U.S. 459, 70 L. Ed. 357.

C. A Non-Exclusive Licensee Is Not a Proper Party to a

Patent Infringement Action.

The patent statute (35 U.S.C. 154) defines a patent

grant as consisting solely of the "right to exclude

others from making, using or selHng the invention."

The patent document also defines the grant in the same

language.

Prior to 35 U.S.C. 154, the statute defined the patent

grant as consisting of the "exclusive right to make,

use and sell the invention", although the Courts had

interpreted that provision as meaning only "the right
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to exclude others". See the revision note accompany-

ing 35 U.S.C. 154, reading as follows:

"The wording of the granting clause is changed

to 'the right to exclude others from making, using,

or selling", following language used by the Su-

preme Court, to render the meaning clearer."

Prior to 35 U.S.C. 154, the Supreme Court

had held, in Special Equipment Company v. Coe, 324

U.S. 370, 89 L. Ed. 1006, 1012, as follows:

"The patent grant is not of a right to the

patentee to use the invention, for that he already

possesses. It is a grant of the right to exclude

others from using it."

Therefore, in order to have any right to exclude

others from the patent monopoly, a licensee must hold

a license which is at least exclusive to all or

part of the United States. A non-exclusive licensee

does not possess any such right. ^
35 U.S.C. 100 defines a patentee as:

"a person or persons to whom the patent was

issued and its successors in title to the patent."

35 U.S.C. 261 provides that an assignment or con-

veyance of any title to a patent must be in writing and

must convey an exclusive right to the patent in all or

part of the United States.

35 U.S.C. 281 (defining remedies for patent in-

fringement) only provides that a "patentee" (as defined

in 35 U.S.C. 100) shall have remedy by civil action

for infringement of its patent.

Justice Biggs of the Third Circuit in Innis, Speidcn

& Co. V. Food Machinery Corporation (1942), 2 F.R.D.
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261, defined a license (non-exclusive) as being nothing

more than the grant of authority to practice the in-

vention, and likens such a license to the grant of a

simple easement across "Blackacre", saying:

"The possessor of the easement has the privilege

to cross the land but has no right to prevent any-

one else from doing so. The owner of the land

is not compelled to take any step to protect his

grantee's right to cross Blackacre."

That opinion further stating that such a licensee

"has no such interest as to make him either a

necessary or proper party to a bill filed to restrain

the infringement of a patent right."

The landmark decision of the Supreme Court in point

is Waterman v. Mackenzie, 138 U.S. 252, 255, 34 L.

Ed. 923, from which the following is a quotation:

"Every patent issued under the laws of the United

States for an invention or discovery contains "a

grant to the patentee, his heirs and assigns, for the

term of seventeen years, of the exclusive right to

make, use, and vend the invention or discovery

throughout the United States and the Territories

thereof.' Rev. Stat. §4884.* The monopoly thus

granted is one entire thing, and cannot be divided

into parts, except as authorized by those laws. The

patentee or his assigns may, by instrument in writ-

ing, assign, grant, and convey, either (1st) the

whole patent, comprising the exclusive right to

make, use and vend the invention throughout the

United States; or (2d) an undivided part or share

*Now 35 U.S.C. 154.
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of that exclusive right; or (3rd) the exclusive

right under the patent within and throughout a

specified part of the United States. Rev. Stat. §

4898. A transfer of either of these three kinds

of interests is an assignment, properly speaking,

and vests in the assignee a title in so much of

the patent itself, with a right to sue infringers;

in the second case, jointly with the assignor; in

the first and third cases, in the name of the as-

signee alone. Any assignment or transfer, short

of one of these, is a mere license, giving the li-

censee no title in the patent. (Emphasis added.)

See also Western Electric Co. v. Pacent Reproducer

Corp., 42 F. 2d 116 (C.A. 2, 1930), as follows:

"In its simplest form, a license means only leave

to do a thing which the licensor would otherwise

have a right to prevent. Such a license grants to

the licensee merely a privilege that protects him

from a claim of infringement by the owner of

the patent monopoly . . . He has no property in-

terest in the monopoly of the patent, nor any con-

tract with the patent owner that others shall

not practice the invention. Hence the patent owner

may freely license others, or may tolerate in-

fringers, and in either case no right of the patent

licensee is violated. Practice of the invention by

others may indeed cause him pecuniary loss, but it

does him no legal injury."

* * *

"If the licensee is granted not only leave to

make, use and vend the invention, hut also the right

to exclude from the licensed field every one else,
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including the patent ozvner himself^ the grant may

amount to an assignment of an interest in the

patent, entitHng the Hcensee to sue an infringer

in his own name; // it is less inclusive, if remains

a license. Waterman v. Mackenzie, 138 U.S. 252,

265, 11 S. Ct. 334, 34 L. Ed. 923."

D. The Undisputed Record Shows Appellant to Be the

Sole Owner of the Patent in Suit.

The patent document [R. 336] shows that the patent

originally issued to appellant and Feed Service as co-

owners. By the Assignment, Exhibit A, appellant ac-

quired all the right, title and interest of Feed Service

in the patent. There is no issue as to the authencity

of those documents. During argument. Appellees'

counsel advanced the bare conclusionary argument that

Exhibits A and B were "shams", but being entirely

I

unsupported, that characterization is nothing more than

an advocate's conclusion, and of course is not a compe-

tent challenge. In fact, the advocate's conclusion is

not even supported by an affidavit, and appellees

have also failed to refute Appellant's affidavit (Ap-

pendix C, p. 5a), stating the facts of the transaction

out of which Exhibits A and B arose. In any event, if

Appellees had intended seriously to urge or to raise

any such issue, they had the burden under Rule 8,

Federal Rules of Court Procedure of alleging affirm-

atively upon what it was based so that the issue could

be fully explored by discovery, evidence and examina-

tion of witnesses at a trial. Factual questions cannot be

summarily resolved on the basis of disputed affidavits.
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As held by this Court in Hoffman v. Babbitt Bros.

Trading Co., C.A. 9, 1953, 203 F. 2d 636, 637:

"It will be remembered that the court had held

that a cause for relief had been stated. Now we

quote from our opinion in Lane Bryant, Inc. v.

Maternity Lane Ltd. of Cal., 9 Cir., 1949, 173

F. 2d 559, 564: 'We come to the question: Can

the judgment be affirmed as one in a summary

proceeding? We have already held that a cause of

action has been stated by the complaint. The af-

fidavits upon their broadest application do no more

than to present to the trier of fact evidence upon

material issues. They do not absolve the issues

as matters of law. Therefore, the judgment can-

not validly be based upon the summary trial by

affidavits. The plaintiff-appellant is entitled to

have its complaint responded to by answer and

both parties are entitled to have the issues tired

through the introduction of exhibits and witnesses

produced for direct and cross-examination.' This

is a statement of the general law and we know of

no deviation from it."

In its opinion in the latter case, this Court approving-

ly quoted from Barron and Holt^off, Federal Prac-

tice and Procedure, Rules Edition, Vol. 3, Section

1231, the following:

"The summary judgment procedure is not a sub-

stitute for the trial of disputed issues of fact. On
a motion for summary judgment the court cannot

try issues of fact. It can only determine whether

there are issues to be tried. The procedure is

well adapted to expose sham claims and defenses
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but cannot be used to deprive a litigant of a prop-

er trial of genuine issues of fact. Summary judg-

ment is not proper where the facts are uncertain.

It cannot be used to determine questions of fact

without an adequate and proper hearing. Rule 56

is not merely directory but affects the substantial

rights of the litigants and since it provides a some-

what drastic remedy it must be used with a due

regard for its purposes, and a cautious observance

of its requirements in order that no person will

be deprived of a trial of disputed factual issues.

This constitutional principle is also borne out by the

Supreme Court's decision in Societe Internationale z'.

Rogers, 357 U.S. 197, 2 L. Ed. 2d 1255, in which the

Supreme Court held that Federal Rules of Civil Proce-

dure which permit of summary disposition of fact is-

sues must be interpreted in the light of the Due Process

Clause of the Constitution, and that fact issues cannot

be resolved without allowing the parties full rights to

cross examinatiion at a trial.

While it is not known whether the District Court,

in reaching its decision, gave any weight to the unsup-

ported suggestions of "sham", an examination of two

statements contained in the Court's order might possibly

suggest that the Court may have been misled by the re-

mark. That is, the order of dismissal [R. 526] con-

tains the statement that the agreements Exhibits A
and B were entered into "to circumvent Rule 19(a)".

Of course, that rule became moot after appellant be-



—20—

came the sole owner of the patent, but there is no

support for the suggestion that the agreements were

entered into for any ulterior purpose.

The Court order also contains the statement that,

after those agreements were entered into, "Feed Service

still had all the rights it had as co-owner". This state-

ment is fully refuted by the written agreements them-

selves, which show that, before the assignment Exhibit

A, Feed Service was a co-owner of the patent and, as

such, had a right to sue to exclude others from

practicing the patented invention, while, after the

agreement, it did not have any such right.

E. The District Court's Order of Dismissal Is

Final and Appealable.

The Court's order did not direct the submission of

any findings, conclusions or judgment, and none were

made. Appellant could not have overcome the dismissal

by amending the complaint even if the order had per-

mitted such an amendment, which it did not, because

jurisdiction could not be obtained over Feed Service.

Thus, after the dismissal order, appellant did the only

thing he could. He filed motion for new trial, which

was denied, and he then noticed an appeal to this Court.

Kelly V. Delaivare River Joint Commission, 187

F. 2d 93, C.A. 3, 1951.
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Conclusion.

Wherefore, Appellant respectfully submits that the

District Court's order of dismissal should be reversed

with direction to proceed to trial and judgment between

the parties now before the Court. In that event, Appel-

lees would have full opportunity to plead and prove,

if they have any such evidence, that Feed Service is an

"indispensable" party as claimed by appellees.

Respectfully submitted.

Mason & Graham,
Collins Mason,
William R. Graham,

By Collins Mason,

Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant.

Ray, Quinney & Nebeker,

C. Preston Allen,

Of Counsel.
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APPENDIX A.

Patent Assignment.

WHEREAS, PHILIP C. ANDERSON, of Crete,

Nebraska, and FRANK N. RAWLINGS, of Caldwell,

Idaho, are joint inventors and patentees of the follow-

ing- United States Letters Patent

:

2,748,001, dated May 29, 1956; and

2,807,546, dated September 24, 1957; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned FEED SERVICE
CORPORATION, a Nebraska corporation, having its

principal place of business in Crete, Nebraska, has here-

tofore acquired and now owns an undivided one-half

of the entire right, title and interest in and to said

letters patents and each thereof ; and

WHEREAS, said FRANK N. RAWLINGS now

owns the remainder of the entire right, title and in-

terest in and to said patents and each thereof, and now
desires to acquire all said right, title and interest of

said FEED SERVICE CORPORATION in and to

said patents and each thereof

;

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of

the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and

valuable consideration, receipt and adequacy of which

are hereby acknowledged, the undersigned FEED
SERVICE CORPORATION does hereby sell, assign,

transfer and set over unto said FRANK N. RAWL-
INGS, his heirs, assigns, successors and legal represen-

tatives, all its said undivided one-half of the entire

right, title and interest in and to said patents and each

thereof, as well as the right to sue and recover for all

past infringement thereof.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this assignment has

been executed at Crete, Nebraska, on this 27th day of

December, 1965.

FEED SERVICE CORPORATION
By PhiHp C. Anderson

President

By Norma Gene Anderson

Secretary

State of Nebraska, County of Saline—ss.

On this 25th day of March, 1966, before me, per-

sonally appeared Philip C. Anderson, known to me to

be the President, and Norma Gene Anderson known

to me to be the Secretary, of FEED SERVICE COR-
PORATION, a Nebraska corporation, who executed

the within instrument on behalf of said corporation,

and acknowledged to me that such corporation exe-

cuted the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set

my hand and seal the day and year first above written.

/s/

Notary Public in and for

said County and State
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APPENDIX B.

Patent License Grant.

WHEREAS, the undersigned FRANK N. RAWL-
INGS, of Caldwell, Idaho, now owns the entire right,

title and interest in and to the following United States

Letters Patents and each thereof

:

No. 2,748,001, dated May 29, 1956; and

No. 2,807,546, dated September 24, 1957; and

WHEREAS, FEED SERVICE CORPORATION,
a Nebraska corporation, having its principal place of

business in Crete, Nebraska, desires to acquire the here-

inafter described nonexclusive license rights under said

patents and each thereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of

the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and other good and

valuable consideration, receipt and adequacy of which

are hereby acknowledged, the undersigned FRANK N.

RAWLINGS does hereby grant and convey tO' said

FEED SERVICE CORPORATION, an unlimited,

royalty-free, non-exclusive, and non-cancellable right

and license to make, use and sell the products and use

the methods of said patents and each of them, and to

sublicense others so to do. The right and license herein

ij granted shall be effective until said letters patents and

each of them shall expire.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has

executed this document at Caldwell, Idaho, this 27th

day of December. 1965.

/s/ Frank N. Rawlings

FRANK N. RAWLINGS
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State of Idaho, County of Canyon—ss.

On this 18th day of March, 1966, before me, per-

sonally appeared FRANK N. RAWLINGS, to me
known to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he exe-

cuted the same.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

/s/ Hazel F. Hansen

Notary Public in and for said

County and State

Commission expires 6-6-69

I
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APPENDIX C.

Affidavit of Frank N. Rawlings.

United States District Court, Central District of

California.

Frank N. Rawlings, Plaintiff, vs. National Molasses

Co., a corporation; Orita Land & Cattle Corporation,

a corporation ; Heber Cattle Feeders, a corporation ; and

Allied Cattle Feeders, a corporation, Defendants. Civil

Action No. 65-592-MC.

State of Idaho, County of Canyon—ss.

FRANK N. RAWLINGS, being first duly sworn,

deposes and says

:

The facts relating to the transaction by which I

obtained an assignment of all the right, title and in-

terest of Feed Service Corporation (Exhibit A), and

granted Feed Service Corporation a non-exclusive li-

cense (Exhibit B), are as follows:

Prior to said agreements. Feed Service Corporation

owned an undivided half of the title to United States

Patents Nos. 2,748,001 and 2,807,546, and I owned

the other half. When the matter of commencing the

above identified infringement action arose, I wrote to

Feed Service Corporation on December 7, 1964, in-

quiring as to whether it would join in the above-iden-

tified infringement action as a co-owner of the patents.

I received a letter from Feed Service Corporation under

date of December 22, 1964, from which the following

is quoted:

"Your letter of December 7th has come to the

top of the pile that I faced upon my return.
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"We are not in a position to join with you in

a suit against National Molasses. The reasons are

that (1) we would not want to alienate their

parent company and (2) that we do not have the

capital nor the managerial time required."

To understand why Feed Service Corporation was

unwilling to risk alienating the parent company of de-

fendant National Molasses Company, it should be

pointed out that Feed Service Corporation is a producer

of ruminant cattle feed supplements, an ingredient of

which is molasses, and the parent company of Na-

tional Molasses Company is an important producer and

supplier of molasses, so that, as stated in its said letter,

Feed Service Corporation desired to avoid the risk of

alienating an important source of molasses. Also, as

stated in its letter, Feed Service Corporation claimed

that it had neither the financial capability nor the

time which would be necessary to join in the prosecu-

tion of a patent infringement action.

Therefore, as a result of the subsequent negotia-

tions, which were participated in by the attorneys for

the respective parties, it was agreed as follows: that

Feed Service Corporation would relinquish and assign

to me its half interest in the title to the patents, and

that I would pursue the infringement action entirely

on my own, and grant Feed Service Corporation a

non-exclusive license.

Said assignment document (Exhibit A) and license

document (Exhibit B) memorialize bona fide transac-

tions supported by mutual considerations—that is. Feed

Service Corporation surrendered all its rights to en-

force the patent monopolies but avoided the possibility

I
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of alienating- an important source of molasses, avoided

expenses and liabilities arising out of prosecuting- in-

fringement actions, and also received a non-exclusive

license to use the inventions and to grant sublicenses

to others, while I received Feed Service Corporation's

one-half of the title to the patents.

There is no other agreement relating to the trans-

action or subject matter, and Feed Service Corpora-

tion has no right and makes no claim to any right to

recover damages in this or any other action for in-

fringement of the patents or to in any way control or

participate in any action to enforce the patent.

FRANK N. RAWLINGS
Frank N. Rawlings

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day

of January, 1967.

Hazel F. Hansen

Notary Public in and for said

County and State

Comm. Expires 6-6-69

(Seal)
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APPENDIX D.

1956 Pocket Part of Barron and Holtzoff's "Federal

Practice and Procedure", Rules Edition, Section

512, Page 25 of the Pocket Part.

"Rule 19 was completely rewritten in 1966. The

former text of the rule was defective in many respects,

as is pointed out in the text of the main volume and

elsewhere. It purported to speak in rigid legal catego-

ries, when what is in fact involved is a discretionary

balancing of conflicting interests. The new emphasis

of the amended rule is evident even from the title,

which speaks of 'Joi"der of Persons Needed for Just

Adjudication', where the old rule spoke of 'Necessary

Joinder of Parties.' The new rule will produce a change

of method, more than of result. Probably most cases

will be decided the same way under the new rule as un-

der the old, but the new rule requires the court to

face squarely the pragmatic considerations which prop-

erly should be controlling.

"New Rule 19(a) defines a person as needed for

just adjudication if '(1) in his absence complete relief

cannot be accorded among those already parties, or

(2) he claims an interest relating to the subject of the

action and is so situated that the disposition of the

action in his absence may (i) as a practical matter im-

pair or impede his ability to protect that interest or

(ii) leave any of the persons already parties subject

to a substantial risk of incurring double, multiple, or

otherwise inconsistent obligations by reason of his

claimed interest.' The class of persons thus defined is

roughly equivalent to those who would in the past have

been classified as either 'indispensable' or 'necessary',

I
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but the old labels are not used, and old decisions ap-

plying the labels are not controlling.

"If the absent person falls into the class thus de-

fined, and he is subject to the process of the court

and his joinder will not deprive the court of jurisdic-

tion over the subject matter of the action, he must

be made a party.

"If the absent person needed for a just adjudication

cannot be made a party, because of difficulties of

service of process or subject matter jurisdiction, or if

he is made a party and then dismissed because he valid-

ly objects to venue, the court must consider whether

the action should continue without him. Rule 19(b)

directs the court to determine whether in equity and

good conscience the action should proceed among the

existing parties, or whether it should be dismissed.

If the court concludes that it should be dismissed, the

absent person has been regarded as 'indispensable,' but

this is a conclusory label, to be applied after deter-

mining to dismiss the action, and does not bring back

into the rule the body of case law categorizing par-

ticular parties as 'indispensable'. In determining wheth-

er to proceed or to dismiss the suit, Rule 19(b)

directs the attention of the court to four factors which

must be considered, although they are not the only rele-

vant factors which may be considered.

"The first factor to be considered is 'to what ex-

tent a judgment rendered in the person's absence might

be prejudicial to him or those already parties.' Second,

the court must consider 'the extent to which, by pro-

tective provisions in the judgment, by the shaping of

relief, or other measures, the prejudice can be les-

sened or avoided.' Thus the court may use protective
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provisions, or give alternative forms of relief. The ex-

isting parties may be able to take steps to lessen or

avoid prejudice, or the absentee may be able to avert

prejudice to himself by appearing voluntarily. Third,

the court is directed to consider 'whether a judgment

rendered in the person's absence will be adequate.'

Fourth, the court must consider 'whether the plaintiff

will have an adequate remedy if the action is dismissed

for nonjoinder' of the absentee. After consideration

of all of these factors, and any others which may be

relevant in the particular case, the decision to proceed

or dismiss must be made."

I
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APPENDIX E.

List of Exhibits.

The only exhibits in the case are those which were

filed as exhibits to the various motion papers, which

appear in the record as follows

:

R. 330 Defendants' Affidavit of Joint Interest ac-

companying Defendants' Motion to Dismiss.

R. 332 Patent Assignment, Exhibit A, to Defend-

ants' Motion to Dismiss.

R. 334 Patent License Grant, Exhibit B to Defend-

ants' Motion to Dismiss.

R. 336 U. S. Patent 2,748,001 attached to Defend-

ants' Motion to Dismiss as Exhibit C.

R. 569 Plaintiff's Affidavit, Appendix C, page 5-a.
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No. 21947

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Frank N. Rawlings,

Appellant,

vs.

National Molasses Co., a corporation; Orita Land

& Cattle Corporation, a corporation; Heber Cat-

tle Feeders, a corporation, and Allied Cattle

Feeders, a corporation,

Appellees.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

Appellees' Brief does not answer or controvert the

controlling law reviewed in Appellant's Opening Brief, to

the effect that a patent license which is anything less

than an exclusive license does not convey any owner-

ship interest in the licensed patent and does not render

the license an indispensable party to an infringement

action. Instead appellees' brief argues (a) that the

order unconditionally dismissing the action is not final

and appealable, and (b) without citing supporting au-

thorities, that Feed Service Corporation, the alleged in-

dispensable party, which is not subject to the court's

I

jurisdiction, is a "joint owner" of the patent in suit in-

stead of being only a non-exclusive licensee thereunder

as shown by Exhibit B [R. 334]. Appellees' argu-



ment also ignores the fact that appellant is the sole

owner of the patent, as shown by the assignment Ex-

hibit A [R. 332] and, under the law, is the only one

entitled to sue for infringement.

Of the legion of authorities unanimously supporting

appellant's opening brief, the following are representa-

tive:

Waterman v. Mackenzie, 138 U.S. 252, 34 L.

Ed. 923;

IVestem Electric Co. v. Pacent Reproducer Corp.,

42 F. 2d 116;

Special Equipment Company v. Coe, 324 U.S.

370, 89 L. Ed. 1006; and

Innis, Speiden & Co. v. Food Machinery Cor-

poration (1942), 2 F.R.D. 262.

The fact that a non-exclusive license might authorize

the licensee to grant non-exclusive sublicenses and retain

any royalties derived herefrom, does not render the li-

censee a co-owner of the patent for the fundamental

reason that a non-exclusive licensee is without any right

to exclude others from practicing the invention, which is

the sole right granted by a patent.

35 U.S.C. 154; and

Special Equipment Company v. Coe, supra.

The non-exclusive license agreement Exhibit B, is

only a contract which precludes appellant, the patent

owner, from suing Feed Service Corporation and its

sublicensees to exclude them from practicing the inven-

tion. It is therefore merely in the category of a cove-

nant not to sue. •

Western Electric Co. v. Pacent Reproducer Corp.,

supra.
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i

I-

Appellees Have Not Cited Any Authority for Their

Conclusion That a Non-Exclusive License Ren-

ders the Licensee a Co-Owner of the Patent.

The authorities cited by appellees in their brief in-

volved actions in which the absent party was an exclu-

sive licensee, or a co-owner of the patent and they are

clearly distinguishable from cases involving non-exclu-

sive licensees.

IL

Feed Service Corporation Is Not a Co-Owner of the

Patent in Suit and Is Therefore Neither an In-

dispensable nor a Proper Party to This Infringe-

ment Action.

Appellees conclusory argument appears to be based on

the untenable proposition that Feed Service Corporation

still has the co-owner status it had at the time this

laction was commenced, despite the record fact that, by

Exhibits A and B, the status of the respective parties

iwas changed to one in which appellant became the sole

owner and Feed Service Corporation became a non-

exclusive licensee.

Gibbs V. Emerson Electric Mfg. Co. (D.C. Mo.

1940), 31 F. Supp. 983.

Appellant is, of course, cognizant of appellees' ad-

vocate's conclusory statement that Exhibits A and B
are "shams", but, as pointed out in appellant's opening

brief, that statement is entirely unsupported and was

not made a formal issue or even supported by an affi-

davit. (See discussion of the law under heading- D, p.

17 of Appellant's Opening Brief). Such questions of

fact cannot be summarily determined. In their brief,

appellees endeavor to lend weight to the conclusion bv
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arguing that excerpts from the deposition testimony

of a Mr. Anderson) who is not a party to this action

and who was deposed by appellees as their own witness),

show some alleged discrepancies between the negotia-

tions for those contracts and the final contracts. That

attempt must fail, however, not only because the record

does not disclose any significant discrepancy, but also

because of the well-known law that the final written

and executed contracts define what the parties agreed

to. The facts out of which the agreements Exhibits

A and B arose are set forth in appellant's unrefnted

affidavit [R. 569].*

At page 10 of their brief, appellees cite 35 U.S.C.

262, and Pennsalt Chemical Corp. v. Dravo, 240 F.*

Supp. 837 (E.D. Pa. 1965), as purported authorities'

for their argument that a non-exclusive patent license

renders the licensee a co-owner of the patent. However,!

it will be found that neither of those authorities sup-

ports appellees' argument.

The Pennsalt case involved a question of whether a
^

German patent owner by assignment was an indispensa-,

ble party to a declaratory judgment action. The action'

was between the plaintiff-infringer and the defendant-!

exclusive-licensee. The Court denied the motion, holding

that, while the German patent owner had a justiciable!'

interest, it could, if it saw fit, protect that interest by'

intervening in the action, and holding that the principal;

dispute involved in the action was only between thei

plaintiff and the defendant who were already before';

*The only respect in which the Anderson deposition appears to i

have any relevancy to this action is Anderson's attorney's state- •

ment on the deposition record that "Feed Service Corporation

has no interest in the outcome and does not want to be put to any .

unnecessary expense" (Appendix A, page 3b, of Appellees' Brief).
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the Court; citing Hook v. Hook & Ackerman (C.A. 9),

187 F. 2d 52, from which the following is quoted

:

"Ordinarily, a mere Hcensee of a patent has no

right to sue an infringer, and the patent owner is

under no duty to do so. An exclusive licensee

obviously is in a different situation. One charged

with infringement or one charging infringement

would ordinarily have the right to bring the owner

I

into the action to prevent another suit on the same

alleged wrong. But these principles have no applica-

j

tion where, as here, the defendant-cross-complainant

stands as the owner under the assignment."

35 U.S.C. 262 merely codifies the long-existing case

law that a joint owner of a patent has the right to grant

sublicenses without accounting to his co-owner. The

code section does not purport to define who are "co-

' owners".

Neither authority changes the well-settled law that,

unless a patent license is exclusive to all or part of the

country, the Hcensee is not a co-owner of the patent

and has no right to exclude infringers.

Waterman v. Mackenzie, supra.

As said in Dairy Queen v. Commissioner, 250 F.

,2d 503, 506 (C.A. 10, 1957), "the traditional test of

j
ownership is the power to exclude others."

As more particularly stated by the Supreme Court in

I

United States v. General Electric Co., 272 U.S. 476, 71

' L. Ed. 362

:

"The owner of a patent may assign it to an-

other and convey (1) the exclusive right to make,

use and vend the invention throughout the United

States or (2) an undivided part or share of that
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exclusive right or (3) the exclusive right under the

patent within and through a specific part of the

United States. But any assignment or transfer

short of one of these is a license giving the licensee

no title in the patent . .
."

III.

The Dismissal Order Is Final and Appealable

Among appellees' inaccurate statements of the record,

is the statement contained in their brief that "while the

District Court dismissed the complaint, it did not dis-

miss the action."

To determine the inaccuracy of that statement, one

only has to read appellees' motion to dismiss [R. 329],

which expressly moved " to dismiss the action", the Dis-

trict Court's order granting the motion [R. 526] stat-

ing "defendants' motion to dismiss is therefore granted."

By its order summarily dismissing this action without

limitation, Rule 41b, F.R.C.P., the Court in effect made

a final determination denying appellant his right to re-

lief for appellees' admitted infringement*, from which

order appellant moved for and was denied a new trial.

While ordinarily in due course, the Court would have

entered a formal judgment confirming the order, that

would have been largely only ceremonial. Appellant

could not have amended (even if it had obtained a right

*See appellees" answers to aj^pellant's interrogatories numbers

7, 8 and 9, and to appellant's request for admission number 32

(added to the record by Stipulation and Order dated December
15, 1967).
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to amend) to overcome the ground o£ the dismissal, be-

cause Feed Service Corporation is beyond the jurisdic-

tional reach of the Court. Thus, at the time of the

order, this case had progressed to a stage of practical

finality. Upon such a dismissal, plaintiff-appellant is

[|
entitled to every reasonable inference supporting his

claim {Shafer v. Mountain States Tel. & Teleg. Co.,

335 F. 2d 932, 934 (C.A. 9, 1964)).

To avoid time-consuming and unnecessarily costly pro-

cedures, the Supreme Court has held as follows

:

"As this Court has often pointed out, a decision

'final' within the meaning of §1291 does not neces-

sarily mean the last order possible to be made in a

case. . . . This Court has held that the require-

ment of finality is to be given a 'practical rather

than a technical construction.'
"

Gillespie v. United States Steel Corp., 379 U.S.

148, 13 L. Ed. 2d 199.

For instance, in Staggers v. Otto Gerdau Company,

359 F. 2d 292, Second Circuit, the District Court has

denied the plaintiffs' motion to amend. The plaintiffs

then appealed from that order, and the appellate Court,

treating the order as a final ruling, reversed.

In Kelly v. Delaware River Joint Commission, 187

F. 2 93, Third Circuit, cert, den., 342 U.S. 839, 96 L.

Ed. 614 (cited in appellant's opening brief), the Court

even held that an order granting a motion to dismiss

the complaint was a final and appealable order.

I
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In M. Martinez v. Flores, 299 F. 2d 888, Ninth Cir

cuit, 1961, this Court said:

"Twice the District Court has dismissed the

complaint, but never the action. There is a dif-

ference." .^
IV.

In Any Event, Feed Service Corporation Would Be
Bound by the Judgment Under the Principles

of the Law of Res Adjudicata. J
Appellees argue that Independent Wireless Telegraph

Company v. Radio Corporation of America (1926), 269

U.S. 459, 70 L. Ed. 57, quoted from at page 13 of

Appellant's Opening Brief, did not involve analogous

facts. It is true that said case involves specifically dif-

ferent facts, but the ruling of the Court quoted in Ap-

pellant's Opening Brief w^as based on the principles of

the law of res adjudicata, and in that respect the facts

were analogous to the facts of this case.

Conclusion.
™

Wherefore, appellant respectfully submits that the

non-exclusive license agreement. Exhibit B, held by

Feed Service Corporation, is merely an agreement by

appellant, the patent owner, that he will not sue Feed

Service Corporation or its non-exclusive sublicensees, if

any, to exclude them from using the invention. That is

not an ownership interest in the patent. Having no right

to enjoin appellees or anybody else from infringing, or

to share in any recovery in this action, the non-joiner

of Feed Corporation does not "leave the defendant open
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to multiple litigation" as concluded by appellees at page

11 of their brief.

It is therefore respectfully submitted that the order

of the District Court dismissing this action on the

ground that Feed Service Corporation is a co-owner of

the patent and an indispensable party, should be re-

versed.

Respectfully submitted,

Mason & Graham,
Collins Mason,
William R. Graham,

By Collins Mason,

Attorneys for Appellant.

Ray, Quinney & Nebeker,

C. Preston Allen,

Of Counsel.
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IN THE
United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

No. 21949

National Labor Relations Board, Petitioner,

V.

tJTH Bay Daily Breeze, A Division of Southern

LiFORNiA Associated Newspapers, Inc., Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR ENFORCEMENT OF AN ORDER OF THE
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

[EF FOR THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

JURISDICTION

[^Ms case is before the Court upon petition of the Na-

kal Labor Relations Board for enforcement of its

er issued on October 12, 1966, against the South

Y
Daily Breeze, A Division of Southern California

fociated Newspapers, Inc.,^ hereafter referred to as

Ae Company" or "Respondent." The order was

The Southern California Associated Newspapers, Inc., is owned
he Copley Press which owns 10 newspapers in Southern Cali-

ia and 5 in Illinois (Tr. 779).



issued following the usual unfair labor practice pro

ceedings under Section 10 of the National Labor Rela

tious Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 21

U.'SjC, Sec. 151, et seq.). The Board's decision anc

order (R. 143-44)' are reported at 160 NLRB No. 14.^

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. THE BOARD'S FINDINGS OF FACT

The Board found that the ComiDany violated Sec

tion 8(a)(1) of the Act by threatening employee

with blacklisting, loss of benefits and discharge bi

cause of their union activities, by promising aD:

granting wage increases in order to discourage unio

activities, by giving employees the impression of su;:

veillance of union activities, and by interrogating en

ployees regarding their union activities. The Boai

also foimd that the Company violated Section 8(a) {I

and (1) of the Act by refusing to recognize and ba;

gain collectively with the Union ^ and by unilateral)

granting wage increases to employees. The facts up(

which these findings are based are set forth belo^

A. A Majority of Editorial Employees Join the Guild But ti,

Company Refuses the Guild's Request for Recognition

The Company publishes a daily newspaper, t:

South Bay Daily Breeze, in Torrance, California. C

2 References to the pleading reprodiiced as Voliune I, Pleadir

are designated "R". References to the stenographic transcript'

the hearing filed with the Court are designated "Tr. " Referenn

preceding a semicolon are to the Board's findings; those follow!

are to the supporting evidence. References designated
'

' G.C. Bxl

or "R. Exh." are to exhibits of the General Counsel and respoi

ent, respectively.

^ Local 69, Los Angeles Newspaper Guild, American Newspa]

Guild, AFL-CIO, CLC, hereafter referred to as "Guild
'

' Union '

'.



jpril 21 or 22, 1965/ Loel Schrader, an international

rpresentative for the Guild, was informed by a Guild

rember that editorial employees of the Company were

interested in union representation (R, 68; Tr. 21-22,

4*). On Friday, April 23, Schrader met with employees

(illis, Rinehart, and Butkus and discussed with them

itie advantages of Guild representation (R. 68; Tr.

4, 60). He then told the employees how to go about

gtting representation; that membership cards would

b needed from at least 30 per cent of the employees

i order to get a Board election; that it was possible

t get recognition without an election if a majority

hcame members but that the Guild would want at

Itiist 70 per cent of the employees signed np before

ii; would try to get representation without an elec-

tm (R. 68; Tr. 47-48). The three employees then

B^ned authorization cards and it was agreed that

dUis and Rinehart would solicit the remaining em-

aobyees during the weekend (ihid). By Sunday eve-

f^g 12 more cards were turned over to Schrader thus

lining him a total of 15 cards—a majority of the 25

iployees in the unit (R. 68; Tr. 26, 52-54).^ Schrader

len sent the following telegram to the Company
:][uesting recognition:

Editorial dept. employees of the South Daily

Breeze have designated the Los Angeles News-

paper Guild as their representative for the pur-

All dates refer to 1965 unless otherwise noted.

Following a representation hearing in which the elijjibility of

|io(|tain employees was litigated, the Regional Director, on June 30,

liided that there were 25 employees in the unit. Prior to that

:ie the Guild had taken the position that the unit consisted of 20

'.'I'ployees while the Company sought to have 28 employees in-

ided in the unit (GCX 1(d)").



i
pose of bargaining collectively for improvec

wages, hours and other terms and conditions ol

employment. The Guild requests that it be grantee

recognition as bargaining representatives for edi-

torial dejjt. employees. In the event you do no'

voluntarily grant recognition the Guild will in

sist that a secret ballot election be conductec

among all eligible employees by the Natioua

Labor Relations Board. The Guild expects than]

the Daily Breeze will continue to act in a gentle

manly fashion and employees will not be impedei

in their exercise of free choice by threats, intei?!

rogation or j^romises. In this regard the Guil(T

calls your attention to appropriate sections o

the Labor Management Relations Act. Any at

tempts by the Daily Breeze to go beyond tb

proper bounds of pre-election conduct will b(

dealt with swiftly by the Guild's legal dept. Th
Guild's only concern is that eligible employeen

be given an opportunity to act, speak and votf

in accordance with their own free consciences am
without fear of retaliation from either part^

(R. 69; G.C. Exh. 7).

*

On Monday, April 26, Schrader filed a representa

tion petition with the Board, and on the followini

day respondent received notification from the Regiona

Office of the Board of this fact (R. 69; Tr. 795, G.C

Exh. 1(a)).

On April 27, 1965, Robert L. Curry, publisher an(

editor of Respondent dispatched the following telej

gram to Schrader:

In response to your telegram of April 26, I wis]

to advise you that the South Bay Daily Breezi

declines to recognize your union as the collectivi

bargaining representative of any of its employee

tf



because it genuinely doubts that your union repre-

sents a majority of its employees in any appropri-

ate bargaining unit. We further believe that the

proper way to resolve these questions is through

a secret ballot election conducted under the pro-

vision of the National Labor Relations Board

provided you meet the requirements of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board for such an election

(R. 69; R. Exh. 12).

The next day, April 28, Schrader visited Curry at

is office and told him that he represented the em-

i>loyees in the editorial department (R. 69; Tr. 34-35).

le referred to a previous election to have the Guild

epresent the circulation department and suggested

hat they could avoid the bitterness and disruption

[f an election campaign by agreeing at that point to

it down and negotiate a contract (R. 69; Tr. 35).

vurry replied that the matter was entirely out of

iis hands as it had been turned over to counsel

[r. 69; Tr. 35). Curry added that he doubted that

'he Guild represented a majority of the employees

R. 69; Tr. 35).

i. The Election Campaign; Company Officials Interfere

With. Restrain and Coerce the Employees in Order To

Defeat the Guild in the Election.

1. News Editor Kenneth Johnson

On April 26, shortly after the Company received

le telegram from the Guild, Johnson approached

xillis and asked him if he was "with him or against

lim" (R. 71; Tr. 74-76). When Gillis said that he did

iot understand, Johnson asked if he had signed a peti-

W; Gillis answered that he had not (R. 71; Tr. 76).

[ohnson then related that his father had been a union



organizer and that he knew their tactics and that

these things had turned him against unions in gen-

eral. He also said that Gillis would not like working

with the Guild because it would ruin the paper (ibid.),

Later that day, Johnson showed the telegram tc

employee Patricia McDonnell, women's editor, and

asked if she were one of the people responsible foi

it (R. 71; Tr. 470-71). Johnson stated that he fell

it was a personal affront and that he had been stabbed

in the back; that employees responsible for it were

cowards and should have at least given him some

warning that they were going to try to get the Guile'

in (R. 71; Tr. 471-72).

Approximately one week later, McDonnell and John-il

son had another conversation regarding the Guild'

(R. 71; Tr. 473). This conversation took place aftei^:

working hours in a lounge know^n as the Lama RoomJ!'

located near the Company's building (ibid.). McDoni'

nell told Johnson that she w^as trying to be neutrai

but that she would be tempted to vote for the Guild'

simply to protect employees Lorraine Geittmann, Garj'

Gillis, and Robert Jones who were knowTi to be Guild

leaders (R. 71; Tr. 473-474). Johnson replied that it

the Guild got in things would be tough on them (ibid.)

He continued, "you know how Lori [Geittmann] iq

late all the time (R. 71; Tr. 475). We just change hei

hours, and I will have her come in at 5 :00 in the morn-

ing, and you know how long it would take before Lori

is being late. We could dismiss her after a week.'

As to Robert Jones, he stated, "You know what ai

old maid he is about his routines and his schedules

all we have to do is put him on a split shift, and h(

couldn't take that very long" (ibid.). On this occasior

or shortly thereafter McDonnell asked Johnson ho\^



.he could ''get" everyone since there were so many
employees, and not all were outspoken (R. 71; Tr.

4:15-4:16) . Johnson replied, "Now, Patty, we have ways

;

we have ways" (R. 71, Tr. 476).

In a later conversation in the Lama Room, Johnson

told McDonnell that she would have to have faith

in Curry's statement that the salary inequities at the

Company would be corrected (R. 71; Tr. 477). John-

son said he couldn't tell her what her salary would

be because he could go to prison if he did, but he

promised to write it down on a slip of paj)er and give

it to her the next day (ibid.).

In the middle of May, Johnson also told employee

Eugene Hall that he was going to show him a slip

3f paper some time before the election indicating what

Ms salary would be if the Guild were voted out (R. 71

;

^r. 315-316).'' In early June, Johnson asked Hall to

io him a personal favor and not attend the Guild

meeting that night. Hall stated that he would not go,

and he did not. (R. 72; Tr. 317-328, 346).

11 2. Robert L. Curry, publisher, Charles Wahlheim, production

manager and consultant to publisher, and Robert Paffin"

In mid-May, Ciirray asked McDonnell if she had any

grievances or was unhappy about anything (R. 72;

j

^ During the campaign, Johnson prepared for publisher Curry-

fend other supervisors a list of employees with his evaluation of

iheir stand on the Guild. As to Hall, he reported, "Sees dollar

signs, thinks he 's better and worth more than he is. Is very impres-

iiionable. Listens to me a lot, and a last minute promise of more
jnoney from me would weigh heavily on his decision .... He is the

sind you worry about selling the day of the election" (R. 71 ; G.C.
fexh. 18).

' ^ Paffin is employed by the Company 's parent corporation and is

Admittedly an agent of the Company (R. 72; Tr. 833-835).
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Tr. 490-92). She replied affirmatively, mentioning that

the woman's editor for another newspaper in the area

was making $25 a week more than she even though

McDonnell had two employees imder her and the other

woman had none (R. 72; Tr. 492-93). Curry answered

that he had been so busy with the construction of the

new building that he had not been aware of how much
the salaries were lagging and he assured her that the i

inequities would be taken care of. He also said that!

if she had not made up her mind as to how she would I

vote, that he hoped that she would listen to his side
|

of the story (ihid.). About June 21, Curry called

McDonnell into his office and told her that she would
|

get a raise of $15 a w^eek on July 1, and that "after

this [union] thing is settled" her salary would be

comparable to others in the area (R. 72-73; Tr. 494).

In mid-May, during a conversation in which Hall Ij

consulted Curry about co-signing a bank note for him,

,

Curry asked Hall how he stood "in this Guild thing" ',

(R. 73; Tr. 320). When Hall replied that he was 100

percent with the Company, Curry complimented him

and went on to say that he would know how people

voted in the election and that promotions would go

to those who voted against the Guild (R. 73; Tr. 321).

Curry then agreed to sign for the loan and told Hall

that he had a tremendous future with the Company
(R. 73; Tr. 322). He then told Hall that he was de-

termined to defeat the Guild and that he would ap-

preciate anything Hall might do to help. In an effort

to comply with this request, Hall, a few days later,

supplied Curry with a list of employees and how he

thought they would vote (ibid.). On July 20, the day

of the election, Curry approached Hall and said that

he understood that Guild representative Schrader was



at his home the night before and that Hall had called

Schrader the day before (R. 73; Tr. 323). Curry said

that Johnson and Moon were worried that Hall was

l^oing to vote against the Company but that he felt

sure that Hall was merely stringing along with the

Gruild to supjjly Curry with further information (R.

'73; Tr. 323-324). Although Hall replied to Curry

;:hat he was correct, he testified at the hearing that

be was not, in fact, stringing the Guild along (ibid.).

j
Curry held staff meetings with employees in the ed-

itorial department on June 10 and 22 and July 14 and

b, to discuss the Guild (R. 73). He told them that

le was very shocked to be notified that his employees

Vere seeking Guild representation; that he thought

';hey were a family group and that his door had always

^een open to anyone who had any complaints. He said

'hat he had become aware of inequities and that they

vould be rectified, but he could not give specific de-

ails because he did not want "to end up in jail."

ie stated that he, Managing Editor Moon and Execu-

tive Editor Samuel Stewart had gone over the specific

•hings that would be done to eliminate the inequities

;R. 73; Tr. 248-250, 391-394, 397). He told them that

here would be no firings because of the Guild (R. 73;

Tr. 520).

\
At the June 10 meeting Charles Wahlheim, produc-

fion manager and consultant to the publisher* stated

jhat a union contract would require strict application

j
* On July 13, Wahlheim 's position was clianged from production

Manager to consultant to the publisher in hibor relations and pro-

iuction matters. In both positions he negotiated and administered

jontracts with labor unions representing respondent's emploj^ees.

pe Company has contracts with the International Typographer's
'Jnion, the International Stereotyper's Union and with the Interna-

ional Pressmen's Union (R. 73; Tr. 1139-1140).
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of rules and regulations while absence of a contract

would permit more laxity (R. 73-74; Tr. 394-395). As

an example, he told of a senior production employee

who had an accident on the job and could not work
;;

for a considerable period of time. He said that the :

Company did not pay sick leave or disability because
;

the union contract did not require it and the Com-

pany was afraid of establishing a precedent. (R. 74; :

Tr. 1140-41.) Amplifying Walheim's remarks, Curry

then stated that in the editorial department, if an em- ;

ployee came to work drunk, the company probably '

would give him a break but that election of the Guild I

would cause management to be on one side and the ^

employees on the other and would put an end to the
]

family feeling that had existed. Thus, he continued, if
\

they were imder a Guild contract and an employee

were tardy three times, the Company would have to
\

fire him, because if it did not, it would be setting a i

precedent and would not thereafter be able to fire any-

one for being tardy (R. 74; Tr. 403). He also warned I

that it might take six months to negotiate a contract

(R. 8; Tr. 396).

In the latter part of June, Curry took Peterson to

lunch and while there he told him that the Guild was

for people who needed a crutch and that he did not

understand why a person wdth Peterson's background I,

would want to join (R. 74; Tr. 594-96). He also said 1

that newspaper companies check with one another

concerning applicants :

'

'We also check whether you .

had any Guild leanings, and a lot of publishers do

not like to hire people that had Guild leanings, you

know, and this may go bad with you" (R. 75; Tr.
,

597-98).



11

j About two weeks before the election, Ciiriy told

employee Inez Staff that he was very disturbed by

"all this Guild fuss" and that he realized that it had

a very disrupting influence on the employees : that he

'realized there were inequities but that he meant to

see that they were corrected (R. 75 ; Tr. 628) , He stated

that he hated to see the Guild get in because it would

destroy the family relationship in the editorial de-

partment. (R. 75; Tr. 629.) He told Staff, "Well, you

know, we publishers have our organization, too, and

!if any of those young fellows try to get a job and he

'has been active in trying to get the Guild in here, we
publishers have our own ways of letting each other

know that he just wouldn't be a desirable fellow to

We" (ihid,).

In mid-June, Curry called employee Gillis into his

office. (R. 75; Tr. 84, 87.) He stated he did not ques-

tion Gillis' part in the Guild, but that the Guild is an

irresponsible union and he would show him proof as

'to why he should change his mind (R. 75; Tr. 84, 87).

He told him that raises would be given as part of their

salary review whether or not the Guild represented

the employees and that after the election there would

probably be other raises (ihid.). Curry promised to

take care of certain inequities that had been brought

to his attention. (R. 75; Tr. 87.)

On June 28, two weeks before the election, 23 out

pf the 25 employees in the unit received ^vage in-

jireases (R. 84; G.C. Exh. 25).

' On about July 13, Robert Pafifin told McDonnell

that he had worked many years on the side of unions

|n New York and had worked many years on man-

agement's side and that if the Guild got in, he would
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participate in contract negotiations, and stated, "II

know every trick in the book, and we will hold this

up for one year, until another election is due" (R. 75;

Tr. 499-500).

3. John C. Moon, managing editor

In a telephone conversation with employee Gillis

on the evening of May 31, Moon said that if the Guild

won the election it would have rules that the Company
would have to abide by ; one was that if a person is •,

tardy three times, the Company would have to fire
(

him (R. 77; Tr. 76-78). He mentioned that employee •

Geittman had been tardy on many occasions (R. 77; ,

Tr. 78). He stated that the Company has a lot of i

heart and the Guild would take this away (R. 77; Tr.

79).

In a conversation in mid-June, Moon told McDonnell

that since the Guild agitation had started, they were

going to have to make all the salaries at respondent f

comparable to other newspapers of the same size, and

therefore he would be paying the women's editor $165

or $170 a week (ihid.).'' Then he stated, "Therefore,

Pat, you make one slip-up, and you will be out, be-

cause I can hire anyone I want to at that kind of |

money" (R. 78; Tr. 485).

A week or two before the election of July 20, Moon
told McDonnell that there were five or six employees,

including her, who were fence sitters (R. 78 ; Tr. 485-
\

486). He stated he could not understand why they
j

did not stand up and say whether they were for or {

against the Guild, or how they were going to vote

i

1

^ McDonnell was then earning $120 per week.

il
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l(R. 78; Tr. 487). Moon brought the matter up on

several occasions (ibid.).

: On the day of the election Moon told Hall that if

the Guild won the election, Hall, Randy Gray and

Lori Geittmann would be fired as a result of a more

istringent application of work rules (R. 78; Tr. 332).

I About three weeks before the election, Moon asked

employee Peterson, "What is this I heard about you

being pro-Guild"? (R. 78; Tr. 589-590). Peterson

asked who had told him this and Moon replied that

a number of employees were compiling lists of those

for and against the Guild and that everyone who had
checked in with him had reported that Peterson was
pro-Guild (R. 78; Tr. 591, 598, 1063). He asked Peter-

'son, "How come you have not approached me on this

Guild thing? You are the quietest fellow in the house"

(R. 78; Tr. 1064). They then discussed Peterson's

goals and his future (R. 78; Tr. 591-593). Moon told

'him that newspapers keep in contact with each other

'regarding job applicants and if he wanted to go to

another paper for a job, the other joaper would prob-

lably want to know his background and if they found

out about his Guild leanings, they might not want to

lliire him. (R. 78-79; Tr. 591-592).

I
In mid-June, Moon and several employees discussed

the Guild during a coffee break. (R. 77; Tr. 79-81).

Moon suggested that they could form their own union

and not have to pay dues, and he recommended use of

a suggestion box for employee complaints or sugges-

tions; he stated that since this would solve many of

'.heir problems, they would not need the Guild. (iMd.).

JEe told them that their salaries would be reviewed
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in June and that they were all going to get raises

and that after the Guild was defeated they would

continue to receive raises (R. 77; Tr. 82).

In early May 1965, Moon told employee McDonnell '

that employee Erickson had a fine career ahead of him
'

and that it would be too bad if he got mixed up with

the Guild because anyone who has been a Guild agita-
'

tor or a Guild supporter would never get into a man-

agerial position, and that this was the case at the

Company's newspaper in San Diego, California, where ;

the Guild represents the employees (R. 77-78; Tr.

480-481).

Later that month. Moon called McDonnell into his-'

office and reprimanded her because she reported fori

work late that morning. He said that if the Guild and i

the federal government were not breathing down his •

back, he would fire her (R. 78; Tr. 482-485). He then

handed her a letter about her tardiness that morning,

told her this was evidence that she had been late, and '

stated that if the Guild got in, "three times late, Pat '

McDonnell, and you will be out on the streets" (R. 78;

Tr. 484). McDonnell testified that she has frequently

been late to work but that she had never missed a i

deadline (ihid.).

C. The Eleclion

The election, held on July 20, resulted in a tie vote

(R. 70 ; G.C. Exh. 1 (p) ) . Shortly thereafter, the Guild i

filed timely objections to the conduct affecting the

results of the election (R. 68 ; G.C. Exh. 1(h)). At the

same time the Guild filed the instant charges alleging

violation of Section 8(a)(1) and (5) (R. 1; G.C. Exh.

l(j)). The two cases were consolidated herein (R. 68;

G.C. Exh. l(r)).

Jl
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11. THE BOARD'S CONCLUSIONS AND ORDER

The Board concluded that the Company violated

Section 8(a) (1) of the Act by interrogating employees

about their union activities, threatening them with

discharge, blacklisting and lack of opportunity for

promotion to managerial positions because of those

activities, promising wage increases and other benefits,

and granting wage increases to discourage union activi-

ties, soliciting an employee not to attend a union meet-

uig^ giving employees the impression of surveillance of

their union activities and threatening employees with

a stringent and heartless application of work rules if

the Guild won the election. (R. 85). The Board also

fomid that the Company violated Section 8(a)(5) of

the Act by refusing, in bad faith, to recognize and

bargain collectively with the Guild, by unilaterally

granting wage increases to employees (R. 85), and by

threatening to delay bargaining after the election (R.

16).

I

The Board ordered the Company to cease and desist

from the unfair labor practices found and from in-

terfering in any other manner with the employees'

rights under the Act. Affirmatively, the Company was

ordered to bargain upon request by the Guild and

to post the appropriate notices (R. 86).^'

^^ In the representation case, consolidated herein, the Board
found merit in the Guild's objections to the election and set

it aside.
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ARGUMENT

I. SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE ON THE WHOLE RECORD SUP-
PORTS THE BOARD'S FINDING THAT THE COMPANY IN-

TERFERED WITH, RESTRAINED AND COERCED ITS EM-
PLOYEES IN THE EXERCISE OF THEIR STATUTORY RIGHTS,
IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 8(a)(1) OF THE ACT

The record reveals that upon learning of the Guild's
i

majority status, the Company initiated a compre-

hensive campaign of interrogation, threats of reprisal,

promises and granting of benefits, all designed to in-

timidate and influence the employees to renounce their i

association with the Guild. Thus, news editor John- i

son,^" managing editor Moon and publisher Curry '

questioned several employees about whether they were 5

for or against the Guild. Curry and Moon told em- ',

ployees that Guild supporters would not be promoted 1;

to managerial positions and several times threatened !

that pro-Guild employees would never get another

job in the newspaper industry because the "new^s-

^" There is no merit to respondent's contention that Johnson is

not a supei-v-isor. This issue was fully litigated in the representation

hearing and the Regional Director found that Johnson was a

supervisor since he "possesses and exercises the authority to

assign stories to reporters, review their work, request the rewriting

of stories, assign overtime, grant time off and discipline employees.

He coordinates the operations of about 5 other staff members of the

news department. He also regularly fills in for Managing Editor

Moon, an admitted supervisor" (G.C. Exh. 1). At the unfair

labor practice hearing respondent was given an opportunity to

introduce any new or previously unavailable evidence on this issue

but failed to do so. Under these circumstances the Board did not

abuse its discretion by adopting the Regional Director's decision.

Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America (Sagamore Shirt Co.)

V. N.L.R.B., 365 F. 2d 898, 905 (C.A. D.C.).

In any event respondent, in this ease, is responsible for John-

son 's conduct whether he was a supervisor or not, for the record is

clear that "the other employees had justifiable cause for believing

that [he] was acting for and on behalf of management wlien [he]

did the acts in question." Betts Baking Co. Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 380

F. 2d 199, 202 (C.A. 10).
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papers keep in contact with each other regarding job

applicants" and "a lot of publishers do not like to

hire people that had Guild leanings" (Tr, 591-92,

597-98). Similarly, Johnson told an employee that

the Company would find out how the employees voted

and that, if the Guild got in, things would be tough

on those who voted for it.

Moon and Curry also gave employees the impres-

sion that their union activities were under the Com-

pany's surveillance. Thus, about three weeks befort

the election Moon approached employee Peterson auti

said that he had heard that Peterson w^as for the Guild.

When Peterson denied it and asked who had said so.

Moon replied that a number of employees were com-

piling lists of those for the Guild and those against

it and that everyone had reported that Peterson was

pro-Guild. Moon then proceeded to coercively question

and threaten Peterson about his union sympathies.

Then, on election day, Curry approached employee

Hall and said that he understood that Guild repre-

sentative Schrader was at his house the night before

and that Hall had called Schrader the day before. He
also said that if the union won. Hall, Gray and Geitt-

mann would be fired.

Furthermore, as shown in the Statement, the Com-

pany repeatedly promised salary increases to its em-

ployees during the election campaign, informing some

that "inequities" would be corrected after the Guild

matter was settled, and making more specific promises

to McDonnell and Hall."

" Shortly after Johnson promised a wage raise to Hall on the

condition that the Guild lose the election, he approached Hall and
asked him, as a personal favor, not to attend a Guild meeting that

evening. The Board, in agreement with the Trial Examiner, cor-

rectly found that this was also a violation of Section 8(a)(1),

N.L.R.B. V. Kit Mfg. Co., 292 F. 2d 686, 690 (C.A. 9).
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That the foregoing conduct by the Company consti-

tuted unlawful interference, restraint and coercion

within the meaning of Section 8(a)(1) of the Act is

clear beyond doubt.'" Before the Board the Company
did not argue that this conduct does not violate Sec-

tion 8(a)(1). Rather, the Company's sole argument

was that the Trial Examiner should have credited its

witnesses and not the employees." This argument,

made in the face of the Trial Examiner's careful and

detailed credibility resolutions, (R. 69, 72, 76) is clearly

without merit. In rejecting this very argiunent in sim-

ilar circumstances, this Court recently said

:

We must give great weight to the credibility

findings of the Trial Examiner. N.L.R.B. v. Local

^^ Interrogating employees about their union sjTnpathies

:

N.L.R.B. V. Luisi Truck Lines, 66 LRRM 2461, 24G2' (C.A. 9),

decided October 27, 1967 ; N.L.R.B. v. Security Plating Co., 356 F.

2d 725, 728 (C.A. 9) ; N.L.R.B. v. Ace Comb Co., 342 F. 2d 841,

843-44 (C.A. 9). Threatening reprisals for union activities:

N.L.R.B. V. Ace Comb Co., supra: N.L.R.B. v. Sebastopol Apple
Growers Union, 269 F. 2d 705, 708 (C.A. 9) ; N.L.R.B. v. Ambro.'ie

Distribtiting Co., 358 F. 2d 319, 320-31 (C.A. 9), cert, denied, 385

U.S. 838; N.L.R.B. v. Kit Mfg. Co., 292 F. 2d 680, 690 (C.A. 9).

Creating the impression of surveillance : N.L.R.B. v. Security Plat-

ing Co., supra; Promising benefits during election campaign:
N.L.R.B. V. Security Plating Co., supra; N.L.R.B. v. Kit Mfg. Co.,

292 F. 2d 686, 690 (C.A. 9).

^^ The Company did make an alternative argument with respect

to one of the instances of 8(a)(1) conduct. It argued that John-
son's statement to IMcDonnell that the Company would find out who
voted for the Guild and make tilings tough on them was not coer-

cive because it came up in a casual conversation at a bar after

working hours. There is no merit to this contention. The statement

is coercive on its face and its impact is not lessened becau.se it was
made in a bar. Moreover, the bar in question, the "Lama Room",
was the location of most of the pre-election campaigning by both

the Guild and respondent. And Johnson had, in prior conversa-

tions with McDonnell in the Lama Room, made coercive and
threatening statements in connection with the Guild.
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776, lATSE (Film Editors), 303 F. 2d 513, 518

(9th Cir. 1962), cert, denied, 371 U.S. 826 (1962).

"This court does not sit to parrot the Board's con-

ckisions, but neither does it sit to judge the credi-

bility of witnesses ... or dispute the Board's choice

between two fairly conflicting views although this

court might justifiably make a different choice

were the matter before it de novo." N.L.R.B. v.

Stanislans Intplement & Hardware Co., 226 F. 2d

377, 381 (9th Cir. 1955). This is not to say that

we are irrevocably bound by the credibility deter-

minations of the Trial Examiner, but rather that

his findings shouldn't be disturbed unless a clear

preponderance of all of the relevant evidence con-

vinces that they are incorrect. We have examined

the record and have not found ample reason for

reversing the credibility finding. We therefore

affirm the Board's findings of a violation of sec-

tion 8(a)(1). [footnote omitted]

N.L.R.B. V. Luisi Truck Lines, supra, 66 LRRM at

2462-2463.

There is also substantial evidence to support the

Board's finding that remarks by four management

officials that working rules would be heartlessly and

vindictively administered constituted a violation of

Section 8(a)(1) of the Act. The employer did not

jmerely advise his employees that he would require

strict adherence to work rules. The remarks of Curry

and Walheim (supra, pp. 9-10), when considered

with those of Johnson and Moon, make it clear that the

employer was informing the employees that the rules

would be manipulated so that pro-Guild employees

would violate them and be discharged. Thus Johnson

told McDonnell that if the Guild got in things would

be tough on Guild leaders Geittman, Gillis and Jones.
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Johnson explained "... you know how Lori [Geitt-

man] is late all the time. We just change her hours,

and you know how long it would take before Lori

is being late. We could dismiss her after a week."

As to Robert Jones, he stated, "you know what an old

maid he is about his routines and his schedules; all

we have to do is put him on a split shift, and he

couldn't take that very long." (R. 71; Tr. 474-475.)

In a written report submitted by Johnson to Curry

giving his appraisal of employees' feelings on the

Guild, he suggested that employee Randy Gray might

be convinced to vote for the Company wdth the selling

point that "Guild rules will cost you your jobs" (G. C.

Exh. 18) . Managing Editor Moon told McDonnell that

the Guild would take the heart out of the employer-

employee relationship and that if she was late 3 times
'

after the Guild got in she would be fired. Moon told

employee Hall that he, Gray and Geittmann would

be fired after the Guild got in because work rules would

be more stringently applied. In short, the Company's •

warnings to the employees that work rules would be

used to discharge pro-Guild employees violate Section

8(a)(1)."

It is also settled that conferring economic benefits

in order to inhibit employee 's freedom of choice vio-

lates Section 8(a)(1). N.L.R.B. v. Exchange Parts

Co., 375 U.S. 405. Here 23 of the 25 employees in:

the unit received salary increases of $5 to $15 per

week shortly before the election The Board's con-

1* N.L.R.B. V. Sebastopol Apple Growers Union, 269 F. 2d 705,

708 (C.A. 9) : "If you girls think I am tough now, wait; if the

TTnion gets in, I'll show you how tough I can be," found violative

of 8(a)(1). Accord: Edward Fields, Ine. v. N.L.R.B., 325 F. 2d

754,670 (C.A. 2).
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elusion that the purpose of the increases was to

influence the employees is plainly warranted. Thus,

it is clear from both Company and Union witnesses

that wages were the primary concern of the employees,

' and the employer knew it ; the memorandum from
' Johnson to Curry (see p. 7, n. 6 supra) which discussed

the union sentiments of the employees suggested that

for several employees a raise in pay would sway their

sentiments away from the Guild/' And, as shown,

supra pp. 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13-14, many promises of wage

raises had been made to the employees during the elec-

tion campaign. The company's trne motive is most

clearly revealed by company agent Pafftn's statement to

,
McDonnell that "the main issue in this Guild thing has

been money, and now that is settled, or soon will be,

,
there is really not much sense in bringing it in is

; there" (Tr. 533).

In sum, the Board properly concluded that the Com-

pany granted these wage increases "for the purpose

of interfering with, restraining and coercing employees

in the pending representation election." (R. 18). J. C.

Penny Co. Inc. v. N.L.R.B., August 29, 1967, 66 LRRM
12069, 2073 (C.A. 10) ; American Sanitary Products

\Co. V. N.L.R.B., 382 F. 2d 53 (C.A. 10) ; Betts Baking

Co. V. N.L.B.B., 380 F. 2d 199, 203 (C.A. 10) ; Crown

\i\Tar and Chemical Works, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 365 F. 2d

^^ Respondent contends that this document should not have Ijeen

admitted into evidence because it was allegedly stolen from a super-

1
1 visor's desk. Respondent relies on the dissentins? opinion in Burdeau

i!v. McDowell, 256 U.S. 465. But the decision in that case holds that

f

allegedly stolen documents are admissible unless an agent of the

j

government was a party to the wrongful seizure. The Board, of

; course, follows this rule in its proceedings. General Engineering,

I

Inc., 123 NLRB 586; Air Line Pilots Ass'n, 97 NLRB 929; An-
\drew Jergens Co. of Calif., 27 NLRB 521. In any event, the infor-

limation in the memorandum is merelv cumulative.
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588, 590 (C.A. 10); United Automobile Workers
(Preston Products Co., Inc.) v. N.L.R.B., — F, 2d —
(C.A.D.C. No. 20, 137, decided November 14, 1967),

Slip opinion pp. 7, 8.

II. SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE ON THE RECORD AS A WHOLE
SUPPORTS THE BOARD'S FINDING THAT THE COMPANY
VIOLATED SECTION 8(a)(5) AND (1) OF THE ACT BY RE-
FUSING TO RECOGNIZE AND BARGAIN WITH THE UNION

Section 8(a)(5) of the Act requires an employer

^'to bargain collectively with the representative of

his employees, subject to the provisions of Section

9(a)." Section 9(a) provides that "Representatives

designated or selected for the purpose of collective

bargaining by the majority of the employees in a unit

appropriate for such purposes, shall be the exclusive

representatives of all the employees in such unit for

the purposes of collective bargaining." Although Sec-

tion 9(c)(1) provides the machinery by which the

selection of a representative may be determined in a

Board-conducted election, it has long been settled that

an election is not the only means by which representa-

tive status may be established. See United Mine Work-
ers V. Arkansas Oak Flooring Co., 351 U.S. 62, 71-72,

and cases cited at n. 8 therein. It is equally well settled

that where authorization cards have been signed by

a majority of the unit employees, the employer violates

Section 8(a)(5) of the Act if he refuses to recognize

and bargain with the union, unless such refusal is

motivated by a good-faith doubt of the union's ma-

jority status. "We show below that a majority of the

employees in an appropriate unit validly designated

the Union as their bargaining representative and that

the Company refused recognition, not because of good-

faith doubt of the Union's majority status, but to gain
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time in whieli to undermine that status. N.L.R.B. v.

Security Plating Co., Inc., 356 F. 2d 725, 727 (C.A. 9) ;

N.L.R.B. V. Hyde, 339 F. 2d 568, 570 (C.A. 9) ; Sakrete

of Northern California, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 332 F. 2d

902, 908-909 (C.A. 9), cert, denied, 379 U.S. 961, re-

' hearing denied, 380 U.S. 926; Colson Corp. v. N.L.R.B.,

347 F. 2d 128 (C.A. 8), cert, denied, 382 U.S. 904;

N.L.R.B. V. Economy Food Center, Inc., 333 F.

j

2d 468, 471-72 (C.A. 7) ; Florence Printing Co. v.

! N.L.R.B., 333 F. 2d 289, 291-92 (C.A. 4) ; Irving Air

Chute Co. V. N.L.R.B., 350 F.2d 176, 182 (C.A. 2).

i

A. The Guild Had Majority Status in An Appropriate Unit

1. The Trial Examiner correctly precluded the Company
from relitigating in the unfair labor practice proceeding

the supervisory status of certain employees

On April 26, the Guild filed a representation peti-

tion, seeking an election in a unit of "all regular edi-

torial department employees" (G.C. Exh. 1(a)). The
Company contended, inter alia, that six employees ^^

were not supervisors and should, therefore, he included

in the imit. A three-day hearing was held to determine

the status of the employees. The Regional Director

i

then issued a Decision and Direction of Election in

I which he held that three ^' of the six employees were

supervisors and, therefore, not included in the unit.

i The Company did not request the Board to re\dew this

^* Sports Editor Richard White, Women's Editor Patricia

McDonnell, Photojji'apher Robert Moore, City Editor Jay Berman,
News Editor Kenneth -Johnson and Assistant News Editor Gary
Palmer.

^^ Berman, Johnson and Palmer.
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determination ^' but, instead, executed a waiver of its

right to appeal (G.C. Exh. 1(b)). Accordingly, pur-

suant to the terms of the Regional Director's decision,

employees Berman, Johnson and Palmer did not vote

in the ensuing election/"

At the hearing before the Trial Examiner, the Com-

pany sought to litigate again the status of employees

Berman, Johnson and Palmer, The Trial Examiner,

relying upon Board Rule 102,67 (f), rejected this at-

tempt.^" The Company's contention that it should have

been allowed to relitigate the status of those employees

is based upon its argument that the present unfair

labor practice proceeding is not "related" to the rep-

resentation proceeding within the meaning of Rule

102,67 (f). As we show below, this contention is vdth-

out merit.

It is well settled that determinations made in a rep-

resentation case are not directly reviewable in the

courts,^^ However, where the Board orders an em-

ployer to bargain with a union, and its order "is

"Section 102.67(b) of the Board's Rules and Relations, 29

CFR 102.67, provides for Board review of the Regional Director's

Decision.

^^ As noted supra, p. 14, the election resulted in a tie vote, the

Union filed objections to the Company's conduct affecting the

result of the election, and that case was consolidated with the

instant unfair labor practice case.

20 Board Rule 102.67(f), 29 CFR 102.67(f) provides that "The
parties may at any time, waive their right to request review.

Failure to request review shall preclude such parties from re-

litigating, in any related subsequent unfair labor practice proceed-

ing, any issue which was, or could have been, raised in the repre-

sentation proceeding . . .
."

"' See, e.g., Boire v. Greyhound Corp., 376 U.S. 473, 476; A.F.L.

V. N.L.R.B., 308 U.S. 401.
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based in whole or in part" (Section 9(d))'' upon

determinations made in the representation proceeding,

an employer may obtain judicial review of the entire

representation proceeding by refusing to bargain with

the union. Because in such cases, the representation

case is a part of the record, and therefore reviewable

by the Court (Section 9(d)), one opportunity to liti-

gate an issue is considered sufficient and there is no

right to litigate again, in the unfair labor practice

hearing, what has already been litigated in the repre-

sentation case.^^ The Company acknowledges this analy-

sis, but would limit its application to the situation

where the Union tvins the election, is certified, and the

employer refuses to bargain to test the certification.

There is, we submit, no reason in law or policy for

such a limitation.

Section 9(d) makes no distinction based upon

whether a union wins or loses the election.^* Thus,

-^Section 9(d) of the Aet provides:

Whenever an order of the Board made pursuant to Section

10(c) is based in whole or in part upon facts certified follow-

ing an investigation pursuant to subsection (c) of this section

and there is a petition for the enforcement or review of such

order, such certification and the record of such investigation

shall be included in the transcript of the entire record required

to be filed under section 10(e) or 10(f), and thereupon the

decree of the court enforcing, modifying, or setting aside in

whole or in part the order of the Board shall be made and
entered upon the pleadings, testimony, and proceedings set

forth in such transcript.

^^ N.L.R.B. V. International Union of Operating Engineers Local

66, etc., 357 F. 2d 841,846 n. 10 (C.A. 3) and cases cited therein.

^ In addition to the reasons set forth, infra, pp. 25-26, we note,

as the Board found, that the Union 's election loss was attributable

to the employer's unfair labor practices. There is surely no reason

to allow the employer to relitigate an issue because he has caused

the Union to lose the election, when it is clear he would not have
been permitted to do so had he obeyed the law.
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where, as here, the Union loses an invalid election

and the Board then issues a bargaining order, the em-

ployer may still obtain court review of the determina-

tions made in the representation case insofar as the

Board's order is based upon those determinations,-"

Here the Board's order plainly rests, at least in part,

upon the Regional Director's determination that three

employees were supervisors, and therefore not eligible

for inclusion in the unit. In seeking to relitigate the

status of these employees, the Company did not allege

that it had new or previously unavailable evidence to

offer. It sought merely to introduce the same evidence,

in order to litigate the same issue for the same pur-

pose—to contest again the proper composition of the

bargaining unit. However, since the issue has already

been litigated in the representation case, and since the

Board's bargaining order is based in part upon the

resolution of this issue, making that detei-mination

reviewable in the court of appeals (Section 9(d)),

there is no reason to allow the same issue to be litigated

again, on the same evidence, for the same purpose,^*

-^ The Board has certified the representation ease record to this

Court for its review herein. See, in this regard, N.L.R.B. v. South-

hridge Sheet Metal Works, Inc., 380 F. 2d 851, 853-54 (C.A. 1).

^® Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America v. N.L.R.B. (Saga-

more Shirt Co.), 365 F. 2d"898 (C.A.D.C.) is distinguishable. There,

the Court held that supervisory status of certain emploj^ees could

be relitigated in a subsequent unfair labor practice case because

the status of the employees was important for a reason quite apart

from any issue involved in the refusal to bargain charge. In such

a case, it could be said that a party is not on notice of, and should

not be required to anticipate, any additional conseqi;ences of los-

ing an issue which he has intended to litigate only for election

purposes. Thus, where, "... the part of the charge involved in

the relitigation issue is not refusal to bargain, but rather, inter-

ference with rights of organization, the proceedings are not so
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j

2. The Company's failure to file exceptions to the regional

director's decision precludes it from attacking that deci-

sion in this court

As shown, supra, pp. 23-24, the Company did not file

exceptions to the Regional Director's decision dispos-

ing of the supervisory status of certain individuals.

Instead, the Company filed a waiver of its right to have

the Board review the Director's decision, and the elec-

tion was held pursuant to the terms of that decision.

We submit, for the following reasons, that the Com-

pany's failure to seek review by the Board of the

Eegional Director's decision, precludes it from ob-

taining judicial review of that decision.

Section 10(e) of the Act provides that "No objec-

tion that has not been urged before the Board, its

member, agent, or agency, shall be considered by the

court, unless failure or neglect to urge such objection

shall be excused because of extraordinary circum-

stances." This section consistently has been held to

apply where an issue was litigated before the Trial

j

Examiner in an imfair labor practice proceeding, but

not renewed before the Board by means of timely ex-

ceptions to the Trial Examiner's Decision. N.L.R.B.

V. International Union of Operating Engineers Local

66, etc. 357 F. 2d 841, 846 n. 10 (C.A. 3) ; N.L.R.B.

V, Guistina Bros. Lumher Co., 253 F. 2d 371, 374 (C.A.

9). These holdings go beyond a literal reading of Sec-

tion 10(e), since the Trial Examiner might well be

; considered an "agent" of the Board. However, it was

1
recognized that if the Board could properly require

! related as to foreclose presentation to the Board of the underlying

issue." 365 F. 2d at 905. On the other hand, "the rule [against

relitigation] is clear enough where the Company seeks to justify

an alleged refusal to bargain on the ground that the earlier unit

determination is incorrect." 365 F. 2d at 904.
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timely exceptions to the Trial Examiner's Decision as

a precondition to Board consideration of contentious

raised before the Trial Examiner, then Section 10(e)

of the Act must be interpreted to preclude judicial

consideration of findings to which no exceptions have

been filed. A contrary interpretation of Section 10(e)

would "virtually destroy" the Board's procedural ride,

for the "Board could hardly continue to consider only

those issues in the Intermediate Report [now called

"Trial Examiner's Decision"] to which formal excep-

tion is taken if the Courts are going to review every

thing raised before the Hearing Examiner." Kovacli

V. N.L.R.B., 229 F. 2d 138, 143 (C.A. 7).

Preclusion of judicial review of the finding made

by the Regional Director here involves but another

application of this principle. The Company did not

seek review of the Regional Director's decision as the

Board's rules provided it might. Since the Company
elected not to take issue with the Director 's determina-

tions an election was held in accordance with those

determinations." In these circumstances, we submit

that the Company should be deemed to have waived

any attack on the Regional Director's determinations

and this Court may appropriately decline to pass ujDon

them. N.L.R.B. v. Delsea Iron Works, Inc., 334 P. 2d

67, 71 (C.A. 3).^^

-'' Tf the Company had not filed a waiver of its right to review,

the Regional Director would not have conducted an election until

the Company's objections were reviewed by the Board. See Rule

102.67 (b).

"

^* Although the Third Circuit in N.R.L.B. v. Capital Bakers, Inc.,

351 F. 2d 45, 48, rejected the Board's contention that failure to

follow prescribed procedures to overturn the Regional Director's

unit determination was a waiver of the exceptions thereto, the

court found that the circumstances there were "special"—i.e.,

I
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Nor may the Company properly contend that it ful-

filled its Section 10(e) obligation by attempting to

establish the alleged error in the Regional Director's

' decision in the complaint proceeding. As shown, supra,

pp. 24-26, with respect to the status of the employees,

the rej)resentation and unfair labor practice proceed-

ings are one. Accordingly, asserted error at any stage

of the proceedings must be preserved in compliance

with prescribed jDrocedural requirements. These re-

quirements serve to insure that matters involved in

representation proceedings are brought to the Board's

attention at a time when they may be resolved with the

least delay and prejudice to all concerned. This, in

turn, aids the quick and final resolution of representa-

tion issues and protects the employees' right to choose

or reject a bargaining representative in an expeditious

fashion. Here, the Company was fully apjDrised of its

right to request review of the Regional Director's de-

cision. Had it done so, the election would not have

•been held until the Board ruled on the Company's
objections, and if it agreed with those contentions the

i
election would have been held in the unit considered

appropriate by the employer. There is surely no reason

why that representation issue should not have been
s finally settled in the representation case, rather than

in the complaint case, long after the election had been

held. Nor is there a claim that extraordinary circum-

stances excused the failure to file exceptions at the

I
exceptions to the Board would have been futile since the Board's
(unit position had been established in prior litigation, the interven-

ing Supreme Court decision in N.L.R.B. v. Metropolitan Life Ins.

[Co., 380 U.S. 438, had cast doubt on the validity of the Board's

;

position, and the respondent had maintained "his position from
' the inception of the proceedings, and the Board had been adequately
apprised of his intention to rely on this." Cf. N.L.R.B. v. Sun
Drug Co., 359 F. 2d 408 (C.A. 3).
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appropriate time as required by the Board's rules.

Accordingly Section 10(e) of the Act precludes judi-

cial review of the Company's defense.

Furthermore, the Company's failure to exhaust an

available administrative remedy precludes review here

irrespective of the application of Section 10(e) of the

Act. N.L.R.B. V. Bexall Chemical Co., 370 F. 2d 363,

365-366 (C.A. 1). In Bexall, as in this case, the em-

ployer failed to take exception to the Regional Di-

rector's report, attempted, unsuccessfully, to relitigate

the issue in the unfair labor practice proceeding and

then sought judicial review, claiming error by the

Regional Director. The Court precluded re\'iew, apply-

ing the doctrine of exhaustion of administrative

remedies, ". . . a long and well established general

rule of law resting upon considerations of fairness

and orderly procedure." Bexall, supra, 370 F. 2d at

366. Quoting from the Supreme Court's decision in

United States v. Tucker Truck Lines, 344 U.S. 33,

36-37, the Court pointed out that:

Simple fairness to those who are engaged in the

tasks of administration, and to litigants, requires

as a general rule that Courts should not topple

over administrative decisions unless the adminis-

trative body not only has erred but has erred

against objection made at the time appropriate

under the practice.

As we have shown, there is no reason why the Com-

pany could not have filed timely objections to the

Regional Director's decision. Since it chose not to do

so, it may not press its claim in this Court.
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3. The authorization cards are valid

It is well settled that an employee's execution of a

clear and unambiguous card, sucli as tlie one in the

present case,^® constitutes an effective designation of

2^ The cards read as follows

:

American Newspaper Guild (APL-CIO, CLC)
Membership Application

I designate the American Newspaper Guild and its Local my
agent in collective bargaining, and authorize the American News-
paper Guild and its Local to represent me before any Board, Court,

Committee or other Tribunal in any matter involving collective

bargaining, and I authorize the American Newspaper Guild and
its Local to represent me in adjusting any grievances I may have
in connection with my employment. I pledge myself to abide by
the constitution of the American Newspaper Guild and the Bylaws
of the Local Guild.

Name
(please print) (Date of birth) (Home phone)

Home Address

(Employed by) (Date of hire) (Present salary)

(Department in which employed) (Job title)

Application received by Local Guild
Herewith $ initiation fee and $ for

month 's dues
Date Signature
(The ANG constitution requires that, when turned into the local

Guild, this card be accompanied by an initiation fee and one
month's dues; where a dues deduction agreement is in effect,

a signed checkoff card may be accepted instead of the month 's dues.

)

[OVER]
Have you previously been a member of the American Newspaper
Guild, any of its locals, or any other union? If so, please state

when and where

:

Please list all previous experience in newspaper or comparable
work, giving city, company, job title and dates

:

Please check those Guild activities in which you would like most
to participate

:

n Contract negotiations Education, publications

n Contract enforcement Human rights

n Organizing Legislation

n Budget, dues collection Social affairs awards
Inter-union relations



32

the union as his bargaining agent, unless the employer

can make a clear showing that the employee signed the

card because of a material or gross misrepresentation

of its purpose. United Automohile Workers (Preston

Products Co., Inc.), F. 2d (C.A.D.C), No.

20,137, decided November 14, 1967 ; N.L.R.B. v. Gotham

Shoe Mfg. Co., 359 F. 2d 684, 686 (C.A. 2) ; N.L.R.B.

V. Security Plating Co., 356 F. 2d 725, 726-727 (C.A. 9) ;

Happach v. N.L.R.B., 353 F. 2d 629, 631 (C.A. 7)

;

N.L.R.B. V. C. J. Glasgow Co., 356 F. 2d 476, 478 (C.A.

7) ; Englewood Lumber Co., 130 NLRB 394, 395 ; Jas.

H. Matthews & Co. v. N.L.R.B., 354 F. 2d 432, 437-438

(C.A. 8), cert, denied, 384 U.S. 1002. Cf. N.L.R.B. v.

Swan Super Cleaner, Inc., decided October 25, 1967,

66 LRRM 2385 (C.A. 6). Contra: N.L.R.B. v. S. S.

Logan Packing Company, — F. 2d — (C.A. 4), No.

10,355, decided October 27, 1967. "A morass of hazy

individual recollections of attendant circimistances wiU

not suffice." Amalgamated Clothing Workers of

America (Hamburg Shirt Corp.) v. N.L.R.B., 371

F. 2d 740, 745 (C.A.D.C). Where, as here, the cards

clearly state their purpose, full effect will be given to

them, regardless of the subjective state of mind of the

signatories, absent proof of fraud or coercion in obtain-

ing the signatures.^"

Strong reliance on tbe clear terms of an authoriza-

tion card is especially appropriate in this case. The

employees involved had a college education. As com-

pany counsel observed, "the more educated a person.

^""[A]n employee's thoughts (or afterthoughts) as to why he

signed a union card and what he thought that card meant, cannot
negative the overt action of having signed a card designating the

union as bargaining agent." Joy Silk Mills v. N.L.R.B., 185 F. 2d
732, 743 (C.A.D.C), cert, denied, 341 U.S. 941. Accord: Colson

Corp. V. N.L.R.B., 347 F. 2d 128, 135 (C.A. 8), cert, denied, 382
U.S. 904; N.L.R.B. v. Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc., 341 F. 2d 750, 755
(C.A. 6), cert, denied, 382 U.S. 830; N.L.R.B. v. Stoiv Mfg., 217
F. 2d 900, 902 (C.A. 2), cert, denied, 348 U.S. 964; N.L.R.B. v.

Greenfield Components Corp., 317 F. 2d 85, 89 (C.A. 1).
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the less likely they would be induced or coerced" (Tr.

261). As newspaper reporters, they are members of

a profession skilled in the use and imderstanding of

language, and in the ability to "ferret out the truth"

(Tr, 262), These employees admittedly read and

signed the clearly worded authorization cards which

were captioned, in capital letters: MEMBERSHIP
APPLICATION. On the other hand, the testimony

upon which the Company relies to invalidate the cards

occurred nine months after they were signed ; the em-

ployees in question were still employed by the Com-

pany ; and they were not likely t'o have forgotten their

employer's threats to blacklist Guild supporters, or

other threats, promises and inducements designed

to force abandonment of the Guild. Appropriate in

such circumstances, is the recent observation of the

District of Columbia Circuit:

... we have here the classic case of employees
testifying under the eye of the company officials

about events which occurred almost a year before

and prior to the activities which were subsequently
found to constitute unfair labor practices. It is

cei'tainly conceivable that those same threats and
benefits which shook an employee's original sup-
port for the union also altered that employee's
memory as to events which occurred before the

presentation of such threats and benefits.

United Automobile Workers (Preston Products Co.,

Inc.) V, N.L.F.B., supra, Slip opinion p. 10. Accord:

N.L.B.B. V, Southhridge Sheet Metal Works, 380 P. 2d

851, 855 (C.A. 1).^^

^^ In the Preston Products case, as here, extensive threats were
made and almost all of the employees received pay increases dur-
ing the election campaign. Judge Wright's observation in Preston
that

'

' Surely the Board might well conclude that in the real world
employer blandishments and coercion amounting to unfair labor
practices during an election campaign can result in tailored testi-

mony" {Preston, supra, at n. 2, p. 11) is equally applicable here.
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Here, the Board found that when the Guild de-

manded recognition it held 14 valid authorization

cards, giving it a majority of the 25 employees in the

unit. The Company contests six of the cards. As we

shall show, the evidence is clearly insufficient to show

that the cards were signed because of a material mis-

representation with respect to their purpose.

Floyd Rinehart

Rinehart knew that the Guild could achieve repre-

sentation without an election. Indeed, his testimony

is explicit : "... had there been sufficient cards signed

to influence Mr. Curry to agree to a contract negoti-

ation with the Guild as a bargaining agent, without

an election, then we would not have to go through a

campaign. But ... it was not my thinking . . . that

it was ever going to be that easy." (Tr. 715). Thus,

Rinehart believed that there would be an election

—

not because of any misrepresentation made to him

—

but because the employer would not grant recognition

without one. Moreover, Rinehart 's activities on behalf

of the Union made it plain that in signing the card

he "meant to make the Union [his] representative."

N.L.R.B. V. Stow Mfg. Co., 217 F. 2d 900, 902 (C.A. 2),

cert, denied, 348 U.S. 964. See also, N.L.R.B. v. Hyde,

339 F. 2d 568 (C.A. 9). He made the initial contact

with the Guild, and acted "as an unofficial agent of

the union in trying to get cards signed for the union

. .
." (Tr. 715). Thus, his actions at the time of the

events in question were consistent with his testimony

that he signed a card because he wanted the Guild

to represent him (Tr. 715).
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Robert Peterson

Peterson testified that Gillis, in soliciting his card,

clearly informed him that, "if we get enough cards

signed, we probably won't even have to have an elec-

tion, Mr. Curry can probably, you know, say okay ..."

(Tr. 605). And when asked by Company counsel,

"Didn't [Gillis] say the only purpose in signing the

card was to have an election?", Peterson responded,

"No. The purpose in signing the card is to be repre-

sented by the Guild." The Company's claim of mis-

representation is based on statements by Gillis that

Mr. Curry probably would not grant recognition with-

out an election, and that signing the card did not com-

mit one to vote for the union if there was an election

(Tr. 606, emphasis added) . This, of course, is not a mis-

representation, but an accurate reflection of the union's

expectations. Gillis' full disclosure with respect to

the card's purpose, and the fact that representation

could be obtained solely on the basis of authorization

cards, completely refutes the Company's claim of mis-

representation.

I

Randolph Gray

Gray testified that he read the card before signing

it, and knew that it could be used to obtain recognition

without an election (Tr. 742-743). Although Gillis

had, in urging Gray to sign, told him that he was try-

ing to bring about an election, this falls far short of a

,

representation that the card would not be given its

i stated effect. The mere mention of an election in con-

nection with a solicitation to sign is not sufficient to

vitiate the clear and unambiguous designation of a

i
bargaining representative. See, e.g., Amalgamated
Clothing Workers of America (Sagamore Shirt Co.)

jv. N.L.R.B., 365 F. 2d 898, (C.A.D.C.) ; United Auto-
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mobile Workers (Preston Products Co., Inc.) v.

N.L.R.B., supra; N.L.R.B. v. Cumberland Shoe Corp.,

351 F. 2d 917, 920 (C.A. 6) ; Cf. N.L.R.B. v. Swan
Super Cleaners, supra, 66 LRRM 2385 (C.A. 6).

Gillis did not indicate that there would necessarily be

a later opportunity to decide whether or not to desig-

nate the Union and, as noted, supra. Gray knew what

he had signed and its effect. His later testimony that

he wasn't "convinced" that he wanted the Guild when

he signed the card is surely not evidence of a misrepre-

sentation made to him. See n. 30, supra. Nor does

his affirmative response to a leading question as to

whether the sole purpose of the card was stated to be

to get an election change the fact that Gray admittedly

read the card and knew that it could be used to obtain

representation without an election.^^

Charles Cole

The Board found that the purpose of the card was

misrepresented to Cole. However, after considering

all the circumstances surrounding his signing, the

Board concluded that he was not induced to sign the

card because of the misrepresentation but because he

^ Affirmative answers to leading qiiestions used by Company
counsel, e.g., "Were you told that the oiJy purpose of signing the

card was to obtain a Labor Board election?" are entitled to little

probative weight. In N.L.R.B. v. Cumberland Shoe Corp., 351
P. 2d 917, 919 (C.A. 6) the Court, quoting the Board decision in

that case, stated

:

"The record indicates that the testimony * * * [that some
signatories were told that the purpose of the cards was to

obtain a Board election] consisted of affirmative responses by
the signatories to leading questions propounded by Respond-
ent's counsel, upon cross-examination, as to whether they were
told that the purpose of the cards was to secure an election.

We do not deem such testimony sufficient to controvert the

statement of the purpose and elfect of such cards contained on
the face thereof, nor do we consider it inconsistent with an
understanding that the cards served the dual purpose of desig-

nating a representative and of securing an election.
'

'
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wanted the Griiild to represent him (R. 83) . Thus, Cole,

a former member of the Guild, was approached by Grillis

who persuaded him of the advantages of the Guild. Cole

testified that " [Gillis] made a pretty good argument

for the Guild, and when he left I was pretty well sold

on what they were trying to do" (Tr, 648). Cole not

only filled out and signed the authorization card, but

volunteered to participate in Guild activities (G.C. Exh.

12). Then, during the early part of the election cam-

: paign Cole actively supported the Guild (Tr, 659). In

I sum, the Board's conclusion that Cole signed the card

because he wanted Guild representation rather than

because of the misrepresentation made to him is war-

i ranted on this record.

Richard Baylor

' Baylor's card was solicited by Rinehart, who told

him of the benefits the Guild would bring. Since Bay-

lor was most concerned about wages, Rinehart stressed

the differences between the Company's current wages

,and the Guild's scale. (Tr. 763, 765, 769-770) . Baylor

;then read the card and signed it (Tr. 763). Baylor

also testified that Rinehart told him the card would be

iused to petition for an election but could not say

whether Rinehart said that was the only purpose of

the card (Tr. 761), Baylor knew" that the card could

be used to obtain recognition without an election but

could not remember if Rinehart told him so at the time

he signed. In sum, all that Baylor's testimony estab-

lishes is that there exists a "morass of hazy . . , recol-

lections"^^ of the circumstances surrounding the sign-

ing of his card. This, we submit, falls far short of the

^^Amalgamated Clothing Workers (Hamburg Skirt Co.) v
N.L.R.B., 371 F. 2d 740, 745 (C.A.D.C).
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clear showing of misrepresentation necessary to invali-

date a clear and unambiguous authorization card. See

cases cited, supra, p. 32.

Donald Erickson

Erickson read the authorization card, filled it out,

and signed it. He did so after Gillis approached him,

and informed him that some of the employees were

trying to get the Guild in; told him something about

the Guild, and of the possible benefit's that could be

achieved by joining. (Tr. 672). Erickson also testi-

fied that Gillis told him that '

' he wanted to g^i as many
cards as he could and this would show the Company

that the employees were united, that they wanted better

conditions, and the more cards the better . . . and Mr.

Curry would know at least a majority or a large num-

ber of his employees were interested in bringing about

the election or interested in exploring the idea further

... or interested in having the Guild represent them"

(Tr. 679-680). In sum, the evidence fails to show that

Erickson executed the authorization card'SMi. because

of a misrepresentation that its clearly stated purpose

would not be given effect.

B. The Guild Made a Proper Request for Bargaining

As shown, supra, pp. 3-4, on April 26, the Guild sent

a telegram to the Company informing it that the em-

ployees had designated the Guild as their representa-

tive. The telegram also stated that "the Guild re-

quests that it be granted recognition as bargaining

representative for editorial department employees".

On the following day, the Company responded that it

"declines to recognize your union as the collective

bargaining representative of any of its employees."
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Before the Board the Company argued that the

Union's demand was technically defective because it

did not state that the Union represented a "majority"

of the employees, and because it did not offer a check

of the authorization cards. But it is well settled that

a request to bargain need follow no specific form as

long as there is a clear communication of meaning, and

the employer understands that a demand is being

made.^* Here, the Company's response plainly shows

that it fully understood the Union's demand. In any

event, the Company's belated, hypertechnical argument

is without merit. The absence of the word "majority"

in the Union's demand is not fatal. Lincoln Mfg. Co.

V. N.L.R.B., July 7, 1967, 65 LRRM 2913 (C.A. 7).

Nor is the failure to offer a card check, N.L.R.B. v.

Security Plating Co., 356 F. 2d 725, 727 (C.A. 9).

And, contrary to the Company's contention to the

Board, "the filing of a representation petition does

not absolve an employer from his duty to recognize and

bargain with the Union ..." Bilton Insulation Inc.

V. N.L.R.B., 297 F. 2d 141, 144 (C.A. 4). Finally,

any defect in the Union's telegram was certainly

cured by Schrader's visit to Curry two days later,

when he again stated that he represented the editorial

department employees and requested contract negoti-

ations. Curry's response, as before, plainly shows that

he understood that a demand had been made. See p.

5, supra.

\
^*N.L.R.B. V. Fosdal, 367 F. 2d 784 (C.A. 7) ; N.L.R.B. v. Bar-

' ney's Supercenter, Inc., 296 F. 2d 91, 93 (C.A. 3) ; Scohell Chemical

,

Co. V. N.L.R.B., 267 F. 2d 922, 925-26 (C.A. 2) ; Joij Silk
Mills V. N.L.R.B., 185 F. 2d 732, 741 (C.A. D.C.), cert, denied,
341 U.S. 914.
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C. The Company Had No Good Faith Doubt of the Union's
Majority Status

Having obtained authorization cards from a majority

of the employees in the unit, the Gruild notified the

Company that it reiDresented the employees and re-

quested recognition as bargaining representative.

Under settled principles, the Company was thereupon

required to recognize and bargain with the Guild unless

the Company had a good faith doubt of the Guild's

majority status.^^ As this Court recently stated:

The refusal [to bargain] may not be motivated by
a desire to forestall collective bargaining and pro-

vide an opportunity to undermine the union's ma-
jority status and rid the Company of the union.

Security Plating, supra, 356 F. 2d at 727. Here, the

record provides no basis for a claim of good faith.

Bather, the Company's conduct, upon receiving the

Union's request for recognition shows, we submit, that

the Company credited the Union's claim that it repre-

sented the employees and then set out to destroy the

Union's status. In any event, as this Court recently

said:

Even if respondent had some doubts as to the

majority status of the union, its entering upon an

unlawful course of conduct in violation of section

^N.L.R.B. V. Luisi Truck Lines, supra, 66 LRRM at 2463; i

N.L.B.B. V. Security Plating Company, Inc., 356 F. 2d 725, 727

(C.A. 9) ; N.L.B.B. V. Hyde, 339 F. 2d 568, 570 (C.A. 9) ; Sakrete
\

of Northern California, Inc. v. N.L.B.B., 332 F. 2d 902, 908-909 i

(C.A. 9), cert, denied, 379 U.S. 961, rehearing denied, 380 U.S. '

926; Colsan Corp. v. N.L.B.B., 347 F. 2d 128 (C.A. 8), cert, denied, '

382 U.S. 904; N.L.B.B. v. Economy Food Center, Inc., 333 F. 2d I

468, 471-472 (C.A. 7) ; N.L.B.B. v. Overnite Transportation Co., i

308 F. 2d 279, 283 (C.A. 4) ; Florence Printing Co. v. N.L.B.B., <

333 F. 2d 289, 291-292 (C.A. 4) ; Irving Air Chute Co. v. N.L.B.B., :

350 F. 2d 176, 182 (C.A. 2) ; Jo,/ Silk Mills v. N.L.B.B., 185 F. 2d

732, 741 (C.A. D.C.), cert, denied, 341 U.S. 914.
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8(a) (1) and clearly directed at undermining what-

ever support tlie union had, . . . indicates that

such doubt, if any, was not the key motivating

factor in its refusal to bargain. To the extent

that respondent had any good faith doubts it ap-

parently was not anxious to resolve them until

such time as it could be sure that . . . the union

would not have a majority, [footnote omitted].

N.L.R.B. V. Luisi Truck Lines, supra, 66 LLRM at

2463-2464.

We submit that the Company's conduct', supra, pp.

16-22, provides an ample basis for the Board's con-

clusion that the Company's true purpose in refusing

the Guild's request for recognition was simply to defeat

the Guild regardless of its majority status. N.L.R.B.

V. Luisi Truck Lines, supra.^^

In these circumstances the Board concluded that a

bargaining order was necessary to remedy the unfair

labor practices. Clearly, such an order is an appropri-

ate remedy for a refusal to bargain. N.L.R.B. v. Luisi

Truck Lines, supra, 66 LRRM at 2464, and cases cited

therein. The circumstances in Ltiisi are strikingly

similar to those in the instant case. In Luisi, this Court

once again noted that "the Board has wide discretion

'to determine how the effect of prior unfair practices

may be expunged' International Ass'fi of Machinists,

I

3« Accord: N.L.R.B. v. Joy Silk Mills, Inc., 185 F. 2d 732, 741
I (C.A. D.C.), cert, denied, 341 U.S. 9U; N.L.R.B. v. Overnite Trans-
portation Co., supra, 308 F. 2d at 283; Bilton Insulation, Inc. v.

N.L.R.B., 297 F. 2d 141, 144-145 (C.A. 4) ; N.L.R.B. v. Inter-City
Advertising Company, 190 F. 2d 420, 421 (C.A. 4), cert, denied,
342 U.S. 908; Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America (Ham-
burg Shirt Corp.), 371 F. 2d 740 (C.A. D.C.) ; N.L.R.B. v. Cumber-
land Shoe Corp., 351 F. 2d 917, 920-921 (C.A. 6) ; N.L.R.B. v.

.Austin Powder Co., 350 F. 2d 973, 977 (C.A. 6) ; N.L.R.B. v. Winn-
Dixie, Inc., 341 F. 2d 750, 754-755 (C.A. 6), cert, denied, 382
U.S. 830.



42

etc. V. N.L.B.B., 311 U.S. 72, 82." We submit that

here, as in Luisi, there is nothing to indicate that the

Board has abused its "wide discretion" in ordering

the Company to bargain with the Union. "Were it

otherwise, 'recalcitrant employers might be able by

continued opposition to union membership indefinitely

to postpone performance of this statutory obligation'

Franks Bros. Co. v. N.L.B.B., supra, 321 U.S. at 705"

N.L.B.B. V. Luisi Truck Lines, supra, 66 LRRM at

2464.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit i

that a decree should be entered enforcing the Board's

order in full.
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APPENDIX A

The relevant provisions of tlie National Labor Rela-

tions Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29

U.S.C, Sees. 151, et seq.) are as follows:

Rights op Employees

Sec. 7. Employees shall have the right to self-organi-

zation to form, join, or assist labor organizations, to

bargain collectively through representatives of their

own choosing, and to engage in other concerted activi-

ties for the purpose of collective bargaining or other

mutual aid or protection, and shall also have the right

to refrain from any or all of such activities except to

the extent that such right may be affected by an agree-

ment requiring membership in a labor organization as

a condition of employment as authorized in section 8

(a)(3).

Unfair Labor Practices

Sec. 8(a) It shall be an unfair labor practice for an
employer

—

(1) to interfere with, restrain, or coerce em-
ployees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed in

section 7;

(5) to refuse to bargain collectively with the

representatives of his employees, subject to the

provisions of section 9(a).

Representatives and Elections

Sec. 9(a) Representatives designated or selected for
ithe purposes of collective bargaining by the majority

I

of the employees in a unit appropriate for such pur-
' poses, shall be the exclusive representatives of all the
employees in such unit for the purposes of collective

bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of
emplyoment, or other conditions of employment:

(d) Whenever an order of the Board made pursuant
to section 10(c) is based in whole or in part upon facts
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certified following an investigation pursuant to subsec-

tion (c) of this section and there is a petition for the

enforcement or review of such order, such certifica-

tion and the record of such investigation shall be in-

cluded in the transcript of the entire record required

to be fiJed under section 10(e) or 10(f), and thereupon

the decree of the court enforcing, modifying, or setting

aside in whole or in part the order of the Board shall

be made and entered upon the pleadings, testimony,

and proceedings set forth in such transcript.******
Prevention of Unfair Labor Practices

Sec 10(c) * * * If upon the preponderance of the

testimony taken the Board shall be of the opinion that

any person named in the complaint has engaged in or

is engaging in any such unfair labor jDractice, then the

Board shall state its findings of fact and shall issue

and cause to be served on such person an order requir-

ing such person to cease and desist from such unfair

labor practice and to take such affirmative action in-

cluding reinstatement of employees with or without
back pay, as will effectuate the policies of this Act :

* * *******
(e) The Board shall have power to petition any

court of appeals of the United States, . . . mthin any
circuit . . . wherein the unfair labor practice in question

occurred or wherein such person resides or transacts

business, for the enforcement of such order and for

appropriate temporary relief or restraining order, and
shall file in the court the record in the proceedings, as

provided in section 2112 of tile 28, United States Code.

Upon the filing of such petition, the court shall cause

notice thereof to be served upon such person, and there-

upon shall have jurisdiction of the proceeding and of

the question determined therein, and shall have power
to grant such temporary relief or restraining order as

it deems just and proper, and to make and enter a
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decree enforcing, modifying, and enforcing as so modi-

fied, or setting aside in whole or in part the order of

the Board. No objection that has not been urged be-

fore the Board, its member, agent, or agency, shall be

considered by the court, unless the failure or neglect

to urge such objection shall be excused because of ex-

traordinary circumstances. The findings of the Board
with respect to questions of fact if supported by sub-

stantial evidence on the record considered as a whole

shall be conclusive. If either party shall apply to the

court for leave to adduce additional evidence and shall

show to the satisfaction of the court that such addi-

tional evidence is material and that there were reason-

able grounds for the failure to adduce such evidence in

the hearing before the Board, its member, agent, or

agency, the court may order such additional evidence

to be taken before the Board, its member, agent, or

agency, and to be made a part of the record. . . . Upon
the filing of the record with it, the jurisdiction of the

court shall be exclusive and its judgment and decree

shall be final, except that the same shall be subject to

review by the . . . Supreme Court of the United States

upon writ of certiorari or certification as provided in

section 1254 of title 28.
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APPENDIX B

Index to Reporter's Transcript

(Numbers are to pages of the reporter's transcript)

Board Oase No. 31-OA-119

GENERAL COUNSEL'S EXHIBITS

Received in

No. Identified Offered Evidence

l(a)-l(ff) 21 21 21

2 23 24 24

3 25 25 25

4,5,6 27 28 31

7 31 32 32

8 38 34 34

9 41

10 65 66 66

11 67 67 68

12 68 68 69

13 69 69 70

14 70 71 71

15 71 72 72

16 72 73 73

17 73 74 74

18 89 95 157

19, 20, 21 98

22 231 232 232

23 251

24 252

25 252

26 333 375 375

27, 28 334 375 375
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Received in

No. Identified Offered Evidence

29 390 390 390

30 409 409 438

31 441 442 517

32 443 443 517

33 444 444 517

34 496

35 503

36 503

37 599 615 615

38 599

39 630

40 630

41 654

Respondent's Exhibits

Received in

No. Identified Offered Evidence

1 196 196 196

2 210 210 210

3 211 1086 1087

4 347 347 348

5 358 358 358

6 372 378 378

7 504 516 517

7(a)-7(x) 510 516 517

8 536 1086 1087

9 567 568 569

10 570 570 570
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Received in

No. Identified Offered Evidence

11 786 795 796

12 795 795 796

13 937 937 939

14, 15, 16, 17 994 998 999

18 1011 1011 1012

19 1017 1017 1018

20 1098 1100 1100

21 1146 1146 1146

22, 23 1147 1148 1149

24,25, 26 1148 1148 1149

27 1151

Trial Examiner

1151

's Exhibits

1152

Received in

No. Identified Offered Evidence

1, 2 905 1009 1010

3 1010 1009 1010

ir U. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE I9G7 282765/P.O. 413
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RESPONDENT'S BRIEF

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
Preliminary Statement

This is a proceeding, pursuant to Section 10(e) of the

National Labor Relations Act, as amended (referred

to herein as "Act") in which the National Labor Rela-

tions Board (referred to herein as "Board") is seeking

to enforce an order against the South Bay Daily Breeze,

a Division of Southern California Associated News-

papers, Inc. (referred to herein as "Respondent"), issued

on October 12, 1966, and reported at 160 NLRB No. 145.

(R. 143-144.)*

* References to the pleadings filed with the Court as Volume I,

Pleadings, are designated "R". References to the stenographic

transcript of the hearing in the representation case (31-RC-18)

filed with the Court as Volumes II, III, and IV, are designated

"RC Tr." References to the stenographic transcript of the unfair

labor practice hearing (31-CA-119), filed with the Court as

Volumes VI-XVI, are designated "Tr". References to exhibits

of the General Counsel, Respondent, and the Trial Examiner are

designated "GC Exh.", "R Exh." and "Tr. Exam. Exh." respec-

tively.
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The Board found that the Respondent had violated

Sections 8(a)(1) and 8(a)(5) of the Act and had en-

gaged in conduct affecting the results of a representa-

tion election held on July 20, 1965, in which Respondent's

Editorial Department employees elected not to be repre-

sented by the petitioning union. Local 69, Los Angeles

Newspaper Guild, American Newspaper Guild, AFL-
CIO, CLC (referred to herein as "Guild"). The Board's

order, inter alia, set aside the election and directed Re-

spondent to cease and desist from engaging in certain

unfair labor practices and to bargain with the Guild

upon request.

That portion of the Board's order which requires Re-

spondent to bargain with the Guild is premised upon

the conclusion that at the time the Guild requested recog-

nition, the Guild represented in an appropriate unit a

majority of Respondent's editorial employees. Indeed,

the Board has admitted that it does not have the power

to issue a bargaining order unless the union involved did

represent a majority of the employer's employees. See,

e.g., J. P. Stevens S Co., Inc., 157 NLRB 869 (1966). In

concluding that this requirement was met, the Board

relies on its conclusion that 14 of Respondent's editorial

employees signed valid union authorization cards and

that the appropriate unit consisted of 25 employees.

Respondent, however, contends that the Board's bar-

gaining order cannot be enforced in that the Guild did

not represent a majority of Respondent's editorial em-

ployees in an appropriate unit. Respondent will demon-

strate herein that at least six of its editorial employees

signed union authorization cards under circumstances

which require the court to disregard such cards as evi-

dence of the employees' desire to be represented by the

Guild in collective bargaining and that the appropriate

bargaining unit consisted of 28 employees.
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Kespondent also contends that the instant case should

be remanded on two crucial grounds. First, the Board

should have required its General Counsel to show Re-

spondent's counsel any written statements in his posses-

sion which were signed by employees whose authorization

cards were introduced into evidence and which related to

the circumstances surounding the execution of such cards.

Second, the Trial Examiner erroneously admitted into

evidence a highly prejudicial document identified as

General Counsel's Exhibit No. 18 which was stolen by an

employee for use by the Guild and the General Counsel.

Respondent does not believe that the Board's findings of

certain unfair labor practices in violation of Section

8(a)(1) of the Act are supported by substantial evidence,

but because the Trial Examiner's whole view of this case

was so colored by General Counsel's Exhibit No. 18, it is

submitted that instead of taking the time of this Court

to review such findings and the record at this time, the

interests of justice will best be served by remanding the

Section 8(a)(1) allegations of the complaint to the

Board for a hearing before another Trial Examiner

whose views would not be colored by General Counsel's

Exliibit No. 18.

Statement of Facts

Respondent is engaged in the publication and distribu-

tion of a daily newspaper and several weekly newspapers

at its plant in Torrance, California. (R. 68; Tr. pp. 778-

780.) For many years Respondent has had collective bar-

gaining relationships with the International Typograph-

ical Union, the International Stereotyper's and Electro-

typer's Union of North America, and the International

Printing Pressmen and Assistant's Union of North

America. (Tr. p. 790.) During this period there has

never been a strike or serious labor dispute involving

Respondent's employees. (Tr. p. 791.)
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In 1962 the Guild attempted to organize the circulation

employees of Kespondent and claimed to represent a

majority. Following a campaign, a majority of employees

declined to select the Guild as their collective bargaining

representative and the results of the election were certi-

fied. (K. 69-70; Tr. p. 792.)

In 1965 the Guild conducted a campaign to organize

Respondent's editorial employees. (R. 68.) At a meeting

on Friday, April 23, 1965, attended by the Guild's inter-

national representative Loel Schrader and three of Re-

spondent's editorial employees, Gary Gillis, Floyd Rine-

hart and Alvin Butkus, it was decided to conduct an im-

mediate card solicitation effort with the objective of

obtaining a sufficient number of signed cards so that a

petition for an election could be filed with the Board the

following Monday. (R. 68; Tr. pp. 51, 104-105.)

Contrary to the allegation on page 3 of the Board's

brief, the Trial Examiner did not credit Schrader's testi-

mony that at this meeting he explained that it was pos-

sible to get recognition without an election, nor that the

Guild would want 70 per cent of the employees signed up

before it would seek recognition without an election. (R.

68, lines 52-57 ; R. 80, lines 32-40 ; Tr. pp. 697-699, 702-704,

707.) Instead, the Trial Examiner credited Rinehart's

testimony that he did not recall any discussion about the

possibility of the company agreeing to Guild recognition

without an election and that Schrader told Rinehart that

the cards indicated the employees were interested in the

Guild and that they wanted an election. (R. 68, lines 52-

57; Tr. p. 698.)

The Trial Examiner found that Gillis and Rinehart

were key solicitors of authorization cards on behalf of

the Guild. (R. 68.) They solicited cards from employees

over the weekend of April 24-25 and by Sunday evening,

April 25, a total of 15 cards had been obtained. (R. 69.)



On April 26 at 10 :20 A.M., Respondent received a tele-

gram from Schrader requesting recognition and, alterna-

tively, advising Respondent that the Guild would insist

on a secret ballot election conducted by the Board so that

all employees could vote in accordance with their free

consciences without fear of retaliation from either party.

The telegram did not claim that the Guild represented a

majority of Respondent's editorial employees, but simply

stated that "[ejditorial dept. employees" had designated

the Guild as their representative. (R. 69.) At 1:29 P.M.

the same day Schrader filed the petition in Case No.

31-RC-18. (R. 69; Tr. p. 60.)

On April 27, Respondent's publisher Robert Curry re-

sponded to Schrader's telegram advising him of his doubt

as to the Guild's representative status and suggesting

that a Board election was the appropriate way to resolve

these questions. (R. 69.)

At a bearing conducted by the Board on the Guild's

petition, the principal issue in dispute was the super-

visory status of news editor Ken Johnson, city editor

Steven Berman, assistant news editor Gary Palmer,

sports editor Richard White, woman's editor Pat Mc-

Donald, and chief photographer Robert Moore. The
Guild contended that all these employees were super-

visors and Respondent contended that none of them were

supervisors. The Regional Director determined that

Johnson, Berman and Palmer were supervisors and the

other three employees were not supervisors. (R. 8-9.)

An election was conducted which resulted in a tie

vote. (R. 13.) Thereafter, the Guild filed objections

to the conduct of the election and an unfair labor prac-

tice charge. These proceedings were consolidated for

decision by the Trial Examiner and the Board. (R. 31.)
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Substantial testimony at the hearing was directed to

the question as to whether the Guild did in fact repre-

sent a majority of Respondent's editorial employees at

any relevant time. As will be shown in detail in the argu-

ment herein, it is Respondent's position that the Guild

did not have a majority since at least six of the 15 cards

were invalid because the signers were led to believe by

authorized representatives of the Guild that the cards

would be used only to obtain an election. The Board

affirmed the Trial Examiner's ruling rejecting one of the

cards as a designation of the Guild as bargaining repre-

sentative, but sustained the validity of the remaining

14. Respondent also contended throughout the proceed-

ing that the appropriate bargaining unit should have

consisted of 28 employees, rather than 25, with Johnson,

Berman and Palmer being included in the unit as non-

supervisory employees.

Questions Presented

1. Should authorization cards be deemed valid proof

that a Union has been designated as the bargaining rep-

resentative of employees where the signers of the cards

were led to believe that the cards would be used only to

obtain an election?

2. Were certain individuals improperly excluded from

the bargaining unit used by the Board in determining

whether the Guild represented a majority of the em-

ployees?

3. If the Board's General Counsel introduces authori-

zation cards signed by employees as evidence of the

Union's majority status, is the Employer's counsel en-

titled to examine any statements by such employees

which are in the General Counsel's possession and which

relate to the circumstances under which the cards were

signed?
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4. Did the Board err in permitting the introduction

into evidence of a document stolen by an employee for

use by the Charging Party and the General Counsel?

ARGUMENT

I. THE BOARD ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT
THE GUILD REPRESENTED A MAJORITY OF
RESPONDENT'S EDITORIAL EMPLOYEES.

A. The Board Applied an Incorrect Standard in De-

termining the Validity of the Authorization Cards.

That portion of the Board's order requiring Kespond-

ent to bargain with the Guild upon request is premised

upon the conclusion by the Trial Examiner, affirmed by

the Board, that a majority of the editorial employees had

designated the Guild as their bargaining representative

at the time of the demand for recognition. In support of

the claim of majority status, the General Counsel intro-

duced 15 authorization cards into evidence. Respondent

challenged the validity of the cards of Marx Ceder,

Charles Cole, Donald Erickson, Floyd Rinehart, Richard

Baylor, Randolph Gray and Robert Peterson on the

ground that the cards were signed because these em-

ployees were led to believe by statements made by au-

thorized representatives of the Guild that the cards would

be used only for the purpose of obtaining an election.

Respondent thus argued that these cards could not be

construed as proof that these employees affirmatively

desired to be represented by the Guild.

In determining the validity of the challenged authoriza-

tion cards, the Trial Examiner observed that "evidence to

vary the written and unequivocal designations by the em-

ployees on an authorization card is strictly construed and

the Board has held that representations that the card is



*to get an election' is [sic] not a false representation or a

misstatement of fact, but that a representation tliat the

card is 'only for an election' is a misstatement of fact."

(R. 82.) He thus adopted the Board's "only" rule which

holds that an authorization card will not be invalidated on

the grounds of a material misrepresentation unless the

signer has been expressly told that the "sole" or "only"

purpose of the card is to obtain an election. Under the

rationale of this rule, the written language on the card

authorizing the union to be the bargaining representative

is not vitiated unless such words are used.

Applying this rule, the Trial Examiner found that such

material misrepresentations had been made to two em-

ployees, Ceder and Cole. Accordingly, he rejected Ceder's

card and its rejection is not in issue before this Court.

(R. 83.) The Trial Examiner, however, did not reject

Cole's card in spite of the misrepresentation because he

found that Cole would have signed a card in any event.

(R. 83.) He further found that the misrepresentations

made to Erickson, Rinehart, Baylor, Gray and Peterson

were not sufficiently material to warrant the rejection of

their cards. The Trial Examiner's findings and conclu-

sions were upheld by the Board.

It is the position of Respondent in this Court that the

Board erred in upholding the validity of the cards of

Cole, Erickson, Rinehart, Baylor and Gray. Not only

did the Board and the Trial Examiner use an incorrect

standard, but, as will be discussed in a later section, the

conclusions reached with respect to Cole and Erickson

were erroneous even if the Board's standard were ap-

plied.

It should first be noted that authorization cards are un-

reliable indications of employees' desires even when such

cards have not been procured through the use of mislead-
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ing statements. For example, the Fourth Circuit has

recently indicated that it will not even consider authoriza-

tion cards as evidence of majority status. It is submitted

that the following remarks by the court in NLRB v. S.S.

Logan Packing Co., 386 F.2d 562 (4t]i Cir. 1967) demon-

strate the danger inherent in using authorization cards as

conclusive proof of employees' desires.

"It would be difficult to imagine a more unreliable

method of ascertaining the real wishes of employees

than a 'card check,' unless it were an employer's re-

quest for an open show of hands. The one is no more

reliable than the other. No thoughtful person has

attributed reliability to such card checks. This, the

Board has fully recognized. So has the AFL-CIO.

In 1962, Board Chairman McCullock presented to

the American Bar Association data indicating some

relationship between large card-signing majorities

and election results. Unions which presented author-

ization cards from thirty to fifty per cent of the

employees won nineteen per cent of the elections;

those having authorization cards from fifty to sev-

enty per cent of the employees won only forty-eight

per cent of the elections, while those having author-

ization cards from over seventy per cent of the em-

ployees won seventy-four per cent of the elections.

This suggests that the greater the majority of au-

thorization cards, the greater the likelihood of a

union election victory, but, obviously there are ex-

ceptions. Though ninety per cent of the employees

may have signed cards, a majority may vote against

the union in a secret election. Overwhelming ma-

jorities of cards may indicate the probable outcome

of an election, but it is no more than an indication,

and close card majorities prove nothing.
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"The unsupervised solicitation of authorization

cards by unions is subject to all of the criticisms of

open employer polls. It is well known that many peo-

ple, solicited alone and in private, will sign a petition

and, later, solicited alone and in private, will sign an

opposing petition, in each instance, out of concern

for the feelings of the solicitors and the difficulty of

saying 'No.' This inclination to be agreeable is

greatly aggravated in the context of a union organi-

zational campaign when the opinion of fellow-

employees and of potentially powerful imion organ-

izers may weigh heavily in the balance.

"The unreliability of the cards is not dependent

upon the possible use of misrepresentations and

threats, however. It is inherent, as we have noted, in

the absence of secrecy and in the natural inclination

of most people to avoid stands which appear to be

nonconformist and antagonistic to friends and fellow

employees. It is enhanced by the fact that usually,

as they were here, the cards are obtained before the

employees are exposed to any counter argument and

without an opportunity for reflection or recantation.

Most employees having second thoughts about the

matter and regretting having signed the card would

do nothing about it; in most situations, only one of

rare strength of character would succeed in having

his card returned or destroyed. Cards are collected

over a period of time, however, and there is no as-

surance that an early signer is still of the same mind

on the crucial date when the union delivers its bar-

gaining demand.

"For such reasons, a card check is not a reliable

indication of the employees' wishes." (386 F.2d at

565, 566.) (Footnotes omitted.)
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The inherent unreliability of authorization cards is

further increased when a card solicitor asks employees

to sign authorization cards on the representation that

the cards will be used to obtain an election. It is a fact

of life that employees are often led to believe that the

sole purpose of an authorization card is to obtain an

election even if the words "sole" or "only" are not used.

Such an impression may be created by the solicitor sim-

ply by stressing the need for an election and omitting

mention of any other purpose. Contrary to the conten-

tions of the Board, even employees who are college grad-

uates can be so misled. This is especially true when one's

signature is solicited by a friend, who also has a college

education, who seems more knowledgeable in union af-

fairs, and who states the cards will be used for a limited

purpose. Thus, the Board's legalistic rule that there is a

valid authorization by an employee unless the words

"sole" or "only" have been uttered flies in the face of

reality. It is therefore not surprising that this rule, ap-

plied by the Board in the instant case, has been re-

jected by the vast majority of courts of appeals.

For example, the Board's "only" rule was squarely

rejected by the Second Circuit in NLRB v. 8.E. Nichols

Co., 380 F.2d 438 (2d Cir. 1967). In that case, the Board

refused to invalidate certain cards where the employees

had been told that the cards would be used for an election

but had not been told that an election was the sole pur-

pose of the cards. Rejecting the cards, the court stated

:

"The Board makes much of the supposed clarity

of the cards used by the Union in this case, in con-

trast to the deceptive or ambiguous ones in other

instances where it nevertheless upheld the union.

[Citations omitted.] But while clarity should con-

stitute the beginning of any effort to show a ma-

jority on the basis of authorization cards, it is
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not the end; the clearest written words can be per-

verted by oral misrepresentations, especially to ordi-

nary working people unversed in the 'witty diversi-

ties' of labor law. It is all too easy for the Board

or a reviewing court to fall into the error of thinking

that language clear to them was equally clear to

employees previously unexposed to labor relations

matters; to treat authorization cards, which union

organizers present for filling out and signing and

then immediately take away, as if they were wills or

contracts carefully explained by a lawyer to his

client is to substitute form for reality. The very

argument by which the Board has upheld unions

even when the cards were deceptively worded,

namely, of placing 'more emphasis upon the repre-

sentations made to the employees at the time the

cards were signed than upon the language set forth

in the cards,' NLRB v. Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc.,

supra, 341 F.2d at 754, works against it here. In

our view the evidence demands a conclusion that

at least three of the signers were induced to affix

their signatures by statements causing them to be-

lieve that the union would not achieve representa-

tive status without an election." (380 F.2d at 442-

433.) (Footnote omitted.)

The court then distinguished its earlier decision in

NLRB V. Gotham Shoe Mfg. Co., 359 F.2d 684 (2d Cir.

1966) on the grounds that the employees in the Gotham

case had been affirmatively told that the cards would

be used to request recognition from the employer. Re-

ferring to the present case, the court stated:

"It is quite a different matter to permit a union to

attain recognition by authorization cards procured

on the affirmative assurance that there would be an

election without a further clear explanation that the
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cards can and may also be used to obtain recognition

without any subsequent expression of preference by

the employees ; such a half-truth gives the employees

the false impression that they will have an oppor-

tunity in all events to register their true preferences

in the secrecy of the voting booth. As has been well

said, Note, supra, 75 Yale L.J. at 826

:

*If the employee thinks tlie cards will lead to a

secret ballot, he can insure himself against the pos-

sibility of future retaliation and prevent harassment

only by signing. Such an employee may sign a card

planning to vote against the union or at least in-

tending to reserve decision until he hears the em-

ployer's views or talks to fellow employees.'

We decline to encourage such an impairment of em-

ployees' § 7 rights." (380 F.2d at 445.) (Footnotes

omitted.)

The Nichols decision has subsequently had a persuasive

influence on other courts. The Sixth Circuit's decisions

in NLRB V. Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc., 341 F.2d 750 (6th

Cir. 1965) and NLRB v. Cumberland Shoe Corp., 351 F.2d

917 (6th Cir. 1965) have frequently been cited by the

Board as judicial approval of its "only" rule. However,

in NLRB v. Sivan Super Cleaners, Inc., 384 F.2d 609 (6th

Cir. 1967) the Sixth Circuit, relying on the Nichols case,

expressly disavowed the "only" rule. In refusing to en-

force a bargaining order, the court stated:

"We think it right now to say that we do not con-

sider that we have announced a rule that only where

the solicitor of a card actually employs the specified

words 'this card is for the sole and only purpose of

ha\dng an election' will a card be invalidated. We did

not intend such a narrow and mechanical rule. We
believe that whatever the style or actual words of
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the solicitation, if it is clearly calculated to create in

the mind of the one solicited a belief that the only

purpose of the card is to obtain an election, an invali-

dation of such card does not offend our Cumberland

rule.

"It appears that the examiner's position was, and

the Board's position now is, that unless the solicitor

has actually employed the words 'sole' or 'only' in his

sales talk, our opinion in Cumberland insulates the

solicitation from condemnation, no matter what its

other vices. We do not believe the language employed

in Cumberland suggests any such mechanical inter-

pretation. The 'outright misrepresentation' referred

to therein could certainly be accomplished by other

words than 'sole' or 'only'. A sophisticated and only

modestly talented union agent could easily live with

such a narrow rule and, leaving out the bad words—
'sole' and 'only'— employ language clearly calcu-

lated to lead a woman laundry worker to believe that

the holding of an election was all that she signed up

for." (384 F.2d at 618, 620.)

The Seventh Circuit has also retreated from its pre-

vious approval of the "only" rule. In NLRB v. Dan How-

ard Mfg. Co., .... F.2d ...., 67 LEEM 2278 (7th Cir. 1968),

it stated:

"In the recent case of NLEB v. Swan Super

Cleaners, No. 16952, Q>Q LEEM 2386 (October 25,

1967), the Sixth Circuit, through Judge 'Sullivan,

explained its decision in Cumberland expressly disa-

vowing the view that Cumberland held that the very

word 'sole' or 'only' was needed to invalidate a

card. The court adliered to Cmnberland, saving that

its rule is not offended by invalidating cards, no
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matter what style or wording was used by the orga-

nizer 'if it is clearly calculated to create in the mind

of the one solicited a belief that the only purpose

of the card is to obtain an election.' The court

pointed out that it is relevant to consider the sub-

jective intention of the signer and his expressed state

of mind in deciding whether a misapprehension was

knowingly induced.

"We apply the restatement in Swan of the Cumber-

land rule and hold that 'in its total context' the only

reasonable inference that can be drawn from the

Weiner-Burdette colloquy, as testified to by her, is

that statements made by Weiner created in Burdette's

mind a misapprenhension as to what signing the card

meant and that her signature on the card did not

represent an intention to designate the Union as her

bargaining agent." (67 LRRM at 2280-2281.)

The Board's "only" rule has also received an unfavor-

able reception in the Eighth Circuit. In Bauer Welding

& Metal Fabricators, Inc., v. NLRB, 358 F.2d 766 (8th

Cir. 1966), the union had distributed authorization cards

to the employees and had enclosed a letter stating that

the cards would be used to obtain an election. Although

the letter had not stated that this was the only purpose

of the cards, the cards were nevertheless rejected by the

court. The court stated

:

"The emphasis throughout the letter is on the

signing of the authorization cards, which would

'then', and not before, allow the Board to conduct

an election to determine the representation question.

We firmly believe the letter was designed for the pur-

pose of, and succeeded in, creating the impression in

the minds of the employees that the Union would

become the bargaining agent only by winning an
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election, and that the only purpose in signing the

accompanying authorization card was to bring about

such an election." (358 F.2d at 774.)

The position of the Fifth Circuit is much the same as

that of the Second, Sixth, Seventh and Eighth. Its view-

was most recently expressed in Engineers & Fabricators,

Inc. V. NLRB, 376 F.2d 482 (5th Cir. 1967). There it

stated

:

"The Board has the same burdens and obligations

as any other litigant who takes the affirmative, and

must prove its charge. NLRB v. Riverside Mfg. Co.,

5 Cir., 1941, 119 F.2d 302. Therefore, the general

counsel had the burden of showing that the cards

authorized representation. Cf . Int'l Ladies' Garment

Workers' Union v. NLRB, 1960, 108 U.S. App. D.C.

68, 280 F.2d G16, aff'd, 366 U.S. 731, 81 S.Ct. 1603, 6

L.Ed.2d 762 (1961). Wlien cards are challenged be-

cause of alleged misrepresentations in their procure-

ment, the general counsel must show that the subjec-

tive intent to authorize union representation was

not vitiated by such representations. Here the Board

did not apply this legal standard. Instead it contends

that

'
. . . documents timely executed which unequivo-

cally authorize a labor organization to act as the

collective-bargaining agent of the signers must be

treated as valid bargaining authorizations in the

absence of a showing of coercion in their procure-

ment or representations that "despite the purpose

clearly and expressly stated on the cards them-

selves the cards would be used only for a different

more limited purpose". Aero Corp., 149 NLRB
No. 114, 57 LRRM at 1490.'

"This applies too lax a standard, and therefore

the burden was not met." (376 F.2d at 487.)
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The Board has now been left with scant support for

its "only" rule. The First Circuit in NLRB v. South-

bridge Sheet Metal Works, Inc., 380 F.2d 851 (1st Cir.

1967) has expressly stated that it found it unnecessary

to go "so far as to say that a misrepresentation cannot

ever vitiate a card when it is not proffered as the sole

reason for signing." 380 F.2d at 856, In that case, a

card was approved by the court where the signer had

simply been told that there would be an election, but had

not been told that the purpose of the card was to have an

election. In Furr's, Inc. v. NLRB, 381 F.2d 562 (10th

Cir, 1967), the Tenth Circuit gave lip-service to the

Board's "only" rule, while at the same time questioning

the validity of cards where the employees had been told

that "there had to be an election first." Ironically, the

Tenth Circuit cited in support of the "only" rule ex-

clusively Second, Sixth, Seventh and Eighth Circuit

cases. Every single one of these circuits has now openly

rejected the "only" rule. The District of Columbia

Circuit has given support to the "only" rule, but even that

court has balked at the Board's mechanical application

of tlie rule. See, e.g., Amalgamated Clothing Workers v.

NLRB, 365 F.2d 898 (D.C. Cir. 1966).

Only the Third and Ninth Circuits have yet to comment

on the "only" rule. Although the Ninth Circuit has de-

cided "card cases," it has found it unnecessary to come

to grips with the rule. In NLRB v. Security Plating Co.,

356 F.2d 725 (9th Cir. 1966), the court found that the

meaning and imi^ort of the cards had been carefully ex-

plained to the employees. In NLRB v. Hyde, 339 F.2d

568 (9th Cir. 1964), the employees had been informed

that the cards would be used for a card check.

In conclusion, it can be seen that the vast majority of

the courts of appeals which have reviewed the "only"

rule has rejected it and has rather adopted a different
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and proper test. As pointed out previously, the Second

Circuit in the Nichols case invalidated cards where "the

signers were induced to affix their signatures by state-

ments causing them to believe that the union would not

achieve representative status without an election." In

the Swan and Howard cases, cards were rejected by the

Sixth and Seventh Circuits respectively where the solici-

tation was "clearly calculated to create in the mind of the

one solicited a belief that the only purpose of the card is

to obtain an election." The Eighth Circuit in Bauer

spoke in terms of creating the impression in the minds of

the employees that the only purpose of the card was to

bring about an election. In short, the correct test is

whether the card solicitor, irrespective of the exact words

used, led the signer to believe that the only purpose of

the card is to have an election. In this respect, it should

be noted that the subjective intent of the signer is rele-

vant in determining whether the signer was misled and

many of the courts of appeals have expressly so held.

See, e.g., Engineers S Fabricators, Inc. v. NLRB, supra;

NLRB V. Swan Super Cleaners, supra; NLRB v. Dan
Howard Mfg. Co., supra.

B. Even If the Board's Standard Is Correct, the

Board's Findings of Fact Required That The

Authorization Cards Signed by Cole and Erickson

Should Have Been Rejected.

According to the findings of the Trial Examiner,

adopted by the Board, a meeting was held on the evening

of Friday, April 23, 1965, between the Guild's represen-

tative Schrader and three of Respondent's employees —
Gillis, Rinehart and Butkus. At this first organizational

meeting, the three employees signed authorization cards

and were instructed to obtain authorizations from other

employees over the weekend. This was done and two



— 19—

nights later, on Sunday evening, April 25, 1965, Sclirader

had fifteen cards in his possession, Schrader then

promptly dispatched his telegram to the Respondent.

(R. 68-69.) It is submitted that the evidence as a whole

with respect to this April 23, 1965 meeting, the findings

of fact with respect to the statements made by the solici-

tors, and the telegram of the Guild stating that it would

insist on an election and not stating that it represented

a majority of the employees conclusively establish that

the solicitation of all of the authorization cards was de-

signed for the purpose of and succeeded in creating the

impression in the minds of the employees that the Guild

would become the bargaining representative only by

winning an election and that the only purpose in signing

the authorization cards was to bring about such an elec-

tion. For this reason all authorization cards in this case

should be disregarded.

In addition it will now be specifically shown that cer-

tain of the authorization cards were obtained only by

misleading employees as to the purpose of the cards. In

fact, the Trial Examiner himself rejected the card of

Marx Ceder which was solicited by Gillis. He found that

Gillis had told Marx Ceder, whose education consisted

of three and one-half years of college, tliat the card was

to bring about an election and that the authorization

language on the card meant nothing. (R. 80.) Gillis also

solicited cards from Cole, Erickson, and Gray.

Before considering the individual authorization cards

challenged by Respondent, it should be observed that on

page 33 of its brief the Board makes a blistering attack

upon the credibility of the testimony of Cole, Erickson,

Gray, Rinehart, and Baylor. The Board stated:

"On the other hand, the testimony upon wliich the

Company relies to invalidate the cards occurred nine
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months after they were signed; the employees in

question were still employed by the Company; and

they were not likely to have forgotten their em-

ployer's threats to blacklist Guild supporters, or

other threats, promises and inducements designed

to force abandonment of the Guild."

In seeking to invalidate these authorization cards the

Eespondent is relying prhnarily upon the findings of

fact of the Trial Examiner. There was during the hearing

considerable conflict in the testimony of the witnesses

with respect to the circumstances surrounding the solici-

tation of these cards. Witness Gillis testified directly con-

trary to Cole, Erickson, Gray, and Rinehart with respect

to material facts. Gillis w^as impeached in several re-

spects by his own statement taken several weeks after

the election. (Tr. pp. 142-145.) The Trial Examiner

found the facts to be as stated by witnesses Cole, Erick-

son, Gray, Rinehart and Baylor, He therefore must have

credited their testimony and not the testimony of Gillis.

The Board adopted these findings of fact. It seems that

by attacking the credibility of Cole, Erickson, Gray,

Rinehart and Baylor, the Board is placed in the unten-

able position of attacking its own findings. This it can-

not do. Moreover, it is also somewhat improper for the

Board to criticize testimony because it was taken nine

months after the events, while at the same time witlihold-

ing from Respondent statements it took several weeks

after the events. See Respondent's Argument II, page

41, et seq. Finally, it should be noted that, contrary to

statements in the Board's brief, witness Rinehart was

not employed by Respondent at the time of his testunony

and had to be subpoenaed as a witness. (Tr. p. 694.) In

addition, Cole and Baylor were also subpoenaed by the

Respondent. (Tr. pp. 642, 758.)

The cards of Cole and Erickson will now be considered.
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Charles Cole

The Trial Examiner made the following findings with

respect to Cole which findings were adopted by the

Board

:

"Gillis solicited Cole's card. After reading the

printed matter on the card, Cole asked Gillis if he

would be committing himself to vote for the Guild.

Gillis replied, 'Forget it ;' that it would not coimnit him

to vote for the Guild or conmiit liim to the Guild. Gillis

stated that Gillis made a pretty good argument for the

Guild, and when he left he was pretty well sold on what

they were trying to do. Cole filled out the back side

of the authorization card, indicating that he would be

interested in serving on the negotiating committee for

the Guild and the legislation committee, although Gillis

told him it was not necessary for him to fill put this

side of the card. Cole had been a member of the Guild

on a prior occasion when employed by another news-

paper. During part of the campaign, Cole was active

on behalf of the Guild." (R. 80.)

The seriousness of the aforementioned misrepresentation

by Gary Gillis is more vividly demonstrated by the exact

testimony of Cole:

"Then Gary showed me the card, and I read the

card, and there was something at the top of the card

that said I was— that literally said that I would

be committing myself to the Guild; and I asked

Gary about it, and he said to forget it.

"I asked him if it would commit me to voting for

the Guild, and he said, 'Forget it,' and words to the

effect it wouldn't commit me to voting for the Guild

or commit me to the Guild." (Tr. p. 647, lines 7-14.)
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Although the Trial Examiner found that Gillis had made
a misrepresentation, he refused to invalidate Cole's card

primarily because of the following testimony by Cole:

"I would say that Gary made a pretty good argu-

ment for the Guild, and when he left I was pretty

well sold on what they were trying to do." (Tr, p,

648, lines 18-20.)

It should be noted that the latter statement is ambigu-

ous at best. The phrase "on what they were trying to do"

could well have referred to attempts to obtain an election.

Furthermore, the term "pretty well sold" is ambivalent

and certainly implies less than total conviction. The

Trial Examiner also relied on the fact that Cole filled out

the reverse side of the card and checked the blocks "con-

tract negotiations" and "legislation." However, Cole

testified that this was done in the event the Guild became

the bargaining agent through an election. (Tr. p. 669.)

From this evidence, it appears that the Trial Examiner

concluded that Cole was in favor of the Guild and that

any misrepresentations as to the effect and purpose of

the card were therefore immaterial. This, however, does

not follow. Gillis expressly told Cole to forget the au-

thorization language on the card, and such statement

must be given the same effect as though Gillis had phys-

ically stricken the authorization language from the card.

Thus, no effective authorization exists.

Interestingly enough, the Trial Examiner's acceptance

of Cole's card was based on Cole's subjective intent. As

has previously been mentioned, courts of appeals have

found subjective intent relevant in determining the

validity of authorization cards. However, the courts

have focused their attention on subjective intent relat-

ing to purpose of the card and not on the employee's
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thoughts as to the merits of the union. With respect to

the former, Cole clearly testified that he did in fact be-

lieve that the card was "just for an election." (Tr. p.

647.) Tims, it is clear that he was misled by the com-

ments of Gillis and such subjective intent compels the

rejection of the card and not its acceptance.

In conclusion, it is submitted that Cole's card should

be rejected even if the Court adopts the "only" rule. It

is undisputed that Cole was told that the purpose of the

card was only for an election and that the authorization

language meant nothing. In addition, he was in fact mis-

led by such misrepresentation. A fortiori, the card

should be rejected under the test adopted by a majority

of the courts of appeals.

Donald Erickson

The Trial Examiner made the following findings with

respect to Erickson which findings were adopted by the

Board

:

"Gillis solicited Erickson's card and told him about

the Guild, the possibility of having it represent the

employees in collective bargaining with Respondent

and the possible benefits they could receive by joining

the Guild. He told Erickson that the cards would bring

about an election whereby all the employees could vote

by secret ballot and determine through the election

whether or not they wanted to be represented by the

Guild and that he did not want Erickson to commit

himself one way or the other at that time regarding

his vote. Gillis stated that he wanted to get as many
cards signed as he could and that this would show the

Company that the employees were united and that they

wanted better conditions; and the more cards, the
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better. He stated that the cards would all be kept

secret, but that the total number would be sent by tele-

gram to the Eespondent.il"

"^^Erickson testified he could not say that Gillis told him the

card was 'only' for an election, although he said Gillis told him

'that in so many words;' but he testified that by the words used

by Gillis he was 'led to believe' tlie sole purpose of the card

was an election."

The exact testimony of Erickson is as follows

:

"THE WITNESS : WeU, after he explained what

the Guild was and the benefits would come about by

bringing the Guild in, he told me that this card

would be used along with several others that had

been signed to bring about an election, and he did

not want me to commit myself one way or the other

at that time regarding a vote or anything." (Tr. p.

674, lines 13-18.)

Erickson was not told that the card would be used for

any purpose other than for an election. (Tr. p. 675.)

In response to the question by the Board's attorney as to

whether he was told that the card was only for an elec-

tion, Erickson stated, "Yes, he told me that in so many
words." (Tr. p. 676.)

The Board in its brief relies heavily on the following

testimony of Erickson:

"Q. Did Mr. Gillis mention anything about a

'show of force'?

"A. I think he did. I think he probably used those

words.

"Q. Tell us what he said. •

"A. Well, he wanted to get as many cards as he

could, and this would show the Company that the
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employees were united ; that they wanted better con-

ditions, and the more cards, the better." (Tr. p. 678,

lines 9-15.)

This statement was further explained by Erickson in

response to questions by the Board's attorney.

"A. Well, I think I have already said that the

effect of the more cards the better and Mr. Curry,

the Employer, would know at least a majority or a

large number of his employees were interested in

bringing about the election or interested in exploring

the idea further.

"Q. Or interested in having the Guild represent

them?

"A, Or interested in having the Guild represent

them." (Tr. p. 679, Une 21— Tr. 680, Une 2.)

Construing the last disjunctive phrase most favorably

for the Board, the most that can be inferred is that some

of the employees who signed cards were "interested" in

the Guild, Indeed, it is probably true that employees

who want an election are usually somewhat "interested"

in the issue that will be voted upon. This does not mean,

however, that they have yet made a decision with respect

to that issue. This was, in fact, the case with Erickson

as shown by the following question and answer:

"Q. So, you decided it would be a good thing, or

at least your decision at that time was it would be

a good thing to have the Guild represent the em-

ployee?

"A. THE WITNESS : Well, I was undecided at

that time whether it was good or bad to have the

Guild represent the employees, and I didn't know
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at that time how I wanted to vote. The whole thing

was very new to me. I remember in the back of my
mind that I certainly didn't want to commit myself

at that time one way or the other for a vote. And
when he assured me that the card was to call an elec-

tion, why, I understood then that I could decide later

which way I wanted to vote." (Tr. p. 677, lines 6-8,

17-24.)

It can therefore be seen that Erickson was expressly

told by Gillis that the latter did not want Erickson to

commit himself one way or another at that time. Erick-

son was furthermore told by Gillis "in so many words"

that the card was only for an election. Although Erick-

son believed that Kespondent would be informed as to

the number of cards that had been signed, he was led to

believe that this would only demonstrate an interest on

the part of the employees.

The foregoing demonstrates that Erickson's card

should be rejected even under the Board's "only" rule in

that Gillis discounted any commitment on the part of

Erickson. In addition, the evidence shows that Erickson

was in fact misled by Gillis' misrei^resentations.

Certainly, the cards of Cole and Erickson should not

be considered in determining majority status either under

the Board's rule or under the rule adopted by most of the

courts of appeals.
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C. Applying the Correct Standard, the Board's Find-

ings of Fact Required That the Authorization Cards

Signed by Gray, Rinehart and Baylor Should Also

Have Been Rejected.

Although the rejection of the cards of Cole and Erick-

son would be sufficient to demonstrate that the Guild did

not represent a majority, three other cards should also

be invalidated under the test approved by most of the

courts of appeals. These cards will now be considered.

Randolph Gray

The Board adopted the following findings of fact made
by the Trial Examiner with respect to the circumstances

under which Gray's authorization card was executed

:

"Gray's authorization card was solicited by Gillis.

Gray had been a member of the Guild when employed

by another newspaper. Gillis told him that he was
trying to get signatures together to bring about an

election for representation by the Guild, and that he

thought all of the employees at Respondent would

be better off with union representation, and he urged

Gray to sign a card." (R. 81.)

The foregoing findings render it apparent that Gray

was led to believe that he was signing a card only to

bring about an election. Gray testified that this was in

fact his sole intent in signing the card. (Tr. p. 747.)

Indeed, no other purpose had been mentioned. (Tr. p.

741.) The statement on page 35 of the Board's brief that

Gray "admittedly read the card and knew that it could

be used to obtain representation without an election" is

not correct. The relevant testimony is as follows:

"Q. Didn't he say that if things went as well as

they had been going, they would be sitting down at

the bargaining table with Mr. Curry?
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"A. I believe he showed some optimism, as far

as he was concerned in bringing about an election.

"Q. You knew, didn't you, that Mr. Curry could

capitulate and could just recognize the union with-

out an election, didn't you know that?

"A. I believe I was aware of that." (Tr. p. 742,

line 20— Tr. p. 743, line 3.)

It is obvious that an employer can capitulate in any

election campaign and Gray's answer is a mere acknowl-

edgement of this fact. The crucial issue, however, is the

effect of the cards and there is no evidence that Gray was

aware that the cards could be used to compel such a

capitulation. There is furthermore no evidence that he

obtained such knowledge in San Pedro where he was re-

quired to be a Guild member under a union shop pro-

vision. (Tr. p. 746.)

From the foregoing, it can be seen that Gillis again

followed his consistent pattern of creating the impres-

sion that the cards would be used only to obtain an elec-

tion and for no other purpose. This falls squarely within

the scope of the conduct condemned by the courts of ap-

peals. Gray's card should therefore be rejected in that he

was led to believe by the remarks of Gillis that the only

purpose of the card was to have an election.

Richard Baylor

The Board adopted the following findings of fact

made by the Trial Examiner with respect to the circum-

stances under which Richard Baylor executed an au-

thorization card:

"Rinehart solicited Baylor's card and talked to

him about the situation at Respondent and stated



— 29—

that some of the employees had gotten together and
decided to see if the Guild could straighten the situ-

ation out ; he explained that the Guild needed a cer-

tain percentage of signatures of the employees in the

editorial department in order to file a petition with

the Board requesting an election. He asked Baylor

to sign and he did." (R. 80.)

The only logical inference which can be drawn from
the foregoing finding of fact by the Trial Examiner is

that Baylor could reasonably conclude that the purpose

of the card was solely to bring about an election. No
other purpose was mentioned and Rinehart specifically

informed Baylor that a certain percentage of signatures

were needed to file the election petition.

On page 37 of its brief, the Board states that "Baylor

knew that the card could be used to obtain recognition

without an election but could not remember if Rinehart

told him so at the time he signed." This statement by

the Board incorrectly implies that Baylor knew this fact

at the time he signed the card. Baylor, however, testi-

fied that he could not remember whether at the time he

signed the card he knew that the card could be used to

obtain recognition without an election. (Tr. pp. 763-

764.)

From the Trial Examiner's finding, it can be seen that

Rinehart's remarks were clearly calculated to cause

Baylor to believe that his card would be used for an elec-

tion and for no other purpose. The mere speculation that

Baylor might have loiown that cards could be used for

recognition should not be controlling in light of the

clearly misleading nature of Rinehart's solicitation.
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Floyd Rinehart

Rinehart was one of the two key solicitors assigned to

solicit authorization cards from the other employees.

The following findings of fact made by the Trial Ex-

aminer with respect to the circumstances under which

Rinehart signed a card were adopted by the Board:

"Rinehart, who was one of the three employees

who first met with Union Representative Schrader

and who solicited other employees to sign authori-

zation cards, asked Schrader at the first meeting

whether these cards constitute an immediate appli-

cation to the Guild as dues-paying members. He
replied that they were not members at that moment,

but that the cards indicate the employees are inter-

ested in the Guild and that they want an election;

that if the election is successful for the Guild, then

the employees who signed would be members."

(R. 80)

It is apparent from the foregoing that Schrader in-

tended to give the impression that the cards would be

used solely for an election. This is further demonstrated

by the following question and answer by Rinehart:

"Q Did Mr. Schrader say at this meeting that one

of the purposes of signing the card was to have the

Guild as a collective bargaining representative with-

out an election!

"A I don't recaU that, no." (Tr. p. 698, lines

18-21)

It is submitted that the great emphasis placed on an

election by Schrader without mentioning any other pur-

pose is sufficient to invalidate the card of Rinehart.

The foregoing clearly demonstrates that the cards of

Gray, Baylor and Rinehart should be rejected by the
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Court under the standard approved by most of the

courts of appeals. As the Guild represented far less than

a majority of the editorial employees in an appropriate

unit, the bargaining order portions of the Board's order

cannot be enforced.

D. The Appropriate Bargaining Unit Consisted of

Twenty-Eight Employees

In his decision in the representation proceeding (31-

RC-18), the Regional Director determined, contrary to

the position of Respondent, that News Editor Johnson,

City Editor Berman, and Assistant Editor Palmer were

supervisors and were thus excluded from the appropriate

editorial department unit. With the exclusion of these

three individuals, the bargaining unit consisted of 25 em-

ployees. It is the position of Respondent that the Re-

gional Director's exclusions were erroneous and that

therefore the appropriate bargaining imit consisted of

28 individuals. As even the Board found that the Guild

obtained only 14 valid authorization cards, it is obvious

that if the latter unit is correct, the Guild never obtained

majority status. In addition, the inclusion in the unit of

one of the three excluded individuals and rejection of

only one of 14 cards will also demonstrate a lack of

majority status.

In reviewing Board determinations as to supervisory

status, the standard which should be applied is whether

the Board's findings are supported by substantial evi-

dence. NLRB V. Security Guard Service, Inc., 384 F.2d

143 (5th Cir. 1967). Applying this test to the status of

Johnson and Berman, this Court should conclude that the

finding that Johnson and Berman were supervisors is

not supported by substantial evidence. However, it is

submitted that under no circumstances can the finding

that Palmer was a supervisor be justified on the basis of

the substantial evidence test.
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Section 2 (11) of tlie Act sets forth the following de-

tailed and specific definition of "supervisor"

:

"The term 'supervisor' means any individual

having authority in the interest of the employer,

to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote,

discharge, assign, reward or discipline other em-

ployees, or responsibility to direct them, or to ad-

just their grievances or, effectively to recommend

such action, if in connection with the foregoing the

exercise of such authority is not of a merely routine

or clerical nature, but requires the use of inde-

pendent judgment."

The legislative history behind this provision clearly

indicates Congressional concern that employees with

minor supervisory duties not be excluded from the protec-

tions afforded by the Act. This history reveals that the

Senate bill with a narrower definition of "supervisor"

was ultimately adopted. The intent behind this defini-

tion is indicated in the following excerpt from tlie Senate

Committee Report:

"The committee has not been unmindful of the fact

that certain employees with minor supervisory

duties have problems which may justify their inclu-

sion in the act. It has therefore distinguished be-

tween straw bosses, leadmen, set-up men, and other

minor supervisory employees, on the one hand, and

the supervisor vested with such genuine manage-

ment prerogatives as to the right to hire or fire,

discipline, or make effective recommendations Avith

respect to such action." (S.Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong.

1st Sess. 4 (1947))

The courts have considered this Congressional intent in

construing Section 2 (11) and where employees exercise

only minor supervisory duties which do not require the
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exercise of substantial independent judgment, tliey have

not been found to be supervisors. NLRB v. Security

Guard Service, Inc., 384 F.2d 143 (5th Cir. 1967) ; Plas-

tic Workers Union, Local 18 v. NLRB, 369 F.2d 226 (7th

Cir. 1966) ; Tele-Trip Company v. NLRB, 340 F.2d 575

(4th Cir. 1965) ; NLRB v. Newton Company, 236 F.2d

438 (5th Cir. 1956) ; NLRB v. Parma Water Lifter Com-
pany, 211 F.2d 258 (9th Cir. 1954).

In his decision, the Regional Director gave the follow-

ing reasons for holding that Palmer was a supervisor:

the exercise of autliority to assign stories, to reprimand

reporters and the use of his own discretion in determin-

ing preferences for publishing material. (GC Exh. 1 (d),)

The record in both the representation case hearing and
the unfair labor practice hearing renders it apparent,

however, that Palmer had no authority over reporters

and that, therefore, there was no basis for the Regional

Director's finding that he exercised the authority to

assign stories and reprimand reporters. (RC Tr. pp.

56-57; Tr. pp. 946, 1004.) Palmer's functions at the news

desk are comparable to those of wire editor Cole, Sunday
editor Ceder and night editor Baylor, all of whom re-

ceived more compensation than Palmer. (RC Tr. pp.

52-58, 81-83.)

The evidence offered by employee witnesses does not

support the contention of the Guild that Palmer is a

supervisor. Baylor testified that during the six weeks

between Palmer's appointment to the newly created posi-

tion of assistant news editor and the hearing Palmer had
reprimanded Baylor with respect to a sloppy work area

by memos to the effect— "shape up, or else." (RC Tr. p.

312.) There is no evidence in the record that Palmer

had the authority to issue such warnings. (RC Tr. p.

144.) In any event the imposition of such minor disci-
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pline is not indicative of supervisory authority. Crumley

Hotel, Inc., 134 NLRB 113, 117 (1961); West Virginia

Pulp and Paper Company, 122 NLEB 738 (1958).

Baylor also testified that Palmer determined preferences

for publishing material but it is apparent that despite

Baylor's eifort to exaggerate Palmer's authority in view

of his disappointment over Palmer's receiving the title

of assistant news editor, Palmer's authority to screen

controversial material and other duties was comparable

to those of Baylor, Cole and Ceder. (RC Tr. pp. 47-58,

400-403 ; Tr. p. 1005.) Geittmann indicated that she some-

times lobbies her stories with Palmer but conceded that

this was when he was in the slot and she would lobby

her stories with whoever was in the slot at a particular

time. (RC Tr. pp. 282, 297.)

Reviewing the foregoing facts with earlier Board de-

cisions involving supervisory status in the newspaper

industry, it is apparent that the Regional Director's de-

cision did not follow earlier Board decisions. The direc-

tion and assignment of work performed by Palmer have

been consistently regarded as routine and employees per-

forming such functions have been included in editorial

department units. Dow Jones c(- Company, Inc., 142

NLRB 421 (1963) ; The Peoria Journal-Star, Inc., 117

NLRB 708 (1957) ; Greensboro News Cofnpany, Inc., 85

NLRB 54 (1949).

Although there may be a stronger argument to sup-

port the contention that Johnson and Berman are super-

visors, the record in the representation case and the un-

fair labor practice case demonstrate that althougli these

employees engage in routine direction and coordination

of work, they do not possess the genuine prerogatives of

a supervisor. Neither Johnson nor Palmer have the

authority to discharge, liire, adjust grievances, promote
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or recommend wage increases. In fact, the only persons

in the editorial department with knowledge of the salaries

of the other employees in that department are executive

editor Stewart and managing editor Moon. (RC Tr. p.

44.) The only basis, therefore, on which Johnson or

Berman could be regarded as supervisors is due to their

assignment or direction of work of others.

Johnson's assignment or direction of work is limited

to the news desk employees and primarily to times when

Johnson was functioning as "slot man" during the two

or three hours each day when the principal edition of the

newspaper is prepared at the news desk. (Tr. p. 947)

Four other news desk employees also regularly function

as slot man. (Tr. p. 1103)

Berman's role as city editor is primarily to coordinate

assignments of reporters. Reporters are permanently

assigned by Moon to permanent geographical and subject

beats. (RC Tr. pp. 12, 13, 65, 201, 202) Assignments

by the city editor are made on the basis of permanent

assignments unless the permanent reporter is not avail-

able, in which case the assignment is made on avail-

ability with Moon being consulted in the event any ques-

tion arises as to availability. Moreover, Berman receives

$10 per week less than one of the employees he allegedly

supervises. (RC Tr. pp. 81-82)

Accordingly, the Court should find that the appro-

priate unit consists of 28 employees and that the Guild

was not authorized as collective bargaining agent as of

April 26, 1965 or any subsequent date.

The Board, however, contends that this Court is pre-

cluded from reviewing the determination of the Regional

Director as to the supervisory status of Johnson,

Berman, and Palmer. In the unfair labor practice pro-

ceedings, Respondent did attempt to prove that these
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individuals were not supervisors. The Trial Examiner,

however, with the approval of the Board, refused to per-

mit such relitigation on the grounds that a party may not

relitigate in an unfair labor practice proceeding what

was or could have been litigated in a prior representation

proceeding. In so doing, he relied on Section 102.67(f)

of the Board's Rules and Regulations, which provides in

part as follows:

". . . Failure to request review shall preclude such

parties from relitigating, in any related subsequent

unfair labor practice proceeding, any issue which

was, or could have been, raised in the representa-

tion proceeding. Denial of a request for review shall

constitute an affirmance of the regional director's

action which shall also preclude relitigating any

such issues in any related subsequent unfair labor

practice proceeding."

Respondent contended and still contends that this pro-

vision is to be applied only in a related unfair labor prac-

tice proceeding where an employer is attempting to seek

judicial review of a certification by refusing to bargain

with the certified union. In such a case, the employer

deliberately couunits a technical unfair labor practice

simply as a means of obtaining judicial review of an

otherAvise unreviewable representation proceeding. The

employer in that situation is obviously concerned about

judicial review, not review by the Board, and it is thus

a waste of administrative effort for the Board to decide

the same issues again in the unfair labor practice pro-

ceeding. In such a context, precluding relitigation is

sensible. Outside this narrow exception, the charged

party should in all fairness be entitled to a Board ruling

or redetermination on a bargaining unit question such as

supervisory status, which arises in the context of an un-

fair labor practice proceeding and wliich is crucial to the
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resolution of the unfair labor practice question. See

Heights Funeral Home, Inc. v. NLRB, 385 F.2d 879 (5th

Cir. 1967) ; Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America

V. NLRB, 365 F.2d 898 (D.C. Cir. 1966).

The Board in its brief nevertheless contends that Sec-

tion 102.67 applies to other tA^pes of unfair labor practice

proceedings such as the one in the instant case. The

Board's sole rationale for this conclusion, as stated on

page 26 of its brief, is as follows:

". . . However, since the issue has already been

litigated in the representation case, and since the

Board's bargaining order is based in part upon the

resolution of this issue, making that determination

reviewable in the court of appeals (Section 9(d) ),

there is no reason to allow the same issue to be liti-

gated again, on the same evidence for the same pur-

pose."

In short, the Board's rationale is premised on the avail-

ability of judicial rcviciv.

After concluding that the Respondent could not reliti-

gate supervisory status in the unfair labor practice pro-

ceeding before the Board because of the availability of

subsequent judicial revieAV, the Board then makes the

bold-faced argument in its brief that Respondent is pre-

cluded from seeking judicial review in the instant case.

The two contentions are obviously inconsistent and the

Board cannot prevail on both. Either Respondent is en-

titled to relitigate supervisory status before the Board,

or if not, it is entitled to judicial review.

Even aside from this inconsistency, the Board's argu-

ments for precluding judicial review are clearly with-

out merit. The Board's brief states that Section 10(e) of

the Act precludes review. This Section provides in part

as follows:



— 38—

". . . No objection that has not been urged before

the Board, its member, agent, or agency, sliall be

considered by the court, imless the failure or neglect

to urge such objection shall be excused because of

extraordinary circmnstances."

In the instant case, Respondent did attempt to raise its

objections as to supervisory status before the Board in

the unfair labor practice proceedings but the Board re-

fused to entertain such objections. Certainly, the Board

may not refuse to consider an issue and then accuse Re-

spondent of not raising it.

The Board is forced to fall back on the argument that

Respondent is precluded from seeking judicial review

because of its failure to request review of the Regional

Director's final decision in the earlier representation pro-

ceedings. Here, again, the Board's reasoning is totally

inconsistent. On the one hand, the Board argues that

Respondent refused to recognize the Guild in order to

gain time to dissipate the alleged majority, and on the

other hand, the Board argues that the Respondent should

have filed a request for review thus dela^'ing the date

of the election. The Board's argument also fails to recog-

nize that employers may forego time-consuming review

procedures in order to avoid such election delays. In

light of the general time lag between the filing of an

election petition and the holding of an election and the

Board's repeated concern over such a time lag, it is

submitted that failure to seek such review is often com-

mendable. Such an employer should not, however, be

thereafter penalized and precluded from judicial re-

view when such representation issues become crucial

issues in a subsequent unfair labor practice proceeding.

In considering the failure to request review, it is also

essential to note the power of the Board's regional

directors in representation cases. Under Section 3(b) of
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the Act, as amended in 1959, the Board was authorized

to delegate to its regional directors its powers under Sec-

tion 9 to decide representation cases. Section 3(b) pro-

vides in part as follows

:

"The Board is also authorized to delegate to its

regional directors its powers under section 9 to de-

termine the unit appropriate for the purpose of

collective bargaining, to investigate and provide for

hearings, and determine whether a question of repre-

sentation exists, and to direct an election or take a

secret ballot under subsection (c) or (e) of section 9

and certify the results thereof, except that upon the

filing of a request therefor with the Board by any

interested person, the Board may review any action

of a regional director delegated to him under this

paragraph, but such review will not, unless specifi-

cally ordered by the Board, operate as a stay of any

action taken by the regional director."

Pursuant to this Section, the Board has delegated its

powers in representation cases to the regional directors,

except where the parties have mutually agreed to enter

into a "stipulation for certification upon consent election."

In the latter case, the regional directors makes only a

recommended decision and the final decision is made by

the Board. In all other cases, including a "directed elec-

tion" as occurred in the instant case, the regional director

makes the final decision.

Section 3(b) does provide for a type of discretionary

review of such final decisions. However, the review is

not automatic and is granted by the Board only in a very

limited number of cases. The failure to utilize such a

discretionary and seldom granted review of a final re-

presentation decision should not preclude judicial review

of a crucial issue in a subsequent unfair labor practice
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proceeding. In tlie instant case, the decisions cited by the

Board do not involve failures to file requests for re-

view but rather involve failure to appeal decisions which

were not final and for which a dc novo appeal to the

Board existed. Thus, in NLRB v. Rrxall Chemical Co.,

370 F.2d 363 (1st Cir. ] 967), the employer failed to appeal

the regional director's recommendations in a "stipula-

tion for certification upon consent election." In the other

cited cases, the respondent failed to ajjpeal the non-final

trial examiner's decision in an unfair labor practice pro-

ceeding.

Lastly, it should be noted that the novel contention

advanced by the Board is inconsistent with its own rules.

In Section 102.67(f) previously quoted, the Board pro-

vides that failure to request review shall preclude reliti-

gation in related subsequent unfair labor practice pro-

ceedings, and then in the very next sentence of the Sec-

tion, the Board provides that denial of a request for

review will have exactly the same effect. In short, under

the Board's own rules, the result would be the same even

if Respondent had requested review in the representation

proceeding. In light of these J)ro^dsions, it is submitted

that the litigant is not given sufficient notice that the

failure to seek review would have the grave consequences

urged by the Board in the instant case.

In conclusion, it can be seen that Johnson, Berman,

and Palmer should be included in the appropriate bar-

gaining unit and that the Guild did not represent a major-

ity in such approjjriate unit. Respondent furthermore

is not precluded from seeking judicial re\dew of such a

unit question. Respondent was apparently precluded

from relitigating the question of supervisory status be-

fore the Board on the rationale that judicial review was

cubsequently available, and it is submitted that Respond-

ent therefore should now have the right to such judi-
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cial review. The Board's rules cannot be used as a

justification for refusing review as it is clear that the

effect of filing or not filing a request for review is exactly

the same. Lastly, the Regional Director had the power,

delegated by the Board, to make and did make a final

unit decision and such final decision is reviewable by the

Court in a subsequent unfair labor practice proceeding.

II. THE BOARD ERRED IN QUASHING THE SUB-
POENA FOR THE PRODUCTION OF THE PRE-
HEARING STATEMENTS WHICH WERE GIVEN
TO THE GENERAL COUNSEL BY THOSE EM-
PLOYEES WHO SIGNED AUTHORIZATION
CARDS AND WHICH RELATED TO THE CIR-

CUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SUCH CARDS
WERE SIGNED EVEN THOUGH SUCH EM-
PLOYEES WERE NOT CALLED AS WITNESSES
BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL.

During the hearing Respondent served a subpoena

duces tecum upon the General Counsel and his duly des-

ignated representatives Paul A. Cassady, Regional Direc-

tor of Region 31, and Anthony F. Sauber, trial counsel,

directing that they produce any statements in their pos-

session relating to the circumstances surrounding the ex-

ecution of nine authorization cards signed by employees

of Respondent and introduced into evidence by the Gen-

eral Counsel. (Tr. Exam. Exh. 1.) Respondent's position

was that since these authorization cards were being relied

upon as evidence of the Guild's majority status, Respon-

dent was entitled to examine any statements obtained by

the Board relating to the circumstances under which such

cards were executed for the purpose of determining the

validity of the cards.

The Trial Examiner granted the General Counsel's

motion to quash on the grounds that two requirements of
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Section 102.118 of the Board's Rules and Regulations

had not been met: the consent of the General Counsel to

the production of the records had not been obtained (Tr.

Exam. Exh. 3) and the employees whose statements

were sought had not been called as witnesses by the

General Counsel. It is submitted that this ruling was

incorrect in that it contravened the rules of law relating

to the production of statements during federal admin-

istrative hearings.

First, it should be noted that the Trial Examiner based

his decision entirely upon Section 102.118 without ques-

tioning the relevancy or admissibility in other respects

of the statements sought by Respondent. The law in this

Circuit, as established in General Engineering Inc. v.

NLRB, 341 F.2d 367 (9th Cir. 1965), is that documents

in the possession of the Board cannot be withheld solely

on the basis of Section 102.118 but rather the refusal to

produce such documents must be based upon a recognized

rule of evidence. As the Trial Examiner made no at-

tempt to base his ruling on grounds other than Section

102.118, it is clear that his ruling was erroneous.

Secondly, the Jencks rule provides that in all public

proceedings undertaken on behalf of the Govermnent to

enforce a public act, the Government may not rely upon

a witness's testimony and then deny the Respondent

access to statements of the witness wliich may impeach

that testimony. Jencks v. United States, 353 U.S. 657

(1957). In the instant case the introduction of the au-

thorization cards to prove majority status was tanta-

mount to the signers of the cards testifying in person.

Respondent therefore should have been permitted, under

the Jencks rule, to examine the statements in the Board's

possession relating to the circumstances under which the

cards were executed. Indeed, the Ninth Circuit has held

that the Board cannot impose its own limitations on the
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Jencks doctrine and to the extent the limitations con-

tained in Section 102.118 contravene the doctrine, they

must be disregarded. Harvey Aluminum v. NLRB, 335

F.2d 749 (9th Cir. 1964). Therefore, to the extent that

Section 102.118 is being applied in this case to prevent

production of statements because the General Counsel's

consent has not been obtained and the employees in-

volved have not been physically called to testify by the

General Counsel, it must be disregarded because under

the Jencks rule the cards are the equivalent of oral testi-

mony and the consent of the General Counsel is not re-

quired.

The Court should also be mindful that the refusal to

allow examination of such statements could render it im-

possible for a respondent in cases of this type to fully

obtain the facts relating to the execution of authoriza-

tion cards. For example, the Board could administra-

tively determine that certain misleading statements were

not sufficient to invalidate the card and then introduce the

card without producing the signer as a witness. Under

the General Counsel's theory, neither the respondent nor

the trier of fact would have the opportunity to consider

a statement which might cast serious doubt on the valid-

ity of the card.

The Trial Examiner's suggestion that Respondent could

call the employees as -vvitnesses is clearly insufficient. If

Respondent did call such employees as witnesses, it would

not by that fact be entitled to their prior statements.

Moreover, it might be impractical for the Respondent to

call employees who have left the Los Angeles area. Fi-

nally, when Respondent does call witnesses who have

given prior statements, the General Counsel argues, as

he has done here, that their testimony is nine months

old, influenced by threats, and should be disregarded.

While thus attacking the credibility of the employees
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and referring to a "morass of hazy. . . recollections," he

continues to withhold statements in his possession given

shortly after the election.

On the basis of the foregoing, it is submitted that if this

Court determines the findings in this case support the

Board's conclusion that the Guild was designated as bar-

gaining representative by a majority of Respondent's

editorial employees, then at the very least the case should

be remanded to the Board with instructions that the

order granting the motion to quash the subpoena duces

tecum be vacated, the hearing reopened, and any state-

ments by Butkus, Rinehart, Ceder, Baylor, Cole, Saenz,

Gray, Erickson or Morrow relating to the execution of

the cards be submitted to Respondent for review.

III. THE BOARD ERRED IN PERMITTING THE IN-

TRODUCTION INTO EVIDENCE OF GENERAL
COUNSEL'S EXHIBIT NO. 18 WHICH WAS OB-

TAINED BY THEFT.

General Counsel's Exliibit No. 18 is a private memo-
randum prepared by employee Johnson for publisher

Curry. Employee Gillis stole a copy of this memoran-

dum from city editor Berman's desk drawer, copied it,

and delivered the copy to Loel Schrader, international

representative for the Guild. Schrader in turn delivered

the document to the General Counsel, who then offered

it in evidence. (Tr. pp. 93-95.)

That Exliibit No. 18 was critical in the Trial Exam-

iner's findings of fact is clearly evident from liis decision.

He specifically relied on the memorandum in finding the

following violations: (1) the alleged "slip of paper"

promise to Hall (R. 71, lines 52-G5)
; (2) all other viola-

tions alleged against Johnson (R. 72, lines 59-62, 64-65)

;

(3) that the alleged statements by Wahlheim and Curry
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constituted a threat that working rules would be adminis-

tered heartlessly and vindictively (R. 76, lines 33-37) ; and

(4) that the wage increase effective June 28 and July 1,

1965, violated the Act (R. 84, lines 19-29). Moreover, the

Trial Examiner obviously considered this evidence in re-

solving all of the credibility issues against Respondent's

witnesses in connection with the Section 8(a)(1) allega-

tions. These uses of the evidence demonstrate its critical

importance in the Trial Examiner's findings and the

Board's decision; the information in the memorandum
is not, as Petitioner suggests, "merely cumulative."

(Brief for Petitioner, p. 21, n. 15.)

Gillis admitted that he had taken the memorandum
from Berman's desk without permission. (Tr. p. 93.)

According to Schrader, the Guild's international repre-

sentative, Gillis had been one of the union's representa-

tives during the course of the election camjiaign period.

(Tr. p. 50.) The Trial Examiner found that Gillis and

another employee had been key solicitors of authorization

cards on behalf of the Guild. (R. 68, lines 59-60.) It is

clear, therefore, that in stealing the memorandum Gillis

acted as the Guild's agent.

Respondent contends that the memorandum should

have been excluded for two reasons. First, admission

of this evidence conflicts with announced policies of the

Act. Second, the Johnson-Curry memorandum was ob-

tained in violation of the Fourth Amendment. These con-

tentions will now be considered.

A. Admitting Evidence Illegally Obtained by a Labor

Union Subverts National Labor Policy, and an

Order Based Upon Such Evidence Should There-

fore Not Be Enforced.

In the preambles to the Act, Congress stated its reasons

for enacting this legislation. Section 1(b) of the Act con-

tains this statement of policy:
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"Industrial strife which interferes with the normal

flow of commerce and with the full production of

articles and commodities for commerce, can be

avoided or substantially minimized if employers, em-

ployees, and labor organizations each recognize

under law one another's legitimate rights in their

relations with each other, and above all recognize

under law that neither party has any right in its re-

lations with any other to engage in acts or practices

which jeopardize the public health, safety, or inter-

est." (29 U.S.C. §141 (1964).)

This and other provisions of the preamble demonstrate

that industrial peace was Congress' main object. The

statutes removed labor disputes from the streets and

created a fair, peaceful method of settling them. For

this method to work, however, Congress recognized that

"employers, employees, and labor organizations [must]

each recognize under law one another's legitimate rights

in their relations with each other." If either party is

permitted to ignore these rights, the system becomes un-

just and peaceful methods break down.

Indispensable to any peaceful, just system of settling

disputes is a rule that fair not foul means be used in

preparation for the j)roceedings. A party to a labor pro-

ceeding has a legitimate right to expect that his opposi-

tion will employ only lawful devices in preparing its

case. And if tliis right is to have value, the Board and

the courts must protect it. Respondent submits that to

implement this right and to discourage its violation,

this Court should hold that evidence obtained illegally

by either party to a labor dispute is inadmissible in

Board proceedings.

It is easy to foresee the consequences of condoning the

use of illegally obtained evidence in Board proceedings

as proof of unfair labor practices. Employers victimized
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by unlawful searches may feel that they too can obtain

evidence of a union's unlawful activities by stealing it

from union offices or by detaining and searching union

members. The value of evidence to be obtained by these

methods would in many cases make the risk worth taking.

Moreover, a decision for Petitioner will embolden some

unions to risk minor criminal penalties in order to ob-

tain evidence damaging to an employer. One must realize

that the stakes in labor disputes are often high and the

desire for victory intense. Modern tools of industrial

espionage— far more sophisticated than simple theft—
are available to both sides. These consequences of a de-

cision for Petitioner cannot be dismissed merely as the

reductio ad dbsurdum of his arguments : To parties who

are so often adversaries, the possibilities are real indeed.

The Board itself has recognized that using illegally

obtained evidence in its proceedings conflicts with na-

tional labor policy. In IIoosier-Cardinal Corporation,

67 NLRB 49 (1946), the secretary-treasurer of a com-

pany union was secretly an active member of a labor

organization that sought to become the bargaining repre-

sentative. Through his office the secretary acquired the

company union's records. A union organizer contacted

the Board's regional office, advising its representative

that the secretary would permit agents to see them. As a

result a Board agent visited the secretary's home, made
copies of the records and returned the originals to the

secretary. Thereafter the Board subpoenaed officers of

the company union to produce these documents. The

employer objected to this evidence on the ground that

it was obtained in contravention of the Fourth Amend-
ment. Upon review, the Board refused to pass on the

constitutional question, but decided unanimously to re-

ject evidence obtained through these methods

:
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"Without passing upon the question, therefore, as

to whether any constitutional rights were invaded,

we have unanimously decided to overrule the Trial

Examiner and reject the evidence obtained through

the methods already described. Even where, as here,

we do not question the integrity or motives of our

agents, we prefer not to rely upon evidence obtained

by such methods. It is better that there be a failure

to take full advantage of such dubious opportunities

than that Government, which 'teaches the whole

people by its example, * * * should play an ignoble

part.' As an administrative agency having both

investigating and judicial duties, this Board must

exact the highest standards of conduct from its in-

vestigating officers. Congress has vested this Board

with authority to issue subpoenas, and has jjrovided

a means for enforcing them judicially when they

are not complied with. It seems to us that, under

these circumstances, the Board agents should have

used the methods prescribed by the statute. . .
."

(67 NLKB at 55.)

Thus without reaching the constitutional question, the

Board in Hoosier-Cardinal decided that excluding un-

lawfully obtained evidence from its proceedings advanced

the policies of industrial peace embodied in the Act.

The only distinction between this case and Hoosier-

Cardinal is that the Board agent in Hoosier-Cardinal

photographed the documents before he used them ; in this

case, the General Counsel simply introduced Gillis's copy

of the Johnson-Curry memorandum into evidence.

This is a distinction without a difference. In Hoosier-

Cardinal, Board agents neither initiated the acquisition

of the evidence nor participated in the actual taking of

the documents. The relevant involvement of the govern-

ment was therefore as great as that admitted by Peti-
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tioner in this case: The investigative arm of the Board

was the beneficiary of an illegal seizure of docmnents by

a union member.

Hoosier-Cardinal reflects the Board's own view of

the relationship of illegally obtained evidence to the man-

ifest policies of the Act. The opinions below in this

case do not suggest that this view has changed : Although

Kespondent presented the question, the Trial Examiner

and the Board did not consider it.

It is well settled that the Courts of Appeals should

not enforce the Board's orders mechanically. The power

of enforcement is equitable in nature, and this Court

may consider whether the relief sought is inconsistent

with principles of equity. NLRB v. National Biscuit Co.,

185 F.2d 123, 124 (3d Cir. 1950) ; NLRB v. Eanet, 179

F.2d 15, 20-21 (D.C. Cir. 1949). It is also clear that

Section 10(e) grants courts of appeals discretion to con-

sider whether enforcement of a Board order is consistent

with the purposes of the Act. NLRB v. Broivn Lumber

Co., 336 F.2d 641 (6th Cir. 1964) ; NLRB v. Kingston

Cake Co., 206 F.2d 604 (3d Cir. 1953) ; NLRB v. Globe

Automatic Sprinkler Co., 199 F.2d 64 (3d Cir. 1952).

The Third Circuit has recognized that "... A court of

appeals has some responsibility for the effects of its own
decree ; this is especially so where it appears that enforce-

ment would entail subversion, rather than etfectuation

of the legislative purpose." NLRB v. Kingston Cake Co.,

206 F.2d 604, 611 (3d Cir. 1953) (Staley, J.). And as

Professor Jaffe has stated, "A court should rarely be re-

quired— nor should it be thought that there is any inten-

tion to require it— to participate actively in the enforce-

ment of a judgment which it finds offensive." Jaffe, The
Judicial Enforcement of Administrative Orders, 76

Harv. L. Rev. 865, 869 (1963).
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Petitioner in this case seeks to enforce a Board order

grounded in evidence obtained by a union member's

theft. As has previously been demonstrated, this method

of acquiring evidence subverts the national labor policies

articulated by Congress. Respondent therefore requests

this Court for that reason to exercise its equitable dis-

cretion and refuse to enforce the Board's order.

B. General Counsers Exhibit No. 18 Was Obtained In

Violation of the Fourth Amendment, and the Board

Therefore Erred in Admitting This Document Into

Evidence.

Burdeau v. McDowell, 256 U.S. 465 (1921), held that

evidence illegally acquired by private individuals was

admissible in federal court. Petitioner has cited this

case as controlling authority for the admissibility of

General Counsel's Exliibit No. 18. In the 47 years since

the Supreme Court decided that case, however, the law

of search and seizure has changed significantly. Sub-

sequent cases have weakened its authority and shaken its

foundations in constitutional policy. Its narrow holding

is inapplicable to the facts of this case.

1. As a part of the "Silver Platter" Doctrine, Burdeau

V. McDowell was overruled by implication in Elkins

V. United States.

In 1914 the Supreme Court held in Weeks v. United

States, 232 U.S. 383 (1914), that evidence acquired by

federal agents in violation of the Fourth Amendment
was inadmissible in federal court. However, the Court

also stated that the Fourth Amendment was not directed

at misconduct of state officials, 232 U.S. at 398, and that

evidence obtained through an unreasonable search and

seizure by state authorities without knowledge or coop-

eration of federal officers was admissible in a federal
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court. Mr. Justice Frankfurter in Lustig v. United

States, 338 U.S. 74, 79 (1949), dubbed this holding the

''silver platter" doctrine.

The rule of Burdeau v. McDowell was a part of the

silver platter doctrine. Though federal courts could not

admit evidence acquired by federal officers in violation

of the Fourth Amendment, evidence obtained by private

individuals and presented to federal officers on a silver

platter was admissible under the rule of Burdeau v.

McDowell. In 1960 the Supreme Court overturned the

silver platter doctrine, holding in Elkins v. United States,

364 U.S. 206 (1960), that federal courts could not admit

evidence unconstitutionally obtained by state officials.

When that case was decided, however, state courts were

not obliged to exclude illegally obtained evidence. Elkins

therefore required federal courts to suppress illegally

obtained evidence even though the officers who seized it

were themselves not the objects of the exclusionary rule.

The Court reached this conclusion because the silver

platter doctrine was inimical to the rights of privacy

protected by the Fourth Amendment: It encouraged

federal officers to use subterfuge to accomplish ends other-

wise unlawful.

The silver platter doctrine of Burdeau v. McDowell

is no less pernicious. If evidence obtained illegally by

private individuals is admissible in federal proceedings,

federal officers are encouraged to use artifice and ma-

nipulation to acquire proof of facts. These same infir-

mities accompanied the silver platter doctrine which the

Supreme Court rejected expressly in Elkins v. United

States. It is inescapable, therefore, that Elkins also over-

ruled Burdeau v. McDowell by implication.

The Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit agrees

with this conclusion. In United States v. Williams, 314
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F.2d 795 (6th Cir. 1963), a district court had held certain

evidence admissible. While appeal was pending the Su-

preme Court announced its decision in Elkins v. United

States. The Sixth Circuit interpreted Elkins as a change

in the rules of both Weeks v. United States and Burdeau

V. McDowell, and because the district court had relied on

both holdings the case was remanded. Williams v. United

States, 282 F.2d 940 (6th Cir. 1960). According to the

Sixth Circuit, therefore, Elkins weakened the bases of

Burdeau v. McDowell in constitutional policy. Though

other courts may have disagreed with this view, Respond-

ent submits that the view of the Sixth Circuit is the

correct interpretation of Elkins.

2. General Counsel's acceptance of the Johnson-Curry

memorandum constitutes sufficient federal involve-

ment in Gillis's theft for the exclusionary rule to

be applied.

It is settled law that when a government oflScial assists

or induces illegal searches and seizures, federal courts

must suppress evidence thus obtained. Byars v. United

States, 273 U.S. 28 (1927). Active participation in the

illegal search and seizure by federal officers is not nec-

essary. In Moody v. United States, 163 A.2d 137 (D.C.

Munic.Ct.App. 1960), a police officer learned that a

theft victim had recognized his goods in defendant's

apartment. The officer accompanied the \'ictim to the

apartment and waited in the hallway while the victim

recovered his goods. The court held that the arresting

officer had participated in the search even though his

role was entirely passive. In Gambino v. United States,

275 U.S. 310 (1927), state troopers discovered liquor in

defendant's automobile. Indicted in federal court for

violation of the National Prohibition Act, defendant

moved to suppress the evidence because the search had
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been conducted in violation of tlie Fourth Amendment. At

the time this case was decided, of course, the silver

platter doctrine was accepted law. Although the Supreme

Court found that the state troopers were not agents

of the federal government, it held the evidence inad-

missible because of the troopers' relation to the federal

prosecution. Their purpose in searching the car was to

aid the federal prosecution, and federal officials accepted

and acted upon the aid. The Court said:

"The prosecution thereupon instituted by the

federal authorities was, as conducted, in effect a

ratification of the arrest, search and seizure made

by the troopers on behalf of the United States."

(275 U.S. at 316-317).

Kespondent does not suggest that Board agents partic-

ipated actively in Gillis's illegal seizure of the Johnson-

Curry memorandum. But just as the federal author-

ities in Gamhino ratified the illegal state arrest by insti-

tuting the prosecution, so the General Counsel ratified—
and became implicated in— Gillis's theft by accepting

and using the memorandum. Because of this federal in-

volvement in the theft, the Board should have applied the

exclusionary rule and suppressed General Counsel's Ex-

hibit No. 18. There is no significant difference between

cases where officials passively assist illegal activity, or

become the beneficiaries of the illegal efforts of state

police officers, and this case. Here, the General Counsel

was the direct beneficiary of a theft committed by a

Guild agent. The Constitutional guarantees of privacy

and personal freedom require this Court to deny the

prosecutorial arm of the Board the opportunity to profit

by such action. As Justice Brandeis said, dissenting in

Burdeau v. McDowell, 256 U.S. 465, 477 (1921), "Respect

for law will not be advanced by resort, in its enforce-
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ment, to means which shock the coiiinion man's sense of

decency and fair play."

That unfair labor practice hearings are quasi-civil in

nature does not change this result. Because the Board

may impose serious sanctions for violation of the pro-

visions of the Act, its actions are similar to criminal pro-

ceedings. Nothing in the Fourth Amendment suggests

that its provisions are limited to criminal cases, and the

Supreme Court has never so held. See Boyd v. United

States, 116 U.S. 616 (1886) ; One 1958 Plymouth Sedan

V. Pennstjlvania, 380 U.S. 693 (1965). In 1967 the Court

held that warrantless searches by health ofiScials, though

civil not criminal in nature, violated the Fourth Amend-
ment. Camara v. Municipal Court, 387 U.S. 523 (1967).

The Fifth Circuit has stated flatly that the Board must

apply the exclusionary rule:

"If the Board should base its findings solely upon

evidence obtained by an unconstitutional search, the

order resting thereon would be invalid, because such

evidence is incompetent." {NLRB v. Bell Oil £ Gas

Co., 98 F.2d 870, 871 (5th Cir. 1938).)

3. The Essential Policy of the Exclusionary Rule Is

Served When Evidence Illegally Obtained By a

Labor Union Is Excluded.

The Supreme Court enunciated the purpose of the ex-

clusionary rule in Elkins v. United States:

"The rule is calculated to prevent, not to repair.

Its purpose is to deter -^ to compel respect for the

constitutional guarantee in the only effectively avail-

able way— by removing the incentive to disregard

it." (364 U.S. 206, 217 (I960).)

Obviously, applying the exclusionary rule will not serve

the purpose of deterrence if the person who conunits the
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illegal search is not deterrable. This Court should there-

fore consider whether a labor union is an entity likely

to be deterred from conducting illegal searches and

seizures by the exclusionary rule.

To this inquiry three factors are relevant. First, the

effectiveness of the exclusionary rule depends on the

searcher's awareness of the law. If persons committing

or directing a search and seizure are unaware of the law

governing their actions, it is futile to expect that they

will be deterred by the exclusionary rule. Second, the

rule's effectiveness depends on the searcher's desire that

the items he obtains be used in administrative or judicial

proceedings, for if he has no interest that they be in-

troduced as evidence, the disposition of the case will

not deter him in the future. Finally, this Court should

consider the effectiveness of other remedies available to

the victim of an illegal search and seizure. If other

remedies adequately deter these activities, evidence ob-

tained through illegal means might be deemed admiss-

ible. Respondent contends that an examination of these

factors requires that evidence obtained illegally by

labor unions in an election proceeding be excluded.

First, most matters concerning labor-management re-

lations are subjected to judicial scrutiny, and unions are

advised by competent legal counsel. One can therefore

expect that labor unions are aware of the law governing

their actions. This awareness can be transmitted easily

to the membership. Instead of frustrating federal

policy against unwarranted intrusions of privacy, labor

unions can help enforce it by discouraging their mem-
bers from using illegal means to obtain evidence for

proceedings against their employers.

Second, labor unions engaged in election proceedings

strongly desire that evidence they obtain be used in

administrative proceedings to prove unfair labor prac-
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tices. Thus it is important to tliem that their evidence be

admissible before the Board, and the possibility that it

would be excluded would deter unions from acquiring

it illegally.

Finally, remedies other than the exclusionary rule are

ineffective in preventing unions from employing unlaw-

ful means to obtain evidence. A criminal prosecution of

union member Gillis, for example, would have little de-

terrent effect on the Guild itself. Knowing that if re-

levant evidence could be obtained through theft, a union

might induce a member to risk minor criminal penalties

in order to get it. By removing the incentive to obtain the

evidence, this Court would provide an effective, practi-

cal remedy to victims of a criminal, unconstitutional

breach of privacy. This same ineffectiveness of other

remedies drove the California Supreme Court in People

V. Cahan, 44 Cal.2d 434, 282 P.2d 905 (1955), to adopt

the exclusionary rule.

In conclusion, it is submitted that by admitting evidence

illegally acquired by labor unions, the Board— and this

Court— would "participate in, and in effect condone,"

Id. at 445, 282 P.2d at 911-12, the lawless activities of

union members. No remedy other than the exclusionary

rule will stop it. But by requiring the Board to exclude

such evidence, this Court will secure compliance with

Fourth Amendment guarantees and raise Board practice

to its rightful position as a constitutional, peaceful, and

just method of settling labor disputes. Excluding evi-

dence illegally obtained by labor unions from Board pro-

ceedings will rid the Board of the dirty business exem-

plified by the facts of this case. Eespondent respect-

fully submits that this Court hold that General Counsel's

Exliibit No. 18 was obtained in violation of the Fourth

Amendment and that the Board erred in admitting it

into evidence.
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CONCLUSION

On the basis of the foregoing, enforcement of the

bargaining order portion of the Board's order against

Eespondent should be denied and with respect to the

other portions of the order the proceeding should be

remanded to the Board for a new hearing.

Respectfully submitted,

O'Melveny & Myers

Charles G. Bakaly, Jr.

Peter M. Anderson

Stanley H. Williams

Attorneys for Respondent
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1. The Company's extended comment on the unre-

liability of authorization cards misses the mark.^ The

Board has never asserted that cards are the most reliable

indicators of majority status. In fact, when a union claims

It is true, as the Company states, that the Fourth Circuit in

N.L.R.B. V. S. S. Logan Packing Co., 386 F.2d 562, indicated dis-

approval of bargaining orders on the basis of a card majority. But

the Fourth Circuit has reconsidered this position and has, subsequent

to Logan, upheld bargaining orders based on a card majority. N.L.R.B.

V. Sehon Stevenson & Co., 386 F.2d 551; N.L.R.B. v. Preiser Scientific,

Inc., 387 F.2d \43 N.L.R.B. v. Lifetime Door Co., 67 LRRM 2704.



to represent a majority of the employees on the basis of

signed authorization cards an employer who has a good

faith doubt of that claim ordinarily is privileged to insist

that a union verify its claim by winning a Board election.

2

But it is not privileged to insist upon an election and, at

the same time, commit unfair labor practices which render

impossible the holding of a free and fair election. In this

case the employer engaged iji flagrant and pervasive economic

coercion, including threats that Guild supporters would not

be considered for managerial positions and would be black-

balled from the entire newspaper industry. Such conduct,

we submit, makes a sham of the electoral process. In such

circumstances, the authorization cards, rather than an elec-

tion, become the best evidence of majority status; it is not

for the employer to complain about the use of cards when

his own actions have made their use necessary.

As outlined in the Company's brief, some courts of

appeals have recently adopted a somewhat different standard

than the Board's Cumberland Shoe doctrine (see 351 F.2d

917 (C.A.6)). Thus in N.L.R.B. v. S. E. Nichols, 380 F.2d

438 (C.A. 2), the Court stated that it would not look to see

if the word only was used but rather whether "the signers

were induced to affix their signatures by statements causing

them to believe that the union would not achieve representa-

tive status without an election." In this case the Trial Ex-

aminer, relying on Cumberland Shoe, referred only to testi-

mony required under that doctrine. We submit, however,

that the cards here can be sustained under the Nichols stan-

dard as well. The portions of the record relevant to this

standard are referred to at pp. 34-38 of our main brief. That

testimony shows that in no case did an employee sign a card

in reliance upon a representation that the Guild could not

be recognized without an election. Rinehart, Peterson^ and

- See Aaron Brothers, 158 NLRB 1077, 1078-1080; Textile Workers

Union (Hercules Packing Corp.) v. N.L.R.B., 386 F.2d 790 (C.A. 2).

The Company objected to PctersoiTs card before the Board but

does not pursue its objection here.



Gray clearly indicated that they understood that the Guild

could be recognized without an election.'* The testimony

of Baylor and Erickson is somewhat ambiguous and does

not make out a case of clear misrepresentation as to the

purpose of the card.^ Only in the case of Cole was there

evidence that he was led to believe that the Guild would

not be recognized without an election. There was other

evidence, however, that Cole signed the card because he

wanted the Guild to represent him and was not induced to

sign because of the misrepresentation. Most notable is his

admission that he actively campaigned on behalf of the Guild

in early stages of the election campaign shortly after he

signed the card.

2. There is nothing inconsistent, as the Company
suggests, in the Board's contentions that the Company can

neither relitigate nor obtain judicial review of the Regional

Director's finding as to the makeup of the unit. The Com-
pany's contention is based upon its refusal to acknowledge

that two entirely separate issues are presented. First is the

issue of rehtigation which is controlled by Section 102.67(0

of the Board's Rules and Regulations which states that ".
. .

Failure to request review [or denial of a request for review]

shall preclude such parties from reUtigating, in any related

subsequent unfair labor practice proceeding, any issue which

was, or could have been, raised in the representation pro-

ceeding." As shown in our main brief, pp. 24-26, the repre-

sentation and unfair labor practice proceedings were related

within the meaning of the rule. The cases cited by the

Rinehart's activities on behalf of the Guild belie the Company's
implication that he did not intend to have the Guild represent him
and only signed the card because he wanted an election.

In evaluating such testimony, it is important to tai^e into account
the considerations mentioned recently by the District of Columbia
Circuit in United Automobile Workers (Preston Products Co.) v. N.L.R.B.
66 LRRM 2548, 2552 (see p. 33 of our main brieO and also the fact

that the employees here were college educated newspaper reporters

who read and signed a clear and unambiguous authorization card.



Company^ are readily distinguishable (See our main brief,

p. 26, n. 26). In both cases the issue sought to be relitigated,

(supervisory status) was raised for an entirely different pur-

pose in the unfair labor practice case than in the representa-

tion case. Here, the Company sought to introduce the same

evidence in order to litigate the same issue for the same pur-

pose. As we show in our main brief (pp. 24-26), there is no
reason in law or policy to impose this wasteful procedure on
the litigants and the Board.

The next question, which is a separate and independent

one, is whether the Regional Director's determination in the

representation case is judicially reviewable. Under normal

circumstances such a decision would be reviewable. But

here the Company chose not to seek review of the Regional

Director's determination. Instead, it expressly waived its

right to appeal to the Board. Because of this, the election

was held according to the terms of the Regional Director's

decision. We submit that it is too late at this stage of the

proceedings to seek review of that decision. (See our main

brief, pp. 27-30.)

3. The Company seeks pre-hearing statements of em-

ployees who were not called to testify by the General Coun-

sel. Althougli relying on the Jeiicks rule, the Company does

not refer to any portion of the relevant statute wliich supports

its position; nor are any cases cited in support of this novel

contention. Indeed, the relevant section of the Jencks Act

itself (which of course is not, technically speaking, applicable •

to Board proceedings), makes it perfectly clear that there is

no merit to the Company's contention:

In any criminal prosecution brouglit by

the United States, no statement or report

m the possession of the United States

which was made by a Ciovernment wit-

ness or prospective (iovernment witness

(other than tiie defendant) to an agent

^' Heights Funeral Home, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 383 F.2d 879 (C.A. 5);

Awcilgumatcd Clothing Workers ofAmerica v. N.L.R.B., 365 F.2d 898

(C.A.D.C).



of the Government shall be the subject

of subpena, discovery or inspection

until said witness has testified on direct

examination in the trial of the case.

18 U.S.C. 3500(a). (emphasis supplied.)

The Company seeks to avoid the clear wording of the

statute by the unsupported assertion that the introduction

of authorization cards is tantamount to having the signer

testify. This kind of contention has been rejected wherever

it has been raised. United States v. Gordon, 158 F. Supp.

207, 209 (N.D. 111.); United States v. Neverline, 266 F.2d

180(C.A. 3).

Nor is there any merit to the Company's assertion that

it was ijnpossible fully to obtain the facts. The Company
could have taken pre-hearing statements from any of the

employees if it had wished and it was free to call the em-

ployees to testify at the hearing. Indeed, it did call eight

of the nine employees whose statements it is seeking and

obtained their testimony under oath. The contention that

it was entitled to more than this is, we submit, without

substance.

4. The Company seeks to exclude a document, Gen-

eral Counsel's Exhibit No. 18, which an employee, Gilhs,

took from the desk drawer of City Editor Berman. Gillis

had a copy made of the document and gave the copy to

Schrader, international representative for the Guild, who
later turned it over to the General Counsel. There is no

evidence that the General Counsel, or Schrader, had
any part in the taking of the document or even knew how
it had been obtained.

It has long been the general policy of the Board, with

respect to allegedly stolen documents, to conform its prac-

tice to federal law. Andrew Jergens Co., 27 NLRB 521;

Air Line Pilots Association, 97 NLRB 929; General Engineer-

ing, Inc.. 123 NLRB 586.'^ It is a well-settled principle of

7
Hoosier-Cardinal Corporation, 67 NLRB 49, relied on by the Com-

pany is not to the contrary because there the Board agents were inti-

mately involved in the illegal activities.



federal law that the Fourth Amendment protects against

unreasonable seizures by governmental agents and does not

affect the actions of private parties. Burdeau v. McDowell,

256 U.S. 465; Evalt v. United States, 359 F.2d 534, 542

(C.A, 9). Every case cited by the Company included either

federal or state involvement in the seizure and are thus not

applicable to the present situation. The decision in Elkins

V. United States, 364 U.S. 206, extending the protection of

the Fourth Amendment to cover the activities of state govern-

mental agents, is no authority for the Company's contention

that Burdeau has been overruled. Indeed, Burdeau was not

even cited in the Elkins opinion. Moreover, there are numer-

ous decisions after Elkins in which the rule of Burdeau has

been followed or approved. United States v. McGuire, 381

F.2d 306, 313 n. 5 and cases cited therein (C.A. 2).^ The

Company's reliance on United States v. Williams, 282 F.2d

940 (C.A. 6) is misplaced, for in that case the search was

carried out by governmental agents. Thus, Williams has no

relevance to Burdeau or to this case. In sum, the Company
is left with no case which applies the Fourth Amendment
to the action of purely private parties.

The Company's contention (Br. 54-56) that application

of the exclusionary rule here will serve the purpose of de-

terrence is based on the assumption that the Union was in

some way connected with the seizure. There is no evidence

to support this assumption. The mere fact that Gillis

solicited authorization cards for two days can hardly

raise him to the level of the Guild's general agent. Moreover,

there is no basis for the Company's apparent beUef that the

Guild, absent strong deterrent measures, would not hesitate

to engage in widespread illegal searches and seizures.

In any event the introduction of exhibit No. 18 was

not prejudicial. The Company points out (Br. 44-55) that

on four occasions the Trial Examiner referred to the exhibit

when he found a violation. But when the Trial Examiner's

^ Accord, United States v. Goldberg, 330 F.2d 30 (C.A. 3). Cf.

Barnes v. United States, 373 F.2d 517 (C.A. 5); Comgold v. United

States, 367 F.2d 1 , 4 (C.A. 9); Evalt v. United States, 359 F.2d 534,

542 (C.A. 9).



decision is closely analyzed it becomes apparent that, in

each instance, the exhibit was just one of many factors that

the Trial Examiner relied on and was merely corroborative

of other substantial evidence. Moreover, there were literally

a score of other Section 8(a) (1) violations, including ex-

tremely coercive economic tlireats and promises, which were

in no way related to or dependent upon exhibit No. 18.

Thus, since the exhibit was merely corroborative where re-

ferred to and in no way connected with the majority of the

violations, it can hardly be considered prejudicial.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons and for the reasons stated

in our opening brief we submit the Board's order should be

enforced in full.

ARNOLD ORDMAN,
General Counsel,

DOMINICK L. MANOLI,
Associate General Counsel,

MARCEL MALLET-PREVOST,
Assistant General Counsel,

LAWRENCE M. JOSEPH,
J. RICHARD THESING,

A ttorneys.

National Labor Relations Board.

May 1968.

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned certifies that he has examined the

provisions of rules 18 and 19 of this Court, and in his opinion

the tendered brief conforms to all requirements.

MARCEL MALLET-PREVOST,
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National Labor Relations Board.
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No. 21950

JOHN W. GARDNER, Secretary of Health,
Education and Welfare,

Appellant
V.

PAUL E. SLOANE and ALYSE S. SLOANE,

Appellees

ON APPEAL FROM THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

BRIEF AND APPENDIX FOR THE APPELLANT

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This action was brought by the claimants-appellees in the

ourt below, pursuant to Section 205(g) of the Social Security

\ct, 42 U.S.C. 405(g), to obtain Judicial review of a final

jecision of the Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare
1/

(R. 1-3). The Secretary had held that deductions should be im-

posed against old-age social security retirement benefits due

the claimant and his wife during the years I958 through I96O, and

1/ The designation "R." refers to the portion of the Record
reproduced by the Clerk of this Court. The designation "Tr."
refers to the transcript of the administrative proceedings,
four copies of which have been filed with the Clerk.



for the first six months of I962 before the wage earner

celebrated his seventy- second birthday because the wage earner,

a self-employed attorney, had earnings in excess of the amount

allowed by the statute (Tr. l4-l8)

.

The district court upheld the Secretary's decision with fli

respect to the years 1958 through i960 but reversed the deciabn

of the Secretary for the year 1962, holding that the Secretary

had misinterpreted the applicable law in taking into account J

income received by the claimant during the entire calendar

year in which he reached 72, rather than Just the six months

prior to his seventy-second birthday (R. 21-27). Accordingly,

the court entered summary Judgment on May 12, I967* affirming

the decision of the Secretary, but modifying that part requiring

the plaintiffs-appellees' repayment of $999.00 in benefits

received for the first six months of I962 (R. 28-29). On

May 15, 1967, the Secretary filed notice of appeal limited

to the adverse part of the district court order, i.e., the

year 1962 (R. 30-31). The Jurisdiction of this court is based

upon 28 U.S.C. 1291,

STATEMENT OP THE CASE

1. The Statutory Background .

Under the Social Security Act an individual is entitled

to old-age insurance (retirement) benefits if he is fully I

Insured, has attained the age of 65, and has filed application

for benefits (42 U.S.C. 402(a)), (App. la ). However, if am

- 2 -



.ndivldual under 72 years of age continues to work and receives

rages or self-einpl03mient income, his retirment "benefits and those

»f his qualifying dependents are reduced, by deductions, depending
I

ipon the amount of his "excess earnings". (42 U.S.C. 403(b})

[App. la ). During 1962, the year in question, the Social

lecurity Act provided for the reduction of insurance benefits

!,nd the charging of an individual's excess earnings "to the first

lonth of such taxable year an amount of his excess earnings equal

I

I© the sum of the payments which he and all other persons sre

entitled for such month" on the basis of his income and th®

alance of such excess earnings shall be charged "to each succeeding

lonth in such year" {h2 U.S.C. 403(f) (l)) (App. 2a~3a ),

'he statute then goes on to provide that "Notwithstanding the

ireceding provisions of this paragraph, no part of the excess

arnings of an individual shall be charged to any month ^ ^ ^

B) in which such individual was age seventy-two or over *»«„

Ibid.)

Specifically, 42 U.S.C. 403(f)(3) (App. 3a ) in effect

|n 1962, provided that an individual's excess earnings for a

;axable year shall be his earnings for such year in excess of the

iroduct of "$100 multiplied by the number of months in such

'ear." Thus if the claimant had earnings of $1,200 or less

luring the year, he received the full amount of his Social Security

benefits. If he had earnings of over $1,200 but not over

'I

il,700 he lost $1.00 in benefits during the months of the year

.)efore he reached 72 for each two dollars he earned. For all

1/ The 1965 Amendments to the Act raised the araourit to $125.
\2 U.S.C. (Supp I) 403(f)(3).
1



earnings over $1,700, he lost a dollar in benefits for each

dollar he eariied in that year.

The Act further provides that an individual will be

presumed to have been engaged in self-employment in any such

month unless it is shown to the satisfaction of the Secretary

that he rendered no substantial services in that particular

month with respect to any trade or business, the net income

of which is included in computing his net earnings from self-

employment for any taxable year {H2 UoS„Co 403(f )(4)(A]) (App. 3a t

The Act defines the term "taxable year" to "have the same

meaning as when used in Chapter I of Title 26" [the Internal

Revenue Code of 195^] (42 U.S.C. 4ll(e)(Appo 4a ) . It

expressly provides that the "taxable year of any individual

shall be a calendar year unless he has a different taxable year

for the purposes of the [Ijitemal Revenue Code] in which case

his taxable year for the purposes of this subchapter shall be the

same as his taxable year under [the Code]." And the Internal

Revenue Code provides for returns for periods of less than 12

months only in cases where (l) the taxpayer has changed his

annual accounting period j (2) the taxpayer is not in existence foni

the entire taxable year]; or (3) when the Commissioner terminates

the taxable year because the tax is in Jeopardy under 26 U.S.C. 68'

(26 U.S.C. 443) (App. 5a ).

And the Act requires an individual entitled to benefits

to report his earnings or wages for the taxable year to the

Secretary before April 15 of the succeeding year. This report

need not be made only for any taxable year "beginning with or

I
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a'ter the month In which such individual attains the age of

7." or if benefit payments for all months in which the
11

lidividual is under 72 have been suspended (42 U.S.C.

4'3(h)(l)(A)) (App.3a-4a).

2. The Relevant Facts .

The f^cts are essentially undisputed.

Paul Sloane retired from his employment as an attorney

ii the legal department of the Pacific Gas and Electric Company

li September of 1955 after attaining the age of 65 in July 1955

('r. 16, 98, R. 21). He applied for old-age insurance benefits

li May 1956 (Tr. 98-99)* and benefits were paid to him through

Kivember 1962 (Tr. 150), Alyse Sloane, his wife, received

tmefits on the basis of his earnings record ffdm June 1957

tirough November 1962 (Tr. 102-109).

In December 19^2, the Social Security Administration,

the basis of information from the Internal Revenue Service,

otermined that there had been an overpayment and that the

claimant and his wife had received benefits to which they were

r|)t entitled because Mr. Sloane was not retired but was self-

ciployed. Accordingly, they discontinued further payments

iktil the amount of the overpayment would be repaid (Tr. 146-^7,

P. 22).

The following facts were adduced at the administrative

haringj after retiring from the Pacific Gas and Electric

()mpany in 1955 at the age of 65, Mr. Sloane opened a private

]iw office and practiced law full time in San Francisco (Tr. 35-36)

- 5 -



Mr. Sloane worked the entire year 1962 -- the year in

question -- handling numerous estates (Tr. 55-56). On July 8,

1962, he became 72. During the entire year 1962, he had a total

Income of $36,365-79 with expenses of $14,707.88, or a total

self-employment income of $21,657-90 (Tr. 22li, 229). He explaine'

that these fees were earned as a result of the settlement of

various large estates (Tr. 229). Mr. Sloane testified that while

he could have deferred receiving the great bulk of these fees

until January 1963, he settled the estates in 1962 after his

72nd birthday because he '"figured it would make no difference"

when he received the fees as long as he was over 72 (Tr. 59-61) .

3. Administrative Decision and Proceedings Below .

The Secretary, through the Hearing Examiner, found that

the claimants-appellees' old-age benefits were subject to

deductions for the years 1958 through 196O and the first six

months of 1962. The Hearing Examiner expressly noted the

provisions of paragraph 1813 of the Social Security Handbook

on old-age benefits

s

E8.rnings for the entire year in which
a person becomes entitled to benefits, he ,
reaches the age 72, or his benefits are ter-
minated are counted in figuring the annual
earnings and this can cause loss of benefits
under some conditions. (Tr. 6^, 67).

The Hearing Examiner further pointed out to Mr. Sloane

that "in determining whether the deductions are payable

[imposed 1 the law says you must compute the earnings of the

i



I

jntire year on an annual basis not on a month or day, but

m the entire year." (Tr. 67).

i

The claimant and his wife then brought this action in

;he district court for review of the administrative decision

'R. 1*3). On cross-motions for summary Judgment, the district

30urt upheld the Secretary's determination with respect to

;he years I958-I96O but, with respect to the year 1962,

[R. 21-2^, 27) rejected the Secretary's argument that in

determining the earnings attributable to an individual, the

mtire taxable year is to be used, rather than Just the months

)rior to the wage earner's 72nd birthday. The court accordingly

'eversed the Secretary's decision requiring repayment of the money

•eceived in the six months of the year 1962 before the claimant

'cached his seventy-second birthday (R. 26).

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS INVOLVED

The relevant provisions of the Social Security Act,

12 U.S.C. 401 et seq .. Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. 44l

rt seq and Regulations of the Social Security Administration

ire set forth in the appendix to this brief, infra , pp. la - 5a .

SPECIFICATION OP ERRORS

1. The district court erred in holding that in determining

whether a deduction for excess earnings is to be made from a wage

Jarnfer's old-age insurance benefits for the year in which he reaches

lis seventy- second birthday, the Secretary may take into account

)nly earnings in the months prior to the wage earner's se.venty-

jecond birthday, and not the earnings for the entire twelve months

calendar year. - 7 -



2. The district court erred In remanding the case to

the Secretary for recomputatlon of the amount of overpayment.

SUMMARY OP ARGUMENT

1. The Social Security Act, 42 U.S,C. 4ll(e)^ expressly

Incorporates the definitions of taxable year contained in

the Internal Revenue Code. And under the Internal Revenue

Code, 26 UoS.C. 441(b)(3), 26 U.SoC, 443, the wage earner's

taxable year was the twelve month calendar year. Thus, where

as In the instant case, the wage earner performed services as

a self-employed lawyer throughout the year and had a taxable

Income of $21,657.90 for the entire year, the district court

was plainly wrong in holding that the wage earner and his wife

were entitled to their old-age benefits for the first six

months of the year, before he became 72, even though the wage

earner was admittedly performing services and deferred receiving

his income until after his seventy-second birthday.

Contrary to the district court "s characterization of the

statute as "ambiguous", the statute and its legislative history

makes It clear that in determining what earnings are to be

considered for the purpose of imposing deductions. Congress

intended the "taxable year" to consist of the entire 12 months

period, and the wage earner is required to make an earnings

report to the Secretary for the entire year when the wage earner

turns 72. 42 U.S.C. 403(l?)(l) (A)

,



2. Indeed, assuming arguendo that the statute were

ambiguous, the district court erred in rejecting the Secretary's

interpretation, where as pointed out by the district court

"[l]t is possible to construe it as the Administration has."

(R. 26). For as pointed out in Udall v. Tallman , 38O U.S. 1,

I4, 16 where, as here, an administrative interpretation of a

statute is plainly reasonable, the Secretary's interpretation

fShould not be brushed aside by the courts.

ARGUMENT

Introduction

I Paul Sloane, the wage earner in this case, had a taxable

Income in 1962 of $21,657.90 (Tr. 224). Although he worked

the entire year as a self-employed lawyer (Tr. 36), virtually

all of this income was received during the second half of the

year, specifically after he had turned 72 on July 8, 1962.

The single question presented on this appeal is whether, in

determining his old-age benefits, for the first six months

of 1;he year, his income during the second six months must be

taken into account. If so, the wage earner was admittedly

subject to "excess earnings" deductions from his benefits for

the January - June period. If, however, the post-July 8 income

receipts are irrelevant, then (in view of the fact that he

received very little income prior to July 8) no excess earnings

deductions would be chargeable against his benefits for the

first half of the year.

- 9 -



IN IMPOSING DEDUCTIONS ON A SELF-EMPLOYED
WAGE EARNER'S OLD-AGE INSURANCE BENEFITS
BECAUSE OF EXCESSIVE EARNINGS IN THE YEAR
WHEN THE CLAIMANT CELEBRATED HIS 72ND BIRTH-
DAY, THE SECRETARY CORRECTLY HELD THAT THE
EARNINGS FOR THE TAXABLE YEAR WERE THE
EARNINGS FOR THE ENTIRE TWELVE MONTH CALENDAR
PERIOD AND NOT ONLY THE EARNINGS FOR THE
MONTHS PRIOR TO HIS 72ND BIRTHDAY.

For purposes of the administration of the Social Securl'

Act (and thus the imposition of deductions from a wage earner's

benefits because of excess earnings in the taxable year), 42 U.S.!

411(e) (App. 4a ), expressly defines the terra "taxable year"'

to have the "same meaning" as when used in the Internal Revenue

Code and that "the taxable year of any individual shall be a

calendar year" unless the individual has a different taxable

year under the Internal Revenue Code. And under the Internal

Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. 441(b)(3), 26 U.S.C. 443, returns can be

made for periods of less than twelve months only in specific
3/

enumerated circumstances not applicable to the case at bar.

Thus there is no question that, under the Internal Revenue Code,

Mr. Sloane's taxable year was the entire twelve month calendar

year of 1962, and was not to be limited to those months prior

to his 72nd birthday.

y The Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. 443 provides that return
can be made for periods of less than twelve months only in cases
where (l) the taxpayer has changed his annual accounting period,
(2) the taxpayer is not in existence for the entire taxable year, J
or (3) when the Commissioner terminates the taxable year for tax il

in Jeopardy under 26 U.S.C. 685I . Admittedly, none of these
conditions for establishing a shorter than twelve months taxable
year under the Internal Revenue Code were met by Paul Sloane for
the period here in question.



In line with these statutory requirements, the Social

y
Security Administration's Handbook notes:

§ 1813. Earnings for the entire year in
which a person becomes entitled to
benefits, he reaches age 72, or his
benefits are terminated are counted in
figuring the annual earnings and thus
can cause loss of benefits under some
conditions. Thus, if a worker had
earned $800 through April and became
entitled to benefits of $100 monthly in
May, and then earned $200 a month in
each of the months of May through October,
his total annual earnings are $2,000
even though he earned only $1,200 after
becoming entitled to benefits. His
excess earnings, computed in accordance
with § 180^ above, are $550, to be charged
against his benefits for the year. Skipping
January through April, because he was not
yet entitled to any benefits for those
months, no benefits will be payable for
May through September; he will receive
a partial benefit of $50 for October.
Pull benefits can be paid for November
and December, since no excess earnings
remain to be charged against benefits for
those months. * * *

There is no Justifiable support for the district court's

view that the Internal Revenue Code concept of taxable year was

Inapplicable to determinations of excess earnings under Section ^03

First as we pointed out, supra , for purposes of the

administration of the Social Security Act (and thus the imposition

of deductions from a wage earner's benefits because of excess

earnings), 42 U.S.C. 4ll(e) expressly Incorporates the definition

M/ Social Security Handbook on Old-Age, Survivors and Disability
Insurance, 2nd Ed., January 1963.

- 11 -



of taxable year contained in the Internal Revenue Code,

26 U.S.C. 4ill(b)(3), 26 U.S.C. 443. Nothing in 42 U.S.C.

403 suggests that the Internal Revenue Code taxable year is

inapplicable in the imposition of deductions . To the contrary,

42 U.S.C. 403(h)(1)(A) (App. 3a - 4a ) contains an affirmative

indication that Congress intended the taxable year concept to

apply to Section 403 determinations. That subsection expressly

provides that, where, as here, the wage earner turns 72 in

the middle of the year, the "taxable year" is the entire 12

month period and the wage earner is required to make an earnings

report to the Secretary for the entire year. It is only in the

taxable year "beginning with or after the month in which such

individual attained the age of 72" that no reports need be made.

Moreover, the Secretary's construction of this provision

is supported by the legislative history. Specifically, the

Senate and House Reports accompanying the 1950 Amendments to

the Social Security Act, which first extended coverage to self-

employed lawyers such as Mr. Sloane, provided that "benefit"

deductions would be imposed for any month as a result of the self-

employment of a beneficiary "only when the beneficiary both had

substantial net earnings from self-employment in the year and

rendered substantial services in a trade or business in that

month." S.Rept. I669, 8lst Cong., 1st Sess., at p. 74 (App. na

y Senate Report No. 1669, 8lst Cong., p. 6.

6/ For the convenience of the Court, the pertinent pages
of the Senate Report^ are reproduced in the Appendix
to this brief.

1



Here Mr. Sloane admittedly practiced law full time during the

first six months of 1962 (Tr. 36-37). That he allegedly had

no earnings during a few of these months makes no difference.

Thus, the Senate Committee report points out that "if an

Individual entitled to old-age insurance benefits engaged

throughout the taxable year in business as a real-estate

broker and earned more than [the allowable amount] for the entire

year, he will suffer a deduction under section 203(b)(2) for

each month of the year even though during several months of

the year he may have operated at a loss through an inability

to negotiate any sales in those months." Senate Rept . N0.1669,

Ibid., at p. 7^. And the legislative history shows further

congressional awareness that even in the year when the claimant

becomes entitled to benefits, or as here becomes free from

statutory earnings restriction, "[gjfenerally, the taxable year

cfan individual will be a calendar year, or a fiscal year,

containing 12 months." S. Rept. 1669, Ibid., at p. 73 (App. 9a),

There is no doubt that, in view of the foregoing consid-

erations, the Secretary was clearly Justified in interpreting

the statute to mean that "Earnings for the entire year in which

a person * * * reaches age 72 * * * are counted in figuring the

annual earnings and thus can cause loss of earnings under some

conditions." Section 1813 of the Social Security Handbook,

supra , p. 11. Indeed, as the district court itself recognized,

"It is possible to construe [the law] as the Administration has"

since this construction is consistent with the use of the income

- 1? -



I
tax returns to check the earnings of claimants during a taxable

year" (R. 26). In these circumstances, where the district court

itself recognized that the administrative interpretation was

reasonable, the district court, we submit, should not have

substituted its own interpretation for that of the administrator's

As pointed out in Udall v. Tallman , 38O U.S. 1, 4, 16 even

where an administrative "interpretation may not be the only

one permitted by the language of the order, but it is quite

clearly a reasonable interpretation, courts may therefore

respect it." 38O U.S. at 4.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit that

that part of the district court Judgment adverse to the Secretary

should be reversed and the Secretary's determination, requiring

repayment of the excess benefits received in 1962, should be

reinstated.

CARL EARDLEY,
Acting Assistant Attorney General ,

CECIL P. POOLE,
United States Attorney ,

MORTON HOLLANDER,
JACK H. WEINER,
Attorneys ,

Department of Justice ,

Washington, D.C. 2033O .

SEPTEMBER I967.
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APPENDIX





STATUTES

The Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. 402 et^ seq .. In effect

t the time In controversy, provides In pertinent part:

§ 402 Old-age and survivors Insurance benefit payments —
Old-age Insurance benefits

(a) Every Individual who —

(1) Is a ful]y Insured Individual (as defined In
section 414(a) of this title),

(2) has attained age 62, and

(3) has filed application for old-age Insurance
benefits or was entitled to disability Insurance bene-
fits for the month preceding the month In which he
attained the age of 65,

shall be entitled to an old-age Insurance benefit for
each month, beginning with the first month after
August 1950 Inv^ilch such Individual becomes so entitled
to such Insurance benefits and ending with the month
preceding the month In which he dies. Except as pro-
vided In subsection (q) of this section, such Individual's
old-age Insurance benefit for any month shall be equal
to his primary Insurance amount (as defined In section
415(a) of this title) for such month.

§ 403 Reduction of Insurance benefits — Maximum benefits

(b) Deductions on account of work.

Deductions, In such amounts and at such time
or times as the Secretary shall determine, shall be
made from any payment or payments under this sub-
chapter to which an Individual Is entitled, and
from any payment or payments to which any other per-
sons are entitled on the basis of such Individual's
wages and self-employment Income, until the total
of such deductions equals --

(1) such Individual's benefit or benefits
under section 402 of this title for any month, and

- la -



(2) If such individual was entitled to old-age
insurance benefits under section ^02(a) of this title
for such month, the benefit or benefits of all other
persons for such month under section 402 of this title
based on such individual's wages and self-employment
income.

if for such month he is charged with excess earnings,
under the provisions of subsection (f) of this section,
^qual to the total of benefits referred to in clauses
(l) and (2). If the excess earnings so charged are
less than such total of benefits, such deductions
with respect to such month shall be equal only to
the amount of such excess earnings.

(f) Months to which earnings are charged.

For purposes of subsection (b) of this section —
(l) The amount of an individual's excess

earnings (as defined in paragraph (3)) shall be
charged to months as follows j There shall be
charged to the first months of such taxable year
an amount of his excess earnings equal to the
sum of the payments to which he and all other
persons are entitled for such month under section
402 of this title on the basis of his wages and
self-employment income (or the total of his excess
earnings if such excess earnings are less than such
sum), and the balance, if any, of such excess earnings
shall be charged to each succeeding month in such
year to the extent, in the case of each such month,
of the sum of the payments to which such individual
and all other persons are entitled for such month
under section 402 of this title on the basis of
his wages and self-employment income, until the
total of such excess has been so charged. Where
an individual is entitled to benefits under
section 402(a) of this title and other persons are
entitled to benefits under section 402(b), (c), or
.(d) of this title on the basis of the wages and
self-employment income of such individual, the
excess earnings of such individual for any taxable
year shall be charged in accordance with the pro-
visions of this subsection before the excess
earnings of such persons for a taxable year are
charged to months in such individual's taxable year.
Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this
paragraph, no part of the excess earnings of an
individual shall be charged to any month (A) for
which such individual was not entitled bo a benefit



under this subchapter, (b) In which such individual
was age seventy-two or over, (C) in which such
individual, if a child entitled to child's insurance
benefits, has attained the age of l8, or (d) in which
such individia 1 did not engage in self-employment and
did not render services for wages (determined as
provided in paragraph (5) of this subsection) of
more than

(.3) For purposes of paragraph (l) and sub-
section (h) of this section, an Individual's
excess earnings for a taxable year shall be
his earnings for such year in excess of the
product of $100 multiplied by the number of
months in such year, except that of the first
$500 of such excess ( or all of such excess if
it is less than $500)* ^ri amount equal to one-
half thereof shall not be Included. The
isxcess earnings as derived mider the preceding
sentence, if not a multiple of $1, shall be
reduced to the next lower multiple of $1.

(4) For purposes of clause (d) of paragraph
(1) -

(A) An individual will be presumed,
with respect to any month, to have been
engaged in self-employment in such month
until it is shown to the satisfaction of
the Secretary that such individual rendered
no substantial services in such month with
respect to any trade or business the net
income or loss of which is includible in
computing (as provided in paragraph (5) of
this subsection) his net earnings or net
loss from self-employment for any taxable
year. The Secretary shall by regulations
prescribe the methods and criteria for
determining whether or not an Individual has
rendered substantial services with respect
to any trade or business.

(h)(1)(A) Report of eamiags to Secretary.

If an individual is entitled to any monthly
Insurance benefit under section 402 of this title
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during any taxable year in which he has earnings
or wages, as computed pursuant to paragraph (5)
of subsection (f) of this section. In excess of
the product of $100 times the number of months
In such year, such Individual (or the Individual
who is in receipt of such benefit on his behalf)
shall make a report to the Secretary of his
earnings (or wages) for such taxable year. Such
report shall be made on or before the fifteenth
day of the fourth month following the close of
such year and shall contain such information and
be made in such manner as the Secretary may by reg-
ulations prescribe. Such report need not be made
for any taxable year (i) beginning with or after
the month in which such individual attained the
age of 72, or (li) if benefit pajnnents for all
months (in such taxable year) in which such individual
is under age 72 have been suspended under the pro-
visions of the first sentence of paragraph (3)
of this subsection.

§ 4ll Definitions relating to self-employment

(e) Taxable year.

The term "taxable year" shall have the same
meaning as when used in chapter 1 of Title 26;
and the taxable year of any individual shall be
a calendar year unless he has a different taxable
year for the purposes of chapter 1 of Title 26,
in which case his taxable year for the purposes
of this subchapter shall be the same as his
taxable year under chapter 1 of Title 26.

The Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. provides in

pertinent part

:

§ 44l Period for computation of taxable Income

* * *

(b) Taxable year.

^ For purposes of this subtitle, the term
taxable year" means —

(1) The taxpayer's annual accounting period,
if it is a calendar year or a fiscal year;



(2) The calendar year, if subsection (g)
applies; or

(3) The period for which the return is made,
if a return is made for a period of less than 12
months

.

§ 443 Returns for a period of less than 12 months.

(a) Returns for short period

A return for a period of less than 12 months
(referred to in this section as '^short period")
shall be made under any of the following circumstances

(1) Change of annual accounting period.

When the taxpayer, with the approval of
the Secretary or his delegate, changes his
annual accounting period. In suc^ a case, the
return shall be made for the short period
beginning on the day after the close of the
former taxable year and ending at the close of
the day before the day designated as the first
day of the new taxable year.

(2) Taxpayer not in existence for entire
taxable year.

When the taxpayer is in existence during only
part of what would otherwise be his taxable year.

(3) Termination of taxable year for Jeopardy.

When the Secretary or his delegate terminates
the taxpayer's taxable year under section 6851
(relating to tax in Jeopardy)

,

- 5a -



Extracts from Senate Report No. 1669, 8lst Cong.,
2nd Seas., pp. 70-75- *

MAXIMUM BENEFITS

[70]Sectlon 102 of the bill replaces subsections (a), (b),
and (c) of section 203 of the present Social Security Act
with a new section 203(a). The new subsection liberalizes
the maximum amount of monthly benefits payable, for months
after the first calendar month following the month invhlch
the bill is enacted. Under the House bill, the new pro-
visions would have been effective for months a^fter 1949.

Under existing law, the benefits payable on the basis
of an individual's wages, if they exceed $20 for any month,
are reduced for such month to $85, to twice his primary
benefit, or to 80 percent of his average monthly wage, which-
ever is smallest, but not below $20. The bill increases the
figure of $85 to $150, eliminates the limitation of twice
the primary insurance benefit, and raises the figure of $20,
below which the total of benefits may not be reduced, to
$40. This result was accomplished in the House bill by
establishing a minimum average monthly wage of $50, so that
application of the 80-percent maximum could not reduce family
benefits below $40. Your committee has eliminated the pro-
vision for a minimum average monthly wage and it thus becomes
necessary to restore to the bill a specific dollar minimum
below which the operation of the maximum of 80 percent of the
average monthly wage will not reduce benefits.

Thus subsection further provides that when the beneficiary
group includes children who would be entitled to child's bene-
fits on the basis of more than one wage record (but for the
provisions concerning simultaneous entitlement to benefits in
section 202(k)(2)(A)), the total benefits payable shall be
reduced to the lesser of $150 or 80 percent of the sum of the
average monthly wages of AIL the insured individuals on whose
wage records such benefits would otherwise be payable, but
in no case to less than $^0, This provision complements the
provisions on simultaneous entitlement to benefits in para-
graphs (1) and (2) (A) of section 202(k) of the Social Security
Act as amended by the bill. Under the simultaneous entitlement
provisions all children entitled to child's insurance benefits
on the same two or more wage records would be restricted to
benefits based on only the one of such records which produces
the highest primary insurance amount. To prevent this restriction
from unduly limiting the total amount payable to children in
the same family, the above provision for combining all the wage
records, on which any of the family are entitled, for determining

* House Report No. 13OO, 8lst Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 62-65
is for the most part a repetition of the Senate Report.



;he maximum benefit was Inserted. It did not appear in the
Dill as passed by the House. It is, however, an essential
[71] companion to the changes made in existing law (and in
;he House bill) by paragraphs (l) and (2) (A) of section 202(k),

' Under the present law, the total of the family benefits
Tor a month is reduced to the maximum permitted by section 203(a)
)rior to any deductions on account of the occurence of any
;vent specified in the law (such as work for wages in excess
Df the maximum permitted). Section 203(a) as amended by the
Dill reverses this procedure and provides that the reduction
Ln the total of benefits for a month' is to be made after the
deductions. As a result, larger family benefits will be payable
Ln many cases. For example, if a worker with a primary insurance
imount of $40 and an average monthly wage of $80 dies leaving a
*idow and two children, all of whom have filed claims and are
5ntitled to benefits, the maximum of the benefits payable to these
survivors for any month is $64 (80 percent of $80) . Prior to
:he application of the maximum, the widow would be entitled to a
Denefit of $30 and each child to a benefit of $25 (three-fourths
Df the primary insurance amount for the widow and one-half of such
imount for each child, with an additional one-fourth of such amount
divided, equally between the two children). Under the procedure
Ln existing law, these amounts would be reduced to $24 for the
vidow and $20 for each child (so as to total $64). The reduction
Ln these amounts applies even though one beneficiary, such as the
*idow, suffers a loss of her benefit because she earns more than
:he permitted amount for services in covered employment. Under
section 203(a) as amended by the bill, the maximum wouLd be applied
for any month after any deductions for that month so that, where
bhe widow works as in the above case, each child would receive the
full $25.

!

The bill eliminates as unnecessary the present provision of
section 203(b) that benefits payable on any wage record shall not
3e less! than $10. per month. Since the bill establishes a minimum
primary insurance amount of $20 in any case where the average
nonthly wage is less than $34, the minimum benefit payable on such
*age record is $10 if the only benefit payable is a parent's benefit
and $15 in- the case of any other single survivor benefit payable
Dn such wage record; in the case where the average monthly wage
is $34 or more, corresponding figures are $12.50 and $18.75^
respectively. The provision of the existing section 203(c) under
(Jhich each benefit, except the old-age insurance benefit, is
proportionately decreased when there is a decnease in the total
family benefits is transferred by the fill (as was true in the
3ase of the House bill) to section 203(a).
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Except for the combination of wage records for purposes of
the family maximum In cases of children entitled to more than
one wage record, which did not appear In the bill as passed by
the House, and for the change In effective dates, the bill as
reported by your committee and the House bill are the same on
this matter.

DEDUCTIONS PRCM BENEFITS

Section 103 of the bill revises rather extensively the
provisions of the present Social Security Act relating to
deductions from benefits. Subsections (d), (e), (f), (g),
and (h) of section 203 of the present act are replaced by sub-
sections (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (1), and (j) of
section 203 of the amended act.

[72] Deductions from dependents' benefits because of
work by old-age beneficiary

Section 203(c) provides for the making of deductions
from dependents' benefits for any month In which the old-age
beneficiary suffers a deduction with respect to his own benefit
Paragraph (l) of this subsection, which is similar to existing
law, provides that deductions from a wife's, husband's, or
child's benefits are to be made for months in which the old-age
beneficiary suffers a deduction under section 203(b)(1) (which
relates to the rendition of services for wages of more than
$50). Paragraph (2) adds a comparable provision so as to
deduct a wife's, husband's, or chlM's benefit for months in
which t3ie old-age beneficiary suffers a deduction under section
203(b)(2) (which relates to the charging to a month of net
earnings from self-employment of more than $50)

.

Occurrence of more than one event

The first sentence of section 203(d), which is similar
to present law, provides that if more than one of the events
specified in subsections (b) and (c) of section 203 occurs in
any month, which would occasion deductions equal to a benefit
for such month, only an amount equal to such benefit is to be
deducted. The decond sentence provides that the charging of net
earnings from self-employment to any month shall be treated as
an event occurring in the month to which such net earnings are
charged

.

Months to which net earnings from self-employment
are charged

Section 203(e) provides the method for charging net earnings
from self-employment to particular months of the taxable year
for the purposes of determining the deductions required under the
provisions of sections 203(b)(2) and 203(c)(2),

ll



Paragraph (l) provides that if an individual's net earnings
from self-employment for the taxable year are not more than the
produce of $50 times the number of months in such year, no month
in such year is to be charged with more than $50 of net earnings
from self-employment. Thus, if an individual has net earnings
from self-employment of less than $600 (for a taxable year of
12 months) no deduction would be imposed under section 203(b)(2)
or 203(c)(2) even though all of the net earnings from self-
employment may have been earned during a period of a f,ew months
in such year at a rate in excess of $50 per month.

Paraga?aph (2) provides the method for determining the months
of a taxable year to be charged with net earnings from self-
employment in the case of an individual whose net earnings from
self-employment for his taxable year exceed the product of $50
times the number of months of such year. In this case, each
month of the year is first to be charged with $50 of net earnings
from self-employment, then the amount of net earnings in excess
of the produce is to be charged in units of $50, beginning with
the last month of the taxable year and progressing toward the first
month of the taxable year. The paragraph provides further that
no part of the excess net earnings from self-employment is to be
charged to any month in which the individual was not entitled to
a benefit under title II; in Which an event described in para-
graph (l), (3), or (4) of section 203(b) occurred; in which the
individual was age 75 or over; or in which the individual did not
engage in self-employment

.

In connection with the charging of the excess, it should be
noted that, in the case of an excess amount of net earnings which
is not divisible by $50, it is possible to charge a unit of excess
which is less than $50. For example, an individual who has a
full 12-month taxable year and has net earnings from self-employ-
ment of $651 would have two units of excess net earnings from
self-employment, one of $50 and one of $1, and would thus be
potentially subject to deductions for 2 months of the year.

Generally, the taxable year of an individual will be a
calendar year, or a fiscal year, containing 12 months. The most
common case of a [jH] taxable year of less than 12 months will
occur by reason of the death of a beneficiary. If, for example,
a beneficiary having a taxable year which is a calendar year should
die on June 2, his taxable year for the year of his death would
begin on January 1 and end on June 2. If his net earnings from
self-employment for the short taxable year are not more than
$300 ($50 times 6 months), no month in such taxable year would
be charged with more than $50. If his net earnings from self-
employment for such year exceed $300, paragraph (2) of subsection
(e) would be applicable in determining whether deductions from
benefits are to be made.
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The months to which the excess net earnings from self-
employment may not be charged include those during which the
individual performed services for wages of more than $50, and
those during which an individual under retirement age drawing
benefits as a widow or former wife divorced did not have a
child in her care. These provisions prevent the charging of
the excess to months for which a deduction has already been
imposed. The excess net earnings from self-employment are
not to be charged to months during which the beneficiary was
age 75 or over, because no deductions are imposed for such
months. These provisions and the provision that the excess
net earnings from self-employment may not be charged to months
during which the individual was not entitled to benefits under
this title prevent the dissipation of the excess net earnings
from self-eraplo3rment through charging them to months for which
deductions may not be imposed.

It should be noted that a deduction for a particular
month may be imposed under section 203(b)(2) by reason of an
individual's net earnings from self-employment for the taxable
year even though the individual, as a matter of fact, may not
have earned $50 from his trade or business in that particular
month. For example, if an individual entitled to old-age
insurance benefits engaged throughout the taxable year in
business as a real-estate broker and earned more than $lil50
for the entire year^ he will suffer a deduction under section
203(b)(2) for each month of the year even though during several
months of the year he may have operated at a loss through an
inability to negotiate any sales in those months

.

The following example will illustrate the charging to
months of net earnings from self-empl03nment for the purposes
of paragraph (2) of section 203(e). Beneficiary X, who was
entitled to old-age insurance benefits during the entire year
and was under 72 years of age, owned and actively operated a
fruit stand during the entire year. His net earnings from the
business amounted to $7^0. During the month of December he
worked a few hours a day as an employee at a store in con-
nection with the Christmas trade, and received wages therefor
in excess of $50. Under paragraph (2), each month of the year
would be charged with $50, and the excess ($l40) would be
charged as follows; $50 to November, $50 to October, and
$40 to September. The month of December, for which a deduction
would be imposed under section 203(b)(1) by reason of wages
earned in excess of $50, would not be charged with any part
of the $l4o excess. Beneficiary X^ therefore, would suffer
deductions under section 203(b)(2) for the months of Septem-
ber, October, and November, since more than $50 of netJ earnings
from self-employment is charged to each of those months.
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[75] The individual is to be given an opportunity to
show that he did not render substantial services with respect
to any trade or business during certain months of the year.
In tbat case, the excess net earnings from self-employment are
not to be charged to those months but are to be charged to any
other months during which he did render substantial services,
and to which the charging of the excess is not prohibited by
paragraph (2) . Thus, benefit deductions would be imposed for
any month, as a result of the self-employment of a beneficiary,
only when the beneficiary both had substantial net earnings
from self-employment in the yeaf and rendered substantial
servides in a trade or business in that month.

Paragraph (3) (A) defines the term "last month of such
taxable year as the last calendar month of the taxable year
to which the charging of net earnings from self-employment in
excess of the exempt amount is not prohibited under paragraph
(2). An application of the function of paragraph (3)(A)
is shown by the following example: John, who attained l8
years of age in July 19^0, was entitled to child's insurance
benefits for the months of January through June of that year.
In May he started a radio repair business, and from May
through December he had net earnings of $900. In applying
paragraph (2), each month of the entire year would be charged
with $50 of the net earnings and the excess ($300) would be
charged as follows: $50 to June, and $50 to May; the remainder
amounting to $200 would be disregarded (in any event, it could
be charted only to May and June and would then have no effect
since the charging already done would result in no benefits
being, paid for those months anyhow) , The month of June is
considered as the last month of the taxable year, for the
purposes of paragraph (2), since John was not entitled to
child's insurance benefits for months after June. No part
of the $300 excess woUld be charged to months prior to May,
since John was not engaged in self-employment for any months
prior to May.

_ na _
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REPLY BRIEF FOR APPELLEES

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT,

. The jurisdiction of this court is based upon U. S. Const. Art. IE,

S 1 and § 2, and upon/U. S. C. 1291, and 42 U. S. C. 403 (f) (1) and 405 (g),

and is predicated upon precisely the pleadings, facts and procedural circum-

stances set forth in the Opening "Brief And Appendix For Appellant" herein,

[pp. 1 and 2).

i

• STATEMENT OF CASE AND ONLY ISSUE

Appellant's statement of case, (pp. 2-5) is correct but insufficiently

sets forth the statutory provisions involved. The only issue is whether

;hese provisions of the Social Security Act mean precisely what they say,

Ito-wit:-

" Where an individual is entitled to benefits under

section 402(a) of this title on the basis of self-

employment income of such individual, the excess earn-

ings of such individual for any taxable year shall be

charged in accordance with the provisions of this sub-

section before the excess earnings of such persons for a

taxable year are charged to months in such individual's

taxable year. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions

of this paragraph, no part of the excess earnings of an

individual shall be charged to any month -in which such

individual was age seventy-two or over . (403(f) (i)).

an individual's excess earnings for a taxable year

shall be his earnings for such year in excess of the product
^^

of $100 multiplied by the number of months in such year

(403(f) (3), prior to its amendment July 30, 1965.))
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"if an individual is entitled to any monthly-insurance
benefits during any taxable year in which he has
earnings such individual shall make a report
to the secretary of his earning for such taxable year.

Such report need not be made for any taxable year
beginning with or after the month in which such individual

attained the af^e of 72.
"

(403)(h)(l )(A) (Emphasis in each
instance added.))

According to each of these provisions there would appear to be no

,
ambiguity on the following four points:

-

'

(1) "no part of excess earning of an individual shall be charged

to any one month in which such individual was age seventy-two or over", -

"Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this paragraph" ;

(1)

(2) the "preceding provisions" of paragraph 403(f)/were thereby

superceded, (if in any wise inconsistent with the foregoing specific exceptions),

which would include the provisions, i. e., - "the excess earning of such in-

dividual Jbr_arr^;_ta^£aMe_j^^ar shall be charged before the excess earnings

.are charged to months in such individual's taxable year", and it would

also supercede any conflicting portions of said section 402(a), and of other

(D),
"provisions of this subsection"- (403(f)/ incorporated therein by reference.

Said section 402(a) also incorporates section 415(a), subject to subsections

415(b), (c), and (d) thereof, by reference. Section 411 of said Act is by its

own provisions made applicable to Section 403(f), and to all other sections

and paragraphs of the Social Security Act, (as claimed by appellant), and

therefore is subject to the foregoing clause, "notwithstanding the preceding

provisions of this paragraph";

(3) "excess earnings for a taxable year shall be excess of the

product of $100 multiplied by the number of months in such year", thereby

clearly implying that such "number of months in such year" could be less than

twelve months,since a year could never be more than twelve months; and.





(4) "Such report need not be made for any taxable year beginning

with or after the month such individual attained the age of 72 ,"

Appellant's brief contains no discussion of these statutory provisions.

Upon what basis, then, does appellant claim that he can charge the excess

.earnings for any months after the "individual attained the age of 72", in

I

computing the "excess earnings for any taxable year" in which said 72nd

age was attained? He alleges two bases.

i

^'

APPELLANT CLAIMS THAT A TWELVE
MONTHS' "TAXABLE YEAR" NECESSARILY
APPLIES, AS DEFINED IN THE INTERNAL
REVENUE CODE, SINCE SAID CODE DOES NOT
PURPORT TO INVOLVE ANY SUCH EXCEPTION
AFTER AGE 72, AS DOES THE SOCIAL SECURITY
ACT.

The appellant's brief correctly claims that the Social Security Act

and the preceding provisions of Section 403(f) (1), do contain conditions to

which the exception in the year of appelle's 72nd birthday requires a "not-

withstanding" clause. Appellant states that the Act:-

"expressly incorporates the definition of taxable year
contained in the Internal Revenue Code" (p. 8), to-wit:-
"42 U.S.C. 411(e) (App. 4a), expressly defines the term
'taxable year' to have the 'same meaning' as when used
in the Internal Revenue Code and that 'the taxable year of
any individual shall be a calendar year' [except that]

under the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. 441(b) (3),

26 U.S.C, 443, returns can be made for periods of less
than twelve months only in specified enumerated cir-
cumstances." (p. 10). (See also, p. 4).

The Internal Revenue Code thus enumerates three circumstances in

which less than twelve months represented a "taxable year" for purposes of

that code. These are listed by appellant, and naturally do not include the

fourth set of circumstances which were expressly only applicable to the Social

Security Act, but also recognize less than 12 months for a "taxable year".

This fourth exception in the latter Act was set forth after the "Notwithstanding





otherwise
of this paragraph" of this latter Act, which was/necessarily dependent on

said Section 411 thereof, incorporating this provision of the Internal Revenue

Act by reference.

Said Section 411, entitled "Definitions relating to self-employment",

expressly provides in its opening sentence that certain definitions shall apply -

"For the purposes of this subchapter - (which is "Subchapter II" entitled:

"Federal Old Age, Survivors And Disability Insurance Benefits", to-wit,

the Social Security Act.) Thus, Section 411 furnishes definitions that are

applicable to all sections of the Social Security Act , Title 42, from 401

through 428 Inclusive, - as well as to a number of additional sections - there-

by necessarily including sections 402, 403, 411 and 415. Said sub-section 411

by its said introductory clause, became a part of every other section of the

act, including the following:- "For the purpose of this subchapter - The term

taxable year shall have the same meaning as when used in chapter 1 of Title 26"

of the Internal Revenue Code, which brought this definition within the limi-

tation of said "Notwithstanding-the preceding provisions" clause of 40 3(f)(1).

It will be noted that this definition would clearly and precisely apply, with

no "Notwithstanding" limitation, to those six "taxable years" of the tax paying

that of
individual following/his 65th birthday and preceding the year of his 72nd

birthday. Only those two years in which the 65th birthday and the 72nd

birthday occurred would constitute taxable years of less than 12 months each,

under 403(f)(1)(B). -

Appellant has cited no legal precedent, nor have we found any, that

upholds his contention for utilizing excess earnings received for a full twelve
in an individual's 72nd year,

months' year, /or that sustains the Social Security Administration's regulation

1813 to like effect. (This Regulation is set forth in Tr. 64, 67, and App. Brief

pp. 6 and 11.) The Social Security Act, under its "Nothwithstanding" clause





(last sentence of Sec. 403(f)(1), has merely added four additional situations

(designated (A), (B), (C) and (D)), to the three situations theretofore con-

tained in the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 441(b) (3) and 443)), recognized

in appellant's brief (p. 4 and footnote p. 10), where the "taxable year " is

recognized as consisting of less than twelve months in these situations.

We are here only concerned with situation (B), added by the Security Act,

forbidding that any "excess earnings shall be added to any month (B)

in which such individual was age seventy-two or over". The Social Security

Act covers many situations never contemplated by the Internal Revenue Code

requiring special provisions. While it adopts the definition of "taxable year"

contained in the R evenue Code applicable to most situations, the Security

Act nevertheless covered additional exceptions thereto, as provided for in

Sec. 403 (f) (1), under its "Notwithstanding" sentence. Otherwise, why should

the Social Security Act have also added the further provision that the taxed

individual "need not" report his "earnings for any taxable year

beginning with or after the month in which such individual attained the age

of 72" (403(h) (1) (A)? Why should a report for these latter months be waived

if the Administration was required to include ihem for the full twelve months

of that year in its computations? Appellant does not answer these questions.

-5
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II.

APPELLANT INCORRECTLY STATES THAT DISTRICT
COURT'S DECISION RECOGNIZED THAT APPELLANT'S
PAST CONSTRUCTION OF THIS STATUTE HAD BEEN
REASONABLE, AS APPELLANT'S QUOTATION FROM
SAID DECISION CONTAINED NO SUCH RECOGNITION.

The District Court's decision did declare as follows:

-

The statute is ambiguous at best. It is possible to

construe it as the Administration has, if great em-
phasis is placed on "taxable year" as a word of art.

However, this construction is contrary to one of

the purposes of the act, which is to allow claimants
to earn as much as they desire without deduction from
their benefits after the age of 72. Further, the wording
of that part of paragraph 403(f)(3), which states;

"the product of $100 multiplied by the number of months
in such year "is significant. Since there are always
twelve months in a year, this provision would be mere
surplusage if not intended to reduce the length of the

taxable year when a claimant is not subject to the pro-
vision for the entire year. If the position of the Secretary
is correct, it would seem for example, that where a
claimant had substantial income early in the taxable
year in which he became sixty-five and made initial

application for benefits under the old-age provisions
of the act, that his previous earnings before submitting
a claim would logically be used to eliminate payments in

that year. Yet, in this very case there is no evidence
that this factor was considered when Mr. Sloane applied
for and received full benefits as of July, 1955, when he
reached the age of sixty -five! (Emphasis, the court's.
Decision pgs. 6 & 7.)

This statement of Judge Zirpoli is a far cry from the declaration by

appellant that the District Court had thereby admitted that the Administration's

present interpretation "is quite clearly a reasonable interpretation", which

courts may therefore respect", (as appellant applies these quoted words

from the decision in Udall v Tallman (380 U.S. 1, 4, 16.)) This latter de-

cision is the only case cited by appellant in his brief. Judge Zirpoli in his

above decision did not adopt the language of the Udall decision to the effect

that the administrative "interpretation may not be the only one permitted

by the language of the order" nor that it was "a reasonable interpretation".

(App. Brief, p. 14, also cited on p. 9.) These words are very different





from those of Judge Zirpoli, (even as quoted by appellant, pp. 13, 14 ) and

do not justify the following argument of appellant:

-

"indeed, as the district court itself recognized, 'It

is possible to construe [the law] as the Administration
has', since this construction 'is consistent with the use
of the income tax returns to check the earnings of claim-
ants during a taxable year '. (R 26). In these circum-
stances, where the district court itself recognized that

the administrative interpretation was reasonable , the
district court, we submit, should not have substituted

II

its own interpretation for that of the administration's.'"
(Emphasis added.)

It will here be noted that appellant has here incorrectly inferred that

Judge Zirpoli meant "reasonable", where he used the word "possible".

The words are not interchangeable. Many interpretations are "possible",

"that are not "reasonable". The court's detailed explanation of the reasons

for its interpretation would have been meaningless if it had not intended to

show wherein the Administration's interpretation was unreasonable.

III.

A SPECIAL PROVISION OF A STATUTE RELATING
TO A GENERAL SUBJECT GOVERNS IN RESPECT
TO THAT SUBJECT.

This is the situation here. California Jurisprudence (45 Cal. Jur.

2d, page 628, Sec. 119 of "Statutes", notes 17-20 inclusive) sets forth this

principle:

"if possible, effect should be given to both general
and special provisions of a statute. Phrases used in

the statute must be construed in connection with others,
with which they are associated, and particular expressions
qualify general. If they are inconsistent and cannot be
reconciled, a general provision is controlled by a
special provision that is treated as an exception to the
general provision. Hence a specific provision relating
to a particular subject will govern with respect to that

subject, as against a general provision, though the latter

standing alone would be broad enough to include the

subject. And where two provisions treat a matter, one

-7-
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specially and solely and the other merely incident-

ally, the former will prevail."

Zajicek v Koolvent Metal Awning Corp. 283 F2d 127; holding:

"specific language controls general."

See also:- Long Beach City Sch. Dist. v Payne, 219 C 598, 28 P 2d 663,

Rose"v State , 19 C 2d 713, 123P2d5Q5;
People V Wood, 161 CA2d_0J±__, 325 P 2d 1014;

C.C.P. Sec. 1859 provides:

-

"when a general and particular provision are in-

consistent, the latter is paramo int to the former.
So a particular intent will control a general one
that is inconsistent with it."

The same principle is consistently applied throughout the Federal

Courts:

-

Korte V U. S . (Cal.) 266 F2d 633, Certiorari denied 358 U.S. 928,

79 S. Ct. 318;

Bradford Nov. Co. v Manheim (N. Y.) 156 Fed Supp 489;

U. S. V Mattio (Cal.) 17 F. 2d 879;

Aaron v U. S. (Oak.) 204 F 943, 123 CCA 265;

Rodger V U. S., 36 Ct. CI. 266, Affmd.(1902) 22 S.Ct. 582;

185 U. S. 83.

The implication from a proviso in a statute is that any proceeding not

covered by the exception is to be subject to the rule.

Geo. Moorelce Cream Co. v Rose , 289 U.S. 373, 53 S.Ct. 522

77 L. ed. 1265.

'We therefore respectfully submit that neither of appellant's grounds

can be accepted for ignoring the "notwithstanding" exceptions in the Social

Security Act wherein a "taxable year" of less than 12 months is recognized,

whereas otherwise the 12 months requirement for a "taxable year " is applied,

even as other exceptions are allowed under the Internal Revenue Code.

November_2a_, 1967. fox.! g-^ JlrTZv^
Paul E. Sloane
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No. 21,953

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Standakd Oil Company of California,

Western Operations, Inc.,

Petitioner,

vs.

National Labor Relations Board,

Resxtondent.

PETITIONER'S OPENING BRIEF

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is a proceeding to review an order of the National

Labor Relations Board holding tliat petitioner (Standard

Oil Company of California, Western Operations, Inc.)

violated sections 8(a)(5) and 8(a)(1) of the Labor Man-

agement Relations Act (61 Stat. 136, 141, 29 U.S.C.

158(a)(5) and 158(a) (1))^ by refusing to furnish home

addresses of employees represented by a labor union (Oil,

Chemical and Atomic Workers International Union, Rich-

mond, California, Local 1-561, AFL-CIO) upon the re-

quest of that union.

The decision and order of the National Labor Relations

Board (R. Vol. I, pp. 28-40) was issued on June 30, 1967,

1 These and other relevant provisions of that Act are printed in

Appendix A hereto.



and the petition for review (R. Vol. I, pp. 41-45) was

filed on July 5, 1967.

Petitioner operates an oil refinery at Richmond, Cali-

fornia (R. Vol. I, p. 29). The acts which the Board held

to constitute unfair lahor practices occurred in the State

of California (R, Vol. I, pp. 29-33; General Counsel's Ex-

hibits 3, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11).

This Court has jurisdiction under section 10(f) of the

Labor Management Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat.

136, 148-149; 72 Stat. 941, 946; 29 U.S.C. 160(f)).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Standard Oil Company of California, Western Opera-

tions, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Company"),

is engaged in the refining and sale of petroleum and

l^etroleum products, including the operation of a refinery

at Richmond, California, where it employs aj^proximately

2600 persons (R. Vol. I, pp. 15, 29). Oil, Chemical and

Atomic Workers International Union, Richmond, Cali-

fornia, Local 1-561, AFL-CIO (hereinafter referred to as

"the Union") represents approximately 1500 production

and maintenance employees, about 50 per cent of whom

are members of the Union (Vol. I, p. 29).

During the period involved in the instant case, the

relations between the LTnion and the Company were gov-

erned by a collective bargaining agreement (General

Counsel's Exhibit 2) signed on March 10, 1965 (ibid., p.

52). That agreement, which went into effect on February

15, 1965, provided it would be renewed annually in the

absence of written notice of termination (ibid., Article 2,



jD. 2). No such notice having been served, the agreement

remained in effect until February 15, 1967 (R. Vol. II, pp.

14-15, 229-230).

The agreement provides, inter alia, for maintenance of

Union membersliip mth an opportunity for members to

withdraw from the Union on specified terms (General

Counsel's Exhibit 2, Article 3, p. 3), the furnishing of

seniority lists to the Union (ibid., Article 8, pp. 8-10),

representation of employees by Union stewards in each

unit (ibid.. Article 19, pp. 46-48), and the furnishing by

the Company, upon application by the Union, of appro-

priate locations for Union bulletin boards (ibid.. Article

24, p. 50).

It is a long-standing Company policy, followed without

deviation, not to give out the home addresses of em-

ployees (R. Vol. II, p. 225).

This case arises out of a letter dated April 5, 1965,

from Victor J. Van Bourg, an attorney for the Union,

to William L. Diedrich, Jr., an attorney for the Com-

pany (General Counsel's Exliibit 3). Mr. Van Bourg 's

letter referred to employee orientation programs for

j

newly hired employees, in the course of which unions

are discussed. The letter requested "a complete list of

all of the employees at Standard Oil Refinery in Rich-

mond with the names, addresses and social security num-

ber, if possible, so that the Union at least can counter

the company propaganda by mass mailing." No other

reason for the Union's requesting the subject information

was given (ibid.). T. M. Sheehy, General Manager of the

Company's Richmond Refinery, on April 15, 1965, wrote

the Union in reply to Mr. Van Bourg 's letter that the



Company had just given the Union a seniority list on

April 8, 19G5, which showed the name of each employee

represented by the Union and that the Company was not

willing to provide the Union with home addresses of its

employees (General Comisel's Exliibit 6).

On the same date as Sheehy's letter to the Union, April

15, 1965, Mr. Van Bourg addressed a second letter to Mr.

Diedrich (General Counsel's Exhibit 7). This letter re-

ferred to a fifty-page orientation booklet entitled "You

and your Company" and expressed Mr. Van Bourg 's ob-

jections to a statement therein that union representation is

not necessary for employees to enjoy fair treatment and

good working conditions (General Counsel's Exhibit 7).-

-The portion of the booklet objected to by Mr. Van Bourg was
as follows:

"What about unions
"On the pi"eeeding pages of this booldet, we've tried to

cover, in a general way, the many policies and programs de-

veloped by your Company's management to assure you fair

treatment and to provide a rewarding career.

"We sincerely believe that good employee relations can be
maintained and essential employee needs fvdfilled through
sound management administration, without the necessity of

union organization and representation. Your Company's
wages, hours, and working conditions are among the best in

industiy, and its employee relations policies are designed to

promote fair play and mutual respect. Policies like these are
essential for 43,000 people to work together effectively. This
also requires a great deal of cooperation and understanding,
and a health}^ regard for the rights of others.

"As for union membership, it is your Company's belief

that representation by an outside organization is not neces-

sary in order for employees to enjoy fair treatment and good
working conditions. However, this is something that all em-
ployees should decide for themselves after careful considera-

tion of all the facts. While your Company recognizes your
right to join a union, it does not believe that you should be
forced to join a union as a condition of employment and is

opposed to all forms of compulsorv unionism" (Ucneral
Counsel's Exhibit 13, pp. 31-32).

The Board found that the Company "was of course privileged

thus to express its views" (R. Vol. I, p. 36).



Mr. Van Bourg further stated that he had been advised

that this booklet had been sent to Company employees by

mail and requested, on behalf of the Union "a complete

mailing list of Standard Oil employees so that we may

send them counter documentation and statements" (Gen-

eral Counsel's Exhibit 7). No other reason was given for

the Union's request for the home addresses of Company

employees.

Mr. Diedrich replied in a letter dated April 26, 1965,

that he had advised the Company that the statements in

the booklet "You and your Company" were well mthin

the Company's right of free speech and further stated that

the Union had just been given a complete seniority list

which fulfilled the Company's contractual and legal obliga-

tions (General Counsel's Exhibit 8).

Neither of the foregoing requests for the home ad-

dresses was limited to the home addresses of the em-

ployees in the unit represented by the Union; they

requested the home addresses of "all of the employees at

Standard Oil Refinery in Richmond" (General Counsel's

Exliibit 3) and "a complete mailing list of Standard Oil

employees" (General Counsel's Exhibit 7). Of the ap-

proximately 2,600 production and maintenance and office

employees at the Richmond Refinery, only about 1,500 are

represented by the Union (R. Vol. II, pp. 33-34).

On May 12, 1965, the Company initiated interim nego-

tiations during the term of the existing collective bargain-

ing agreement by making a proposal to change certain

benefit plans referred to in the collective bargaining

agreement between the Union and the Company (R. Vol.

n, pp. 43-44). These negotiations began on May 20,



1965, and were successfully concluded near the end of

July 1965 (R. Vol. II, p. 41). At no time during the

negotiations did the Union request the Company, either

orally or in writing, to supply it with the home addresses

of the employees in the bargaining unit (R. Vol. II, pp.

44, 214, 219).

On June 21, 1965, the Company mailed an informational

letter (General Counsel's Exliibit 15) to bargaining unit

employees outlining the benefit plan changes proposed by

the Company, and advising the employees of the current

status of the negotiations (R. Vol. II, pp. 41-42).

There was no further request for employees' names and

home addresses after the Union's letters dated April 5

and April 15, 1965 (General Counsel's Exliibits 3, 7) until

March 8, 1966, almost one year later. Mr. Van Bourg, the

Union's attorney, on that date wrote Mr. Diedrich, the

Company's attorney, this time requesting that the Com-

pany furnish the Union the names and addresses of the

employees '*in the collective bargaining unit" (General

Counsel's Exhibit 10). The letter states no reason for the

request.

On March 16, 1966, Mr. Diedrich again wrote Mr. Van

Bourg stating that the Company was unwilling to provide

home addresses of employees, but would continue to

furnish the Union with a seniority list in accordance with

the terms of the collective bargaining agreement (General

Counsel's Exliibit 11). Accordingly, by letter dated March

25, 1966 (Respondent's Exliibit 4), and mailed on or

about that date, the Comijany sent to the Union copies of

the seniority list as of January 15, 1966 (R. Vol. II, pp.

201-202). As the Board found, the delays occurred



in the delivery of this and other recent lists because the

Company "had some difficulty while switching compilation

of the lists to a computer" (R. Vol. I, p. 31).

On June 28, 1965, tlie Union filed a charge against the

Company with the National Labor Relations Board (R.

Vol. I, p. 3) on the ground that the Company "refuses

to give the Union the list of the names and addresses of

employees in the bargaining unit so that the Union can

send out a mailing to counter Company propaganda" (R.

Vol. I, p. 4). The Union, on May 5, 1966, filed an amended

charge which asserted that the Company "has refused and

continues to refuse to bargain collectively in good faith

with the Union * * * in that it refuses to furnish the names

and addresses of its employees to the aforementioned

union" and asserted that such conduct violates sections

8(a)(1) and (5) of the National Labor Relations Act (R.

Vol. I, p. 5).

Subsequently, the Board issued a complaint against the

Company (R. Vol. I, pp. 6-9) charging the Company with

refusing to bargain collectively with the L^nion by not

making available to the L'nion the names and addresses

of the employees in the unit represented by the LTnion

(R. Vol. I, p. 8, pars. IX and X). The Company an-

swered, admitting the Union's ]-e(|uests and the Com-

pany's refusal to furnish addresses, but denying that it

refused to furnish the names of employees or that the

Company refused to bargain with the Union (R. Vol. I,

pp. 12-13).

A hearing was held before the trial examiner on July

7 and 8, 1966 (R. Vol. II). On November 2, 1966, the

examiner issued his decision (R, Vol. 1, pp. 15-18) in



wliicli he found that the only reason that the Union had

requested the addresses of Company employees was for

the purpose of mailing out propaganda (ibid., p. 16)

;

that there was no issue presented in the case of the good

faith of the Company (ibid., pp. 16-17), and no showing

that the Union sought the employees' addresses in con-

nection with negotiations or the administration of collec-

tive bargaining agreements (ibid., p. 18). For these rea-

sons, he recoimnended that the complaint be dismissed.

Exceptions were filed by the General Counsel (R. Vol.

I, pp. 19-21) and by the Union (R. Vol. I, pp. 22-26), and

the Board, through a three-member panel, reviewed the

examiner's decision and, one member dissenting, rejected

his conclusion of law (R. Vol. I, pp. 28-39). The majority

of the panel disagreed with the findings of the examiner

with respect to the relevance of the requested information

to the Union's bargaining and contract administration re-

sponsibilities and ruled that the allegations in the com-

plaint (filed by the Board's General Counsel after the

Union's charges had been filed) that a list of addresses

was "relevant to collective bargaining" constituted a

request on behalf of the Union for the addresses in con-

nection with bargaining (R. Vol. I, p. 33). The majority

adopted the findings of the trial examiner to the extent

they were consistent Avith their determinations; in this

respect, they did not reject the trial examiner's determina-

tion that there was no showing of bad faith on the part of

the Company (R. Vol. T, p. 28). They concluded that:

"In this case the relevance of the unit employees'

address list is apparent from a comparison of the

Union's statutory duty of fair representation with

the difficulties it faced in attempting to reach those



to whom it owed such duty. The Union's duty ex-

tends to non-union unit employees as well as to union

members. Because of the relatively low union mem-
bership in the unit, the absence of a union-security

clause in the collective-bargaining agreement, the resi-

dential dispersion of unit employees * * *, the ap-

parent ineffectiveness of the steward system, the lack

of adequate exposure of unit employees to union bul-

letin boards, and the inefficiency of handbilling efforts,

the Union could not in any effective manner com-

municate with the beneficiaries of its statutory

obligation. On the other hand, the possession of an

address list would enable the Union to poll the unit

employees as to their preferences and priorities in

contract negotiations, their experience and recom-

mendations with respect to the operation of the

grievance-arbitration machinery, and their thoughts

on the wisdom of striking over a particular issue"

(R. Vol. I, pp. 34-35).

*****
"The company appeals, which the Union desired to

answer, sought to persuade employees that union

representation was not needed by them to assure fair

treatment and working conditions. Respondent [the

Company] was of course privileged thus to express its

view. But the Union was justified in inferring that

Respondent's purpose was to weaken employee sup-

port of the Union and thereby to reduce, if not indeed

to destroy, the Union's strength and effectiveness as

a bargaining agent. The Union, therefore, iu the dis-

charge of its representative responsibilities to all

employees in the unit whom it was statutorily re-

quired to serve, had a legitimate interest in respond-

ing to Respondent's arguments by communicating to

the unit employees its side of the bargaining story
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—to attempt to sliow, for example, why the em-

ployees needed the Union, how the Union had served

them in the past and how it might in the future, why
its contract administration actions and its bargain-

ing proposals deserved their backing, and why it was
in the employees' interest to provide membership and

other support to their bargaining agent. But in order

to be able effectually to counter Respondent's re-

peated statement of views, the Union needed first to

know which employees were in the bargaining unit

and where they could be reached. As the full infor-

mation thus required lay exclusively in Respondent's

possession, and was not otherwise available to the

Union for reasons earlier stated, the Union had a

right to demand this information from Respondent,

and Respondent, we hold, had a correlative obligation

to furnish it" (R. Vol. I, p. 36).

The dissenting member of the panel pointed out that

"The Union's request for the list of employees'

names and addresses was based solely on its desire to

'counter the company propaganda.' The Union's

stated reason thus negates any suggestion that the

list was sought for bargaining purposes. My col-

leagues apparently rely on the allegation in the

complaint to the effect that the list was requested

'because it was relevant to collective bargaining' as

supplying the essential ingredient to a violation of

the Act. But the General Counsel's post hoc ration-

alization scarcely suffices, in my opinion, to give the

Union a reason it did not advance, and which was
not before the Respondent when it refused the

Union's request. Indeed, the Respondent does not

claim that such a list is never required to be fur-

nished, only that on the facts here it was not sought

for bargaining purposes" (R. Vol. I, p. 39).
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SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

The National Labor Relations Board erred in requiring

the Company to furnish home addresses of its employees

to the Union as part of the Company's duty to bargain in

good faith pursuant to section 8(a)(5) of the Labor Man-

agement Relations Act in that

(1) Such addresses are not data necessary to nego-

tiating or administering collective bargaining

agreements

;

(2) The Union did not re(iuest the home addresses

for bargaining purposes but for the purpose of

contacting the employees in order to strengthen

the position of the Union

;

(3) The decision of the Board interferes with the

relative bargaining power of the employer and

the union by requiring acts by the employer de-

signed to strengthen the imion in violation of

national labor policy, as expressed in sections

8(d) and 8(a) (2) of the Labor Management Rela-

tions Act.

ARGUMENT
I. THE DUTY OF AN EMPLOYER TO BARGAIN IN GOOD

FAITH DOES NOT REQUIRE IT TO SUPPLY THE UNION
WITH THE HOME ADDRESSES OF ITS EMPLOYEES.

There is no independent duty on the part of an em-

ployer to supply information to a union. Such duty as

the employer may have to supply information must arise

under the provisions of the Labor Management Relations

Act. In the case at bar, the National Labor Relations

Board based its determination that the Company is re-

quired to supply addresses of its employees to the Union
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upon section 8(a)(5) of the Act which requires the Com-

pany to bargain in good faith. In so doing, however, the

Board has extended the duty to supply information be-

yond the requirements of good-faith bargaining.

Information which an employer must give the union is

data which is required in order to permit an intelli-

gent discussion of the issues between the negotiating'

parties. The Supreme Court noted, in Labor Board v.

Truitt Mfg. Co. (1956) 351 U.S. 149, 152, that '' Section

204(a)(1) of the Act admonishes both employers and

employees to 'exert every reasonable effort to make and

maintain agreements.' " This is what is meant by good-

faith bargaining {N.L.R.B. v. Western Wireboimd Box Co.

(9 Cir. 1966) 356 F.2d 88, 92). It is on the basis of this

obligation that employers are required to furnisli informa-

tion to unions which is
'

' so necesisary to effective negotia-

tions that withholding it without good reason was incon-

sistent with the duty to 'exert every reasonable effort to

make and maintain agreements' " {Sylvania Electric

Products, Inc. v. N.L.R.B. (1 Cir. 1966) 358 F.2d 591, 593,

certiorari denied (1967) 385 U.S. 852).

There are three types of information which an employer

must supply to a union as a part of the employer's duty

to bargain in good faith

:

(1) Information which the employer must supply

merely because the union requests it has been limited to

data which have a direct bearing on wages, hours and

working conditions—the mandatory subjects of bargaining

—which are the
'

' heart and core of the employer-employee

relationship" {International Woodworkers of America v.

N.L.R.B. (D.C. Cir. 1959) 263 F.2d 483, 485).
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(2) Other data must be furnished to the union when the

union has requested that the employer substantiate a claim

which has been made during the course of negotiations

(Labor Board v. Truitt Mfg. Co. (1956) 351 U.S. 149, 151-

153; N.L.R.B. v. Western Wirebomid Box Co. (9 Cir.

1966) 356 F.2d 88, 91-92). For example,

"If the employers claimed that they were unable

to pay, the union had a right to be shown evidence

of inability. But when the employers refused to pay,

the union knew all it was entitled to know. In such

a situation, further financial information from the

employers' records would be interesting and perhaps

useful to the union, but not required; for such infor-

mation cannot convert stubborn resolution into an

excuse for failure to grant a wage increase or pro-

vide the basis for mutual bargaining concessions oc-

casioned by a common understanding of financial

plight" {United Fire Proof Warehouse Co. v.

N.L.R.B. (10 Cir. 1966) 356 F.2d 494, 498).

(3) The employer also has the duty to furnish informa-

tion which is relevant to the policing of the administration

of the agreement through the grievance jirocedure

{N.L.R.B. V. Acme Industrial Co. (1967) 385 U.S. 432, 436-

437). There must, however, be a probability that the

information is relevant to th(» union's processing of a

grievance. Where tlie infonnation is not relevant to a

matter which is subject to the grievance procedure,

''the data in question cannot be relevant to the

Union's present or potential policing of the contract

through the processing of grievances, and failure to

produce it does not constitute a violation of this as-

pect of the statutory duty to furnish information"

{Square D Company v. N.L.R.B. (9 Cir. 1964) 332

F.2d 360, 365).
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The employee address lists were not sought for any of

the foregoing purposes but only as a means by which the

Union could contact employees. Contact with the em-

ployees might conceivably be used by the Union to seek

information which has a direct bearing on the working

relationship between the employer and the employee. A list

of home addresses cannot be viewed, for that reason alone,

however, as if it were that sort of information. In the

absence of evidence that it was requested for this purpose,

and that it was necessary to enable the union to bargain

intelligently, address lists may not be equated with the

information which might be gained from the opportunity

of contacting employees.^

In the case at bar, according to the frank admission

of the Union itself, the information was sought only to

"counter the company propaganda" (General Counsel's

Exhibit 3). And there is no support whatever in the record

for the statement by the Board that the lists might be used

by the "Union to poll the unit employees as to their

preferences and priorities in contract negotiations" (R.

Vol. I, p. 35). No request for addresses for such a pur-

pose was made to the Company and the Union did not

even suggest at the hearing that it wanted the lists for

such a purpose (see E. Vol. II, pp. 39-45). Indeed, as was

pointed out by Board member Zagoria in his dissent,

3See Fafnir Bearing Company v. N.L.R.B. (2 Cir. 1966) 362
F.2d 716. 720-722, where, although the court in that ea.se ^-anted
a union the right to contact employees for the purpose of gaining
information, it did so only after a careful examination of the

nature and relevance of the information (in that ease time studies

upon which wages were based) which was necessary for the union
to intelligently process grievances and that there was no other

way in which the information could be obtained.
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"The Union's request for the list of employees'

names and addresses was based solely on its desire

to 'counter the company propaganda,' The Union's

stated reason thus negates any suggestion that the

list was sought for bargaining purposes" (R. Vol. I,

p. 39).

The Union never pretended that the addresses were

desired for any purpose other than to "counter the com-

pany propaganda" (Greneral Comisel's Exhibits 3, 7 and

10; R. Vol. II, pp. 39-45). This was the only reason the

Union ever indicated to the Company as the basis for its

request (R. Vol. II, p. 229). The Union's last request, on

March 8, 1966, "repeating the request made to you on

several previous occasions" (General Counsel's Exhibit

10) certainly shed no new light on the basis for the

Union's request. Neither collective bargaining nor con-

tract administration was ever mentioned to the Company

by the Union in connection mth its request. Nor were the

requests made in the context of negotiations or of griev-

ance administration.

Furthermore, even when a bargaining situation did

arise by virtue of a contract opening on benefits during

the term of the contract,^ the Union said nothing to the

Company to indicate that it needed the home addresses

for bargaining purposes (R. Vol. TI, p. 44). The Union's

silence on this matter is particularly significant in light of

the fact that the Union requested a good deal of other

information from the Company in connection with these

^Those negotiations were initiated by a Company proposal on
May 12, 1965, to amend certain benefit plans (R. Vol. II, pp. 43-

44), and there is no eAadence that the May neg'otiations Avere even
contemplated at the time of the Union's requests in April (General
Counsel's Exhibits 3 and 7).
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negotiations (R. Vol. II, p. 214). The Union made no fur-

ther request for information in connection with those nego-

tiations (R. Vol. II, p. 219).

The majoiity of the panel of the Board to which the case

was assigned relies on the unsupported allegation made,

not by the Union, but by the General Counsel in the com-

plaint, that the list was "relevant to bargaining." But as

previously shown (supra, p. 12) home addresses are not

the type of information which the employer as part of its

duty to bargain in good faith is required to supply merely

because the union requests it and there is no support

for the allegation in the complaint that the list was

''relevant to collective bargaining" (R. Vol. I, p. 33).

Moreover, to uphold the decision below on the ground that

this allegation in the complaint constitutes a sufficient

request for information would mean that an employer

would be guilty of bad faith bargaining if he failed to

provide the union with any information as long as that

request was subsequently stamped, by the Board 's General

Counsel in the complaint, as "relevant to collective bar-

gaining.
'

'

II. THE DECISION OF THE BOARD INTERFERES WITH THE
RELATIVE BARGAINING POWER OF THE EMPLOYER AND
THE UNION IN DIRECT CONTRAVENTION OF NATIONAL
LABOR POLICY.

The decision of the National Labor Relations Board

in the case at bar violates the fundamental ])rincii)le of

national labor policy which denies to the Board authority

to interfere with the relative bargaining power of the

employer and the union {American Ship Bldg. v. Labor

Board (1965) 381 U.S. 300, 317-318; Labor Board v. In-
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surance Agents (1960) 361 U.S. 477, 490). National labor

policy, as expressed in section 8(d) of the Labor Man-

agement Relations Act, 61 Stat. 136, 142, 29 U.S.C.

158(d), prohibits the Board's intrusion into the substan-

tive aspects of bargaining process; the Act does not

authorize

''the National Labor Relations Board to act at large

in equalizing disparities of bargaining power between

employer and union" {Labor Board v. Insurance

Agents (1960) 361 U.S. 477, 490).

Moreover, the broad prohibitions of section 8(a)(2)

of the Labor Management Relations Act, 61 Stat. 136,

141, 29 U.S.C. 158(a)(2), make it unlawful for an em-

ployer to "contribute financial or other support" to any

labor organization. The sole exception provided by the

statute is permitting employees to confer with the em-

ployer during working hours without loss of pay (ibid.).

An employer must refrain from assisting a union with

material aid designed to make it easier for that union

to strengthen its support among its employees.

The Board's decision to recpiire the Company to fur-

nish the home addresses directly contravenes the foregoing

principles. The Board's purpose of requiring the Company

to assist the Union to become a stronger representative is

made explicit by the Board's statement that

"As bargaining agent, the Union had the statutory

duty not only to represent all employees in the unit,

but to seek to do so effectively. The Union's effect-

iveness as an employee representative was necessarily

dependent on its bargaining strength, and this in

turn, was dependent on continued employee adlier-

ence and support" (R. Vol. I, pjD. 35-36; emphasis

added).
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As the Board pointed out, the Union could use the em-

ployees' home addresses to counter any of the ComiDany's

arguments

"to attempt to show, for example, why the employees

needed tlie Union, how the Union had served them

in the past and how it might in the future, why its

contract administration actions and its bargaining

proposals deserved their backing, and why it was in

the employees' interest to provide membership and

other support to their bargaining agent" (R. Vol. I,

p. 36).

There is no question that the "Union's effectiveness

as an employee representative was necessarily dependent

upon its bargaining strength." But the Act does not

authorize the Board to require the employer to assist in

making the union stronger. The Act requires the em-

ployer, as part of its duty to bargain in good faith, to
'

' do

what is reasonably possible to reach agreement," which

includes furnishing to the union, upon its request, informa-

tion which is pertinent and necessary to the union's

negotiations {N.L.R.B. v. Western Wirebound Box Co. (9

Cir. 196G) 356 F.2d 88, 92; see supra, pp. 12-13). Good

faith bargaining does not, however, require that the em-

ployer hand the union a club with wliich to beat the com-

pany into submission. By obligating the company to

strengthen the imion the Board necessarily affects the very

outcome of bargaining.

" [T]his amounts to the Board's entrance into tlie sub-

stantive aspects of the bargaining process to an ex-

tent Congress has not countenanced" {Labor Board

V. Insurance Agents (1960) 361 U.S. 477, 498).

I
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CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit that

this Court should set aside the Board's order.

Charles F, Prael,

Noble K. Gregory,

Charles E. Voltz,

John C. Cook,

Attorneys for Petitioner.

PiLLSBURY, Madison & Sutro,

Of Counsel.

Certificate of Counsel

I certify tliat, in connection with the preparation of this

brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that,

in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full compliance

with those rules.

Noble K. Gregory,

Attorney for Petitioner.

(Appendices A and B Follow)
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Appendix A

RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE LABOR MANAGEMENT
RELATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED

Section 7. EmjDloyees shall have the right to self-

organization, to form, join, or assist labor organizations,

to bargain collectively throngh rejiresentatives of their

own choosing, and to engage in other concerted activities

for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual

aid or protection, and shall also have the right to refrain

from any or all of such activities except to the extent

that such right may be affected by an agreement requir-

ing membership in a labor organization as a condition of

employment as authorized in section 8(a)(3).

Section 8. (a) It shall be an unfair labor practice for

an employer

—

(1) to interfere with, restrain, or coerce em-

ployees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed in

section 7;

(2) to dominate or interfere with the formation

or administration of any labor organization or con-

tribute financial or other support to it: Provided,

That subject to rules and regulations made and pub-

lished by the Board pursuant to section 6, an em-

ployer shall not be prohibited from permitting

employees to confer with him during working hours

without loss of time or pay;

# # * * #

(5) to refuse to bargain collectively with the rep-

resentatives of his employees, subject to the provi-

sions of section 9 (a).
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Section 8. (d) For the purposes of this section, to

bargain collectively is the performance of the mutual ob-

ligation of the employer and the representative of the

employees to meet at reasonable times and confer in good

faith with respect to wages, hours, and other terms and

conditions of employment, or the negotiation of an agree-

ment, or any question arising thereunder, and the execu-

tion of a written contract incorjjorating any agreement

reached if requested by either party, but such obligation

does not compel either party to agree to a proposal or

require the making of a concession : Provided, That where

there is in effect a collective-bargaining contract covering

employees in an industry affecting commerce, the duty

to bargain collectively shall also mean that no party to

such contract shall terminate or modify such contract,

unless the party desiring such termination or modifica-

tion

—

(1) serves a written notice upon the other party

to the contract of the proposed termination or modi-

fication sixty days prior to the expiration date

thereof, or in the event such contract contains no

expiration date, sixty days prior to the time it is

proposed to make such termination or modification;

(2) offers to meet and confer with the other party

for the purpose of negotiating a new contract or a

contract containing the proposed modifications;

(3) notifies the Federal Mediation and Concilia-

tion Service within tliirty days after such notice of

the existence of a dispute, and simultaneously there-

with notifies any State or Territorial agency estab-

lished to mediate and conciliate disputes within the
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State or Territory where the dispute occurred, pro-

vided no agreement has been reached by that time;

and

(4) continues in full force and effect, without re-

sorting to strike or lockout, all the terms and condi-

tions of the existing contract for a period of sixty

days after such notice is given or until the expiration

date of such contract, whicliever occurs later:

The duties imposed upon employers, employees and labor

organizations by paragraphs (2), (3), and (4) shall be-

come inapplicable upon an intervening certification of the

Board, under wliich the labor organization or individual,

which is a party to the contract, has been superseded as or

ceased to be the representative of the employees subject

to the provisions of section 9(a), and the duties so im-

posed shall not be construed as requiring either party to

discuss or agree to any modification of the terms and

conditions contained in a contract for a fixed period, if

such modification is to become effective before such terms

and conditions can be reopened under the provisions of

the contract. Any employee who engages in a strike within

the sixty-day period specified in this subsection shall lose

his status as an employee of the employer engaged in the

particular labor dispute, for the purposes of sections 8,

9, and 10 of this Act, as amended, but such loss of status

for such employee shall terminate if and when he is re-

employed by such employer.

Section 9. (a) Representatives designated or se-

lected for the purposes of collective bargaining by the

majority of the employees in a unit api:)ropriate for such



IV

purposes, shall be the exclusive representatives of all the

employees in such unit for the purposes of collective bar-

gaining in resjject to rates of pay, wages, hours of em-

ployment, or other conditions of emjiloyment. Provided,

That any individual employee or a group of employees

shall have the right at any time to present grievances to

their employer and to have such grievances adjusted, with-

out the intervention of the bargaining representative, as

long as the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms

of a collective-bargaining contract or agreement then in

effect: Provided further, That the bargaining representa-

tive has been given opportunity to be present at such

adjustment.

Section 10. (f) Any person aggrieved by a final order

of the Board granting or denying in whole or in part the

relief sought may obtain a review of such order in any

circuit court of appeals of the United States in the circuit

wherein the unfair labor jjractice in question was alleged

to have been engaged in or wherein such person resides

or transacts business, or in the United States Court of

Appeals for the District of Columbia, by filing in such

court a written petition praying that the order of the

Board be modified or set aside. A copy of such petition

shall be forthwith transmitted by the clerk of the court to

the Board, and thereupon the aggrieved party shall file in

the court the record in the proceeding, certified by the

Board, as provided in section 2112 of title 28, United

States Code. Upon the filing of such petition, the court

shall proceed in the same manner as in the case of an

application by the Board under subsection (e) of this

section, and shall have the same jurisdiction to grant to



the Board such temporary relief or restraining order as

it deems just and proper, and in like manner to make and

enter a decree enforcing, modifying, and enforcing as so

modified, or setting aside in whole or in part the order

of the Board; the findings of the Board with respect to

questions of fact if supported by substantial evidence on

the record considered as a whole shall in like manner

be conclusive.

Section 204. (a) In order to prevent or minimize inter-

ruptions of the free flow of commerce growing out of labor

disputes, employers and employees and their representa-

tives, in any industry affecting commerce, shall

—

(1) exert ever>' reasonable effort to make and

maintain agreements concerning rates of pay, hours,

and working conditions, including provision for ade-

quate notice of any proposed change in the terms of

such agreements;

(2) w^henever a dispute arises over the terms or

application of a collective-liargaining agreement and

a conference is requested by a party or prospective

party thereto, arrange promptly for such a conference

to be held and endeavor in such conference to settle

such dispute expeditiously; and

(3) in case such dispute is not settled by confer-

ence, participate fully and promptly in such meetings

as may be undertaken by the Service under this Act

for the purpose of aiding in a settlement of the

dispute.
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Appendix B

•al Counsers
its

LIST OF EXHiiJlTS

Genei

Exhil Identified

4

14

Offered

4

15

Received

1(a) through 1(h)

2

4

15

3 16 15 16

4 16 16 17

5 17 17 18

6 18 18 19

7 19 19 19

8 19 19 20

9 20 20 21

10 21 21 22

11 22 22 22

12 23 23 24

13 31 31 31

14 32 32 32

15 42 42 42

16 64 64 64

17 64 64 64

18(

19

i) and 18(b) 159

170

162

174

163

174

Eespondent's

Exhibits Identified Offered Received

1 36 36 36

2

3

74

78

(Withdrawn 212)

81 82

4 143 146 146

5

6

217

233

219

233

(Rejected 219)

236
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STANDARD OIL COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA,
WESTERN OPERATIONS, INC.,

Petitioner,
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NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Respondent,

and

OIL, CHEMICAL AND ATOMIC WORKERS
INTERNATIONAL UNION, RICHMOND,

CALIFORNIA, LOCAL 1-561,

Intervenor.

BRIEF FOR THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

JURISDICTION

This case is before the Court on petition of the Standard
Oil Company of CaHfornia. Western Operations, Inc. (here-

after, "the Company") to review and set aside an order of the
National Labor Relations Board issued against it on June 30,
1967, and on the Board's cross-petition for enforcement of



that order, pursuant to Section 10(e) and (f) of the National

Labor Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136,73 Stat. 519,

29 U.S.C., Sec. 151, et seq.). The Board's Decision and Or-

der (R. 28-40, 15-18) ^ are reported at 166 NLRB No. 45.

The unfair labor practices herein having occurred at Richmond,

California, where the Company operates an oil refinery com-

plex, no jurisdictional issue is presented.

COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case presents the single question whether the Com-
pany, by refusing to give its employees' certified bargaining

representative a list of their names and addresses, violated

Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act. The facts underlying the

Board's conclusion that the Company's refusal was unlawful,

are set forth below.

A. The size and structure of the

unit; the status and situation

of the Union

The Company's oil refinery complex at Richmond, "among
the largest in the world," covers four square miles on San Fran-

cisco Bay (R. 29; GCX 12, p. 1). Physically, it contains a maze

of separate machinery units, called "plants," producing gaso-

lines, oil, chemicals, and other materials, and ranging in size

References designated "R" are to Volume I of the Record as repro-

duced pursuant to Rule 10 of this Court. References designated "Tr."

are to the reporter's transcript of testimony reproduced in Volume II

of the Record. References designated "GCX" and "RX" are to exhibits

of the General Counsel and petitioner (respondent before the Board),

respectively. Whenever in a series of references a semicolon appears,

references preceding the semicolon are to the Board's findings; those

following, to the supporting evidence.



from one-man operations to those tended by several hundred

(R. 29; GCX 12, Tr. 127-128, 130). There, some 4600 per-

sons are employed, 2600 by the Company and the others by

related enterprises (R. 29; Tr. 33-34).

Since 1950, the Union ^ has been the certified represen-

tative for collective bargaining of a unit of production and

maintenance employees in the manufacturing and purchase

and stores departments of the complex, including the San

Pablo Tank Farm (R. 29; GCX 2, Article I). At the time of

the hearing herein, the unit contained some 1500 of the Com-

pany's 2600 employees (R. 29; Tr. 33). Arriving at the re-

finery from the five or six county area in which they lived,

mostly by automobile, the unit employees — like all others —

entered the complex through four guarded gates (R. 29; Tr,

51, 60-62).

In recent years the unit has experienced considerable per-

sonnel turnover (R. 29; Tr. 33, 247). Thus, in 1965, the Com-

pany hired 155 new unit employees, and in the first half of

1966 (i.e., prior to the hearing herein in July of that year) it

had added 150, hiring "to maintain attrition at the rate of

about 20 per month" (R. 29; Tr. 247-248). The Union did

not receive the names of new employees at the time they were

hired (Tr. 34, 247); and the collective bargaining agreement

between the Company and the Union did not contain a union-

shop clause. Rather, the contract provided for maintenance of

membership, with an annual "escape" period of 30 days (R.

29; GCX 2, Art. 3). The contract required the Company to

furnish seniority lists to the Union "at reasonable times," which

by practice had come to mean twice a year (R. 31; GCX 2,

Oil, (Jiemical and Atomic Workers International Union, Richmond,
California, Local 1-561, AFL-CIO.



Art. 8, Sec. 2(e) at p. 10, Tr. 35, 68-70, 167-169, 198). These

lists contained the names but not the home addresses of the

unit employees (R. 31; Tr, 35, 38). Although the effective

dates of the Hsts were January 15 and July 15, the lists were

not actually made available to the Union until 1 to 6 months

after their compilation (R. 31; Tr. 69-72, 199-200). The most

recent lists had been longest delayed, because of difficulties

the Company experienced in instituting computer-compilation

of the lists (R. 31; Tr. 70-73, 199-202). The list effective

July 15, 1965 — which gave the Union notice of the names of

all persons hired since January 15 of that year — was not fi-

nally delivered until October or November (Tr. 35, 200, 247,

70-71). And the list showing the unit work force as of Janu-

ary 15, 1966 — which reflected the substantial number of new

hires in the preceding six months — concededly was not mailed

to the Union until at least some 2'/2 months later (Tr. 72,

200-202, 143-146). Even then the Union did not receive a

complete roster of those whom it represented, for the Ust did

not contain the large (200 or so) chemical division: the Com-

pany withheld that list because of a pending grievance involv-

ing the division (RX 4, Tr. 151, 208-209, 212-213).
^

The Company conducts an orientation program for all new
employees in which it explains their conditions of employment
and makes known company pohcy on, inter alia, labor relations

and unions (R. 29-30). At an early meeting, a Company repre-

sentative makes a statement about unions, telling the new unit

members that they will be represented by the Union and that

a copy of the collective agreement is in the packet of material

given each of them, and reading a statement to the effect that

3
Although the grievance was pending before the July 15, 1965, list was

compiled, the chemical division was included in that list(Tr. 249-250). It

was also included in a seniority list dated January 15, 1966, which was
apparently furnished the Union at the hearing below in July 1966, at which
time the grievance was still unresolved (Tr. 208-213, 249).



"[i]t is the legal right and privilege of employees of the Com-

pany to become members or refrain from becoming members,"

that membership in a union "is not a condition of your em-

ployment with the Company," that employees will receive no

benefit nor suffer any detriment because of union member-

ship, and explaining the maintenance-of-membership provision

including its escape clause (R. 29-30; Tr. 221-223, 232-236,

RX 6). In an "indoctrination" meeting later in the series,

The statement that is read provides in full (RX 6):

You have been told of the many values which accrue

to Standard Oilers with increasing service with the

Company and the advantages of steady employment in

a growing industry where you have the opportunity of

making your job a career. These things have been em-

phasized with the sincere belief that working conditions,

wages, insurance against loss of income and the coopera-

tive spirit of the employees here are not equalled else-

where.

TTiere are eight unions representing employees in the

Refinery; seven craft and one production workers. It

is the legal right and privilege of employees of the Com-
pany to become members or refrain from becoming mem-
bers in such unions, as they may individually see fit.

Such membership or non-membership does not affect

their status as employees in any way.

Most of our agreements with these unions contain a

"Maintenance of Membership" provision. Tliese provi-

sions do not require you to become a member of the

union but do require that if you do become a member
you must continue to maintain such membership for

the term of the agreement so long as you remain an
employee, by paying the periodic union dues and
initiation fees uniformly reauired by the union, or
until Escape Clause is used ny employee.

Membership or non-membership in a union is not a con-
dition of your employment with the Company. All em-
ployees will receive the same fair consideration for ad-
vancement opportunities and their privileges and benefits
under established Company policies will in no way be
affected by their membership or non-membership in a
union. This is for your information if and when you may
be urged to join or not to join any of the unions now
representing employees in the Refiner\

.



the new employees are exposed more fully to the (Company's

philosophy by the oral reading to them of a company book-

let entitled, "What We Believe" (R. 30; Tr. 32, 236-238,

GCX 14). The booklet's section on labor relations asserts

(GCX 14, p. 9):

We sincerely believe that good employee

relations can be maintained and essential

employee needs fulfilled through sound

management administration without the

necessity of employee organization and re-

presentations [sic] . We respect an em-

ployee's right to present his grievances, re-

gardless of whether or not he is represented

by a labor organization. Whenever a group

of employees does desire organization and

representation, we are willing to discuss

with individual employees or with repre-

sentatives of the group any pertinent mat-

ters affecting them. We are opposed to any

provision requiring that an individual either

join or refrain from joining any labor or-

ganization as a condition of employment.

We willingly accept the obligation to bar-

gain with any bona fide labor organization

legally selected by the employees as their

agent, and we intend to make every effort

to maintain the best possible relationship

with the elected representatives of a bar-

gaining unit. In any agreement reached,

however, we feel management must retain

the rights and authorities necessary to

direct and control the Company's opera-

tions effectively and effi(i<;ntly.



Additionally, all new employees are provided a bulky book-

let, "You and Your Company," which under the heading,

"What about unions," states (R. 30; Tr. 31, 222, 236-237,

GCX 13, pp. 31-32):

On the preceding pages of this booklet,

we've tried to cover, in a general way, the

many policies and programs developed by

your Company's management to assure

you fair treatment and to provide a re-

warding career.

We sincerely believe that good employee

relations can be maintained and essential

employee needs fulfilled through sound

management administration, without the

necessity of union organization and re-

presentation. Your Company's wages,

hours, and working conditions are among

the best in industry, and its employee rela-

tions policies are designed to promote fair

play and mutual respect. Policies like these

are essential for 43,000 people to work to-

gether effectively. This also requires a

great deal of cooperation and understanding,

and a healthy regard for the rights of others.

As for union membership, it is your (Com-

pany's belief that representation by an out-

side organization is not necessary in order for

employees to enjoy fair treatment and good

working conditions. However, this is some-

thing that all employees should decide for

themselves after careful consideration of all

the facts. While your Company recognizes

your right to join a union, it does not believe
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that you should he forced to join a union

as a condition of employment and is op-

posed to all forms of compulsory unionism.

"Old" employees as well are given orientation and indoctrina-

tion during training programs (R. 31; Tr. 27). The Union is

not a participant in any of these meetings (R. 31; Tr. 26).

B. The Union's attempts to communicate

with its constituents

Union membership in the unit has varied, with approxi-

mately 50 percent of the unit employees belonging to the

Union at the time of the hearing (R. 29; Tr. 46). Union ac-

cess to unit employees, both members and non-members, has

been provided to some extent by contract and to some extent

by independent union efforts (R. 31). As shown above, pp. 3-4

the (>ompany provided periodic seniority lists, which did not

contain the employees' home addresses. Pursuant to a con-

tract provision allowing the Union to appoint "at least one

steward for each unit in each section," it had designated 72
stewards who were concentrated in areas with a iiigh propor-

tion of union members (R. 31; GCX 2, Art. 19, Sec. 1 at

p. 46, Tr. 78-80). Moreover, many of the stewards were

apparently inactive, having been appointed primarily to col-

lect union dues during an interim between contracts when
dues were not being checked-off by the Company (Tr. 82-

86). Under a contract provision authorizing Union-maintained
bulletin boards in Company-approved locations, there were

Tlic roiilracl permitted slrwards' presence in the refinery "before
or alter iheir rcfrular sliift," Imt durinf,' his workinji hours a steward was
authorized lo leave his work ordy for the investif^alion (^r presentation
of ,Ti<van((s((;(:.\ 2, Art. 19, Sec. 3, 4 at pp. 46-47. and see See. 9
at pp. 47-4H).



Union bulletin boards in regular locker rooms (R. 31; GCX 2,

Art. 24 at p. 50, Tr. 47-48, 58-59, 123). They were not,

however, an effective means of communication with the unit

employees because other locker rooms were available in work

areas (where there were no such boards) and because of the

small amount of "change time" permitted employees who

used the regular locker rooms (R. 31; Tr. 48-50, 59, 126-133,

153-161, 188-189).^''

The Union had also sought to reach the unit employees

by handbiUing at the plant gates (R. 31; Tr. 52-54, 55).
^

These efforts were restricted to two of the four gates because

of automobile traffic hazards at the others (R. 31; Tr. 53).

They were further limited in impact in that the Union had no

means of ascertaining which of the many hundreds of persons

using the gates were the employees it represented (R. 31-32;

Tr. 54).

C. The Union's requests for employee

addresses, the Company's denials,

and the Company's mailing to unit

employees during negotiations

On April 5, 1965, the Union wrote to the Company re-

questing the home addresses of the employees (R. 32; Tr. 15-

16, GCX 3). Referring to the Company's access to the em-

ployees through its compulsory orientation program in which

it "talk[ed] about Unions without Union representatives bein^

present," the Union stated its need "at least [to] counter the

Company propaganda by mass mailing" (R. 32; GCX 3). On

5a By contrast, Company hulleliii boards arc spread lliroughoul llic re

finery(R. 31;Tr. 58, 132).

llio Union's staff consists of one full-titm- person, plus a parllinie

office employee (Tr. 53).
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April 14, the Union wrote again, and again referring to the

Company's orientation meetings for employees "including

employees performing work covered by our Agreement," the

Union asserted that although the Company's approach was

"a perfectly legal one, we believe that there is an issue of

equal time" — it therefore asked for the opportunity to ap-

pear at the meetings "simply to give an orientation as to

Union benefits . .
." (R. 32; Tr. 17-18, GCX 5).

The Company, on April 15, rejected the Union's initial

request (R. 32; GCX 6). In its letter, the Company stated that

its obligations, both "contractual and legal," were satisfied by

providing seniority lists showing the name, classification and

seniority date of all unit employees (ibid.). "[A]nd we are

not willing," the letter continued, "to provide you with the

home addresses of any of our employees" (GCX 6).

Also on April 15, the Union sent the Company a second

written request for addresses (R. 32; Tr. 19, GCX 7). Citing

the Company's mailing to employees of the booklet "You and

Your Company" (see supra, p. 7), the Union asked for "a

complete mailing list of Standard Oil employees so that we may
send them counter documentation and statements" (R. 32;

GCX 7). On April 26, the Company rejected this request,

7 , . ,

The Union s letter, by it£ counsel, was actually addressed to the

Company's counsel who replied that he had sent it on to the Company
as he "believe[d] the request for information is more appropriately

handled by the Union representatives and Company representatives re-

sponsible for the administration of the collective bargaining agreement
than by us as their lawyers" (GCX 4)l A Company management repre-

sentative testified to a (Company policy "that lists contain [ing] the names
and addresses, particularly addresses, of employees are not given to any-

one" and that "we fell that inasmuch as this was a violation of that

policy, we belter check with our alloriiey . . . who told us that as far

as he was concerned, there was no legal nor contractual obligation to

make an exception in tlw < ase of a union request, and so we denied
the request" (Tr. 22,'5).



11

reiterating the position that neither law nor contract required

its fulfillment (R. 32; GCX 8). The following day, the Union's

request to appear at orientation meetings was likewise denied:

stating its belief that employee participation or nonparticipa-

tion in union activities "is strictly a matter of individual choice,"

the Company averred that "if the Company were to arrange for

such union presentations at employee orientation meetings,

this might lead employees to believe that the Company is ac-

tively encouraging or sponsoring their participation in union

activities. We wish to avoid any such inference." (R. 32; GCX
9).

During May 1965, Company and Union began bargaining

about changes in certain benefit programs referred to in the

contract (R. 32; Tr. 41-44). While negotiations were in prog-

ress, on June 21, the Company mailed to all unit employees

a statement of its bargaining position and on the status of

the negotiations together with copies of a document that it

had read to the Union at a bargaining session (R. 32; Tr. 41-

42, GCX 15). The statement announced that the subject bene-

fits were already effective for all employees other than those

represented by the Union, and informed the unit members
that they, too, "would" receive the benefits as of June 1 "if"

agreement were reached with their Union by the end of the

month (ibid.).

A week after distribution of the Company's communica-
tion to the unit employees, the Union filed the original charge
herein, alleging that the Company had violated the Act by,
inler alia, "refus[ing] to give the Union a list of the names
and addresses of employees in the bargaining unit so that the
Union can even send out a mailing to counter Company propa-
ganda" and "sendfing] maiUngs to employees concerning col-

lective bargaining with the Union, but refusfing] to furnish
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the mailing arldress of said employees so that the Union can re-

spond to the Company's position in the maihnjf" (GCX 1(a)).

hi Fehruary, 1966, the parties' collective agreement auto-

matically renewed for another year (R. 32; Tr. 14-15). Early

the next month, the Union made yet another written request

for the (employees' home addresses, i.e., "a list of all the names

and addresses of the employees in the collective hargaining unit"

(R. 33: Tr. 21-22, GCX 10). As its representative elaborated in

testimony, the Union needed the information because experi-

ence had shown that "if we were to have any kind of fair and

e{|iiitable [)osition at the hargaining table, that we were going to

have to devise sotne means of communicating with the employee?

that we represent,"^ because of the Company's indoctrination

During the period of negotiations, which in July ( iilniinated in an agree-

ment, the Union held membership meetings, one of which it opened to

non-members as well (Tr. 54-55). Only two non-members attended (Tr.

55). To inform the non-members of the meeting and their invitation to

it, the llnion had had to reiy on handbilling at the refinery gates, word-of-

mouth transmission in tlic jilanls, and a telephone answering service which

it maintained whercbv an cmplovee (or anyone else) could, by dialing a

regular city number, obtain a Llnion newscast (Tr. 55-58). (Here again, in

publicizing the llnion telephone number so that employee's could call, the

I tiion was n-mitted to bulletin-board posting or handbilling (Tr. 58). The

(-om|)any, by contrast, maintained a tele|)hone newsservice in tlie refin<'ry

available to all employees from any telephone in the plants (Tr. 56-57).)

Asked at the hearing why the Union made no recjuest for addresses dur-

ing the May-July bargaining, its representative explained that it <ould see

no point in an oral recpiest at the bargaining table "because we had made

three formal written requests and were in the process of pref)aring this

charge, whii h was filed in .]une"(rr. 44-45).

Particularly was this so in view of the Comfiaiiv s direct comtminication

to the employees of its bargaining positions, in both 1961 and 1965 (Tr.

Mi. .'{9. supra, p. 1 1). Hut iii(Jcpcndcntly of that, tli<' UnioTi sought to be

able to inform th<' employ cc> (onfldcntiallv ol (onlcmpluled bargaining

[.roposals (Tr. 162).
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program for new employees who received no comparable in-

troduction to the benefits of the Union, and because of the

constant pressure "to organize our people" in the absence of

a union-shop agreement (Tr. 38-40, 162). '^ But the Com-

pany persevered in its denial, on the ground (as stated by

its counsel) that the contract required no more than seniority

Usts (R. 33; GCX 11). Thereafter, the Union filed with the

Board an amended charge of Company violations of Section

8(a)(1) and (5) of the Act by continuing refusal to furnish

the Union the employees' names and addresses (GCX 1(c)).

On May 6, 1966. the instant complaint issued, alleging that

the Company had unlawfully refused and continued to refuse

the statutory bargaining representative's request for the unit

employees' names and addresses, "information relevant to

collective bargaining and the administration of the current

collective bargaining contract" (GCX 1(e), pp. 2-4).

THE BOARD'S CONCLUSIONS AND ORDER

On the foregoing facts the Board (one member dissenting)

found that the addresses of the unit employees were relevant

to the Union's statutory responsibilities for bargaining and

contract administration, that this information "lay exclusively

in [the Company's] possession" and was not otherwise avail-

able to the Union, and that the (Company had not offered a

reasonable justification for withholding it (R. 34-36). Accord-

ingly, the Board concluded that the Union had a legal right

As shown supra p. 5, the (loinpany informed new employees ol

the annual 3()-flay "eseape" period during whicli those who had joined

the Union eoiild have it. Additionally, as authorized hy the contraet,

the (lompany posted on its bulletin hoards notiees iniorminii the em-

ployees generally of the "<scape" period ((KA 2, Art. -i at p. •{, I r. U),

161. 160).
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to demand the address list, and the (Company a correlative

legal duty to meet the Union's request (R. 36, 37-38). The

(Company's refusal to furnish the information therefore vio-

lated Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act (ibid).

To remedy the unfair labor practices found, the Board

ordered the Company to cease and desist from that conduct

and from interfering with its employees' statutory rights in

any like or related manner (R. 38). Beyond this, the Com-

pany is required to provide the Union, upon request, a list

of the home addresses of the unit employees, and to post the

customary notices (R. 38-39, 40).

ARGUMENT

THE BOARD PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE COMPANY
VIOLATED SECTION 8(a)(5) AND (1) OF THE ACT BY

DENYING THE UNION'S REQUEST FOR A LIST OF THE

NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF THE EMPLOYEES WHOM
IT REPRESENTED

A. The governing legal principles

"There can be no question," the Supreme Court recently

observed, "of the general obligation of an employer to pro-

vide information that is needed by the bargaining representa-

tive [of his employees] for the proper performance of its

duties." N.L.R.B. v. Acme Industrial Co., 385 U.S. 432, 435-

436. Deriving as it does from a union's responsibilities as

exclusive representative of all the unit employees, the em-

ployer's duty of disclosure is commensurate with those respon-

sibilities. Thus, since it is "the well settled obligation of the

bargaining agent not only to negotiate new contracts but also

to police and administer existing agreements" (('.urliss-ll'rifht

Corp. V. \.L.I<.I{.. 347 F.2d 61. 68 (C. A. 3)), a union is en-

titled to data reasonably required for its effective performance
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in both capacities. And because the "broad authority of the

union as exclusive bargaining agent in the negotiation and

administration of a collective bargaining contract is accom-

panied by a responsibility of equal scope, the responsibility

and duty of fair representation" of all the unit employees '• —

members and nonmembers, opponents as well as adherents —

the union likewise has an enforceable right to information in

the employer's possession which is relevant to the discharge

of this responsibility.

In short, the sole criterion for determining the produci-

biUty of information is its relevance, or reasonable necessity,

for the union's proper performance of its representative role.

This is true whatever the nature of the material sought, though

the manner in which relevance is to be ascertained varies.

Thus, information directly related to wages, hours, or other

terms and conditions of employment (the mandatory subjects

of bargaining), or to the union's abiUty to administer an ex-

isting contract, is "presumptively relevant" to the union's

representative duties. Such information is, prima facie, required

to be produced. See, e.g., Boston Herald-Traveler Corp. v.

N.L.R.B., 223 F.2d 58, 62 (C.A. 1); Timken Roller Bearing

Co. V. N.L.R.B., 325 F.2d 746 (C.A. 6), cert, denied, 376

U.S. 971, Int'l Telephone and Telegraph Corp. v. N.L.R.B.,

382 F.2d 366, 372-373 (C.A. 3). And see Curtiss- Wright

Corp., supra, 347 F.2d at 68-69. Where, however, the infor-

mation requested is not so obviously pertinent to the subject

Humphrey v. Moore, 375 U.S. 335, 342. See Steele v. Louisville

& Nashville R. Co., 323 U.S. 192; Wallace Corp. v. N.L.R.B., 323 U.S.

248, 255; Ford Motor Co. v. Huffman, 345 U.S. 330, 337-338 (statu-

tory obligation of an exclusive bargaining representative "to make an

honest effort to serve the interests of all [unit ] members"); Vaca v.

Sipes, 386 U.S. 171; Miranda Fuel Co., 140 NLK13 181, enforcement
denied on grounds not here material 326 F.2d 172 ((".A. 2); Hughes
Tool Co., 147 NLRB 1573; Local 12. United Rubber Workers v. I\.L.

R.B., 368 F. 2d 12 (C.A. 5), cert, denied, 389 U.S. 837.
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matter of collective bargaining or to the bargaining process

itself, so that relevance cannot be presumed, the union must

demonstrate that the intelligence for which it has asked bears

significantly upon its ability to carry out its statutory man-

date. For example, information about an employer's finan-

cial situation is not on its face so related to collective bar-

gaining or representation that it must always be produced

upon request. But when an employer resists a union's wage

demands on the ground that its financial situation does not

permit them, relevance is demonstrated and the union's re-

quest for substantiating information must be met. N.L.R.B.

V. Truitt Mfy. Co., 351 U.S. 149; N.L.R.B. v. Western Wire-

bound Box Co., 356 F.2d 88 (C.A. 9); Metlox Mfg. Co. v.

N.L.R.B., 378 F.2d 728 (C.A. 9), cert, denied, 67 LRRM
2231. See Inl'l Telephone and Telegraph Corp. v. N.L.R.B.,

382 F.2d 366, 370-371 (C.A. 3); Puerto Rico Telephone Co.

V. N.L.R.B., 359 F.2d 983, 986-987 (C.A. 1); N.L.R.B. v.

Celolex Corp., 364 F.2d 552, 553-554 (C.A. 5), cert, denied,

385 U.S. 987. So, loo, detailed information about non-unit

employees to which a union might not otherwise be entitled

is required upon a showing that it is germane to the integrity

of the unit represented. Curtiss-U right, supra, 347 F.2d at

69-71. N.L.R.B. v. Coodyear Aerospace Corp., F.2d

(C.A. 6), 67 LIIRM 2447, 2448. See Int'l Telephone and

Telegraph Corp., supra, 382 F.2d at 371-372; Hollywood

Brands, Inc., 142 NLRB 304, 305 n. 2, enforced, 324 F.2d

956 (C.A. 5), reh. denied, 326 F.2d 400, cert, denied, 377

U.S. 923. Once established, whether by a presumption arising

from the nature of the data sought or by particular facts of

the situation, the union's reasonable necessity for the informa-

tion fixes the employer's duty to produce; and his failure to

grant the union's request is an unlawful refusal to bargain even

though the employer's good faith is clear and no other refusal

to bargain has occurred. N.L.R.B. v. llooluorth Co., 352 U.S.
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938, rev'g per curiam 235 F.2d 319 (C.A. 9); N.LR.B. v. Feed

and Supply Center, Inc., 294 F.2d 650, 652-653 (C.A. 9);

Timken Roller Bearing Co., supra, 325 F.2d at 754; Fafnir

Bearing Co. v. N.LR.B., 362 F.2d 716, 721 (C.A. 2); Curtiss-

Wright Corp., supra, 347 F.2d at 67-68; Taylor Forge and

Pipe Works V. N.LR.B., 234 F.2d 227, 231 (C.A. 7), cert,

denied, 352 U.S. 942; 7. /. Case Co. v. N.LR.B., 253 F.2d 149,

152-156 (C.A. 7); Puerto Rico Telephone Co., supra, 359 F.2d

at 986.

B. The employee address list is

relevant and necessary

The employee address list here repeatedly requested and

refused does not directly relate to a particular subject of bar-

gaining, nor to a specific dispute arising during the terms of

and under a contract. Its significance to the Union, and

thereby its relationship to the bargaining process, is both more

general and more profound. It is the Union's status as em-

ployee representative that gives relevance to the employee

information sought, for the Union must be able to carry on

the dialogue on which representation depends if it is to meet

its statutory responsibility fairly to represent the employees.

And as shown in the Countcrstatement, the Union, although

the certified representative of the 1500 unit employees, was

as a practical matter unable to communicate with them.

Their homes were scattered through a geographic area en-

compassing 5 or 6 counties; they entered and left the refinery

with thousands of others from whom they were indistinguish-

able as all traversed (chiefly by automobile) the same few

gates; even their identities were disclosed to the Union only

semiannually at best. The employees were scarcely approach-

able away from the work place by anyone without an address

list {supra, pp. 3-4). While those employees who chose to

join the Union presumably thereby made their addresses known.



18

the collective agreement between Company and Union did

not require union membership and membership in fact hov-

ered around 50% of the unit work force (supra, pp. 3, 8). (The

Union's representative duties of course ran to all.) Within

the four square miles of the refinery with its many scattered

work areas, neither the limited exposure afforded by union

bulletin boards in the separate locker rooms nor the Union's

steward system enabled effective (much less confidential)

communication between the Union and its constituents

(supra, pp. 8-9). Experience had taught the Union that it

could not reach those for whom it spoke by the means at

hand alone. Indeed, when the Union attempted to hold a

meeting of all the employees, non-union as well as union,

during negotiations in 1965, restricted as it was in even get-

ting its invitation to the non-members, only two such indi-

viduals attended (supra, p. 12, n. 8).

Thus stultified in informing the employees about bargain-

ing proposals it was contemplating submitting to the Com-
pany or about "the position of the union versus the position

of the company" at the bargaining table (Tr. 162, 38-40),

and equally without means of ascertaining the employees'

views on any of these matters, the Union was further faced

with the fact that the Company could and did express its

sentiments on union matters directly to the unit members.

Repeatedly and forcefully, the Company apprised all new

employees of its view that union representation was unneces-

sary, and did so both orally and in writing in statements that

sought to persuade the new workers to that view (supra, pp.

4-8). More than 300 new employees were added to the

unit during the period in which the Union made its requests

for a name-and-address list (supra, p. 3 ). Yet the Union

whose representative mandate r<;quired it to >peak for these

employees had no means of reaching them to introduce it-

self and to explain the meaning of representation and its
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consequences in terms of employee rights, restrictions and

privileges. Moreover, during the negotiations in process in

May and June of 1965, the Company used just such a mail-

ing list as the Union had previously requested to inform the

unit employees individually of the Company's bargaining

position and of the status of the negotiations as seen from

its perspective (supra, p. H).

On these facts, we submit, the Company's legal duty to

supply the requested employee address list is established. The

Union's reasonable necessity for such a hst "is apparent," as

the Board found, "from a comparison of the Union's statutory

duty of fair representation with the difficulties it faced in

attempting to reach those to whom it owed such duty" (R.

34). Indeed, if there could be any question that relevance is

thus established, the Company itself gave the answer by its

conduct in communicating directly with the unit employees

on the subject of representation while at the same time deny-

ing the Union's repeated requests for a list to enable it to do

likewise.

This is, of course, not to say that an employer must al-

ways facihtate communication between his employees and

their union. Rather, it is to recognize the principle, previous-

ly applied in this and other contexts, that where union access

to the employees is necessary for full vindication of their sta-

tutory rights and requires the action or assent of their em-

ployer, then that action or assent is compelled by the Act.

Thus, where in administering a collective agreement a union

needed time-study data that could be acquired only if its own

expert were admitted to production areas of the plant to make

his own studies on the employees as they performed their

regular tasks, the employer was obligated to permit such entry

and access. Fafnir Bearing Co. v. N.L.R.B., 362 F.2d 716

(C.A. 2). And where as a practical matter employees were
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unavailable for discussions with their certified representative

except on the ships on which they were employed, the Act

required their employers to permit union officials to board

the ships both for the processing of grievances (Richfield Oil

Corp. V. N.LR.B., 143 F.2d 860 (C.A. 9); i^.LR.B. v. Cities

Service Oil Co., 122 F.2d 149 (C.A. 2)) and "for other mutual Jjj

aid and protection of the employees represented" including col- '

lection of dues and distribution of union literature (Richfield

Oil Corp., supra). Similarly even in the situation where, the

employees being unrepresented, a stranger union is engaged in

organizational efforts among employees whose free time as

well as work time is spent on the employer's premises "so

that union organization must proceed upon the employer's

premises or be seriously handicapped" (Republic Aviation Corp.

V. N.L.R.B., 324 U.S. 793, 799), the employer must permit g

union personnel reasonable access to his employees on his

property. N.L.R.B. v. Lake Superior Lumber Co., 167 F.2d

147, 151-2 (C.A. 6) (practical difficulties for union in attempt-

ing contact otherwise than as permitted by Board order);

N.L.R.B. V. S & H Grossinger's Inc., 372 F.2d 26, 29-30 (C.A.

2) (apart from solicitation on employer's premises employees

"cannot be reached by any means practically available to

union organizers"); cf., IS.L.R.B. v. Babcock & Wilcox Co.,

351 U.S. 105, 111-114. ' On the same principle, an employer

12
As the Supreme Court stated in Babcock & Wilcox, supra, 351 U.S.

at 113, "llie right of self-organization depends in some measure on the
ability of employees to learn the advantages of self-organization from
others. (Consequently, if the location of a plant and the living quarters
of the employees place the employees heyond the reach of reasonable
union efforts to communicate with them, the emploNcr must allow the
union to approach his employees on his property." Ilie approval in

Babcock ct- llilcox (3.51 U.S.' at 1 1
1

) of the Lake Superior Lumber Co.
case, supra, as well as similar Supreme Court statements in Republic Avia-
tion, supra, 324 U.S. at 7W. have rendered invalid the inhibition^ in Rich-
field Oil and Cities Sen'ice Oil, supra, on organizational activities b\ ihi-

cerlilied repre.-enlative within the employer premises there opennd to the
unions.
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has been required to accede to the request of his employees'

union for a list of the employees' addresses. In Kenai Packers,

144 NLRB 1122, the Seattle-based union had requested, inter

alia, a list of the names and addresses of current employees

in the unit of crew members on the employer's salmon vessels

operating out of Kenai, Alaska, some 1500 miles distant from

Seattle. Id. at 1124-1125, 1128. The data sought could have

been germane to dues collection, enforcement of contract

wages, union policing of compUance with other benefit pro-

visions of the contract and with contractually-established em-

ployment preferences. Id. at 1128. "Since [the union's]

Umited request, therefore, clearly called for data fundamental

to the viabiUty of the parties' contractual relationship," the

Board found the requested data necessary "to provide some

basis for the union's 'intelligent representation'" of the em-

ployees, and held the employer's refusal to furnish it a viola-

tion of Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act. Id. at 1128,

1130. '^ So here, "[a] s the full information [which the

Union required properly to represent the employees] lay ex-

clusively in [the Company's] possession, and was not other-

wise available to the Union for reasons earUer stated, the Union

had a right to demand this information from [the Company],"
and the Company, the Board held, "had a correlative obliga-

tion to furnish it" (R. 36).

13 .

Compare McCulloch Corp., 132 NLRB 201, where the union de-

manded the addresses of all unit employees in connection with certain

bargaining issues. The addresses were not "essentia! to bargaining on
[these] or any other issue[s]"(as the employer had declared in refusing

to give the addresses), and the Board found that no "reasonable ground
for making the request and necessity for the information" had been
shown. Id. at 209-210. No question of necessity for communication
with the employees was raised, and apparently none could have been
since both union and employer distributed publications to the em-
ployees during their year of negotiations. Id. at 205.
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The Company says that this result is wrong because the

Union in making its initial request for names and addresses

stated that it wished to "counter the company propaganda,"

a purpose which (the Company argues) is unrelated to the

Union's duties as bargaining representative. We show below

that the purposes for which the Union needed and sought the

data were not so limited; that the quoted objective would suf-

fice to obhge production by the Company even had it stood

alone; and that the Company's refusal to furnish the list was

in any exent based not on lack of relevancy but rather on as-

serted Company policy that "the names and addresses, par-

ticularly addresses" of its employees are not given to "any-

C. The Company's reasons for refusing

to give the Union the employees'

addresses are without merit.

As shown in the Counterstatement, when the Union

made its first and second requests for the list in April 1965,

it referred to the Company's orientation program in which

management repeatedly (and ex parte) discussed unions,

urged the (Company's view that unions were not needed by

Company employees, and emphasized that employees not

only were not required to join any union but — if they did

so — could avail themselves of the "Escape Clause". The

Union was concerned that the employees hear also the Union's

side of the story. Hence, the Union asked for the name-and-

address list to enable it to "counter the company propaganda"

with "counter documentation and statements" (supra, pp. 9-

10). Both requests were rejected outright, the Company assert-

ing that its full "contractual and legal" duty was met by provi-

sion of the periodic seniority lists on which the Company showed

names, classifications, and senioritv dates of the employees
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(supra, pp. 10, 11). Matters did not end there. During the mid-

term negotiations that shortly ensued, the Company, using the

very list that the Union had requested, mailed to each unit em-

ployee information on the Company's position in the negotia-

tions as well as its views on the status of the negotiations, which

included the assertion that the employees would enjoy new

benefits retroactively if their Union agreed by a designated date,

but not otherwise (supra, p. 11). And so, believing that a re-

newed request for the list would be futile, the Union filed an

unfair labor practice charge. There, in challenging the Com-

pany's refusal to supply it the unit employees' names and ad-

dresses, the Union again specified its need to send mailings to

"counter Company propaganda" and, additionally, its need to

respond to the Company's mailing "concerning collective bar-

gaining with the Union" (supra, pp. 11-12 and n. 8). Neverthe-

less, when the Union subsequently made yet another written

request for the list, the Company again declined, this time stat-

ing only (and irrelevantly) that the contract did not require its

production.

Thus, it can hardly be questioned that the relevance of

the requested list to the Union's abihty to carry out its duties

as certified representative was put to the Company prior to the

commencement of these proceedings, or to the Board for deci-

sion. The charges and the complaint herein alleged that the

Company's continuing refusal to furnish the requested informa-

tion was unlawful in that the list was information relevant to the

Union's proper performance of its collective bargaining responsi-

bilities. And at the hearing the Union detailed the circumstances

that had led to its requests: it referred again to the Company's

interventions with the employees during negotiations which

meant that "if we [the Union] were to have any kind of fair and

equitable position at the bargaining table, that we were going to

have to devise some means of communicating with the employ-

ees that we represent" (Tr. 38-39); it pointed out that

because of the many situational impediments to its reach-

ing its constituents it had no means of informing them in

confidence of contemplated bargaining proposals (Tr. 162);

it spoke again of the Company's orientation program



24

and, therefore, the Union's "absolute necess[ity]" to be able

to eommunicate with the new employees "in order to inform

them of the existing collective bargaining agreement, what they

are entitled to, so forth" ''*; and it cited the "constant pres-

sure" upon it to organize, stemming from the absence of a

union-shop clause and the other factors previously set forth

(Tr. 40).'^

As previously noted, the Company hired some 300 new unit em-
ployees between the time of the Union's first and its third request for

the names and addresses {supra, p. 18).

15 . . •

In lis hricis Itoth to the Trial Examiner and lo the Board the Com-
pany arfiiiied thai nothing in the situation or the Union's words met the

lethal test lor produeihility of information, whieh the Company contended
re(juir(s only those data relevant to mandatory subjects of bargaining.

Before the Trial Kxaminer, for example, the Company maintained that

even il it were shown that the Union needed employee home addresses

in order to contact them to obtain job-related information for the in-

vestigation and processing of grievances. "Section 8(a)(5) does not obli-

gate an employer lo furnish this information" because it has "no appa-

rent connection with wages, hours and working ( onditions [and
J
the

burden is on the union lo clearly demonstrate that the information is

relevant to a subject of mandatory bargaining . . .
" And before the

Board the Company asserted that none of the [Jnion reasons set forth

in the text supra "has any dire( t bearing on the Union's ability to bar-

gain intelligently or lo evaluate and process grievances," and contended
that "the record evidence- (such as it is) is that ihe Linion sa\s il needs
this 'information' from the employer — not lo learn what it musl
know lo bargain inlclligenll> — but lo trll emplo\ees what the Union
already knows and believes.'' Thus lo limit the dialogue between con-
stituent and representative lo one-way ( ommunii alion is, we believe, an
erroneous view of the law.
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In any event, the Union's statement that it intended to

use the address hst to counter Company propaganda against

it, far from negating the Company's duty to produce (as the

Company contends), demonstrates why in the situation here

the Union was entitled to what it requested. For the Union

was not a stranger to the scene, an outsider trying to con-

vince the employees that their interests and strength lay in

organization and union representation. That choice had been

made, and the Union designated the employees' bargaining

agent. Consequently, as their sole spokesman in all matters

pertaining to the terms and conditions of their employment,

the Union was legally obligated to speak for all and to seek

to do so effectively. Manifestly, its effectiveness was depend-

ent upon (though not guaranteed by) mutual understanding

between the representative and those represented, its strength

upon their support. But here the Company was endeavoring

to persuade the Union's constituents that representation was

unnecessary — and in the case of the several hundred new em-

ployees hired during this period, the Company's position was

impressed upon them months before the Union would receive

even their names. •^ As the Board pointed out, while the

Company was "privileged thus to express its view . . . the

Union was justified in inferring that [the Company's] purpose
was to weaken employee support of the Union and thereby

to reduce, if not indeed to destroy, the Union's strength and
effectiveness as a bargaining agent" (R. 36). Thus the Union
"had a legitimate interest" (ibid.) in responding to the Com-
pany's assertions by presenting its perspective on the matter -

Because of the Company's diffkulties with its new computer, to
which it had transferred the compilation of the seniority lists, these
lists - which provided the I nion's first notification of new hires and
were prepared only semiannually at hesl - were delayed for periods up
to several months beyond their normal deliverv date (supra, \). 4).
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in the Board's words, "[by] altempt[ing] to show, for ex-

ample, why the employees needed the Union, how the Union

had served them in the past and how it might in the future,

why its contract administration actions and its bargaining pro-

posals deserved their backing, and why it was in the employees'

interest to provide membership and other support to their bar-

gaining agent" (ibid.). The Company does not suggest any

legitimate interest it may have in keeping the employees whom
it exhorts insulated from the countervailing arguments of their

statutory representative, and we know of none. Indeed, it is J

now a standard rule in Board election proceedings, following I

Excelsior Underwear, Inc., 156 NLRB 1236, that prior to an I

election an employer must furnish to a Board agent a list of

the names and addresses of the employees eligible to vote,

which list is then made available to all parties. A major pur-

pose of the rule, which has been held valid in virtually all

litigation passing on the question, ^^ is "to make certain that

employees are able to exercise an informed and reasoned choice

after hearing all sides of the question concerning the desira-

bility of union representation" (N.L.R.B. v. Rohlen, 385 F.

2d 52, 55 (C.A. 7). If employees are entitled to hear from
all sides before choosing whether to be represented, surely

they are entitled to no less when, that choice having been

^' ISI.L.R.B. V. Hanes Hosiery Division, Hanes Corp., 384 F.2d 188
(C.A. 4), pel. for cert, pending, No. 982, this term; N.LR.B. v. Rohlen,
385 F.2d 52 (C.A. 7); ^.LR.B. v. British Auto Parts, Inc., 266 F. Supp.
368 (CD. Cal.), appeal pending (No. 21883, C.A. 9): \.LR.B. v. Tele-

dyne, Inc., 66 LRRM 2408, 2410-2411 (N.D. Cal.), appeal pending (No.

22354, C.A. 9); V.L.K.ii. v. ff'vman-Cordon Co., 270 F. Supp. 280 (D.

Mass.), appeal pending (No. 7000, C.A. 1); I\.L.R.B. v. Wolverine Indus-

tries Div., Mid-Slates i\]elal Products, Inc., 64 I.KKM 2060, 2187, 2189
(K.D. Mich.): Swift S: Co. v. Solien, 274 F. Supp. 953 (F.D. Mo.); I\.L.

R.B. V. Beech-Nut Life Savers, Inc., 274 F. Supp. 432 (S.l). N.V.). S<-e

also N.LR.B. V. Q-T Shoe Co., 67 l,RKM 2356 (I). N.J.).
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made, their employer nonetheless avails himself of his special

access to them to continue to campaign against representation

(and, for that matter, for his position on matters upon which

the employer and union are bargaining).

The Company's true position here, we submit, was re-

vealed by management testimony as to its reaction to the

Union's request. It is Company poUcy, its witness averred,

"that lists contain [ing] the names and addresses, particularly

addresses, of employees are not given to anyone," a policy

that would be violated by providing such a list to the Union

(Tr. 225). In short, the Company would treat a certified

union as a stranger to the industrial scene rather than a legi-

timate participant. This approach is seen also in the wholly

frivolous contention that had the Company provided the Union

the addresses sought, it would thereby have violated Section

8(a)(2) of the Act. In the Company's curious construction

of that section, saving only that employees may be permitted

to confer with the employer during working hours without

loss of pay, an employer must refrain from actions that could

be seen as "assisting a union [including an incumbent union]

with material aid designed to make it easier for that union to

strengthen its support among its employees" (Br., p. 17).

Thus would disappear much of the duty imposed by Sections

8(d) and 8(a)(5): agreement to check-off union dues, for ex-

ample, as the Company here has agreed to do, would be law-

less, as would agreement to utihze a union hiring hall — a

mandatory subject of bargaining, as this Court has held. See

N.LR.B. V. Tom Joyce Floors, Inc., 353 F.2d 768, 771 (C.A.

9); accord, N.L.R.B. v. Houston Chapter, Associated General

Contractors, 349 F.2d 449 (C.A. 5), cert, denied, 382 U.S.

1026; and cf., Local 357, Int'l Bhd of Teamsters v. N.LR.B.,

365 U.S. 667. Moreover, as we have seen, in proper circum-

stances an employer must admit union personnel to his
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premises not only to facilitate performance of the union's

representative functions but even to facilitate purely organi-

zational activities. '^ See supra, pp. 19-20. In sum, the Com-

pany cannot relieve itself of the duty to supply relevant re-

quested information by showing that the information will be

helpful to the Union.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully submitted

that a decree should issue enforcing the Board's order in full.
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

There is little dispute as to the basic legal piinciples

which govern this case. The Boai'd states, " [wjhere

* * * information requested [by a union fi-oni an em-

ployer] is not so obviously pertinent to the subject mat-

ter of collective bargaining or to the bargaining process

itself, so that relevance can be presmned, the union must

demonstrate that the intelligence for which it has asked"

relates to collective bargaining (Resp.Br., pp. 15-16). And

the Board freely concedes that the employee address list

here requested "does not directly relate to a particular

subject of bargaining, nor to a specific dispute arising dur-

ing the terms of and under a contraict" (Resp.Br., p. 17).

The undisputed evidence shows (1) that at no time did

the Union indicate to the employer that the list of home

addresses was necessary to enable it to bargain intelli-

gently or to administer the collective bargaining agree-

ment and (2) that the Union's sole stated purjjose for



requesting the inforiiiation was to enable it to make a

mass mailing to employees to counter what it believed to

be employer "propaganda." The Board, however, seeks

to establish an erroneous inference that the Union re-

quested the address list for collective bargaining pur-

poses. Such an inference is contrary to the record, the

findings of the trial examiner, and the findings of the

panel of the Board itself.

The Board also attempts to justify its decision on the

grounds that the address list would facilitate union

"access" to employees and would contribute to the

"strength" and "effectiveness" of the Union. Such post

hoc rationalizations are plainly inadequate when the mi-

disputed evidence shows that the list was not requested

for collective bargaining purposes. Moreover, the ration-

alizations now offered by the Board are legally insufficient

to support a finding of an emiDloyer violation of the duty

to bargain in good faith under section 8(a)(5). The duty

to bargain in good faith with a union does not impose

upon an employer the obligation to do acts the purpose

of wliich is merely to strengthen the miion.

I. THE UNION DID NOT REQUEST THE ADDRESS
LIST FOR BARGAINING PURPOSES.

In its decision below, the panel of the Board errone-

ously held (R. Vol. I, p. 33) that, so long as the General

Counsel's complaint contained an allegation that tlie in-

formation was relevant to collective bargaining, a viola-

tion of the duty to bargain in good faith could be found

even though the Union did not toll the employer that the



inforiiiation was requested for collective bargaining pur-

poses (see discussion in our opening brief at p. 16). Sig-

nificantly, the Board's brief abandons this position. In-

stead, the Board now attempts to raise an inference that

the Union actually did request the address list in connec-

tion with collective bargaining (see Resp.Br., pp. 22-23).

The trial examiner, however, expressly found that

'*[t]here is not a shred of evidence that the Company in

this case was presented with a request for infonriation

which the Union indicated it needed for bargaining pur-

poses" (R. ^"ol. I, p. 18). And, the panel of the Board did

not disagree with this finding (ibid., pp. 28, 33).

In addition, the Board's effort is entirely without sup-

port in the record. The Union here was franlc to^ state

the purpose of its requests for the list of employee home

addresses, and it did not suggest, prior to the hearing,

that the list was requested for any purpose connected

with collective bargaining. The uncontradicted evidence

shows that the Union's requests were made solely to

enable the Union to ''counter the company propaganda"

(General Counsel's Exh. 3) and to send employees "coun-

ter docmnentation and statements" (General Counsel's

Exh. 7; and see discussion in our opening brief at pjx

14-16). And, when a bargaining situation did arise, the

Union neither said nor did anything to indicate that it

needed the home addresses for bargaining purposes (see

discussion in our opening brief at pp. 15-16). The sug-

gestion (Resp.Br., p. 12, ftn. 8) that no request was made

because it would have been futile finds no support either

in the findings of the trial examiner or in the opinion of

the panel of the Board (see R. Vol. I, pp. 16-18; 32-33).



The Board's assertion (Resp.Br., p. 23) that "[t]he

charges" filed by the Union specified the relevancy of the

list is without foundation. The first charge (R. Vol. I,

pp. 3-4) made no reference whatever to any alleged need

foi- the list in order to bargain more effectively.^ The

amended charge (filed one day before the complaint)

added an allegation tliat failure to supply the list was a

refusal to bargain in good faith (R. Vol. I, p. 5). The first

and only assertion that the list "constitutes information

relevant to collective bargaining and the administration of

the current collective bargaining contract" is contained in

the General Counsel's complaint (R. Vol. I, p. 8). This

conclusory allegation sheds no light on how home ad-

dresses were relevant.

It is therefore undisputed that the Company was never

asked by the Union for bargaining information; it was

asked only for an employee mailing list so that tlie Union

could send out a mass mailing to the employees advertis-

ing its own views. These facts leave no room for doubt

that the trial examiner correctly recommended that the

complaint, based solely on alleged refusal to bargain in

good faith, should be dismissed.

The Board also attempts to establish a relation be-

tween the request and collective bargaining on the basis

of testimony brought forth at the hearing. That testi-

mony is summarized in the Board's brief (at pp. 23-24)

and, in effect, recites the Union's asserted need to "com-

iThe only mention of bargaining in the first charge, which was
based solely on the desii-e of the ITnion to "counter Company
propaganda," was the assertion that the list was needed "so tliat

the Union can respond to the Company's position in tlie mailing"
(R. Vol. I, p. 4).



municate" its views to the employees and to '^ strengthen

"

itself through continued organizational efforts. As is

shown below (infra, pp. 5-10), these asserted purposes are

legally insufficient.

n. THE BOARD'S POST HOC ATTEMPTS TO ESTABLISH
RELEVANCY OF THE LIST TO COLLECTIVE BARGAIN-
ING ARE LEGALLY INSUFFICIENT.

As demonstrated above and in our opening brief (pp.

11-16), the undisputed evidence shows tliat the Union

never requested the address list in connection with col-

lective bargaining or for collective bargaining purposes.

The Board asserts (Resp.Br., pp. 17-27) that the list

was in fact relevant to collective bargaining for reasons

wliich were not advanced by the Union at the time it re-

quested the list. We respectfully submit that an employ-

er's obligation to bargain in good faith can be measured

only by the re<[uest ^d stated reasons presented to him

—

not by the post hoc rationalizations of the Board. More-

over, tlie rationalizations offered by the Board are le-

gally insufficient.

A. Relevancy to collective bargaining is not established by the

claim that requested information would facilitate union

"access" to employees.

As pointed out in our opening brief (p. 12), informa-

tion wliich must be supplied by an employer in the dis-

charge of his duty to bargain in good faith is that

information in the employer's possession which is needed

by the union to enable it to intelligently discuss the issues

between the negotiating parties or to detennine whether



tlie collective bargaining agreement has been violated. It is

plain that an address list does not relate directly to col-

lective bargaining. Indeed, the Board frankly admits that

the list "does not directly relate to a particular subject

of bargaining, nor to a specific disjjute arising during the

terms of and under a contract" (Resp.Br., p. 17). In such

a case, as the Board acknowledges, "the union must dem-

onstrate that the intelligence for which it has asked"

relates to bargaining (Resp.Br., p. 16).

In spite of these admissions, the Board asserts (ibid.,

p. 19) that the address list would facilitate union "ac-

cess" to employees and that for that reason the Company

was obligated to supply it to the Union. The Board thus

erroneously seeks to expand the duty to bargain in good

faith under section 8(a)(5). Instead of requiring an em-

ployer to supply information which would enable a union

to bargain, intelligently, the Board would create a broad

new rule that an eanployer must supply any and all infor-

mation which may be generally helpful to a union. There

is, however, no basis in law for the Board's suggested new

rule.

The Union nuist, as the Board admits (ibid., p. 16),

establish the relevancy of information requested to the

bargaining process. This requirement is clear in the two

cases, relied upon by the Board, which enforce an em-

ployer's duty to bargain in good faith. In Fafnir Bearing

Com.pany v. N. L. R. B. (1966) 362 F.2d 716, 718-721

(Resp.Br., p. 19), the union established that time study

data was necessary for intelligent processing of griev-

ances and the court therefore allowed a union expert to

make such studies within the employer's plant. Similarly,



in Kenai Packers (1963) 144 NLRB 1122 (Resp.Br., p.

21), the contract contained a union shop provision (144

NLRB 1124-1125) and therefore a list of employee names

and addresses obviously was necessary in order to assure

that the employer was abiding by the contract (144 NLRB
1128).

2

The error of the Board's present position is shown by

its reliance ujjon cases which enforce statutory provisions

other than the employer's duty to bargain in good faith

under section 8(a)(5). The Board attempts to support its

main argmnent with cases (Resp.Br., p. 20)—^none of

which was cited in the opinion below—which deal solely

with protection of employee organizational rights

under section 7 of the Act.'^ Not one deals with the em-

l^loyer's duty to bargain in good faith under section

8(a)(5). Similarly, Excelsior Underwear Inc. (1966) 156

NLRB 1236, 1246 (relied upon generally by the Board at

]>p. 26-27), deals with the Board's mandate to assure "the

2The Board erroneously seeks (Resp.Br., p. 21, ftn. 13) to dis-

tinguish its decision in McGulloch Corporation (1961) 132 NLRB
201. In that case, the Board correctly noted that an address list

was "not essential to bargaining" and conclude^l that there is
<<* # # j^Q obligation on the part of an employer to release

information to the bargaining union merely because it is

available and is requested. A reasonable ground for making
the request and necessity for the information must be shown"
(132 NLRB 209-210).

^Those eases are: Labor Board v. Babcock & Wilcox Co. (1956)
351 U.S. 105; Republic Aviation Corp. v. Board (1945) 324 U.S.
793; N. L. R. B. v. 8 & H Grossinger's Inc. (2 Cir. 1967) 372
F.2d 26; National Labor Rel. Bd. v. Lake Superior Lumber Corp.
(6 Cir. 1948) 167 F.2d 147; Richfield Oil Corp. v. National Labor
ReUtions Board (9 Cir. 1944) 143 F.2d 860; and National Labor
R. Board v. Cities Service Oil Co. (2 Cir. 1941) 122 F.2d 149.
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lair and free choice of bargaining representative by

employees" in Board-conducted representation elections

under section 9 of the Act. In that decision, the Board

itself contrasted the issue before it in an election case

"with the substantially different issue of whether the

employers' conduct violated" section 8 of the Act (156

NLRB 1246).

The critical fact remains that the Union at no time

requested the employee address list for collective bargain-

ing purposes. In the absence of such a request, the Com-

pany i^lainly had no duty to supply the list.

B. An employer has no obligation to supply information in

order to increase a union's "strengfth" and its "effective-

ness.
'

'

The Board asserts that "the quoted objective [to

'counter the company propaganda'] would suffice * * *

even had it stood alone" (Resp.Br., p. 22). The basis for

this assertion is the statement that the list would assist

the Union in gaining "strength" and "effectiveness"

(Resp.Br., pp. 25-26). However, as pointed out in our

opening brief (pp. 16-18), such a rationalization can not

justify a holding that an employer "refused to bargain

in good faith" by refusing to provide information for

this purpose alone.

It is obvious that certain information which an em-

ployer could supply to a union might be helpful to the

union. However, a union is not entitled to that informa-

tion simply because it may be lielpful. Ratlier, as the

Board acknowledges (Resp.Br., pp. 14-17), a union must

establish the relevancy of the information to collective



bargaining. In the absence of evidence that the particular

information was sought in order to enable a union to

bargain intelligently, there can bo no violation of section

8(a)(5). The Board does not show that there is any such

evidence in this case, and there is none.

It is perhaps because of this absence of evidence that

the Board seeks to shift the burden to the employer to

show a "legitimate interest" in withholding information

which would contribute to the "strength" and "effective-

ness" of a union (see Resp.Br., pp. 13, 26). Such a shift

in the applicable burden of proof is plainly contrary to

the governing legal i^rinciples which are recognized by

the Board itself (Resp.Br., pp. 14-17). In this regard,

the Board curiously makes much of the established Com-

pany policy not to release the home addresses of its

employees (see Resp.Br., pp. 22, 27). However, the inti-

mation (Resp.Br., p. 27) that tlie Company refused to sup-

ply the list solely because of its established policy without

regard to its other legal obligations has no support in the

record, in the findings of tbe trial examiner, 'or in the find-

ings of the panel of the Board itself. And, in its brief, the

Board four times acknowledges that the request was re-

fused on the grounds that neither "law nor contract"

obligated the Company to supply the list (Resii.Br., pp.

10-11, 22).

Moreover, contrary to the Board's suggestions (R. Vol.

I, p. 33; Resp.Br., pp. 22, 27), we have not argued, and

we do not now argue, that an employer could not be re-

quired, in a proper case, to furnish a union with employee

home addresses if recjuested in connection with and dem-

onstrated to be relevant and necessary to meaningful
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collective bargaining concerning wages, hours and work-

ing conditions.'* That question, however, is not presented

in this case.

In the absence of a statutorily imposed duty to supply

information, an employer plainly is not required to do so.

And, as pointed out in our opening brief (pp. 16-18), the

supplying of such information in the absence of a statu-

tory duty would probably be a violation of section 8(a)(2)

of the Act. As the Board acknowledges, such a list

would contribute to the strength of the Union. The Board

refers to what it characterizes as our ''curious construc-

tion" of section 8(a)(2) (Resp.Br., p. 27). In turn, we can

only refer this Court directly to the language of that sec-

tion which plainly malvcs it unlawful for an employer to

"contribute financial or otlier support" to any labor

organization (Labor Management Relations Act, 61 Stats,

136, 141, 29 U.S.C. 158(a)(2)). The Board simply misses

tlie i)oint when it asserts that our position would result in

the disai)pearance of "much of the duty imposed by Sec-

tions 8(d) and 8(a)(5)" (Resp.Br., p. 27). The point

is that, absent a contractual or statutory duty, an em-

ployer cannot be required to—and indeed is not permitted

to—supply support to a union which will strengthen its

position.

iThe Board's dissenting member (R. Vol. I, p. 39) and the trial

examiner (R. Vol. I, pp. 17-18) expressly took note of this position

in their opinions.
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CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit that

this Court should set aside the Board's order.

Charles F. Prael,

Noble K. Gregory,

Charles E. Voltz,

Walter R. Allan,

Attorneys for Petitioner.

PiLLSBURY, Madison & Sutro,

Of Coimsel.

Certificate of Counsel

I certify that, in connection with the i^reparation of this

brief, I have examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that,

in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full compliance

with those rules.

Noble K. Gregory,

Attorney for Petitioner.
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JURISDICTION

This is a suit for a Refund of Federal Income Taxes, and

interest, allegedly over-paid by both Appellants for the

taxable year 1961. Both Appellants filed timely claims for

refund subsequent to the payment of the tax. In each in-

stance the claims for refund were formally disallowed

and timely Complaints were filed in the Federal District

Court. Jurisdiction was predicated upon 28 U. S. Code,

Section 1346(a).

The cases were consolidated for trial by agreement of

the parties (R. 5).

The Opinion of the District Court (264 Fed. Supp. 85)

was entered on the 8th day of February, 1967. The Judg-

ments in both cases were entered on March 10, 1967.

The Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked under 28

U.S.C., Section 1291.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether expenses incurred by the taxpayer Appellants

during the taxable year 1961 in making tours under the

auspices of the "People to People" program are deductible

for Federal Tax purposes under the provisions of Section

170 of the Internal Revenue Code?

STATUTES INVOLVED

Internal Revenue Code of 1954:

SEC. 170. CHARITABLE, ETC., CONTRIBU-
TIONS AND GIFTS.

[Sec. 170(a)]



(a) ALLOWANCE OF DEDUCTION.

-

(1) GENERAL RULE. -There shall be al-

lowed as a deduction any charitable contribution

( as defined in subsection ( c ) )
payment of which

is made within the taxable year. A charitable con-

tribution shall be allowable as a deduction only if

verified under regulations prescribed by the Secre-

tary or his delegate.

(c) CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTION DEFINED
— For purposes of this section, the term 'charitable

contribution' means a contribution or gift to or for the

use of —

(I) A State, a Territory, a possession of the

United States, or any political subdivision, of any of

the foregoing, or the United States or the District

of Columbia, but only if the contribution or gift is

made for exclusively public purposes.

TABLE OF CASES
Page

Allis-Chalmers Mfg. Co. v. United States,

200 F. Supp.91 (E.D. Wis. 1961) 13

Clark V. C. I. R., 158, F.2d 851 (6 Cir. 1946) 12

Green v. Bookwalter, 207 F. Supp. 866, 878
(W.D. Mo. 1962) 12

Lawless, People Ex. Rel. v. City of Quincy,
69 N.E. 2d 892, 395 111. 190 (1946) 12

Toledo, City of v. Jenkins, 54 N.E. 2d 656,

143 Ohio St. 141 12

STATEMENT
Both Appellants in this proceeding took trips under

the auspices of the "People-to-People" program.



Appellant, Marjorie Heitman, is an unmarried woman
and a resident of Spokane, Washington. She timely filed

her Federal Income Tax for 1961 and paid the tax shown

as due thereon. Subsequent to the filing of the return, the

Internal Revenue Service made an assessment of addi-

tional tax for the year 1961 in the amount of $597.50, which

included interest. The amount was paid on December 4,

1964.

A claim for refund was timely filed. After the refund

was rejected, a Complaint was filed in the Federal Dis-

trict Court seeking a refund in the amount paid.

Appellant, Marjorie Heitman, is a medical doctor ac-

tively engaged in the practice of medicine in Spokane,

Washington. During the year 1961 she expended $1,895.00

for travel in connection with a tour of the Orient spon-

sored by the organization known as the Spokane "People-to-

People" Council. This amount was deducted as a chari-

table contribution on her 1961 Federal Income Tax return.

The disallowance of the charitable deduction by the In-

ternal Revenue Service resulted in the assessment of addi-

tional tax referred to above for the taxable year 1961 (Pre-

Trial Order).

Appellants, Gilbert J. Sheffels and Eleanor Sheffels are

husband and wife, who filed a joint timely Federal Income

Tax return for the taxable year 1961 and paid the tax shown

as due thereon. Subsequent to this, the Internal Revenue

Service assessed additional tax and interest, which said



amount was paid by the Appellants who then filed a timely

claim for refund of such tax.

Appellant Gilbert Sheffels and his brother Robert Shef-

fels are engaged in the business of farming. In 1961 the

Appellants expended $4,230.94 in making a tour of the

Far-East sponsored by the "People-to-People" Council

of Spokane, Washington. The Appellants claimed a chari-

table contribution deduction of $4,230.94 on their 1961

Federal Income Tax return. This amount was disallowed

by the Internal Revenue Service and resulted in the refund

claim referred to above (Pre-Trial Order).

The Local Chapter of the "People-to-People" organiza-

tion in Spokane, Washington, was headed by Dr. Robert

Hunter. The organization was set up partially at the request

of the United States Information Agency (R. 14). The

program itself was the dream of President Eisenhower in

1956 (R. 15, 60, 183) to build a program of communica-

tion between Americans and citizens of other lands in es-

tablishing lasting two-way relationships from which inter-

national friendship and understanding could grow. The

technique was to be direct through "People-to-People" as

distinguished from official government contacts (Ex. 1).

Dr. Hunter's diligence in the "People-to-People" program

resulted in his being nominated to act on the National

Board of Trustees (Ex. 11).

The Spokane "People-to-People" Chapter has an office

located in Spokane, Washington, which is maintained by

volunteer employees (R. 15).
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Trips are arranged on the local level. A leader is picked

and conversations had with individuals who might be in-

terested in the trip (R. 19). Individuals are invited for

reasons connected with their work or activities. The group

then undergoes an orientation session. They have briefings

by experts in the field, meet together, discuss the countries

involved and then undertake the trip. Prior to the tour the

group is briefed by the government in Washington, D. C,

New York City or San Francisco (R. 20).

In order to be chosen for a tour it is mandatory that the

individuals subsequent to the trip maintain their member-

ship in the "People-to-People" organization and participate

in its activities. The Appellants in this case followed the

above procedures (R. 21, 67, 94, 95).

During the trip the individuals meet what is termed

counter-parts in the various countries to further the pur-

poses of the "People-to-People" organization. The trips

involved in this proceeding were work trips (R. 67, 94, 95).

Appellant, Marjorie Heitman, is a doctor, and she headed

a group of nurses who visited counter-parts in hospitals in

the various countries which they visited (R. 62, Ex. 13).

Appellant, Sheffels, is concerned with agriculture (R. 91)

so his particular tour was an agricultural tour with em-

phasis on what the people in foreign countries were doing

(Ex. 17).

The "People-to-People" organization has many func-

tions in the Spokane area other than tours. For example.



they host local foreign college students in their homes at

Christinas and Easter vacation times. In addition, they run

seminars on Americanism ( R. 22, Ex. 8 )

.

The "People-to-People" tours are established by the Local

Chapter. The travel agencies who eventually sponsor the

tour do not establish the itinerary. The travel agency helps

with primary things such as ah" schedules, transportation

and lodging in the various countries visited. Initially, the

travel agency participation was by bid ( T. 23 )

.

As to counter-part meeting with members in foreign

countries, the United States Information Agency does most

of the arrangements with regard to the counter-part meet-

ings and briefings (R. 24, T. 56).

Both Appellants spent sums over and above those claimed

as deductions on the Federal Income Tax returns for the

taxable year 1961 (R. 81, 99).

The Federal District Court disallowed the claims of both

Appellants. (See Opinion).

Prior to the trial the Appellee conceded the only other

issue involved in the Sheffel's case. ( See Judgment )

.

Appellants believe that the District Court Opinion was

in error.
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellants herein each spent a sum of money in making

a tour under the auspices of the "People-to-People" pro-

gram. The purpose of the program, as instituted by Dwight

Eisenhower, was to foster better relationships between

Americans and people of foreign countries through a mutual

understanding.

Appellants on their 1961 Federal income tax returns

deducted part of the tour expenses as a charitable con-

tribution under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Internal Revenue Service disallowed the deductions.

The Federal District Court agreed—at least in part—with

the Government's position.

Appellants assert herein that the Lower Court was in

error since the contributions were made to the United

States and therefore deductible under the provisions of

Section 170 ( c ) ( 1 ) of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Lower Court construed the language of Section

170 ( c ) ( 1 ) too literally. The facts involved in the instant

proceeding bring the contributions within the statute and

the decision to the contrary should be reversed.



ARGUMENT

I

THE EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE TAXPAYER
APPELLANTS DURING THE TAXABLE YEAR I96I
IN MAKING TOURS UNDER THE AUSPICES OF THE
"PEOPLE-TO-PEOPLE" PROGRAM WERE DEDUCT-
IBLE FOR FEDERAL TAX PURPOSES UNDER THE
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 170 OF THE INTERNAL
REVENUE CODE.

In these days when comedians refer to the American

embassies as being just a "stones throw away" the fac-

tual pattern involved in the instant proceeding is indeed

refreshing.

In 1956 President Eisenhower started a program entitled

"People-to-People". The idea was to extend a hand of

friendship from our people to people in foreign countries

(R. 60).

Spokane, Washington, was one of the first four chap-

ters started in the United States. The Spokane chapter

has performed impressively with its activities and interests

in forwarding the ideas initially set forth as objectives by

President Eisenhower (R. 197). The "People-to-People"

program admittedly has relieved some functions of the

State Department (R. 199).

Appellants went on separate "People-to-People" tours

under the auspices of the Spokane chapter and upon their

return deducted, as a charitable contribution, the amoimts

which they spent for transportation. In each instance the
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Appellants spent amounts in excess of those deducted on

theii- Federal tax returns (R. 81 and 99).

Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code entitled

"Charitable Contributions and Gifts" allows as a deduc-

tion any charitable contribution, payment of which is

made within the taxable year to certain defined charitable

organizations. Subsection (c) (1) of Section 170 allows

a deduction to a state, a territory, a possession of the United

States, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing,

or the United States or the District of Columbia, but only

if the contribution or gift is made for exclusively public

purposes.

The District Court, in its Opinion, after reviewing the

facts, felt that under the facts in this case the taxpayers

were the primary beneficiaries and the purposes of the

Government were served only incidentally. In so holding,

the District Court judge stated:

"I can see very little difference between the private

trips made by the ordinary tourist and those made by

the taxpayers here."

Appellants submit that this is erroneous.

The instant case is one of first impression. Appellants

submit that the emphasis on the word "exclusively" by the

Lower Court is erroneous under the factual pattern set

forth herein.



11

First, the Spokane chapter of the "People-to-People"

used a great deal of discretion in picking people for tours.

The people who were picked were required to attend

meetings prior to the trip and to remain a member of the

organization upon their return.

Tour participants were thoroughly briefed locally and

by the United States Information Agency prior to theii" de-

parture. They were told that they would have to work

while on the tour and were expected to continue to do so

upon their return (R. 67).

While on the tour, exhaustive itineraries were prepared

by the United States Information Agency and meetings

were arranged with counter-parts throughout the tour.

Upon their return the participants were expected to spread

the word throughout the community. (R. 75, 98).

Both Appellants in this proceeding following the above

schedule. Mr. and Mrs. Sheffels made written reports (R.

156), filed newspaper articles while en route, and made

countless speeches upon their return (Ex. 20, R. 98, 155

and 160). Their conduct was certainly in keeping with

the overall objective to dispel the "ugly American" image

(T. 171).

Dr. Heitman, as the court indicated, was most diligent

in an effort to secure infonnation and impart counsel

and good will to those whom she met in foreign countries.

The District Court Judge felt that "... the United States
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of America gained materially in stature and good will by

her association with doctors and nurses in foreign lands."

Upon her return to the United States she made several

speeches and at least one trip on behalf of the program

(Ex. 22, R. 76).

The term "exclusively for public purposes" as is used in

Section 170 (c) (1) should not be strictly adhered to. It

is doubtful that any contribution could be made to the

United States of America without some entailing benefit

to the donor. There seems to be nothing available on what

Congress meant in enacting Section 170 ( c ) ( 1 ) , but cer-

tainly they didn't mean to completely limit contributions

which are so publicly beneficial as those concerned in the

instant proceeding.

The cases cited in the District Court Opinion do not

seem applicable. In People Ex. rel Lawless v. Citij of

Quincij, 69 N.E. 2d 892, 395 111. 190 (1946), and the City

.of Toledo V. Jenkins, 54 N.E. 2d 656, 143 Ohio St. 141,

the "use of property" was involved. This of course is dis-

tinguishable from the instant factual situation.

In Green v. Bookwdter, 207 F. Supp. 866, 878 (W.D.

Mo. 1962), one of the purposes of the commission was to

promote a profitable business. Such is not the factual pat-

tern in the instant case.

In Clark v. C.I.R., 158 F.2d 851 (6 Cir. 1946), the Tax-

payer had enabled his son to return to his station in mili-
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tary service. Again, this case does not apply to the instant

factual pattern.

In Allis-Chalmers Mfg. Co. v. United States, 200 F. Supp.

91 (E.D. Wis. 1961), the corporation together with other

parties had contributed a calculator to a state university

with the stipulation that the calculator be made available

by the university to the donors for a twenty year period.

In denying an immediate deduction for the contribution

the court stated as follows:

As used in the statute, the words 'gifts' and 'contri-

butions' contemplate transfers of property without

consideration. A reading of the two agreements which
we hold to be complementary each to the other, clearly

establishes not only the existence of consideration but

reveals a painstaking care on the part of all of the

parties to the two contracts to provide that the con-

sideration or benefits be distributed in substantial

proportion to the contribution made by each individual

party. . . . Where as here the benefits received by the

Contributing Members are so immediate, tangible and
so heavily weighted in their favor, no deduction is

allowable under § 23
( q )

.

In the Allis-Chalmers Manufacturing Company case,

above, it would appear that the amounts were deductible

through depreciation over a period of the twenty years

since they were classified as capital expenditures. The case

does not seem to control in any way the instant proceeding.

If President Eisenhower himself had personally super-

vised the Spokane "People-to-People" organization, he

couldn't have improved its stature. The Appellants sincerely



14

made a worthwhile contribution to the United States of

America.

If the contributions involved herein are not held to be

deductible, the United States has nonetheless been the ben-

eficiary. In recent years there has been an old saying that

in most foreign countries today you can always find the

United States Embassy by "following the mob".

The Spokane chapter of the "People-to-People", the

Appellants, and many like them, are doing what they can

to reverse this situation and lighting at least one candle.

The Appellants submit that the District Court interpreted

Section 170 ( c ) ( 1 ) too literally and should therefore be

reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

FRANCIS J. BUTLER
BUTLER & LUKINS

725 Lincoln Building

Spokane, Washington 99201

JOHN SNODDY
Old National Bank Building

Spokane, Washington 99201
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OPENING BRIEF OF APPELLANT

I. JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Jurisdiction is conferred pursuant to the National

Life insurance Act (68 Stat., 74, 38 U.S.C.A,, Sec.

701-784) and diversity of citizenship under 38 U.S.C.

No. 784.

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

That the appellant, Ruth lola Hoffman, was mar-

ried to Franklin A. Hoffman on August 16, 1925 and

I

lived with him thereafter until a divorce was granted

on the 7th day of March, 1963, in the Superior Court

\
of the State of Washington for King County, being

1 Cause No. 578937 ; that at all times they were resi-

dents of Seattle, King County, Washington.



Tliat Franklin A. Hoifmaij, vvliile enlisted in the

United States Army in the years 1950 and 1951, ob-

tained two National Service Insurance Policies for

$5,000.00 each, in which the appellant, his wife, was

the designated beneficiary.

That in January, 1962, the said Major Franklin A.

Hoffman, a resident of Seattle, King County, Wash-
ington, filed a suit for divorce against his wife in the

said Superior Court for King County, and for a

division of the community property belonging to him
and his wife.

That in said divorce decree the plaintiff, Franklin

A. Hoffman, was ordered and directed by the court

to at all times keep in full force and effect the two

life insurance policies on his life and to keep and

maintain Ruth lola Hoffman the sole beneficiary in

each of said policies during her life time.

That the said Franklin A. Hoffman, in contemptu-

ous violation of said decree of divorce, designated the

ajjpellee. Pearl L. Lechner, as beneficiary in said

policies.

That the said Franklin A. Hoffman died about

April 10, 1964, and thereafter the Veterans Admin-
istration denied the claim of Ruth lola Hoffman to

said insurance money but has not as yet paid insur-

ance money to anyone. That the said Ruth lola Hoff-

man filed suit in the United States District Court for

the Western District of Washington, Northern Di-

vision, Cause No. 6408, against the United States of

America and Pearl L. Lechner, defendants, stating

that she was owner of and entitled to the insurance

money by order of the court which had adjudicated

her the irrevocable beneficiary in the said policies, and



that Franklin A. Hoffman's right to designate a

(jhange of beneficiary in said policies had been ju-

dicially taken away from him.

That the United States filed an answer and comiter-

claim in the nature of an Interpleader, and stands

ready to pay the proceeds of said policies in accord-

ance with the decree of the court. That the appellee

in the District Court denied the claim of Ruth lola

Hoffman's allegation that she was entitled to the pro-

ceeds and claimed the proceeds to be her property.

That a stipulation was entered into between the

parties on or about February 28, 1967 in regard to

the issues and facts and the matter was submitted to

the court upon said stipulation and the motions for

a summary judgment which came on for hearing at

pretrial and resulted in the court's opinion that the

defendant, Pearl L. Lechner, was entitled to the pro-

ceeds of both policies.

IV. SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

THE COURT ERRED:

1) In holding that Pearl L. Lechner was the bene-

ficiary entitled to the proceeds of both [)olicies in the

sum of $10,134.42.

2) In granting the recovery of an attorney fee in

the amount of 10% of the total sum to be paid under

the two policies to the attorneys for Pearl L. Lechnei"

for their services.

3) In holding that Ruth lola Hoffman was not en-

titled to recover said nioiiev- in the sum of $10,134.42.

4) In holding that the judgment in favor of Ruth



lola Hoffman iii the Wasbiiigtoii Superior Court was
not res judicata and binding upon Franklin A. Hoff-

man and his privies, the United States of America
and Pearl L. Lecbner,

V. STATEMENT OF APPELLANT'S POINTS
ON APPEAL

I

1) That the Superior Court judgment in favor of

the appellant, set forth in her complaint, is res judi-

cata of all issues existing in the present case in the

U.S. District Court.

2) That the defendants, United States of America
and Pearl L. Lechner, are in privity with Franklin

A, Hoffman, and each of them is bound by the Su-

perior Court judgment, and concluded by the said

judgment.

3) That the right to the insurance money was a

vested property right and communit}^ asset of the

appellant and her husband, Franklin A. Hoffman, and
disposable as such in the divorce case. Cause No.

578937 in the Superior Court of the State of Wash-
ington for King County.

4) That this suit resolves itself into a controversy

between the claimants to a fund involving property

rights which should be disposed of under the State

law rather than the Federal law.

5) That the judgment herein, appealed to the Cir-

cuit Court, unlawfully takes away the appellant's con-

stitutional rights granted to the appellant by the

Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United

States of America.



ARGUMENT
Tile question involved in this appeal is the same as

before the District Court: which claimant, the plain-

tiff, Ruth lola Hoffman, or the defendant. Pearl L.

Lechner, was entitled to recover a judgment against

the United States of America for the proceeds of two

policies of insurance'?

A Stipulation of Facts was filed on May 28, 1967

(Tr. 19), leaving only questions of law for the District

Court to decide.

The appellant believes the judgment of the court

granting a recovery of $10,134.42 in favor of the ap-

pellee. Pearl L. Lechner, and the recovery of attor-

neys fees in favor of tlie appellee attorneys, is er-

roneous. The judgment of the District Court should

have been in favor of the appellant, Ruth Ida
Hoffman.

The judgment of the Superior Court of the State

of Washington for King County, Cause No. 578937,

decided on March 7, 1963, is res judicata of all facts,

issues and contentions set fortli in the first cause of

action in said Cause No. 6408 in the United States

District Court for the Western District of Washing-
ton, Northern Division.

The said Superior Court case was instituted hy
Franklin A. Hoffman, j^laintiff, vs. Ruth lola Hoff-

man, defendant, in which suit the plaintiff prayed for

a divorce from his wife, and for a division of the

property rights belonging to the parties (Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. 1-Tr).

The said divorce suit was a contested case and re-

sulted in a judgment by the court and the adjudica-
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tioii ut* all property rights; that in tlio court's Find-

ings of Fact it is stated:

*'Tliat the plaintiff and defendant own as com-
munity property the following:

United States Government Life Insurance in

the amount of $10,000.00.

National Service Life Insurance in the amount
of $5,000.00,

and further that

"'The defendant should be entitled to be the bene-
ficiary to both the said National Service Life In-

surance and the said United States Government
Life Insurance, the plaintiff to be required to

pay all premiums, due or to become due, upon
said policies, by having said premiums remitted
directly in payment of said premiums by allot-

ment out of said retirement income or directly

to Ruth lola Hoffman, so that the policies shall

at all times be kept in good standing."

In the said divorce decree the court awarded to

the defendant Ruth lola Hoffman, the life insurance,

to-wit

:

'*IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED
AND DECREED that the defendant be awarded
as her sole and separate property the following

Policy No. 10981, dated August 1, 1947, in the

principal smn of $5,000.00, in the United Serv-

ices Life Insurance Company.

Policies Nos. V 16344154, in the sum of

$5,000.00, effective on or about April 17, 1951,

and No. V 14236542, in the sum of $5,000.00,

effective about April 1, 1950; each of said poli-

cies being in the National Service Life Insur-

ance Company,

including an}" renewals, extensions or conversions

thereof, if any; and the said plaintiff is further



ordered and directed to at all times designate,

keep and maintain Ruth lola Hoffman as the sole

beneficiary in each of said policies during her
lifetime; and plaintiif is further ordered to jjay

the premiums on the said policies as they become
due, by having said premiums paid directly by
remittance out of his said retirement income, or

remitted directly out of said income to Ruth Tola

Hoi¥man; provided, however, in the event that

the premiums cannot ])e paid directly out of said

income i)laintiff shall pay the money direct to

Ruth lola Hoffman so that she can pay the

premiums."

"It is further stipulated that the plaintiff in the

divorce action, Franklin A. Hoffman, was ordered
by the court and directed to at all times keep in

full force and effect Policies No. V 36344154 for

the simi of $5,000.00. and V 14236542 for the sum
of $5,000.00. He was further ordered and directed

to designate and keep the defendant in the di-

vorce action, Ruth lola Hoffman, as the sole bene-

ficiary of each of the policies during her life-

time.'" (Tr. 19)

We claim that the Superior Court had jurisdiction

of the plaintiff, Franklin A. Hoffman and the de-

fendant, Ruth lola Hoffman, and all of their prop-

erty rights, community and separate, and that the

judgment in the divorce action determined said prop-

erty rights, which judgment was final and binding

upon the parties to said suit, including their privies.

In support of said statement, we cite the code and

the following cases:

R.C.W. 26.08.110

Li/nch V. Lynch, 61 Wn (2d 84 (1965)
Morris v. Morn's, 69 Wash. Dec. (2d) 508 (1966)
Loomis r. LoomLs, 47 Wn. (2d) 468 (1955)
Smith V. Smith, 63 Wash. 288 (1911)
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Sears v. Rusden, 39 Wn. (2d) 412 (1951)
McLaughlin v. McLaughlin, 43 Wn. (2d) 111
(1953)"

United Mtg. Co. v. Price, 46 Wn.(2d) 587 (1955)

"ROW 26.08.110. Decree of divorce or annulment
— Finality — Restraining- orders. In all cases

where the court shall grant a divorce or annul-
ment, it shall be for cause distinctly stated in the
complaint, proved, and found l)y the court. Upon
the conclusion of a divorce or annulment trial,

the court must make and enter findings of facts

and conclusions of law. If the court determines
that either party, or both, is entitled to a divorce
or annulment, judgment shall be entered accord-
ingly, granting the party in whose favor the court
decides a decree of full and complete divorce or
annulment, and making such disposition of the

l^roperty of the parties, either connmniity or

separate, as shall appear just and equitable,

having regard to the respective merits of the

parties, to the condition in which they will be
left by such divorce or annulment, to the party
through whom the property was acquired, and
to the burdens imposed upon it for the benefit of

the children, and shall make provision for costs,

and for the custody, support and education of

the minor children of such marriage. Such decree

as to alimony and the care, custody, support and
education of the minor children of such marriage.
Such decree as to alimony and the care, custody,

support and education of the children may be
modified, altered and revii^^ed by the court from
time to time as circumstances may require. Such
decree, however, as to the dissolution of the mari-
tal relation and to the custodij, management and
division of the propertg shall be final and con-

clusive as in civil cases, and provided that the

trial court shall at all times, including the pend-
ency of any appeal, have the power to grant any
and all restraining orders that may be necessary
to protect the parties and secure justice." (Italics
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ours)

The case of United etc. Co. v. Price, supra, was a

contest between the assured 's estate and the named

beneficiary (the divorced wife), each claiming the

proceeds. Prior to this action a divorce decree granted

all insurance policies to the husband in the disposi-

tion of the property rights.

"The administrator of the insured's estate is en-

titled to the proceeds of the insurance policy

under such a decree."

"Such a decree is more than an agreement of

the parties— it becomes the superior court's dis-

position of the property of the parties properly

before it. Unless that be so, the superior court

failed to carry out the mandate of our statute to

make '.
. . such disposition of the property of

the parties ... as shall appear just and equitable'

RCW 28.08.110."

"The interest of the beneficiary in the proceeds

of an insurance policy belonging to the commun-
ity (however the beneficiary's right may be de-

fined) is an asset in which the community has a

very real interest. This is indicated by a long

line of cases, beginning with Occidental Life Ins.

Co. V. Powers (1937) 192 Wash. 475, 74 P. (2d)

27, 114 A.L.R.531, restricting the right of the hus-

l)and, as manager of the conmiunity, to make
anyone except his wife or his estate the bene-

ficiary of such a policy."

In McLaughlin v.. McLaughlin, supra, a divorce

decree was entered. After the judgment became final

the husband filed a motion to reconsider. The superior

court entered a supplemental decree affecting the

home. On appeal, the Supreme Court cites the divorce

code RCW 26.08.110, and in reversing the lower

court states:
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"The decree cannot be modified, since, by the ex-

press terms of the statute, the award as to the
custody, management, and division of property
is final and conchisive, subject only to the right

of appeal. The trial court has no power or juris-

diction to modify it in that respect."

The appellees, Pearl L. Lechner and the United

States of America are each in privity with Franklin

A. Hoffman and each is concluded by the divorce

judgment. We cite the following law and cases in

support of said statement:

Bankin v. Livers, 181 Wash. 370, 43 P. (2d) 42
Rtiffner v. Scott, 46 Wn. (2d) 240
Symington v. Hndson, 40 Wn. (2d) 331
Reed v. Alien, 286 U.S. 191
Ma Chuck Moon v. Bulles, 237 F.2d 241, 152 U.S.
1002
RiUet V. Ideal Cement Co. 54 Wn. (2d) 779

The law is clearly set forth in a quotation from
Sewrs V. Riisden, 39 Wn. (2d) 412:

"In Baskin v. Livers, 181 Wash. 370, 43 F.(2d)
42, this court adopted the following rule:

'A judgment rendered by a court having juris-

diction of the parties and the subject matter,
unless reversed or annulled in some proper
proceeding, is not open to contradiction or im-
peachment, in respect to its validity, verity,

or binding effect, by parties or privies, in any
collateral action or proceeding, except for fraud
in its procnrement" (Italics ours)

and the quotation from Reed v. Allen, supra, decided

by the Supreme Court of the United States: ^

"These decisions constitute a^jplications of the

general and well settled rule that a judgment, not
set aside on appeal or otherwise, is equally ef-
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feetive as an estoppel upon the points decided,

whether the decision be right or wrong, Cornett

V. WiUiams, 20 Wall 226, 249, 250; 22 L.ed. 254

258, 259; Wilson v. Dean, 121 U.S. 525, 534; 30

L.ed. 980."

"The indulgence of a contrary view would result

in creating elements of uncertainty and confusion

and, in undermining the conclusive character of

judgments, consequences which it was the very

purpose of the doctrine of res judicata to avert.

Judgment reversed."

We quote further from First National Bank v.

United States F & G Co., 35 S.E. 2d 47, 162 A.L.R.

1003 (Conn 1945). Two different actions were in-

volved. In the second action res judicata was pleaded.

It was a bar. The court states the rule of res judicata:

"Decisions of our Supreme Court already set

forth the essentials of res judicata. In the very
recent case of Bacjwell v. Hinton, 205 S.C. 377,

32 S.E. 2d. 147, 156, it was said: 'Before the de-

fense of res judicata is made good the folloAving

elements must be shown: (1) The parties must be

the same or their privies; (2) The subject matter
must be the same; and (3) while generally the

precise point must be ruled, yet where the parties

are the same or are in privity the judgment
is an absolute bar not only of what was decided

but of what might have been decided.'

"Privies are those who are so connected with

the parties in estate, or in blood, or in law, as

to be identified with them in interest, and conse-

quently to be affected with them by litigation."

Under the laws of the State of Washington govern-

ment life insurance policies. Veterans pensions and

retirement pay are connnunity assets and disposable

as such in divorce actions. It has been so adjudicated

in the following cases:
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Loomis V. Loomis, 47 Wn.(2d) 468

Morn's v. Morris, 69 Wash. Dec.2iid 508

At all times we claim that the two insurance poli-

cies involved herein are a property right belonging

to Franklin A. Hoffman and Ruth lola Hoffman, his

wife, and that all right and title to said policies were

involuntarily conveyed and set over to Ruth lola

Hoffman in the division of the property rights be-

tween the parties. Such is the Restatement of the

Law, 1942:

"Sec. 110. Judgment as a transfer of title. In an
action involving any property interest, where a

court whicli has jurisdiction over the property
interest renders a judgment which deternmies
that one of the parties has a right or title su-

perior to that of the other party, the judgment
has the effect of an involuntary transfer from tJte

unsuccessful party to the other." (Italics ours)

In support of appellant's Point 5 (Tr. 58) that the

judgment herein unlawfully takes away the appel-

lant's constitutional rights granted by the Fifth

Amendment to the Constitution of the United States,

we cite the following authorities:

Lynch v. United States, 78 L.ed. 1434; 54 S.Ct.

840

Union Pacific B.R. Co. v. United States, 99 U.S.

700; 25 L.ed. 496

Hodges v. Snyder, 43 S.Ct. 435; 67 L.ed. 819

In the case of Lynch v. United States, supra, two

veterans actions brought on war risk term insurance

policies were dismissed in the District Court. Writs of

Certiorari to the Supreme Court were taken, resulting

in a reversal of the lower court. Congress repealed
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the insurance rights in the toHowing- lunguagc iiuoted

from said decision:

"All laws granting or pertaining to yearly re-

newable term insurance.

This repeal, if valid, abrogated outstanding con-

tracts, and relieved the United States from all

liability on the contracts, without making com-
pensation to the beneficiaries."

"Rights against the United States arising out of

a contract with it are protected by the Fifth

Amendment. '

'

"When the United States enters into contract

relations its rights and duties therein are gov-

erned generally by the law applicable to contracts

between private individuals."

"Pensions, compensation allowances and priv-

ileges are gratuities. They involve no agreement
of parties; and the grant of them creates no
vested right. The benefits conferred by gratuities

may be redistributed or withdrawn at any time

in the discretion of Congress."

"On the other hand, WarRisk policies, being

contracts, are property and create vested prop-

erty rights."

In the case of Union Pacific R.R. Co. v. United

States, supra, the court states:

"The United States cannot, any more than a

state, interfere with private rights, except for

legitimate governmental purposes. But, equally

with the states, they are prohibited from de-

priving persons or corporations of property with-

out due process of law."

Hodges v. Snyder, 43 S.Ct. 435; 67 L.ed 819, holds:

"Private rights of parties, which have been
vested by the judgment of a court, cannot be

taken away by subsequent legislation, but must
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thereafter be enforced."

How can Leehner and tlie United States of America

claim that Hoffman had a right to change the bene-

ficiary when the right was judicially taken away from

him I He had left no legal or moral right to attempt

to change the beneficiary. The United States of

America is endeavoring to help enforce a wrong in

favor of Leehner and against the appellant.

We submit that the judgment of the District Court

should be reversed and the judgment be entered in

favor of the appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

William A. Bowles
and

Rodman B. Miller
Attorneys for Appellant.

Office and P. O. Address
687 Dexter Horton Building
Seattle, Washington 98104

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

I certify that in connection with this Brief, I have

examined Rules 18, 19 and 39 of the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that, in

my opinion, the foregoing Brief is in full compliance

with the rules.

Rodjman B. Miller
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No. 21,961

CHECKER VAN & STORAGE OF OAKLAND, INC.,

Appellant,

V.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This action was brought by Checker Van & Storage of Oakland,

Cnc . (hereinafter "Checker"), appellant herein, for a declaratory

judgment against the United States (R. 1). 1/ The complaint

sought a declaration that Checker was not liable to the Uhited

States for an eunount in excess of $10,000 which the United States

isserted was due under a contract between the parties (R. 1-3)'

L/ "R" citations are to the Transcript of Record prepared by
^e clerk.



The complaint alleged that the district court had jurisdiction

over this suit against the United States under the Declaratory

Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201-2202; Section 10 of The Adminis-

trative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. (Supp. II) 701-704; The Wunder-

lich Act, 41 U.S.C. 321, 322; 28 U.S.C. 1331; and Rule 57,

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (R. 1). In resisting the

motion of the United States to dismiss the coir5)laint for lack

of jurisdiction (R. 4l), Checker also asserted jurisdiction for

this claim in excess of $10,000 under the Tucker Act, 28 U.S.C.

1346(a)(2) (R. 48).

The district court granted the motion of the United States

to dismiss (R. 57), holding that there existed no basis of

jurisdiction over this suit against the United States (R. 55-56)

Checker filed a timely notice of appeal (R. 58). The juris

diction of this Court is invoked under 28 U.S.C. I29I.

COUNTERSTATEMENT OP THE CASE

Checker, a public warehouse co!i5)any, entered into contract?

with the United States for the storage of goods of military per

sonnel at approved warehouses at 608 Franklin Street, and 325

Grove Street, Oakland, California (R. 2, 8, 28). On or about

March 2, 1964, goods held by Checker under those contracts were

damaged by a fire while stored in a warehouse at 12th and Pine

Streets, Oakland, California, an area which had not been approvi

for storage. (R. 29.) Thereafter, the Contracting Officer made

a determination under the "disputes" clause of the contracts

that Checker was liable for the damage in an amount in excess

of $10,000 (R. 2).
- 2 -



That decision was appealed by Checker to the Armed Services

Board of Contract Appeals (the ASBCA) (R. 2). After a hearing

on the merits (R. 27) ^ the ASBCA, in two decisions, determined

that Checker was liable under its contract, on the basis of the

facts shown, as a result of its storage of goods in an unauthori-

zed location (R. 27-''<-9) • Those decisions did not deal with the

amount of the damages, however (R. 27) and that question re-

mained pending before the ASBCA. We are advised that, at the

time of this writing, the ASBCA has not yet determined tlie dsimages

for which Checker is liable.

On October 4, 1966, Checker brought this action, alleging

in its complaint that the United States asserted, in accordance

with the decision of the ASBCA, that Checker was liable for the

loss of the goods and had threatened to cancel Checker's con-

tracts with the United States if payment were not made (R. 2-3).

It did not assert that payment of any specified amount had been

demanded or that any threats to cauacel contracts before a final

determination of the ajnount due had been made. 2j

The relief prayed for was a declaration that Checker was

not liable for the amount, in excess of $10,000, vrtiich the United

2/ Indeed, we are advised by the Department of the Army that,
Fy letter of 7 April 1966 from John B. Hook, Esquire, counsel
for Checker's insurance carrier. Checker entered into a defer-
ment agreement by which it agreed to pay whatever amounts were
found by ASBCA to be due. In turn the Army, by letter of 20
April 1966, agreed to defer collection until the ASBCA decision
and not to place Checker on the List of Contractors Indebted To
The United States. If Checker desires, we shall be pleased to
furnish this correspondence to the Court to supplement the record.
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states asserted was due under its contract (R. 3)- Jurisdiction,

at various times, was asserted for this suit against the United

States under The Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201-2202

(R. 1); Section 10 of The Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C.

(Supp. II) 701-704 (R. 1); The Wunderlich Act, 4l U.S.C. 321,

322 (R. 1); Rule 57, F.R. Civ. P. (R. 1); 28 U.S.C. 1331 (R. 1);

and the Tucker Act, 28 U.S.C. 1346(a)(2) (R. 48).

The United States moved to dismiss the action on the

ground that it was an unconsented suit against the United States,

which the court had no Jurisdiction to entertain (R. 4l) . The

district court granted that motion, pointing out that none of the

bases of Jurisdiction asserted by Checker granted consent to this

suit (R. 54-56), and entered Judgment dismissing the action (R.

57). From that order. Checker has prosecuted this appeal.

STATUTES INVOLVED

The Tucker Act, 28 U.S.C. 1346(a)(2), provides:

§ 1346. United States as defendant .

(a) The district courts shall have original
Jurisdiction, concurrent with the Court of Claims,
of: * * «.

(2) Any other civil action or claim
against the United States, not exceeding
$10,000 in amount, founded either upon the
Constitution, or any Act of Congress, or
any regulation of an executive department,
or upon any express or iimplied contract
with the United States, or for liquidated
or unliquidated damages in cases not sounding
in tort.

- 4 -



The Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201, 2202, provides

§ 2201. Creation of remedy .

In a case of actual controversy within
its jurisdiction, except with respect to
Federal taxes, any court of the United
States, upon the filing of an appropriate
pleading, may declare the rights and other
legal relations of any interested party
seeking such declaration whether or not
further relief is or could be sought. Any
such declaration shall have the force and
effect of a final judgment or decree and
shall be reviewable as such.

§ 2202. Further relief .

Further necessary or proper relief
based on a declaratory judgment or decree
may be granted, after reasonable notice
and hearing, against any adverse party
whose rights have been determined by such
judgment

.

Section 10 of The Administrative Procedure Act, now recodi-

'ied as 5 U.S.C. (Supp. II) 702-704, provides in relevant part:

§ 702. Right of review .

A person suffering legal wrong because
of agency action, or adversely affected or
aggrieved by agency action within the mean-
ing of a relevant statute, is entitled to
judicial review thereof.

§ 703. Form and venue of proceeding .

The form of proceeding for judicial re-
view is the special statutory review pro-
ceeding relevant to the subject matter in
a court specified by statute or, in the ab-
sence or Inadequacy thereof, any applicable
form of legal action, including actions
for declaratory judgments or writs of pro-
hibitory or mandatory injunction or habeas
corpus, in a court of competent jurisdiction.
Except to the extent that prior, adequate,
and exclusive opportunity for judicial re-
view is provided by law, agency action is
subject to judicial review in civil or
criminal proceedings for judicial enforce-
ment.

- 5 -



§ 704. Actions reviewable .

Agency action made reviewable by
statute and final agency action for
which there Is no other adequate reme-
dy In a court are subject to judicial
review. * *.

ARGUMENT

Summa ry

This action seeks. In effect, to restrain the United States

from collection of a debt owed to it by Checker; either by

forcing the Government to pay Checker the money It would other--'

wise withhold after the amount of liability Is ascertained, or

by prohibiting It from adding Checker's name to the List of

Contractors Indebted to the United States. We demonstrate

herein that this Is plainly an unconsented suit against the

United States, which cannot be maintained. We show further

that Checker, In this suit. Is seeking to bypass the plain,

slnqple, and adequate remedy which has been provided by Congress

That remedy, designed by Congress to protect the Treasury from

the delsiys possible from the dilatory prosecution of suits of

this sort. Is the payment by Checker of the money ultimately

found by the ASBCA to be due, and suit In the Court of Claims.

Thus, the district court correctly held that It had no juris-

diction to maintain this action.

- 6 -
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THIS IS AN UNCONSENTED SUIT AGAINST THE
UNITED STATES WHICH WAS PROPERLY DIS-
MISSED FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION.

I By this suit. Checker seeks to prevent the United States

rrom proceeding to collect Checker's indebtedness to it once

he precise gunount of the debt has been determined by the ASBCA.

e show herein that Checker's dissatisfaction with the tradi-

tional method of review 3/ does not create jurisdiction in the

aistrict court to entertain this action. Rather, Checker, like

every other person seeking to extract funds from the common weal

by depleting the Treasury, must allow the United States to with-

tiold the amounts found to be due or voluntary pay them, and seek

their recovery in the Congressionally authorized manner - by

suit in the Court of Claims. V All of Checker's objections to

the determination of the ASBCA may be raised in that suit.

I

As a background for the examination of this case, of

Icourse, "we may lay the postulate that without specific statu-
1

tory consent, no suit may be brought against the Uhited States."

United States v. Shaw, 309 U.S. 495^ 500. See also United

States v. Sherwood, 312 U.S. 584; Mine Safety Corporation v.

Forrestal, 326 U.S. 371; Hawaii v. Gordon , 373 U.S. 57; Balistrieri

jv. United States, 303 F. 2d 6l7, 6l9, (C.A. 7). In the circum-

stances, it is plain that the United States has never consented

\/ The method of review already agreed to by its insurance
carrier.

4/ Or, if there is not enough money yet available due on the
contract to allow the Government to withhold to recover the
monies due, it may be necessary for the United States to bring
suit against Checker for the money due. All Checker's objec-
tions may be raised in defense of such a suit. 4l U.S.C. 321, 322.

1 - 7 -



to have a suit of this nature, which seeks to prevent it from

collecting a debt which has been found to be due it from plain-

tiff , maintained in its courts. We now examine each of the allege

sources of jurisdiction for this action proposed by Checker, and i;

demonstrate that none of them constitutes a consent to this suit.

1. The Declaratory Judgment Act plainly is not a consent

by the United States to suit. For, as this Court has pointed
i

out, that act does not create new jurisdiction in the Federal

district courts, but merely adds an additional remedy in those j

cases where a district court already has jurisdiction. Wells

V. United States, 28o F. 2d 275 (C.A. 9). By the passage of

that Act, Congress "enlarged the range of remedies available in

the federal courts, but did not extend their jurisdiction."

Skelly Oil Co. v. Phillips Co. , 339 U.S. 66l , 671. See also

Schilling v. Rogers , 363 U.S. 666, at 677^ where the court

stated:

[T]he Declaratoiy Judgment Act is not
an independent source of federal juris-
diction. * * *. The availability of such
relief presupposes the existence of a judi-
cially remediable right. No such right
exists here.

This Court has regularly recognized that the Declaratory

Judgment Act does not operate as a consent by the United States

*o suit. United States v. Preston , 352 F. 2d 352 (C.A, 9); Stat

of Nevada v. United States , 279 F. 2d 699 (C.A. 9); Wells v.

United States , 280 P. 2d 275 (C.A. 9). and that is, of course,

the general rule. E.^. Clay v. United States , 210 P. 2d 686,

93 U.S. App. D.C. 119 (C.A.D.C), certiorari denied, 3^7 U.S.
- 8 -



'27; Blanc v. United States , 244 F. 2d 708 (C.A. 2), certiorari

lenied, 355 U.S. 874; Anderson v. United States , 229 F. 2d 675

C.A. 5); Lynn v. United States , 110 F. 2d 586, (C.A. 5).

Jalistrieri v. United States , 303 F. 2d 617 (C.A. 7); Choumos

'• United States , 335 F. 2d 918 (C.A. 10).

2. Nor does the Tucker Act, 28 U.S.C. 1346(a)(2), operate

IB a consent by the United States to this suit in the district

ourt. The Tucker Act, of course, allows suit on a contract

(laim by a plaintiff to recover funds in the hands of the Govem-

rsnt. But that Act allows suit only after the money involved is

:i the Treasury, thus insuring that suits of this nature will

ipt, through dilatory prosecution, keep funds otheirwise due the

'xeasury for the common good in private hands for unconscionably

]png periods of time. For a suit of this nature is, in actuality,

in attempt to restrain the Government from acting to collect a

C2bt which has been determined to be due and owing. And such a

Slit is not proper under the Tucker Act. United States v. Jones ,

:31 U.S. 1; Wells v. United States , 280 P. 2d 275 (C.A. 9);

Ilanc V. United States, 244 F. 2d 708 (C.A. 2); certiorari

(ipnied, 355 U.S. 874; I^ynn v. United States , 110 F. 2d 586 (C.A.

See also 6a Moore, Federal Practice 1F57«21[11.

But even if the Tucker Act allowed suit for declaratory re-

f^et against the United States, which it does not, this action

\!3uld have to fail, for the complaint expressly alleges that the

i,£aount in question is In excess of $10,000.00 (R. 1). The Act

iself only allows suit in the district courts for any "civil

, ajtlon or claim against the United States, not exceeding $10,000
I
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in amount " 28 U.S.C. 1346(a)(2). Since this action involves a

civil action or claim exceeding $10,000 in sunount, it could

only be brought in the Court of Claims in any event. Cf.

Barnes v. United States , 24l F. 2d 252 (C.A. 9); United States

v. Tacoma Oriental S.S. Co. , 86 F, 2d 363 (CA. 9).

3. Section 10 of The Administrative Procedure Act does

not grant the district court jurisdiction to entertain this

suit either. For that Act allows review only in courts "of

con5)etent jurisdiction" 5 U.S.C. (Supp. II) 703 • It is quite

clear that that Act may not "be deemed an implied waiver of all"

governmental immunity from suit", Blackmar v. Guerre , 3^2 U.S.

512, 516.

As stated by the Second Circuit:

The purpose of § 10 is to define the pro-
cedure and manner of judicial review of
agency action, rather than to confer juris-
diction upon the courts. Moreover, § 10(c)
of the Act itself excepts from review under
the section agency action for which there
is some "other adequate remedy in any court."
Suit under the Tucker Act in the Court of
Claims provides an adequate remedy for
appellant and precludes his reliance on
§ 10.

Ove Gustavsson Contracting Co. v. Floete , 278 F. 2d 912, 9l4

certiorari denied, 364 U.S. 894. See also Aktiebolaget Bofors

V. United States , 194 F. 2d l45, 90 U.S. App . D.C. 92 (C.A.D.C.

Kansas City Power & Light Co. v. McKay , 225 F. 2d 924, 96 U.S.

App. D. C. 273 (C.A.D.C), certiorari denied, 350 U.S. 884;

Commonwealth of Massachusetts v. Connor , 248 F. Supp. 656 (D.

Mass.), affirmed on opinion of district court, 366 F. 2d 778

(C.A. 1); Choumos v. United States , 335 F. 2d 918 (C.A. 10);

- 10 -



hotter Corp . v. Seaborg , 370 F. 2d 686 (C.A. 10).

Consequently, it is plain that the United States has

lever consented to be sued in this type of action. ^/

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons ^ the judgment of the district

iUourt should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

EDWIN L. WEISL, Jr.,
Assistant Attorney General,

CECIL F, POOLE,
United States Attorney ,

ALAN S. ROSENTHAL,
ROBERT C. McDIARMID,
Attorneys ,

Department of Justice ,

Washington, D. C. 20530

«

%/ Plainly 28 U.S.C. 1331 and Rule 57, F.R. Civ. P., the
5hly remaining grounds for jurisdiction asserted, do not
jonfer jurisdiction over this suit. Indeed, the assertion

. las apparently been abandoned in this Court. The Wunderlich
• Vet, 41 U.S.C. 321, 322, merely specifies the challenges to
the determination of the ASBCA which Checker caniaise in its
Jourt of Claims action or by defense to an action by the
.jovemment.
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